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Statement Regarding Forward-Looking Information

The statements contained in this report on ForriK 1at are not purely historical are forward-logkistatements within the meaning of
applicable securities laws. Forward-looking statetménclude statements regarding our “expectatidasticipations,” “intentions,” “beliefs,”
or “strategies” regarding the future. Forward-laakistatements also include statements regardiremuey margins, expenses, and earnings fo
fiscal 2015 and thereafter; our belief that ourcfices enhance our ability to attract more custamfester an overall enjoyable boating
experience, and offer boat manufacturers stablepesféssional retail distribution and a broad gepbic presence; our assessment of our
competitive advantages, including our no hasslkessapproach, prime retail locations, premium prodéferings, extensive facilities, strong
management and team members, and emphasis on eustervice and satisfaction before and after a §amlat our belief that our core values
of customer service and satisfaction and our gfi@gewill enable us to achieve success and long-tgowth when economic conditions
improve; and our belief that our retailing strategare aligned with the desires of consumers.oflérd-looking statements included in this
report are based on information available to usfakse filing date of this report, and we assumehligation to update any such forward-
looking statements. Our actual results could diffiaterially from the forward-looking statements. émy the factors that could cause actual
results to differ materially are the factors disrdgsunder Item 1/“Risk Factor¢”
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PART I
Item 1. Business
Introduction

Our Company

We are the largest recreational boat dealer itttiteed States. Through 54 retail locations in Alaba Arizona, California, Connecticut,
Florida, Georgia, Maryland, Minnesota, MissouriwNé&ersey, New York, North Carolina, Ohio, OklahoiRapde Island, Tennessee, and
Texas, we sell new and used recreational boatsidimg pleasure and fishing boats, with a focup@mium brands in each segment. We alsc
sell related marine products, including enginesldrs, parts, and accessories. In addition, weigeorepair, maintenance, and slip and storage
services; we arrange related boat financing, imgtgaand extended service contracts; we offer &odityacht brokerage sales; and we operate
yacht charter busines

We are the nation’s largest retailer of Sea Ragt@oWhaler, and Meridian recreational boats amthtga all of which are manufactured
by Brunswick Corporation (“Brunswick”). Sales ofm@runswick boats accounted for approximately 4@%uw revenue in fiscal 2014. Sales
of new Sea Ray and Boston Whaler boats, both divésof Brunswick, accounted for approximately 268 40%, respectively, of our rever
in fiscal 2014. Brunswick is the world’s largestmugacturer of marine products and marine engines bélieve our sales represented
approximately 8% of all Brunswick marine sales/uiding approximately 43% of its Sea Ray boat salasing our fiscal 2014. We have
agreements with Brunswick covering Sea Ray prodaretsBoston Whaler products and are the exclusieded of Sea Ray and Boston Whaler
boats in almost all of our geographic markets. e are the exclusive dealer for Meridian Yachtmist of our geographic markets. We also
are the exclusive dealer for Italy-based Azimut-8&&rGroup, or Azimut, for Azimut mega-yachts, yeghand other recreational boats for the
United States. Sales of new Azimut boats accouifotedpproximately 14% of our revenue in fiscal 20Additionally, we are the exclusive
dealer for certain other premium brands that seev&ain industry segments in our markets as showthétable on page four.

We commenced operations as a result of the Mar&B98 acquisition of five previously independerdreational boat dealers. Since that
time, we have acquired 24 additional previoushejmehdent recreational boat dealers, two boat bagkeoperations, and two fidervice yach
repair operations. We attempt to capitalize onetkigerience and success of the acquired compandedén to establish a high national stanc
of customer service and responsiveness in theyhfgdgmented retail boating industry. As a restilbar emphasis on premium brand boats,
our average selling price for a new boat in fi@il4 was approximately $167,000, an increase afoappately 13% from approximately
$148,000 in fiscal 2013, compared with the induatrgrage selling price for calendar 2013 of appnaxely $41,000 based on industry data
published by the National Marine Manufacturers Asastion. Our stores, which operated at least 12thsgyraveraged approximately $12.7
million in annual sales in fiscal 2014. We considestore to be one or more retail locations thataaijacent or operate as one entity. Our same
store sales increased 11% in fiscal 2012, increh%edin fiscal 2013, and increased 6% in fiscal201

We attempt to adopt the best practices developadgtand our acquired companies as appropriatenanee our ability to attract more
customers, foster an overall enjoyable boating B&pee, and offer boat manufacturers stable anfgs@nal retail distribution and a broad
geographic presence. We believe that our full rasfgeervices, no hassle sales approach, primé ietations, premium product offerings,
extensive facilities, strong management and teamlmes, and emphasis on customer service and séitisfdoefore and after a boat sale are
competitive advantages that enable us to be meponsive to the needs of existing and prospectigtomers. We strive to provide superior
customer service and support before, during, ared tfe sale.

The U.S. recreational boating industry generatgntapmately $36.7 billion in retail sales in calem®013, which is down from the peak
of $39.5 billion in calendar 2006. The retail saledude sales of new and used boats; marine ptedsiech as engines, trailers, equipment, an
accessories; and related expenditures, such asrfsetance, docking, storage, and repairs. Reddgls of new and used boats, engines, trailer
and accessories accounted for approximately $2fiénbof these sales in 2013 based on industra di@m the National Marine Manufacture
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Association. The highly fragmented retail boatindustry generally consists of small dealers tharate in a single market and provide van
degrees of merchandising, professional managermedicustomer service. We believe that many smalkdg are finding it increasingly
difficult to make the managerial and capital conmahts necessary to achieve higher customer sdexiels and upgrade systems and facili
as required by boat manufacturers and often denddmgleustomers. We also believe that many deadetsdn exit strategy for their owners.
We believe these factors contribute to our oppdifun gain a competitive advantage in current auidre markets, through market expansions
and acquisitions.

Strategy

Our goal is to enhance our position as the nati@ading recreational boat dealer. Key elementauofoperating and growth strategy
include the following:

. emphasizing customer satisfaction and loyajtgteating an overall enjoyable boating experiebegjinning with a hassle-free
purchase process, customer training, superior mestservice, compa-led events called Getaway® , and premier facilities

. achieving efficiencies and synergies among ouratjmars to enhance internal growth and profitaki
. promoting national brand name recognition and ttzgiiMax connectior

. offering additional marine products and servicesluding those with higher profit margir

. expanding our Internet marketir

. pursuing strategic acquisitions to capitalipemnithe consolidation opportunities in the highlggimented recreational boat dealer
industry by acquiring additional dealers and relatperations and improving their performance amdifability through the
implementation of our operating strategi

. opening additional retail facilities, including +site retail displays such as mall stores, in oustarg and new territories
. emphasizing employee recruitment and retentiorutiindraining, motivation, and developme

. emphasizing the best practices developed by usandcquired dealers as appropriate throughoutiealerships

. operating with a decentralized approach to theaijmral management of our dealerships;

. utilizing common platform information technolpthroughout operations, which facilitates the iakenge of information sharing
and enhances cre¢-selling opportunities throughout our compa

Development of the Company; Expansion of Business

MarineMax was founded in January 1998. MarineMa&lft however, conducted no operations until thiuisition of five independent
recreational boat dealers on March 1, 1998, andomgpleted our initial public offering in June 19%8nce the initial acquisitions in March
1998, we have acquired 24 additional recreationat Healers, two boat brokerage operations, anduliveervice yacht repair operations.
Acquired dealers operate under the MarineMax name.

We continually attempt to enhance our businessroyiging a full range of services, offering exteresand high-quality product lines,
maintaining prime retail locations, pursuing therMaMax One Price hassle-free sales approach, mpth@sizing a high level of customer
service and satisfaction.

We also evaluate opportunities to expand our oferaby acquiring recreational boat dealers to ealpaur geographic scope, expanding
our product lines, opening new retail locationshivitour existing territories, and offering new puats and services for our customers.

2
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Acquisitions of additional recreational boat deglepresent an important strategy in our goal kaeoe our position as the nation’s
largest retailer of recreational boats. The folimgviable sets forth information regarding the besges that we have acquired and their

geographic regions.

Acquired Companies

Bassett Boat Company of Florida

Louis Del[Homme Marinq

Gulfwind USA, Inc.

Gulfwind South, Inc

Harrison’s Boat Center, Inc. and Harrison’s Mar@enters of
Arizona, Inc. (1)

Stovall Marine, Inc

Cochrar's Marine, Inc. and C & N Marine Corporati

Sea Ray of North Carolina, In

Brevard Boat Compan

Sea Ray of Las Vegas (

Treasure Cove Marina, In

Woods & Oviatt, Inc

Boating World

Merit Marine, Inc.

Suburban Boatworks, In

Hansen Marine, Inc

Duce Marine, Inc. (2

Clark’'s Landing, Inc. (selected New Jersey locationsapetations

Associated Marine Technologies, I

Gulfwind Marine Partners, In

Seaside Marine, In

Sundance Marine, Inc. (.

Killinger Marine Center, Inc. and Killinger Marir@enter of
Alabama, Inc

Emarine International, Inc. and Steven Myers,

Imperial Marine

Port Jacksonville Marin

Port Arrowhead Marina, Int

Great American Marina (¢

Surfside — 3 Marina, Inc.

Treasure Island Marina, LL
Bassett Marine, LLC

Parker Boat Company
Ocean Alexander Yachts

Acquisition Date

Geographic Region

March 199!
March 199!
March 199
March 199!

March 199:
April 1998
July 199¢

July 199¢
September 19¢
September 19¢
September 19¢
October 199
February 199
March 199!
April 199¢
August 199
December 19¢
April 200C
January 20C
April 2002
July 200:

June 200

September 20(
October 200
June 200
June 200
January 20C
February 200
March 200!

February 201
September 20!

March 201.:
April 2014

(1) We subsequently closed the Northern California ati@ns of Harrison Boat Center, Ir
(2) We subsequently closed the operations of Sea Rago¥egas and Duce Marine, i

(3) We subsequently sold the operations of Sundancebldnc.
(4) Joint Venture

Southeast Florid

Dallas and Houston, Tex
West Central Florid,
Southwest Florid:

Northern California and Arizon
Georgia

Minnesota

North and South Carolir
East Central Florid
Nevada

Northern Ohic
Southeast Florid

Dallas, Texa:

Southern New Jerse
Central New Jerse
Northeast Florid:

Utah

Northern New Jerse
Southeast Florid

West Floridz

Southern Californii
Colorado

Northwest Florida and Alaban
Southeast Florid

Baltimore, Marylanc
Northeast Florid:

Missouri, Oklahom:

West Floride

Connecticut, Maryland,
New York and Rhode Islar
Florida Panhandl
Connecticut, Rhode Island,
Western Massachuse

Central Florida
Eastern United Statt
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Apart from acquisitions, we have opened 31 newilreizations in existing territories, excluding s®opened on a temporary basis for a
specific purpose. We also monitor the performarfcauo retail locations and close retail locatiohattdo not meet our expectations. Based on
these factors and the recent depressed economidioos, we have closed 59 retail locations sinad¥t 1998, excluding those opened on a
temporary basis for a specific purpose, includifgrefiscal 2009 and a total of 9 during the ldsee fiscal years.

As a part of our acquisition strategy, we frequertigage in discussions with various recreationat bealers regarding their potential
acquisition by us. In connection with these distrss we and each potential acquisition candidatba@nge confidential operational and
financial information; conduct due diligence inges; and consider the structure, terms, and camditof the potential acquisition. In certain
cases, the prospective acquisition candidate agieds discuss a potential acquisition with anyeotparty for a specific period of time, grants
us an option to purchase the prospective dealex flmsignated price during a specific time peréod] agrees to take other actions designed tc
enhance the possibility of the acquisition, suchraparing audited financial information and cotivey its accounting system to the system
specified by us. Potential acquisition discussioeguently take place over a long period of timd avolve difficult business integration and
other issues, including in some cases, manageranec¢ssion and related matters. As a result of thedether factors, a number of potential
acquisitions that from time to time appear likedyoccur do not result in binding legal agreementsare not consummated.

In addition to acquiring recreational boat deaberd opening new retail locations, we also add newlyrct lines to expand our operatic
The following table sets forth certain of our cuntrproduct lines that we have added to our exidtiogtions during the years indicated.

Product Line Fiscal Yeat Geographic Regions

Boston Whaler 1998 West Central Florida, Stuart, Florida, Dallas, T&

Hatteras Yacht 1999 Florida

Boston Whale 2000 North Palm Beach, Florid

Meridian Yachts 2002 Florida, Georgia, North and South Carolina, Nevedgr Ohio, Minnesota, Texas, and
Delaware

Grady White 2002 Houston, Texa

Boston Whale 2004 North and South Carolir

Boston Whale 2005 Houston

Meridian Yachts 2005 Chattanooga, Tenness

Azimut 2006 Northeast United States from Maryland to Me

Atlantis 2006 Northeast United States from Maryland to Me

Cabo 2006 West coast of Florid

Cabo 2007 East coast of Florid

Azimut 2008 Florida

Meridian Yachts 2008 Arizona and Colorad

Meridian Yachts 2009 Maryland and Delawar

Boston Whale 2009 Southwest Floridi

Harris FloteBote 2010 Arizona, Missouri, Minnesota, New Jersey, and Tesgne

Nautique by Correct Cra 2010 West Central Florida, Georgia, Minnesota, Missoamig Tennesse

Meridian Yachts 2010 California

Harris FloteBote 2011 West Central Florid:

Azimut 2012 United States other than where previously |

Boston Whale 2012 Pompano, Floridi

Harris FloteBote 2012 Alabama, North and Southwest Florida, WrightsviNerth Carolina, and Tex:

Scout 2012 Southeast Florida, Maryland, and New Jel

Sailfish 2013 Connecticut, Brevard and Jacksonville, Florida,Rlarida panhandle, West Central Florida,
New Jersey, New York, North Carolina, Ohio, Rhoslarid, and Texe

Scarab Jet Boa 2013 All geographic regions in which we oper:

Atlantis 2013 Florida

Ocean Alexander Yach 2014 Eastern United State

Scout 2014 Texas, New Yorl

Aquila 2014 Worldwide, excluding Chin

4
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We add brands with the intent to either offer anatign path for our existing customer base orefijap in our product offerings. As a
result, we believe that new brands we offer areglementary and do not cannibalize the businessrgetefrom our other prominent brands.
We also discontinue offering product lines fromaito time, primarily based upon customer preference

During the nine-year period from the commenceménuo operations through our fiscal year ended &aper 30, 2007, our revenue
increased from $291.0 million to more than $1.8dsl Our revenue and net income increased in sef/émose nine years over the prior year
revenue and net income. This period was markedbgaease in retail locations from 41 on Septen®@er1998 to 88 on September 30, 2007
resulting from acquisitions and opening new stamesxisting territories.

Our growth was interrupted during the fiscal yeaderl September 30, 2007, primarily as a resulacibfs related to the deteriorating
housing market and general economic conditions.sTistantially deteriorating economic and financa@iditions, reduced consumer
confidence and spending, increased fuel pricesictezh of credit availability, financial market dees, and asset value deterioration all
contributed to substantially lower financial perfance in the fiscal years ended September 30, 2002009, including significant net losses,
followed by pre-tax losses in the fiscal years eén8eptember 30, 2010 and 2011. We returned totabdfty in fiscal 2012.

Despite weakened industry conditions, we strivengintain our core values of high customer serviwg satisfaction and plan to continue
to pursue strategies that we believe will enablowschieve long-term success and growth when esmnconditions improve. As noted in the
earlier table, we have capitalized on a numberafd expansion opportunities in the markets in Wiie operate. We believe our expanded
product offerings have strengthened our same-stes growth. As economic conditions permit, we péafurther expand our business
through both acquisitions in new territories and/is¢ore openings in existing territories. In adutitiwe plan to continue to expand our other
traditional and newly offered services, includiranducting used boat sales at our retail locatiansffsite locations, and on the Internet; se|
related marine products, including engines, trajlparts, and accessories at our retail locatindsaavarious offsite locations, and through our
print catalog; providing maintenance, repair, atodagje services at most of our retail locationerafg our customers the ability to finance 1
or used boats; offering extended service contractanging insurance coverage, including boat ptgperedit-life, accident, disability, and
casualty coverage; offering boat and yacht brolkessdes at most of our retail locations and aowarbffsite locations; and conducting our
yacht charter business. Our expansion plans wiledd, in large part, upon the return of normal ecais conditions

We maintain our executive offices at 2600 McCorniiokve, Suite 200, Clearwater, Florida 33759, andtelephone number is
(727) 531-1700. We were incorporated in the sth@ataware in January 1998. Unless the contextratise requires, all references to
“MarineMax” mean MarineMax, Inc. prior to its acagition of five previously independent recreatiobaht dealers in March 1998 (including
their related real estate companies) and all ref&®to the “Company,” “our company,” “we,” “us fih“our” mean, as a combined company,
MarineMax, Inc. and the 24 recreational boat deakevo boat brokerage operations, and two fulliseryacht repair operations acquired to
date (the “acquired dealers,” and together withhitekerage and repair operations, “operating sign$és,” or the “acquired companies”).

Our website is located atww.MarineMax.com Through our website, we make available free affgh our annual report on Form 10-K,
our quarterly reports on Form 10-Q, our currenbrepon Form 8-K, our proxy statements, and anyraiments to those reports filed or
furnished pursuant to Section 13(a) or 15(d) of3beurities Exchange Act of 1934. These reportsieaéable as soon as reasonably
practicable after we electronically file those repavith the Securities and Exchange Commissioa (BEC”). We also post on our website the
charters of our Audit, Compensation, and Nomind@ogporate Governance Committees; our Corporatee@awice Guidelines, Code of
Business Conduct and Ethics, and Code of Ethicth®CEO and Senior Financial Officers, and anyradmeents or waivers thereto; and any
other corporate governance materials contemplatedeoSEC or the regulations of the New York Steekhange, or NYSE. These document:
are also available in print to any stockholder esjing a copy from our corporate secretary at ouncipal executive offices. Because our
common stock is listed on the NYSE, our Chief EximeuOfficer is
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required to make an annual certification to the EYsFating that he is not aware of any violatiorusyof the corporate governance listing
standards of the NYSE. Our Chief Executive Offiggrde his annual certification to that effect to MéSE on March 25, 2014.

Business

General

We are the largest recreational boat dealer itUthited States. Through 54 retail locations in Alaba Arizona, California, Connecticut,
Florida, Georgia, Maryland, Minnesota, MissouriyNéersey, New York, North Carolina, Ohio, OklahoRapde Island, Tennessee, and
Texas, we sell new and used recreational boatsidimg pleasure boats (such as sport boats, sposets, sport yachts, and yachts), and
fishing boats, with a focus on premium brands ichesegment.

We are the nation’s largest retailer of Sea Ragt@oWhaler, and Meridian recreational boats amthtga all of which are manufactured
by Brunswick Corporation, or Brunswick. Sales ofwrunswick boats accounted for approximately 4G%uw revenue in fiscal 2014. Sales
of new Sea Ray and Boston Whaler boats, both divésof Brunswick, accounted for approximately 268%d 40%, respectively, of our rever
in fiscal 2014. Brunswick is the world’s largestm$acturer of marine products and marine engines bélieve our sales represented
approximately 8% of all Brunswick marine sales]uing approximately 43% of its Sea Ray boat salasing our fiscal 2014. We have
agreements with Brunswick covering Sea Ray prodaintsBoston Whaler products and are the exclustaded of Sea Ray and Boston Whaler
boats in almost all of our geographic markets. e are the exclusive dealer for Meridian Yachtmist of our geographic markets. We also
are the exclusive dealer for Italy-based Azimut-&&rGroup, or Azimut, for Azimut mega-yachts, yestand other recreational boats for the
United States. Sales of new Azimut boats accoufatedpproximately 14% of our revenue in fiscal 20Additionally, we are the exclusive
dealer for certain other premium brands that sepeific industry segments in our markets as shimyvile table on page four.

We also are involved in other boating-related ati¢is. We sell used boats at our retail locati@mdine, and at various thirgarty marina
and other offsite locations; we sell marine engimed propellers, primarily to our retail customassreplacements for their existing engines
propellers; we sell a broad variety of parts antkasories at our retail locations and at variotsteflocations, and through our print catalog;
we offer maintenance, repair, and slip and stosggeices at most of our retail locations; we offieance and insurance, or F&I, products at
retail locations and at various offsite locationsl & our customers and independent boat dealdrbrakers; we offer boat and yacht brokel
sales at most of our retail locations and at varioffisite locations; and we conduct a yacht chdmsiness in which we offer customers the
opportunity to charter third-party and company od/pewer and sailing yachts in exotic locations.

U.S. Recreational Boating Industry

The total U.S. recreational boating industry getegt@approximately $36.7 billion in retail salescalendar 2013, which is down from the
peak of $39.5 billion in calendar 2006. The retales include retail sales of new and used reoradtboats; marine products, such as engines
trailers, parts, and accessories; and relatedrgpatipenditures, such as fuel, insurance, dockilogage, and repairs. Retail sales of new and
used boats, engines, trailers, and accessoriesrtecbfor approximately $26.9 billion of such salke2013. Annual retail recreational boating
sales were $17.9 billion in 1988, but declined tova of $10.3 billion in 1992 based on industryalptiblished by the National Marine
Manufacturers Association. We believe this decliras attributable to several factors, including@ession, the Gulf War, and the imposition
throughout 1991 and 1992 of a luxury tax on boalks at prices in excess of $100,000. The luxurytas repealed in 1993, and retail boating
sales increased each year thereafter except f&, 2993, and 2007 through 2010.

The recreational boat retail market remains higtdgmented with little consolidation having occutte date and consists of numerous
boat retailers, most of which are small companieseal by individuals that operate in a single mad¢at provide varying degrees of
merchandising, professional management, and custeangce. We believe that many boat retailersesa@untering increased pressure from
boat manufacturers to improve their levels of senand systems, increased competition from largtomal retailers in certain product lines,
and, in certain cases, business succession issues.
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Strategy

Our goal is to enhance our position as the nati@ading recreational boat dealer. Key elementauofoperating and growth strategy
include the following.

Emphasizing Customer Satisfaction and Loyallye seek to achieve a high level of customerfsatisn and establish long-term
customer loyalty by creating an overall enjoyaldating experience beginning with a hassle-freelpase process. We further enhance and
simplify the purchase process by helping to arrdirgacing and insurance at our retail locationthwompetitive terms and streamlined
turnaround. We offer the customer a thorough inewatientation of boat operations where availafdewell as ongoing boat safety,
maintenance, and use seminars and demonstratiotissfoustomer’s entire family. We also continue customer service after the sale by
leading and sponsoring MarineMax Getaways! grougtibg trips to various destinations, rendezvoubeitigs, and on-the-water organized
events to provide our customers with pre-arranggrzbdunities to enjoy the pleasures of the bodifegtyle. We also endeavor to provide
superior maintenance and repair services, ofteutir mobile service at the customer’s wet slip &iill extended service department hours
and emergency service availability, that minimize hassles of boat maintenance.

Achieving Operating Efficiencies and Synergi¥ge strive to increase the operating efficienoieand achieve certain synergies among
our dealerships in order to enhance internal gramth profitability. We centralize various aspedtsertain administrative functions at the
corporate level, such as accounting, finance, arste coverage, employee benefits, marketing, gtcapdanning, legal support, purchasing anc
distribution, and management information systenentf@lization of these functions reduces dupliea@xpenses and permits the dealerships:
benefit from a level of scale and expertise thatild@therwise be unavailable to each dealershijvithdally. We also seek to realize cost
savings from reduced inventory carrying costs essalt of purchasing boat inventories on a natitezal and directing boats to dealership
locations that can more readily sell such boatsgeldiinancing costs through our credit sources;aidme purchase discounts and rebates fol
certain marine products, supplies, and advertisiihg. ability of our retail locations to offer theraplementary services of our other retalil
locations, such as offering customer excursion dppdies, providing maintenance and repair ses/agethe customer’s boat location, and
giving access to broader inventory selections gases the competitiveness of each retail localigrtentralizing these types of activities, our
store managers have more time to focus on themeastand the development of their teams.

Promoting Brand Name Recognition and the Marinel@axnection We are promoting our brand name recognition te tdvantage of
our status as the nation’s only coast-to-coastmeagtailer. This strategy also recognizes thatyneadasting and potential customers who resids
in Northern markets and vacation for substantiaiopis in Southern markets will prefer to purchaseé service their boats from the same well-
known company. We refer to this strategy as therfidviax Connection.” As a result, our signage ensptes the MarineMax name at each of
our locations, and we conduct national advertigingarious print and other media.

Offering Additional Products and Services, Inclgldifhose Involving Higher Profit Margind/NVe plan to continue to offer additional
product lines and services throughout our dealpsséind, when appropriate, online and various eftsitations. We are offering throughout
dealerships product lines that previously have loffamed only at certain of our locations. We atdxain additional product lines through the
acquisition of distribution rights directly from mafacturers and the acquisition of dealerships digtribution rights. In either situation, such
expansion is typically done through agreementsappbint us as the exclusive dealer for a desigrggegraphic territory. We plan to continue
to grow our financing and insurance, parts and ssm@es, service, and boat storage businessestéo erve our customers and thereby
increase revenue and improve profitability of thieggher margin businesses. We also have implemegmtagtams to increase the sale over the
Internet of used boats. In addition, we have eisfladll a yacht charter business and are conduatiggams to sell used boats, offer F&I
products, and sell boating parts and accessorieiaus offsite locations.

Marketing over the InternetOur web initiatives span across multiple websiteguding our core siteyww.MarineMax.com The
websites provide customers with the ability to tearore about our company and our products. Our itgefgenerates direct sales and provides
our stores with leads to potential customers fov aad used boats, brokerage sales, finance anchimseiproducts, and repair and maintenanc
services. In addition, we utilize various feedebsites and social networking websites to drive taithl traffic and leads for our various
product and service offerings. As mentioned abaxealso maintain multiple online storefronts fosmmers to purchase used boats and a
variety of boating parts and accessories.
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Pursuing Strategic AcquisitiondVe capitalize upon the significant consolidatopportunities available in the highly fragmented
recreational boat dealer industry by acquiring petelent dealers and improving their performancepaafitability through the implementatic
of our operating strategies. The primary acquisifcus is on well-established, high-end recreatitwoat dealers in geographic markets not
currently served by us, particularly geographickets with strong boating demographics, such asaxihin the coastal states and the Great
Lakes region. We also may seek to acquire boatde#iat, while located in attractive geographickats, have not been able to realize
favorable market share or profitability and that t&nefit substantially from our systems and opegattrategies. We may expand our range o
product lines, service offerings, and market pextigtn by acquiring companies that distribute retto@al boat product lines or boating-related
services different from those we currently offes @&result of our considerable industry experiaragrelationships, we believe we are well
positioned to identify and evaluate acquisitiondidates and assess their growth prospects, théyqobhtheir management teams, their local
reputation with customers, and the suitabilityhsit locations. We believe we are regarded asteactive acquirer by boat dealers because of
(1) the historical performance and the experiemzeraputation of our management team within thestry; (2) our decentralized operating
strategy, which generally enables the managers atquired dealer to continue their involvemerdéalership operations; (3) the ability of
management and employees of an acquired dealartioipate in our growth and expansion through piigé stock ownership and career
advancement opportunities; and (4) the abilityfferdiquidity to the owners of acquired dealersotigh the receipt of common stock or cash.
We have entered into an agreement regarding atiqnsiwith the Sea Ray Division of Brunswick. Undee agreement, acquisitions of Sea
Ray dealers will be mutually agreed upon by us $@a Ray with reasonable efforts to be made todiectubalance of Sea Ray dealers that
been successful and those that have not been.gréeraent provides that Sea Ray will not unreasgnatthhold its consent to any proposed
acquisition of a Sea Ray dealer by us, subjedigaonditions set forth in the agreement, as fudlescribed in “Business — Brunswick
Agreement Relating to Acquisitions.”

Opening New FacilitiesWe intend to continue to establish additionaitdacilities in our existing and new markets whaarkets
conditions improve. We believe that the demograpbifoour existing geographic territories suppoet tipening of additional facilities, and we
have opened 31 new retail facilities, excludingsthopened on a temporary basis for a specific pagmince our formation in January 1998.
We also plan to reach new customers through vaimmmyative retail formats developed by us, sucha#l stores and floating retail facilities.
We continually monitor the performance of our refzcations and close retail locations that domeet our expectations or that were opened
for a specific purpose that is no longer relevBased on these factors since March 1998, we hagea!59 retail locations, excluding those
opened on a temporary basis for a specific purpgnskiding 26 in fiscal 2009.

Emphasizing Employee Recruitment and Retentionubwrdraining, Motivation, and Developmerwe devote substantial efforts to
recruit employees that we believe to be exceptipned!l qualified for their position and to traiioemployees to understand our core retail
philosophies, which focus on making the purchasz lodat and its subsequent use as hassle-freepoyélele as possible. Through our
MarineMax University, or MMU, we teach our retalifpsophies to existing and new employees at varlogations and online, through
MMU-online. MMU is a modularized and instructor-leducational program that focuses on our retapinigpsophies and provides instruction
on such matters as the sales process, customéresdf&l, accounting, leadership, and human ressirc

Emphasizing Best Practice¥Ve emphasize the best practices developed bgdusw@ acquired dealers as appropriate throughaut o
locations. As an example, we have implemented hagge sales approach at each of our dealershikerdhe MarineMax One Price hassle-
free sales approach, we sell our boats at pricesrghy representing a discount from the manufactsisuggested retail price, thereby
eliminating the anxieties of price negotiationstthecur in most boat purchases. In addition, wepatlte best practices developed by us ant
acquired dealers as applicable, considering logatiesign, layout, product purchases, maintenamdeepair services (including extended
service hours and mobile or dockside servicesdymrbmix, employee training, and customer educadiuth services.

Operating with Decentralized ManagemeiYe maintain a generally decentralized approathdgmperational management of our
dealerships. The decentralized management apptakes advantage of the extensive experience of tlogaaagers, enabling them to
implement policies and make decisions, includiregappropriate product mix, based on the needsedbttal market. Local management
authority also fosters responsive customer seacepromotes long-
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term community and customer relationships. In aaoldjtthe centralization of certain administrativadtions at the corporate level enhances tf
ability of local managers to focus their effortsdmy-to-day dealership operations and the customers

Utilizing Technology Throughout Operationg/e believe that our management information systeinich currently is being utilized by
each of our dealerships and was developed ovemb@uof years through cooperative efforts with mown vendor, enhances our ability to
integrate successfully the operations of our dehlps and future acquired dealers. The systenittaes the interchange of information and
enhances cross-selling opportunities throughoutompany. The system integrates each level of tipasaon a company-wide basis,
including purchasing, inventory, receivables, ficiahreporting, budgeting, and sales managemem.syetem also provides sales
representatives with prospect and customer infaomdhat aids them in tracking the status of tleeintacts with prospects, automatically
generates follow-up correspondence to such prosplecilitates the availability of boats companydejilocates boats needed to satisfy
particular customer requests, and monitors the tea@mce and service needs of customers’ boats:eprasentatives also utilize the computer
system to assist in arranging customer financiryiasurance packages. Our managers use a web-foa$éal access essentially all financial
and operational data from anywhere at any time.

Products and Services

We offer new and used recreational boats and celatine products, including engines, trailersigand accessories. While we sell a
broad range of new and used boats, we focus onipmebrand products. In addition, we assist in agiag related boat financing, insurance,
and extended service contracts; provide boat maantze and repair services; offer slip and storageramodations; provide boat and yacht
brokerage sales; and conduct a yacht charter lassine

New Boat Sale:

We primarily sell recreational boats, includinggsdare boats and fishing boats. A number of theymisdwve offer are manufactured by
Brunswick, the leading worldwide manufacturer afreational boats, including Sea Ray pleasure bBaiston Whaler fishing boats, and
Meridian Yachts. In fiscal 2014, we derived appmately 40% of our revenue from the sale of new $a@nufactured by Brunswick. Sales of
new Sea Ray and Boston Whaler boats, both divigbBsunswick, accounted for approximately 26% a0é6, respectively, of our revenue in
fiscal 2014. We believe that we represented apprataly 8% of all of Brunswick’s marine product satkuring that period. Certain of our
dealerships also sell luxury yachts, fishing boait&] pontoon boats provided by other manufactuireehjding Italy-based Azimut. In fiscal
2014, we derived approximately 14% of our revemoenfthe sale of new boats manufactured by Azimutirig fiscal 2014, new boat sales
accounted for 65.2% or $407.3 million of our revenu

We offer recreational boats in most market segméutishave a particular focus on premium qualigaglre boats and yachts as refle
by our fiscal 2014 average new boat sales pri@ppfoximately $167,000, an increase of approximétd®s from approximately $148,000 in
fiscal 2013, compared with an estimated industerage selling price for calendar 2013 of approxéiya$41,000 based on industry data
published by the National Marine Manufacturers Asastion. Given our locations in some of the moiftuaht, offshore boating areas in the
United States and emphasis on high levels of custaervice, we sell a relatively higher percentafgarge recreational boats, such as mega-
yachts, yachts, and sport cruisers. We believetiigaproduct lines we offer are among the highaatity within their respective mark
segments, with well-established trade-name reciognéind reputations for quality, performance, atytirsy.

The following table is illustrative of the rangedaapproximate manufacturer suggested retail peinge of new boats that we currently
offer, but is not all inclusive.

Overall Manufacturer Suggestec
Product Line and Trade Name Length Retail Price Range
Motor Yachts
Azimut 40 to 11€+ $600,000 to $12,000,00(
Hatteras Motor Yacht 54' to 10C + 2,000,000 to 10,000,00(
Ocean Alexander Yach 72 to 158+ 3,500,000 to 35,000,00(
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Convertibles

Hatteras Convertible 54 to 77+ 2,000,000 to 7,000,00C
Cabo 36 to 57 500,000 to 2,000,000
Pleasure Boats

Sea Ray 19 to 6% 25,000 to 3,000,00
Atlantis 34 to 5¢ $450,000 to $2,300,00C
Meridian 34 to 5¢ 400,000 to 1,800,00
Aquila 38 to 4¢ 480,000 to 1,200,00
Harris FloteBote 16 to 2¢ 15,000 to 150,00
Crest 19 to 2% 20,000 to $90,00
Fishing Boats

Boston Whale 171 to 47 12,000 to 1,000,00
Grady White 18 to 37 40,000 to 600,00
Scout 17 to 3% 20,000 to 500,00
Sailfish 19 to 37 37,000 to 275,00
Ski Boats

Nautique by Correct Cra 21 to 2% 70,000 to 190,00
Jet Boats

Scarak 19 to 2¢ 20,000 to 80,00

Motor Yachts Hatteras Yachts, Ocean Alexander Yachts, and Azare three of the world’s premier yacht builddiise motor yacht
product lines typically include state-of-the-arsidms with liveaboard luxuries. Hatteras offers a flybridge witbe@sive guest seating; cove
aft deck, which may be fully or partially enclosedoviding the boater with additional living spaes; elegant salon; and multiple staterooms
for accommodations. Azimut yachts are known foirtAenericanized open layout with Italian design graverful performance. The luxurious
interiors of Azimut yachts are accented by windand multiple accommodations that have been desifprazbmfort. Ocean Alexander
Yachts are known for their excellent engineerirgrfgrmance, and functionality combined with luxgrigpically found on larger mega yachts.

Convertibles Hatteras Yachts and Cabo Yachts are two of thédiggoremier convertible yacht builders and of$éate-of-theart design:
with live-aboard luxuries. Convertibles are prinhafishing vessels, which are well equipped to nthetneeds of even the most serious
tournament-class competitor. Hatteras featuresiamgethat offer luxurious salon/galley arrangensemultiple staterooms with private heads,
and a cockpit that includes a bait and tackle eefislhbox, and freezer. Cabo is known for spacioukpits and accessibility to essentials, <
as bait chests, livewells, bait prep centers, ankll¢ lockers. Cabo interiors offer elegance, higitied by teak woodwork, halogen lighting, i
ample storage areas.

Pleasure Boats Sea Ray and Meridian pleasure boats target hetlukury and the family recreational boating m#sland come in a
variety of configurations to suit each customeagstigular recreational boating style. Sea Ray spachts and yachts serve the luxury segment
of the recreational boating market and includedbfhe-line living accommodations with a salonpéyf equipped galley, and multiple
staterooms. Sea Ray sport yachts and yachts aitetde@an cabin, bridge cockpit, and cruiser mod&lea Ray sport boat and sport cruiser
models are designed for performance and depentyaibilmeet family recreational needs and includeynat the features and accommodation:
of Sea Ray'’s sport yacht and yacht models. Meridfort yachts and yachts are known for their gpdiformance and thoughtful use of space
with 360-degree views and spacious salon, galiey,séateroom accommodations. Meridian sport yaaidsyachts are generally available in
sedan and motoryacht models. All Sea Ray and Maerigieasure boats feature custom instrumentatamihy include an electronics packe
various hull, deck, and cockpit designs that catuihe a swim platform; bow pulpit and raised bridged various amenities, such as swivel
bucket helm seats, lounge seats, sun pads, wetdsltsin ice chests, and refreshment centers.tNdes. Ray and Meridian pleasure boats
feature Mercury or MerCruiser engines. We belietlamtis sport cruisers offer a unique-on-the-watgrerience with the Azimut expertise
expressed in a design concept that merges spartividsthe comfort and relative ease of navigatfquila power catamarans provide form,
function, and offer practicality and comfort wittend setting innovation. Harris FloteBote is on¢h&f most innovative and premium pontoon
boats offered and provides a variety of modelsttodaters’ needs. Crest provides a variety of ljgality pontoon models to meet family
recreational needs.
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Fishing Boats The fishing boats we offer, such as Boston Wh&eady White, Scout, and Sailfish, range fromefewvel models to
advanced models designed for fishing and watettsjpotakes, bays, and off-shore waters, with cabiith limited live-aboard capability. The
fishing boats typically feature livewells, in-defikhboxes, rodholders, rigging stations, cockpaming pads, and fresh and saltwater
washdowns.

Ski Boats The ski boats we offer are Nautique by CorreetfiCwhich range from entry level models to advahe®dels and all of whic
are designed to achieve an ultimate wake for irsg@akier and wakeboarder performance and safatl.aVariety of designs and options,
Nautique ski boats appeal to the competitive anckadional user alike

Jet Boats The Scarab jet boats we offer range from entrglimodels to advanced models, all of which aregies! for performance ar
with exclusive design elements to meet family ratiomal needs. With a variety of designs and oggtitime jet boats we offer will appeal to a
broad audience of jet boat enthusiasts as welkiatireg customers.

Used Boat Sales

We sell used versions of the new makes and modelsfier and, to a lesser extent, used boats of otlaées and models generally taken
as trade-ins. During fiscal 2014, used boat salesumted for 16.8% or $104.9 million of our revenaied 69.7% of the used boats we sold
were Brunswick models.

Our used boat sales depend on our ability to scausagply of high-quality used boats at attracgiviees. We acquire substantially all of
our used boat inventory through customer tradeWssintend to continue to increase our used bosihbkss as a result of the availability of
quality used boats generated from our new boas sdferts, the increasing number of used boatsatetvell-maintained through our service
initiatives, our ability to market used boats thgbaut our combined dealership network to match b&ad demand, and the experience of our
yacht brokerage operations. Additionally, substdlytiall of our used boat inventory is posted on website, which expands the awareness
availability of our products to a large audiencdoéting enthusiasts. We also sell used boatsratugsamarinas and other offsite locations
throughout the country.

To further enhance our used boat sales, we oféeBthinswick Product Protection warranty plan avdédor used Brunswick boats less
than nine years old. The Brunswick Product Pradedtilan applies to each qualifying used Brunswic&tbwhich has passed a 48-point
inspection, and provides protection against faibfrenost mechanical parts for up to three yearsbéleve these programs enhance our sales
of used Brunswick boats by motivating purchasenssad Brunswick boats to complete their purchads@sigh our Brunswick dealerships.

Marine Engines, Related Marine Equipment, and Boadj Parts and Accessorie

We offer marine engines and propellers, substan@dll of which are manufactured by Mercury Marirsedivision of Brunswick. We sell
marine engines and propellers primarily to retagtomers as replacements for their existing engingsopellers. Mercury Marine has
introduced various new engine models that redugaeremissions to comply with current Environmemtadtection Agency requirements. See
“Business — Environmental and Other RegulatorydssuAn industry leader for over seventy-five yediercury Marine specializes in state-
of-the-art marine propulsion systems and accessdvlany of our dealerships have been recognizeddrgury Marine as “Premier Service
Dealers.” This designation is generally awardeddam meeting certain standards and qualifications.

We also sell a broad variety of marine parts amgs&ories at our retail locations, at various tfications, and through our print
catalog. These marine parts and accessories inoladee electronics; dock and anchoring productsh ®s boat fenders, lines, and anchors;
boat covers; trailer parts; water sport accessosigsh as tubes, lines, wakeboards, and skiesyempgirts; oils; lubricants; steering and control
systems; corrosion control products, service prtsjudégh-performance accessories, such as progeliat instruments; and a complete line of
boating accessories, including life jackets, irsftaés, and water sports equipment. We also offeelhoitems, such as shirts, caps, and license
plates bearing the manufacturer’s or dealer’s lofyoall of our parts and accessories businesajtiiee our industry knowledge and
experience to offer boating enthusiasts high-gqualibducts with which we have experience.
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The sale of marine engines, related marine equipraed boating parts and accessories, which aterajible products, accounted for
5.1% or $32.3 million of our fiscal 2014 revenue.

Maintenance, Repair, and Storage Servic

Providing customers with professional, prompt nmetiaince and repair services is critical to our sefiests and contributes to our
success. We provide maintenance and repair ser@igasst of our retail locations, with extended/smr hours at certain of our locations. In
addition, in many of our markets, we provide molpilaintenance and repair services at the locatidheofustomer’s boat. We believe that this
service commitment is a competitive advantage énntlarkets in which we compete and is critical toeftorts to provide a troubl&ee boating
experience. To further this commitment, in cer@fimur markets, we have opened stafmhe maintenance and repair facilities in locatitrat
are more convenient for our customers and thaeaser the availability of such services. We als@belthat our maintenance and repair
services contribute to strong customer relatiorshipd that our emphasis on preventative mainteremateuality service increases the
potential supply of well-maintained boats for osed boat sales.

We perform both warranty and nevarranty repair services, with the cost of warramork reimbursed by the manufacturer in accord;
with the manufacturer’'s warranty reimbursement prog For warranty work, most manufacturers, inaigddrunswick, reimburse a
percentage of the dealer’'s posted service labes ratith the percentage varying depending on thakede customer satisfaction index rating
and attendance at service training courses. Weealtre majority of our warranty revenue from Brui@dwproducts, as Brunswick products
comprise the majority of products sold. Certaineotmanufacturers reimburse warranty work at a fixeaunt per repair. Because boat
manufacturers permit warranty work to be perforraely at authorized dealerships, we receive sulisthnall of the warranted maintenance
and repair work required for the new boats we 3élé third-party extended warranty contracts werodlso result in an ongoing demand for
our maintenance and repair services for the duratigdhe term of the extended warranty contract.

Our maintenance and repair services are performedanufacturer-trained and certified service tectamis. In charging for our
mechanics’ labor, many of our dealerships use iabigrrate structure designed to reflect the difficand sophistication of different types of
repairs. The percentage markups on parts are siyrfilased on manufacturer suggested prices andatnenkditions for different parts.

At many of our locations, we offer boat storages®ess, including in-water slip storage and insidd autside land storage. These storag
services are offered at competitive market ratekimciude in-season and winter storage.

Maintenance, repair, and storage services accotimitgd2% or $45 million of our revenue during @014 of which, 4.8% or $29.8
million related to repair services, 1.0% or $6.3ion related to parts and accessories for repaind, 1.4% or $8.7 million related to income
from storage service rentals. This includes wayrant non-warranty services.

F&I Products

At each of our retail locations and at various ibdftocations where applicable, we offer our custosrithe ability to finance new or used
boat purchases and to purchase extended servitmatsrand arrange insurance coverage, includiag froperty, credit life, and accident,
disability, and casualty insurance coverage (cbllety, “F&I"). We have relationships with varioustional marine product lenders under
which the lenders purchase retail installment @u#r evidencing retail sales of boats and otheim@groducts that are originated by us in
accordance with existing pre-sale agreements betweand the lenders. These arrangements peritaitraseive a portion of the finance
charges expected to be earned on the retail imstatl contract based on a variety of factors, iriolgidhe credit standing of the buyer, the
annual percentage rate of the contract chargduetbuyer, and the lender’s then current minimunuired annual percentage rate charged to
the buyer on the contract. This participation isjsat to repayment by us if the buyer prepays theract or defaults within a designated time
period, usually 90 to 180 days. To the extent neglby applicable state law, our dealerships asnbed to originate and sell retail installment
contracts financing the sale of boats and otheimagroducts.
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We also offer third-party extended service congaetder which, for a predetermined price, we prevll designated services pursuant te
the service contract guidelines during the contierch at no additional charge to the customer aldodeductible. While we sell all new boats
with the boat manufacturer’s standard hull and magvarranty, extended service contracts providé&iaddl coverage beyond the time frame
or scope of the manufacturer’s warranty. Purchasfeused boats generally are able to purchase ten@xd service contract, even if the
selected boat is no longer covered by the manuktsuvarranty. Generally, we receive a fee foaaging an extended service contract. Most
required services under the contracts are provigads and paid for by the third-party contract leold

We also are able to assist our customers with ppe@runity to purchase credit life insurance, aeotdand disability insurance, and
property and casualty insurance. Credit life insaeapolicies provide for repayment of the boatriitiag contract if the purchaser dies while
the contract is outstanding. Accident and disahbifisurance policies provide for payment of the thigncontract obligation during any period
in which the buyer is disabled. Property and caguasurance covers loss or damage to the boatd®\fet act as an insurance broker or agen
or issue insurance policies on behalf of insutdts.do, however, provide marketing activities arftkotrelated services to insurance companie
and brokers for which we receive marketing fees @our strategies is to generate increased magkites by offering more competitive
insurance products.

During fiscal 2014, fee income generated from Fé&dducts accounted for 2.6% or $16.1 million of cewenue. We believe that our
customers’ ability to obtain competitive financiggickly and easily at our dealerships complemeutsability to sell new and used boats. We
also believe our ability to provide customer-tagldifinancing on a “same-day” basis gives us anradga over many of our competitors,
particularly smaller competitors that lack the rases to arrange boat financing at their dealessbigghat do not generate sufficient volume to
attract the diversity of financing sources thatarailable to us.

Brokerage Sale:

Through employees or subcontractors that are lembhsat or yacht brokers where applicable, we diffet or yacht brokerage sales at
most of our retail locations. For a commission,offer for sale brokered boats or yachts, listingnthon various internet sites, advising our
other retail locations of their availability thrdugur integrated computer system, and posting themur web siteywyww.MarineMax.com
Often sales are co-brokered, with the commissidih lsgtween the buying and selling brokers. Wednadithat our access to potential used boce
customers and methods of listing and advertisirggorners’ brokered boats or yachts is more exteribae is typical among brokers. In
addition to generating revenue from brokerage ca@simins, our brokerage sales also enable us toaffevad array of used boats or yachts
without increasing related inventory costs. Duriisgal 2014, brokerage sales commissions accodate?i5% or $15.4 million of our revent

Our brokerage customers generally receive the $aghelevel of customer service as our new and bsad customers. Our waterfront
retail locations enable in-water demonstrationarobn-site brokered boat. Our maintenance andrrseaiices, including mobile service, also
are generally available to our brokerage custonTdre.purchaser of a boat brokered through us @sdake advantage of MarineMax
Getaways! weekend and day trips and other rendezyatherings and in-water events, as well as buertation and safety seminars. We
believe that the array of services we offer argueiin the brokerage business.

Yacht Charter

We recently launched a yacht charter business iohake offer customers the opportunity to chartwer and sailing yachts in exotic
destinations, starting with our initial locationtime British Virgin Islands. In this business, vedl specifically designed yachts to third parties
for inclusion in our yacht charter fleet; entemigacht management agreements under which yactgrevemable us to put their yachts in our
yacht charter program for a period of four to fixgars for a fixed monthly fee payable by us; prevadir services in storing, insuring, &
maintaining their yachts; and charter these yathtscation customers at agreed fees payable tBhesyacht owners will be able to utilize the
yachts for personal use for a designated numbeeeks during the term of the management agreemertiate possession of their yac
following the expiration of the yacht managementagents. During fiscal 2014, the income from rsndé chartering power and sailing
yachts accounted for 0.6% or $3.6 million of oureneue.
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Offsite Sales

We sell used boats, offer F&I products, and sefispand accessories at various third-party offsitations, including marinas.

Retail Locations

We sell our recreational boats and other marindymts and offer our related boat services throughefail locations in Alabama,
Arizona, California, Connecticut, Florida, Geordidaryland, Minnesota, Missouri, New Jersey, NewR/®torth Carolina, Ohio, Oklahoma,
Rhode Island, Tennessee, and Texas. Each retafldaaggenerally includes an indoor showroom (inzigdsome of the industry’s largest
indoor boat showrooms) and an outside area fofalisgy boat inventories, a business office to assistomers in arranging financing and
insurance, and maintenance and repair facilities.

Many of our retail locations are waterfront propeston some of the nation’s most popular boatigtions, including the San Diego Bay
in California; Norwalk Harbor and Westbrook HarliiConnecticut; multiple locations on the Intradeh$Vaterway, the Atlantic Ocean,
Biscayne Bay, Boca Ciega Bay, Naples Bay, Tampa 8agy the Saint Andrews Bay in Florida; Lake LaimeGeorgia; Chesapeake Bay in
Maryland; Lake Minnetonka, and the St. Croix RiweMinnesota; Lake of the Ozarks and Table Rockd.imkMissouri; Barnegat Bay, Lake
Hopatcong, Little Egg Harbor Bay, and the Manasdraer in New Jersey; Great South Bay, the HudsimeriRand Huntington Harbor in
New York; Masonboro Inlet in North Carolina; LakedEin Ohio; Grand Lake in Oklahoma; Newport Harbad Greenwich Bay in Rhot
Island; Tennessee River in Tennessee; and Clear &adt Lake Lewisville in Texas. Our waterfront ildtecations, most of which include
marina-type facilities and docks at which we digmar boats, are easily accessible to the boatipylace, serve as in-water showrooms, and
enable the sales force to give customers immeifiat@ter demonstrations of various boat models. t\bsur other locations are in close
proximity to water.

Operations
Dealership Operations and Manageme

We have adopted a generally decentralized approsttie operational management of our dealershislé/gertain administrative
functions are centralized at the corporate lewelall management is primarily responsible for thg-taday operations of the retail locations.
Each retail location is managed by a store managey,oversees the day-to-day operations, persoanélfinancial performance of the
individual store, subject to the direction of aiceml manager, who generally has responsibilitytffierretail locations within a specified
geographic region. Typically, each retail locatadso has a staff consisting of an F&l manager,respaanager, and a service manager, sales
representatives, maintenance and repair technjcasvarious support personnel.

We attempt to attract and retain quality employmeproviding them with ongoing training to enharsedes professionalism and product
knowledge, career advancement opportunities waHarger company, and favorable benefit packagesmaintain a formal training program,
called MarineMax University or MMU, which providésining for employees in all aspects of our opgeret. Training sessions are held at our
various regional locations covering a variety gfits. MMU-online offers various modules over théemet. Highly trained, professional sales
representatives are an important factor to ouressfal sales efforts. These sales representatigdsained at MMU to recognize the
importance of fostering an enjoyable sales prodessjucate customers on the operation and u$e dfdats, and to assist customers in ma
technical and design decisions in boat purchades oVerall focus of MMU is to teach our core rétajlvalues, which focus on customer
service.

Sales representatives receive compensation primarih commission basis. Each store manager imaeshemployee with incentive
bonuses based on the performance of the managkutsteia. Maintenance and repair service managesye compensation on a salary basis
with bonuses based on the performance of theirrttepats. Our management information system provédeh store and department manage
with daily financial and operational informatiomabling them to monitor their performance on aydaileekly, and monthly basis. We have a
uniform, fully integrated management informatiosteyn serving each of our dealerships.
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Sales and Marketing

Our sales philosophy focuses on selling the plessaf the boating lifestyle. We believe that thidaal elements of our sales philosophy
include our appealing retail locations, no-hasalesapproach, highly trained sales representating!s level of customer service, emphasis or
educating the customer and the customer’s familgaating, and providing our customers with oppattes for boating through our
MarineMax Getaways!. We strive to provide supeciestomer service and support before, during, ated tfe sale. Our team and customers
are United by Water®.

Each retail location offers the customer the opputy to evaluate a variety of new and used baatsGomfortable and convenient
setting. Our full-service retail locations facitiéaa turn-key purchasing process that includeadiiwe lender financing packages, extended
service agreements, and insurance. Many of oui letations are located on waterfronts and matimdsch attract boating enthusiasts and
enable customers to operate various boats prioraking a purchase decision.

The brands we offer are diverse in size and usea8pacross our customer activities of leisurdjrig, watersports, luxury, and
vacations. We believe the transformative qualitiethe water should be shared by everyone, so eated our boat lineup accordingly. Our
promise gives them meaning and reason to existtnette another on our showroom floor.

We sell our boats at posted MarineMax “One” Prited generally represent a discount from the mantufar’s suggested retail price.
Our sales approach focuses on customer servicarbgnining customer anxiety associated with pricgatetion.

As a part of our sales and marketing efforts, auine marketing activity is important, with the rogjy of leads coming through our
website www.MarineMax.com and emails used as the primary marketing toobforstores to connect with their customers. Souidia is a
growing venue for customer engagement with stondspgospecting of new leads.

We also participate in boat shows and in-the-wsdées events at area boating locations, typicalgt im January and February and
toward the end of the boating season, in each ofmaukets and in certain locations in close progrte our markets. These shows and events
are normally held at convention centers or marinét, area dealers renting space. Boat shows dret offsite promotions are an important
venue for generating sales orders. The boat shiseganerate a significant amount of interest inproducts resulting in boat sales after the
show.

We emphasize customer education through onereneducation by our sales representatives asonat locations, our delivery captal
before and after a sale, and through in-house semfor the entire family on boating safety, the aad operation of boats, and product
demonstrations. Typically, one of our delivery eaps or the sales representative delivers the oweste boat to an area boating location and
thoroughly instructs the customer about the opematf the boat, including hanas instructions for docking and trailering the bdai enhanc
our customer relationships after the sale, we &atisponsor MarineMax Getaways! group boating topgarious destinations, rendezvous
gatherings, and on-the-water organized eventsptioatote the pleasures of the boating lifestyle hEmmmpany-sponsored event, planned and
led by a company employee, also provides a faveratgdium for acclimating new customers to boatihgyring exciting boating destinations,
creating friendships with other boaters, and enghlis to promote new product offerings to boatintpesiasts.

As a result of our relative size, we believe weehavcompetitive advantage within the industry bipgpeble to conduct an organized and
systematic advertising and marketing effort. Paduw marketing effort includes an integrated custo relationship management system that
tracks the status of each sales representativatacis with a prospect, automatically generatdeviolp correspondence, and facilitates
company-wide availability of a particular boat dher marine product desired by a customer.

Suppliers and Inventory Manageme!

We purchase substantially all of our new boat inegndirectly from manufacturers, which allocatewlgoats to dealerships based on the
amount of boats sold by the dealership. We alsbaxge new boats with other dealers to accommodaterner demand and to balance
inventory.
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We purchase new boats and other marine-relatedipt®ffom Brunswick, which is the world’s largesamufacturer of marine products,
including Sea Ray, Boston Whaler, Harris FloteBatel Meridian. We also purchase new boats and athene related products from other
manufacturers, including Azimut, Cabo, HatteragdyrWhite, Scout, Sailfish, Malibu, and Nautique@uyrrect Craft. In fiscal 2014, sales of
new Brunswick and Azimut boats accounted for apipnakely 40% and 14% of our revenue, respectivedyeSof new Sea Ray and Boston
Whaler boats, both divisions of Brunswick, accodrfex approximately 26% and 10%, respectively, af @venue in fiscal 2014. No
purchases of new boats and other marine relatatlipt® from any other manufacturer accounted forenioan 10% of our revenue in fiscal
2014. We believe our Sea Ray boat purchases repeglsapproximately 43% of Sea Ray’s new boat sales approximately 8% of all
Brunswick marine product sales during fiscal 2014.

We have entered into multi-year agreements witmBwick covering Sea Ray, Boston Whaler, and Menigheoducts. We also have a
multi-year agreement with Azimut-Benetti Group fisr Azimut product line. We typically deal with daof our manufacturers, other than
Brunswick and Azimut-Benetti Group, under an anlyugnewable, non-exclusive dealer agreement.

The dealer agreements do not restrict our rigetbany product lines or competing products presithat we are in compliance with the
material obligations of our dealer agreements. t€hms of each dealer agreement appoints a desijgatgraphical territory for the dealer,
which is exclusive to the dealer provided thatdkaler is able to meet the material obligationgsodealer agreement.

Manufacturers generally establish prices on an alnmasis, but may change prices at their sole elieer. Manufacturers typically
discount the cost of inventory and offer inventbnancing assistance during the manufacturers’ sleasons, generally October through
March. To obtain lower cost of inventory, we strivecapitalize on these manufacturer incentivaske product delivery during the
manufacturers’ slow seasons. This permits us to gacing advantages and better product availghdiitring the selling season. Arrangements
with certain other manufacturers may restrict dgintrto offer some product lines in certain markets

We transfer individual boats among our retail lama to fill customer orders that otherwise migiikd substantially longer to fill from t
manufacturer. This reduces delays in delivery, haepmaximize inventory turnover, and assists immmzing potential overstock or out-of-
stock situations. We actively monitor our inventteyels to maintain levels appropriate to meetenranticipated market demands. We are
bound by contractual agreements governing the atafunventory that we must purchase in any yeamfany manufacturer, but the failure to
purchase at agreed upon levels may result in ggedbcertain manufacturer incentives or dealersglgs. We participate in numerous end-of-
summer manufacturer boat shows, which manufactgpmsor to sell off their remaining inventory educed costs before the introduction of
new model year products, typically beginning in t8egber.

Inventory Financing

Marine manufacturers customarily provide interesistance programs to retailers. The interesttassis varies by manufacturer and r
include periods of free financing or reduced ingerate programs. The interest assistance mayibdepactly to the retailer or the financial
institution depending on the arrangements the naaurfer has established. We believe that our fimgrerrangements with manufacturers are
standard within the industry.

We account for consideration received from our wesdn accordance with FASB Accounting Standarddif@ation 605-50, “Revenue
Recognition—Customer Payments and Incentives” (“A86-50"). ASC 605-50 requires us to classify iag¢rassistance received from
manufacturers as a reduction of inventory costratated cost of sales as opposed to netting thstaisse against our interest expense incurre
with our lenders. Pursuant to ASC 605-50, amouwetsived by us under our co-op assistance prognamsdur manufacturers are netted
against related advertising expenses.

We are party to an Inventory Financing Agreemerd (Amended Credit Facility”) with GE Commercialdbiibution Finance
Corporation. The Amended Credit Facility providefoar plan financing commitment of up to $235.0lon. The Amended Credit Facility
matures in August 2017 and is subject to extenfsiotwo one-year periods, with lender approval.
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The interest rate under the Amended Credit Fadgi§45 basis points above the one-month LondardBank Offering Rate (“LIBOR).
There is an unused line fee of ten basis pointhemnused portion of the line.

The Amended Credit Facility has certain financ@alenants. The covenants include provisions thatew@rage ratio not exceed 2.75 to
1.0 and that our current ratio must be greater thario 1.0. As of September 30, 2014, we wer@mpliance with all the covenants under the
Amended Credit Facility.

The initial advance under the Amended Credit Rgoilias used to pay off our prior credit facilityut®sequent advances will be initiated
by the acquisition of eligible new and used inveyptar will be re-advances against eligible new asdd inventory that has been partially paid-
off. Advances on new inventory will generally maur,080 days from the original invoice date. Adwmneon used inventory will mature 361
days from the date we acquire the used inventaghERdvance is subject to a curtailment scheduiesharequires that we pay down the
balance of each advance on a periodic basis gjafiar six months. The curtailment schedule vavesed on the type of inventory and the
value of the inventory.

The collateral for the Amended Credit Facility isad our personal property with certain limitedoeptions. None of our real estate has
been pledged for collateral for the Amended CrEditility.

As of September 30, 2014, we owed $124.4 milliodesrthe Amended Credit Facility. Outstanding shenn borrowings accrued
interest at a rate of 3.6% as of September 30,,281dithe Amended Credit Facility provided us veithadditional net borrowing availability
approximately $38.2 million, based upon the outditagn borrowing base availability. We have no indelstess associated with our real estate
holdings.

Management Information Syster

We believe that our management information systennch is utilized by each of our dealerships and deaveloped over a number of
years through cooperative efforts with a commordeenenhances our ability to integrate successthliyoperations of our dealerships i
future acquisitions, facilitates the interchangénéérmation, and enhances cross-selling oppotiesithroughout our company. The system
integrates each level of operations on a compamlg-Wwasis, including purchasing, inventory, recdestfinancial reporting, budgeting, and
sales management. The system enables us to meaitbrdealership’s operations in order to identifickly areas requiring additional focus
and to manage inventory. The system also providies sepresentatives with prospect and customemiation that aids them in tracking the
status of their contacts with prospects, automidfigenerates follow-up correspondence to suchgeots, facilitates the availability of a
particular boat company-wide, locates boats nesalsdtisfy a particular customer request, and mosithe maintenance and service needs of
customers’ boats. Company representatives aldpeutiie system to assist in arranging financingiasdrance packages.

Brunswick Agreement Relating to Acquisitions

We and the Sea Ray Division of Brunswick are paitiean agreement that provides a process forciipgisition of additional Sea Ray
boat dealers that we elect to acquire. The agreeexéends through August 31, 2017, with automatitual one-year extensions at each twelv
month anniversary of the agreement, provided thatlealer agreements with the Sea Ray DivisionrahBwick are still then in effect. Under
the agreement, acquisitions of Sea Ray dealerdwifhutually agreed upon by us and Sea Ray widoredble efforts to be made to include a
balance of Sea Ray dealers that have been sudcasdfthose that have not been. The agreementda®that Sea Ray will not unreasonably
withhold its consent to any proposed acquisitioa &ea Ray dealer by us, subject to the condienhorth in the agreement. Among other
things, the agreement provides for us to provide &y with a business plan for each proposed dtiquisincluding historical financial and
five-year projected financial information regarditng acquisition candidate; marketing and advedigilans; service capabilities and
managerial and staff personnel; information regaydhe ability of the candidate to achieve perfarotastandards within designated periods;
and information regarding the success of our prevacquisitions of Sea Ray dealers. The agreenmntantemplates Sea Ray reaching a
good faith determination whether the acquisitiorulddoe in its best interest based on our dedicatimhfocus of resources on the Sea Ray
brand and Sea Ray'’s consideration of any advefsetetthat the approval would have on the resuligngtory configuration of adjacent or
other dealers and the absence of any violatiopplieable laws or rights granted by Sea Ray torsthe
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Dealer Agreements with Brunswick

We and the Sea Ray Division of Brunswick and BosMiraler, Inc. are parties to Sales and Service é&gemnts relating to Sea Ray and
Boston Whaler products respectively, effective 8ejtiter 1, 2014 and extending through August 31, 2@itvautomatic annual one-year
extensions at each twelve-month anniversary oaffreement, provided that we are not in breachrotrial term of the agreement, following
written notice and expiration of applicable cureigpds without cure (certain termination provisi@are summarized below).

The agreements appoint certain of our operatingidigries as a dealer for the retail sale, dispag, servicing of all Sea Ray or Boston
Whaler products, parts, and accessories currently the future sold by Sea Ray or Boston Whalempplicable. The agreements specify a
designated geographical territory and dealer regidocation for the dealer, which is exclusivatie dealer. The agreement also specifies |
locations, which the dealer may not close, chaogadd to without the prior written consent of teevant manufacturer, provided that such
manufacturer may not unreasonably withhold its eahsThe manufacturer reserves the right to matiéyterritory or appoint other dealers to
sell, display, and service product from dealer fioces within the territory at any time if we cloaalealer location without prior written notice
Sea Ray and prior written approval by Sea Ray, lwhiitl not be unreasonably withheld or in the caéBoston Whaler, in the event that a
dealer location fails to meet performance standattke carrying competitive product following weth notice and a period of 60 days to cure
or 6 months for matters for which a cure cannatdrapleted in 60 days. The agreements also restgadealer from selling, advertising (other
than in recognized and established marine pubdioa}i soliciting for sale, or offering for resal®ygoroducts outside its territory except as
otherwise provided by the relevant manufacturedigeatising policy or other applicable policy asdoas similar restrictions also apply to all
domestic dealers selling comparable products. ditiad, the agreements provide for the lowest pobgwices charged by the relevant
manufacturer from time to time to other domestialdis, subject to the dealer meeting all the requénts and conditions of applicable
programs and the right of the manufacturer in giadtth to charge lesser prices to other dealersdetraxisting competitive circumstances, for
unusual and non-ordinary business circumstancdsy timited duration promotional programs.

Among other things, the dealer agreements reqaitk dealer to achieve performance standards imgudventory stocking levels,
provision of annual sales forecasts, submissiaraérs pursuant to the manufacturer’s current lupitogram, unit retail sales, customer
satisfaction and marketing support. The sales pmdace will be in accordance with fair and reastmatandards and sales levels established
by the manufacturer in collaboration with the dealesed on factors such as population, sales patemiairket share percentage of products
sold in the territory compared with competitive gats sold in the territory, product availabilitycal economic conditions, competition, past
sales history, historical product mix and stockimgctices, existing product inventory, number ¢ditdocations, and other special
circumstances that may affect the sale of the agleproducts or the dealer, in each case establlisiee manner similar to those applied to
domestic dealers selling comparable products.

The dealer is also required to maintain at eachildetation, or at another acceptable locatioservice department that is properly sta
and equipped to service Sea Ray or Boston Whabetugts, as applicable, promptly and professioreig to maintain parts and supplies to
service such products properly on a timely basigprovide or arrange for warranty and service worksuch products.

Sea Ray and Boston Whaler respectively have eaeleddo indemnify us against any losses to thirtiggresulting from their respect
negligent acts or omissions involving the desigmanufacture of any of its products or any breachi bf the agreement. We have agreed to
indemnify Sea Ray or Boston Whaler respectivelyirsiany losses to third parties resulting from wegligent acts or omissions involving the
dealer’s application, use, or repair of Sea Ragaston Whaler products respectively, statementefesentation not specifically authorized
by the relevant manufacturer, the installationrof after-market components or any other modificatio alteration of the products, and any
breach by us of the agreement.

The agreements may be terminated:

. by the manufacturer, upon 60 days’ prior writtetice, if we do not have an ability to purchpsaducts via flooring or self-financing or
fail to meet our financial obligations as they bmeodue to the relevant manufacturer or to our les)
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. as to any dealer region, or in the case of @o8Yhaler, any dealer location, if we are failiogtieet performance standards and begin
selling, displaying or advertising products tha eompetitive with the products being sold underabreement (other than products of
another Brunswick brand or new products currerdlyied), if we do not cure our failure within 90ydaafter written notice, or if we are
meeting the performance standards and then s#dliteyfto meet performance standards after begmaealling, displaying or advertising
products that are competitive with products soldarthe agreement (other than products of anotherdBvick brand or new products
currently carried) and do not cure our failure Wwith months after written notice, or with respecBoston Whaler and dealer’s locations
in New York, in the event such dealer locationsfail meet performance standards and does not ecinef@lure within 6 months after
written notice;

. with respect to the Sea Ray agreements, bgraitarty upon prior written notice to the otheregiwvithin 60 days after thetanniversary
of the agreement, with termination effective atehe of the P year, failing which the agreement will renew fo8 gear term beginning
on the 7hanniversary; with respect to the Boston Whaler ements, by either party upon prior written notigeghte other given within €
days after the #anniversary of the agreement, with terminationaife at the end of the®Byear, or which the agreement will renew
a 2 year term beginning on thé¢hanniversary

. with respect to Sea Ray, following the 7th aersary of the agreement, upon 24 months’ noticev{th respect to Boston Whaler,
following the 5thanniversary of the agreement, upon 12 months’ eptin the event of a material breach or defaulirof of the material
obligations, performance standards, covenantseseptations, warranties or duties imposed in theemgent or in the applicable
manufacturer’s policies or programs applicabledmdstic dealers which breach is not cured duriegntitice period and through the
parties working in good faith to resolve any iss

. by Sea Ray or Boston Whaler, as applicablesarpon 60 days’ written notice if the other makdsaudulent misrepresentation that is
material to the agreement or in the event of tkelirency, bankruptcy, or receivership of the ot

. by Sea Ray or Boston Whaler, as applicable, iretlent of the assignment of the agreement by thieideéhout the prior written conse
of Sea Ray or Boston Whaler, as applica

. by Sea Ray or Boston Whaler, as applicablenwgtdeast 60 days’ prior written notice in the mvef the commission by dealer of an act
of fraud upon Sea Ray or Boston Whaler, as apgdkcalo the commission by us or one of our officafra felony or act of fraud which is
materially detrimental to Sea Ray’s or Boston WHaleespective reputation or business or which naltgimpairs our ability to perfori
our duties under the agreement or we fail to paylamder financing products under the agreemeet &fie sale of products by us;

. upon the mutual consent of Sea Ray or Boston Whadeapplicable, and
Either party may elect to not extend the term atdkpiration of each applicable 12 month periothmevent of a material breach or
default by the other of any of the material obligas, performance standards, covenants, represergtatvarranties, or duties imposed by the

agreement or the manufacturer’s manual that iseroedied or cured following notice thereof. In gwent of a remedy or cure, the additional
12 month period shall be added to the term.

Dealer Agreements with Azimut

We are parties to Dealership Agreements with AziBeretti S.P.a. for the retail sale, display, asising of designated Azimut
products and parts sold by Azimut. The Dealerstgpe&ments extend through September 1, 2015, subjadditional one year periods added
each year provided that we are able to agree id fgith on acceptable retail sales goals. The dgsije agreements grant us the exclusive righ
to sell the Azimut products and parts in designggahraphical areas. Among other things, each dmeagreement requires the applicable
dealer to:

. display the Azimut products in the most appropraatd effective manne
. maintain an adequate inventory of Azimut producis meet mutually agreed upon minimum purchase reangnts

. use commercially reasonable best efforts to estaliie best image for Azimut and to promote thessaf the product:
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. operate through at least one permanent office $areradequate promotion of the produ

. maintain adequate signage to show Azimut at its@dfor service yard

. promote the products at various events and mee!

. advertise and market the products in accordandeagteed upon marketing plans and budg
. attend boat shows and display a full range of b

. maintain appropriate and adequate ~sale service

. provide assistance under warranty for all boathéngeographical are

. comply with Azimu’s warranty procedures; a

. perform maintenance services for Azimut bo

Azimut has agreed to indemnify each of our deaggnst any losses resulting from an alleged brefwlarranty or injury or damage
caused by a defect in design, manufacture or aggerha product. Each of our dealers has agreeddemnify Azimut against any losses
resulting from the dealer’s failure to comply withy material obligation with respect to a productwstomer; any actual negligence, errors or

omissions in connection with the sale, preparatiepairs, or service of products; any modificatiéiproducts except as approved by Azimut; :
breach of any material agreement; or unauthorizadamties, misleading statements, misrepresengatiodeceptive or unfair practices.

Each dealer agreement may be terminated upon 30ty written notice in event that the defaultjpayty has not remedied a default
during such period, in the event of any of thedaihg:
. by Azimut or dealer, for failure of the other toimtain a necessary licens

. by Azimut or dealer, for the change, transterattempted transfer by the other party of theleloo any part of the agreement other
than to an affiliate as part of a corporate restmieg or any change in control without the prionsent of Azimut

. by Azimut or dealer, for the knowing submissairan intentional fraudulent statement, appligati@quest, refund, credit, or
warranty claim;

. by Azimut or dealer, for the knowing use of a ddisepor fraudulent practice in the sale of a prdd

. by Azimut or dealer, for the indictment for or caction of a crime or violation of law which will k& an adverse and material ef
on the othe’'s reputation or operation

. by Azimut or dealer, for the other entering intoagmeement or understanding to fix prices for tfaslpcts;

. by dealer for Azimut’'s material and continudasure to supply product or appointing anotherldemn the territory or failure to
fulfill warranty obligations;

. by Azimut for deal€’s abandonment of operations or failure to mainbaisiness as a going conce

. by Azimut for dealer’'s material and continuda#ure to represent, promote, sell, or serviceptaucts, achieve minimum yearly
sales or comply with purchase orders as agreeliébpdrties considering various factors such astbaomy, the Euro impact,
product availability, and growth potentii

. by Azimut or dealer for the insolvency, bankiayy commencement of bankruptcy proceedings, appeaint of a receiver or other
officer with similar powers, levy under attachmegdarnishment or execution, or similar process, Wiscmot vacated or removed
within ten days; an

. by mutual agreement of the dealer and Azir

Upon termination of the dealer agreements by Aziwitliout cause, termination by dealer with caus# monrenewal and expiration,
Azimut is required to repurchase unsold inventoithin sixty days of termination.
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Employees

As of September 30, 2014, we had 1,228 employe&23 bf whom were in store-level operations and dld@hom were in corporate
administration and management. We are not a pawmyy collective bargaining agreements. We congiderelations with our employees to
excellent.

Trademarks and Service Marks

We have registered trade names and trademarkgheitd.S. Patent and Trademark Office for variouses including “MarineMax,”
“MarineMax Getaways!,” “MarineMax Care,” “Deliveninthe Dream,” “MarineMax Delivering the Boating @re,” “Newcoast Financial
Services,” “MarineMax Boating Gear Center,” “MarMax Vacations,” “United by Water” and “Women on \Wat We have registered the
name “MarineMax” in the European Community, ChiAastralia, and Cuba; “Maximizing Your Enjoyment thre Water” in the European
Community, Cuba, and Australia; and “United by Watae the European Community, Australia and Cuba Weehieade names and trademe
registered in Canada for various names, includMgrineMax,” “Delivering the Dream,” and “The Watéene.” We have various trade name
and trademark applications including “MarineMax{Jriited by Water,” and “Maximizing Your Enjoyment dater” pending in Australia,
Brazil, China, Cuba, European Union, and India.réfean be no assurance that any of these apphsatidl be granted.

Seasonality and Weather Conditions

Our business, as well as the entire recreationatifgindustry, is highly seasonal, with seasopalitrying in different geographic
markets. Over the threeear period ended September 30, 2014, the aveeagaue for the quarters ended December 31, Marchud® 30, ar
September 30 represented approximately 18%, 25%, atd 26%, respectively, of our average annuamegs. With the exception of Flori
we generally realize significantly lower sales dngher levels of inventories and related short-teorrowings, in the quarterly periods ending
December 31 and March 31. The onset of the publit &nd recreation shows in January generally sites boat sales and typically allows us
to reduce our inventory levels and related shartrieorrowings throughout the remainder of the fisesr.

Our business is also subject to weather patternshwnay adversely affect our results of operatiéis example, prolonged winter
conditions, drought conditions (or merely reducaidfall levels) or excessive rain, may limit accasarea boating locations or render boating
dangerous or inconvenient, thereby curtailing anstodemand for our products. In addition, unsedsgraol weather and prolonged winter
conditions may lead to a shorter selling seasaeitain locations. Hurricanes and other stormsccoegult in disruptions of our operations or
damage to our boat inventories and facilities,aslieen the case when Florida and other marketsaffeccted by hurricanes. Although our
geographic diversity is likely to reduce the oveirapact to us of adverse weather conditions in @mg market area, these conditions will
continue to represent potential, material advestes to us and our future financial performance.

Environmental and Other Regulatory Issues

Our operations are subject to extensive regulasopervision, and licensing under various fedestake, and local statutes, ordinances,
and regulations. While we believe that we maingimequisite licenses and permits and are in c@npé with all applicable federal, state, anc
local regulations, there can be no assurance thatilvbe able to maintain all requisite licensesl @ermits. The failure to satisfy those and
other regulatory requirements could have a matadaérse effect on our business, financial conditamd results of operations. The adoption
of additional laws, rules, and regulations coukbdiave a material adverse effect on our busiMesfous federal, state, and local regulatory
agencies, including the Occupational Safety andtRiédaministration, or OSHA, the United States Howvimental Protection Agency, or EPA,
and similar federal and local agencies, have jiatigoh over the operation of our dealerships, refagilities, and other operations with respect
to matters such as consumer protection, workefetysaand laws regarding protection of the envirentnincluding air, water, and soil.

The EPA has various air emissions regulations fitb@ard marine engines that impose more strict®aris standards for two-cycle,
gasoline outboard marine engines. The majorithefdutboard marine engines we sell are manufachydédercury Marine. Mercury Maring’
product line of low-emission engines, including GptiMax, Verado, and other four-stroke outboahdsje achieved the EPé&\mandated 20C
emission levels. Any increased costs of producitgjrees resulting from EPA standards, or the ingbdf our manufacturers to comply with
EPA requirements, could have a material adverseedh our business.
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Certain of our facilities own and operate undergibstorage tanks, or USTs, for the storage of uarjmetroleum products. The USTSs are
generally subject to federal, state, and local lamd regulations that require testing and upgradfigSTs and remediation of contaminated
soils and groundwater resulting from leaking USMsaddition, if leakage from compamwned or operated USTs migrates onto the propé
others, we may be subject to civil liability torthiparties for remediation costs or other damaased on historical experience, we believe
our liabilities associated with UST testing, upgradand remediation are unlikely to have a matadsaerse effect on our financial condition or
operating results.

As with boat dealerships generally, and parts @ndce operations in particular, our business imeslthe use, handling, storage, and
contracting for recycling or disposal of hazardousoxic substances or wastes, including envirortaignsensitive materials, such as motor
waste motor oil and filters, transmission fluidtitreze, freon, waste paint and lacquer thinnattebies, solvents, lubricants, degreasing
agents, gasoline, and diesel fuels.

Accordingly, we are subject to regulation by fedlestate, and local authorities establishing rezmients for the use, management,
handling, and disposal of these materials andheall environmental quality standards, and ligbikiated thereto, and providing penalties
violations of those standards. We are also subgdetws, ordinances, and regulations governingstigation and remediation of contamination
at facilities we operate to which we send hazardwusxic substances or wastes for treatment, tegyor disposal.

We do not believe we have any material environnmdiatailities or that compliance with environmentals, ordinances, and regulations
will, individually or in the aggregate, have a miikadverse effect on our business, financial o or results of operations. However, soil
and groundwater contamination has been known &1 ekicertain properties owned or leased by ush&ve also been required and may in the
future be required to remove aboveground and umdengl storage tanks containing hazardous substanaesstes. As to certain of our
properties, specific releases of petroleum have beare in the process of being remedied in aeoure with state and federal guidelines. We
are monitoring the soil and groundwater as requinedpplicable state and federal guidelines. Intadd the shareholders of the acquired
dealers have indemnified us for specific environtakissues identified on environmental site assesssrperformed by us as part of the
acquisitions. We maintain insurance for pollutdetoup and removal. The coverage pays for the esgseto extract pollutants from land or
water at the insured property, if the dischargspeélisal, seepage, migration, release, or escape pbllutants is caused by or results from a
covered cause of loss. We also have additionahgéotank liability insurance and “Superfund” coggravhere applicable. In addition, certain
of our retail locations are located on waterways Hre subject to federal or state laws regulaieaggable waters (including oil pollution
prevention), fish and wildlife, and other matters.

Three of the properties we own were historicallgdias gasoline service stations. Remedial actitmnespect to prior historical site
activities on these properties has been completaddordance with federal and state law. Also,araur properties is within the boundaries
a “Superfund” site, although it has not been naxigected to be identified as a contributor toctvetamination in the area. We, however, do
not believe that these environmental issues wslliitesn any material liabilities to us.

Additionally, certain states have required or amsidering requiring a license in order to opeeatecreational boat. While such licens
requirements are not expected to be unduly reisgiategulations may discourage potential firsteibuyers, thereby limiting future sales,
which could adversely affect our business, findrmmadition, and results of operations.

Product Liability

The products we sell or service may expose ustengial liabilities for personal injury or propertiamage claims relating to the use of
those products. Historically, the resolution ofgurot liability claims has not materially affectedrdusiness. Our manufacturers generally
maintain product liability insurance, and we maimtdird-party product liability insurance, which we beligeebe adequate. However, we n
experience legal claims in excess of our insuraoserage, and those claims may not be covereddayance. Furthermore, any significant
claims against us could adversely affect our bgsinfinancial condition, and results of operatiand result in negative publicity. Excessive
insurance claims also could result in increasedrarsce premiums.

22



Table of Contents

Competition

We operate in a highly competitive environmentadidition to facing competition generally from reatien businesses seeking to attract
consumers’ leisure time and discretionary spendwiars, the recreational boat industry itselfighty fragmented, resulting in intense
competition for customers, quality products, bdetve space, and suitable retail locations. We rely tertain extent on boat shows to generat
sales. Our inability to participate in boat showsur existing or targeted markets could have @&n@tadverse effect on our business, finar
condition, and results of operations.

We compete primarily with single-location boat aaland, with respect to sales of marine equipnpanmts, and accessories, with
national specialty marine stores, catalog retaikgerting goods stores, and mass merchants. Ciimpe@mong boat dealers is generally be
on the quality of available products, the price aallie of the products, and attention to custoraeerise. There is significant competition both
within markets we currently serve and in new maglkkat we may enter. We compete in each of our etsukith retailers of brands of boats
and engines we do not sell in that market. In &uitseveral of our competitors, especially thadéingy boating accessories, are large national
or regional chains that have substantial finanamrketing, and other resources. However, we belilbat our integrated corporate
infrastructure and marketing and sales capabilibas cost structure, and our nationwide preseneble us to compete effectively against tt
companies. Private sales of used boats represemtditional significant source of competition.

Executive Officers

The following table sets forth information concepieach of our executive officers as of Decemb&014:

Name Age Position

William H. McGill Jr. 7C  Chairman of the Board, President, Chief Executifficer, and Directol
Michael H. McLamt 49  Executive Vice President, Chief Financial OfficBgcretary, and Directt
Charles A. Cashme 51 Vice President of East Operatic

William Brett McGill 46  Vice President of West Operatio

Paulee C. Da 45 Vice President, General Counsel, and Assistantefay

Anthony E. Cassella, . 45  Vice President and Chief Accounting Offic

William H. McGill Jr.has served as the Chief Executive Officer of Maviag since January 23, 1998 and as the ChairmamedBoard
and as a director of our company since March 68188. McGill served as the President of our compfiom January 23, 1988 until
September 8, 2000 and re-assumed the positionlprd JA002. Mr. McGill was the principal owner aptesident of Gulfwind USA, Inc., one
of our operating subsidiaries, from 1973 untilnterger with us.

Michael H. McLambhas served as Executive Vice President of our cagnpmce October 2002, as Chief Financial Offidacs
January 23, 1998, as Secretary since April 5, 1808,as a director since November 1, 2003. Mr. Madbhaerved as Vice President and
Treasurer of our company from January 23, 1998 Qutiober 22, 2002. Mr. McLamb, a certified puldiccountant, was employed by Arthur
Andersen LLP from December 1987 to December 199%jrgy most recently as a senior manager.

Charles A. Cashmalnas served as Vice President of East Operationarofompany since May 2012 and was appointed axecutive
officer by our Board of Directors in November 200. Cashman served as Regional President of Hastl& from October 2008 to May
2012, and as District Manager of the East CoaBl@mfda from March 2007 to October 2008. Mr. Cashrearved several other positions of
increasing responsibility, including Sales Consutlt&ales Manager, and General Manager, sincengpimir company in 1992.

William Brett McGillhas served as Vice President of West Operationsrofompany since May 2012 and was appointed asegutive
officer by our Board of Directors in November 20M. McGill served as one of our Regional Presiddram March 2006 to May 2012, as
Vice President of Information Technology, Servicel &arts of our company from October 2004 to M&@D6, and as Director of Information
Services from March 1998. Mr. McGill began his gsfional career with a software development fimtedrated Dealer Systems, prior to
joining our company in 1996. William Brett McGib the son of William H. McGill, Ji
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Paulee C. Dayas served as Vice President of our company siabeuiry 2009 and as General Counsel and Assistanetary since
January 2003. Ms. Day, an active member of theidddBar, was employed by Maxxim Medical from May83o November 2002, serving as
Vice President, General Counsel, and Secretargr Rrithat time, Ms. Day was Corporate Attornejtekerd Corporation from June 1997
through May 1999 and a corporate attorney at thefitan Trenam, Kemker, Scharf, Barkin, Frye, O’'Neihd Mullis, P.A. from January 1995
through June 1997.

Anthony E. Cassella, Jnas served as Vice President of Accounting andesh@ervices since February 2011, and was appaisté€thiet
Accounting Officer on October 9, 2014. Mr. Casssblaved as Director of Shared Services from OctabBé7 until February 2011 and
Regional Controller from March 1999 until Octob&®0Z. Mr. Cassella was the Controller of Merit Mariwhich the Company acquired in
March 1999. Mr. Cassella, a certified public acdanty worked in public accounting from June 199Fébruary 1998, serving most recentl
manager.

Item 1A. Risk Factors

General economic conditions and consumer spendidgt@rns can negatively impact our operating resuléd the severe recession that
began in late 2007 has adversely affected the b@ptndustry and our company.

General economic conditions and consumer spenditigrps can negatively impact our operating resultdavorable local, regional,
national, or global economic developments or uageties regarding future economic prospects coedidice consumer spending in the market
we serve and adversely affect our business. Ecanocomiditions in areas in which we operate dealpsshgarticularly Florida in which we
generated approximately 49%, 51%, and 52% of oremae during fiscal 2012, 2013, and 2014, respelgtican have a major impact on our
operations. Local influences, such as corporatend@ing, military base closings, and inclement Wweasuch as Hurricane Sandy,
environmental conditions, and specific events, sagcthe BP oil spill in the Gulf of Mexico, alsoutd adversely affect, and in certain instar
have adversely affected, our operations in certarkets.

In an economic downturn, consumer discretionarygjpg levels generally decline, at times resultmgisproportionately large
reductions in the sale of luxury goods. Consumendjng on luxury goods also may decline as a reslttiwer consumer confidence levels,
even if prevailing economic conditions are favoealfis a result, an economic downturn could impaahore than certain of our competitors
due to our strategic focus on a higher end of carket. Although we have expanded our operationsgyeriods of stagnant or modestly
declining industry trends, the cyclical naturelod tecreational boating industry or the lack olistdy growth could adversely affect our
business, financial condition, or results of operes in the future. Any period of adverse econoaanditions or low consumer confidence h
negative effect on our business.

Lower consumer spending resulting from a downtarthe housing market and other economic factorsmaly affected our business in
fiscal 2007, and continued weakness in consumerdspg and depressed economic conditions had aasltatnegative effect on our business
in each subsequent fiscal year. Our revenue detdesm $1.2 billion in fiscal 2007, to $885.4 riwh in fiscal 2008, to $588.6 million in
fiscal 2009, to $450.3 million in fiscal 2010, aindreased to $480.9 million in fiscal 2011, to $%2dillion in fiscal 2012, to $584.5 million in
fiscal 2013, and to $624.7 million in fiscal 200ur earnings decreased from a net income of $20libmin fiscal 2007 to a net loss of $13
million in fiscal 2008 (including a $122.1 milliogoodwill impairment charge), a net loss of $76.8iam in fiscal 2009, net income of $2.5
million in fiscal 2010 (including a $19.2 millioaut refund), a net loss of $11.5 million in fisc@l14, a net income of $1.1 million in fiscal
2012, a net income of $15.0 million in fiscal 2Qir&luding a $11.7 million recovery from the DeepraHorizon Settlement Program), and a
net income of $11.3 million in fiscal 2014 (incladia $555,000 recovery from the Deepwater HorizettieSnent Program). These substant
deteriorating economic and financial conditions hagteater impact on many other participants irbteting industry, with certain
manufacturers and dealers ceasing business operatidiling for bankruptcy. While the reductionbieating industry participants might hav
long-term positive impact on our company’s compagiposition, on a market by market basis, we acinfj and expect to continue to face
short-term competitive pressure resulting from dased selling prices as a result of forced salesaa competitor failing in the market place.
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These conditions have caused us to reduce suladtaotir acquisition program, delay new store opgsj reduce our inventory
purchases, engage in inventory reduction effoltseca number of our retail locations, reduce @adtount, and amend and replace our credi
facility. While we believe the steps we have takedate will enable us to emerge from the curreohemic environment as a stronger and
more profitable company, we cannot predict the tleog severity of these unfavorable economic, faialn or industry conditions or the extent
to which they will adversely affect our operatirggults nor can we predict the effectiveness ofitbasures we have taken to address this
environment or whether additional measures wilhbeessary. A continuation of depressed economiimdaoistry factors could have additional
negative effects on our company, including intengmith our supply of certain brands by manufaetsr reduced marketing and other suppor
by manufacturers, decreased revenue, additionaspres on margins, and our failure to satisfy caménunder our credit agreement.

The availability and costs of borrowed funds canvadsely affect our ability to obtain adequate baaventory and the ability and willingnes
of our customers to finance boat purchases.

The availability and costs of borrowed funds cavesskely affect our ability to obtain and maintadegquate boat inventory and the
holding costs of that inventory as well as theigbdnd willingness of our customers to financetimarchases. As of September 30, 2014, we
had no long-term debt. We rely on our credit fagilo purchase and maintain our inventory of bo@is: ability to borrow under our credit
facility depends on our ability to continue to shtiour covenants and other obligations under ceditfacility. The aging of our inventory
limits our borrowing capacity as defined provisiom®ur credit facility reduce the allowable advamate as our inventory ages. Our access tc
funds under our credit facility also depends ugenability of our lenders, to meet their fundingreoitments, particularly if they experience
shortages of capital or experience excessive vauwhborrowing requests from others during a speriod of time. Depressed economic
conditions, weak consumer spending, turmoil indrealit markets, and lender difficulties, among ofgtential reasons, could interfere with
our ability to maintain compliance with our debveoants and to utilize our credit facility to fuadr operations. Accordingly, it may be
necessary for us to close additional stores, furdsduce our expense structure, or modify the cantnwith our lenders. Any inability to utili
our credit facility or the acceleration of amouatged, resulting from a covenant violation, insu#fit collateral, or lender difficulties, could
require us to seek other sources of funding toyrepaounts outstanding under our credit facilityeplace or supplement our credit facility,
which may not be possible at all or under comméyciaasonable terms.

Our Amended Credit Facility with GE Commercial Diistition Finance Corporation provides a floor pferancing commitment of up to
$235.0 million. The collateral for our Amended Gtdehcility is all of our personal property withreain limited exceptions. None of our real
estate has been pledged as collateral for the Aete@dedit Facility. As of September 30, 2014, weena compliance with all of the
covenants under the Amended Credit Facility andaoigitional available borrowings under our crediility was approximately $38.2 million
based upon the outstanding borrowing base avatiabil

Similarly, decreases in the availability of crealitd increases in the cost of credit adversely affecability of our customers to purchase
boats from us and thereby adversely affect ourtald sell our products and impacts the profitiapibf our finance and insurance activities.
Tight credit conditions during each fiscal yearibeghg with fiscal 2008 and continuing through 2011 adversely affected the ability of
customers to finance boat purchases, which hagdatine effect on our operating results.

Our strategies to enhance our performance may netduccessful.

We are increasing our efforts to grow our financamgl insurance, parts and accessory, service, ghahter, and boat storage businesse:
to better serve our customers and thereby increassue and improve profitability as a result afsh higher margin businesses. In addition,
we have implemented programs to increase the saletioe Internet of used boats, parts, accessaiesa wide range of boating supplies and
products. These efforts and programs are designiedtitease our revenue and reduce our dependertbe sale of new boats. These business
initiatives will require us to add personnel, intveapital, enter businesses in which we do not lextensive experience, and encounter
substantial competition. As a result, our strategfieenhance our performance may not be successfulve may increase our expenses or writ
off such investments if not successful.
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Our success depends to a significant extent onwredl being, as well as the continued popularity areputation for quality of the boating
products, of our manufacturers, particularly Brungek’'s Sea Ray, Boston Whaler, and Meridian boat linesd Azimut-Benetti Group’s
Azimut products

Approximately 40% of our revenue in fiscal 2014ulésd from sales of new boats manufactured by Bmigls including approximately
26% from Brunswick’s Sea Ray division, 10% from Bswick's Boston Whaler division, and approximaté% from Brunswick’s other
divisions. Additionally, approximately 14% of owevenue in fiscal 2014 resulted from sales of neatbmanufactured by Azimut-Benetti
Group. The remainder of our fiscal 2014 revenuenfrew boat sales resulted from sales of produets & limited number of other
manufacturers, none of which accounted for mora %6 of our revenue.

We depend on our manufacturers to provide us wibkyucts that compare favorably with competing puatslin terms of quality,
performance, safety, and advanced features, ingiutlie latest advances in propulsion and navigatystems. Any adverse change in the
production efficiency, product development effotésshnological advancement, marketplace acceptamaeketing capabilities, and financial
condition of our manufacturers, particularly Bruingwand Azimut-Benetti Group given our reliance®&a Ray, Boston Whaler, Meridian and
Azimut, would have a substantial adverse impaabumbusiness. Any difficulties encountered by ahguwr manufacturers, particularly
Brunswick and Azimut-Benetti Group, resulting fr@monomic, financial, or other factors could advigraéfect the quality and amount of
products that they are able to supply to us andeineices and support they provide to us.

The interruption or discontinuance of the operaiohBrunswick, Azimut-Benetti Group, or other méauiurers could cause us to
experience shortfalls, disruptions, or delays wétdpect to needed inventory. Although we belieat dudequate alternate sources would be
available that could replace any manufacturer aieen Brunswick and Azimut-Benetti Group as a pridwurce, those alternate sources may
not be available at the time of any interruptiamg alternative products may not be available atgamable quality and prices.

We have dealer agreements with Brunswick covereyBay and Boston Whaler products. Each dealeeamnet has a multi-year term
and provides for the lowest product prices chalgethe Sea Ray division of Brunswick or Boston Vénahs applicable, from time to time to
other domestic Sea Ray or Boston Whaler deale@pplicable. These terms are subject to:

. the dealer meeting all the requirements and canditof the manufactur's applicable programs; ai

. the right of Brunswick in good faith to charge kexsprices to other deale

. to meet existing competitive circumstanc
. for unusual and nc-ordinary business circumstances
. for limited duration promotional programn

Each dealer agreement designates a specific gdogahiterritory for the dealer, which is exclusieethe dealer provided that the dealt
able to meet the material obligations of its dealgneement.

In March 2006, we became the exclusive dealer fomiit-Benetti Group’s Azimut product line for theftheast United States. Our
geographic territory was expanded to include FoiidSeptember 2008 and to the entire countrylin20d2. The Azimut dealer agreement
provides a geographic territory to promote the pobdine and to network with the appropriate cleeatthrough various independent locations
designated for Azimut retail sales. Our dealer egrent is multi-year term but requires us to beoimgliance with its terms and conditions.

As is typical in the industry, we generally deattwinanufacturers, other than the Sea Ray divisi@dranswick and Azimut, under
renewable annual dealer agreements. These agreedtenodt contain any contractual provisions coriagrproduct pricing or required
purchasing levels. Pricing is generally establisber@ model year basis, but is subject to changfeeimanufacturer’s sole discretion. Any
change or termination of these arrangements foreason could adversely affect product availabditgl cost and our financial performance.
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Boat manufacturers exercise substantial control ow®ir business

We depend on our dealer agreements. Through deglleements, boat manufacturers, including Brunsasek Azimut, exercise
significant control over their dealers, restrictitinto specified locations, and retain approvaltagiver changes in management and ownershi
among other things. The continuation of our deatgeements with most manufacturers, including Briclsand Azimut, depends upon,
among other things, our achieving stated goalsdistomer satisfaction ratings and market sharetgion in the market served by the
applicable dealership. Failure to meet the cust@atsfaction, market share goals, and other cimmdiset forth in any dealer agreement coulc
have various consequences, including the following:

. the termination of the dealer agreem:

. the imposition of additional conditions in subsenfudealer agreement

. limitations on boat inventory allocatior

. reductions in reimbursement rates for warranty wzgiormed by the deale
. loss of certain manufacturer to dealer incenti

. denial of approval of future acquisitions;

. the loss of exclusive rights to sell in the geogiaperritory.
These events could have a material adverse effeatincompetitive position and financial performanc
The failure to receive rebates and other dealeréntives on inventory purchases or retail sales abalibstantially reduce our margins.

We rely on manufacturers’ programs that providemies for dealers to purchase and sell partidcadat makes and models or for
consumers to buy particular boat makes or modeig.eliminations, reductions, limitations, or otlanges relating to rebate or incentive
programs that have the effect of reducing the benek receive, whether relating to the abilitynedinufacturers to pay or our ability to qualify
for such incentive programs, could increase thecéife cost of our boat purchases, reduce our maiggid competitive position, and have a
material adverse effect on our financial perforneanc

Fuel prices and supply may affect our business.

All of the recreational boats we sell are powergdligsel or gasoline engines. Consequently, amrimggon in the supply, or a significant
increase in the price or tax on the sale of fuehoagional or national basis could have a matadakrse effect on our sales and operating
results. Increases in fuel prices (such as thaseottturred during fiscal 2008) negatively impazatsales. At various times in the past, diesel
or gasoline fuel has been difficult to obtain. Bupply of fuels may be interrupted, rationing mayilposed, or the price of or tax on fuels
may significantly increase in the future, adverseipacting our business.

The availability of boat insurance is critical tour success.

The ability of our customers to secure reasonatbbydable boat insurance that is satisfactory malégs that finance our customers’
purchases is critical to our success. Historicaffgrdable boat insurance has been available. Wéturricanes that have impacted the sta
Florida and other markets over the past severaby@esurance rates have escalated and insurameeage has become more difficult to obt:
In addition, as a severe storm approaches langianse providers cease underwriting until the stbas passed. This loss of insurance pre
lenders from lending. As a result, sales of boatshe temporarily halted making our revenue diffitmpredict and causing sales to be dele
or potentially cancelled. Any difficulty of customseto obtain affordable boat insurance could impsokt sales and adversely affect our
business.

Other recreational activities and poor industry pmmption can adversely affect the levels of boatqhases.

Other recreational activities and poor industrycpetion can adversely affect the levels of boatlpases. As a seller of high-end
consumer products, we must compete for discretjosiending with a wide variety of other
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recreational activities and consumer purchaseaddlition, perceived hassles of boat ownership atadively poor customer service and
customer education throughout the retail boat ingluspresent impediments to boat purchases. Castomer-centric strategy is intended to
overcome these perceptions.

Adverse federal tax policies can have a negativieefon us.

Changes in federal and state tax laws, such amawsition of luxury taxes on new boat purchasesgiases in prevailing tax rates, and
removal of certain interest deductions, also infeeeconsumersiecisions to purchase products we offer and coane la negative effect on «
sales. For example, during 1991 and 1992, the &dervernment imposed a luxury tax on new recreatiboats with sales prices in excess of
$100,000, which coincided with a sharp declineaating industry sales from a high of more than $billion in 1988 to a low of $10.3 hillio
in 1992. Any increase in tax rates, including thosecapital gains and dividends, particularly thoséhigh-income taxpayers, could adversely
affect our boat sales.

In addition to our traditional repeat and referrabusiness in our physical locations, online channelee increasingly significant in servin
our existing customer base and reaching new custosn®©ur continued expansion and success will be at¢gely impacted if we are not able
to fully exploit these channels.

Our on-line channels are subject to a number &§r@d uncertainties that are beyond our contnoluding the following:

. changes in technolog

. changes in consumer willingness to conductriass electronically, including increasing concevita consumer privacy and risk
and changing laws, rules, and regulations, su¢heasnposition of taxes

. technology or security impediments that may inhdlit ability to electronically market our produetsd services

. changes in applicable federal, state and comiaieegulation, such as the Federal Trade ComonisAct, the Fair Credit Reporting
Act, the Gramm-Leach-Bliley Act, purchasing cardustry requirements, Office of Foreign Assets Calnmegulations and similar
types of international law:

. failure of our service providers to perform theinsces properly and in a timely and efficient man|

. failures in our infrastructure or by third pag, such as telephone or electric power serviesilting in website downtime or other
problems;

. failure by us to accurately and timely resptmdustomers, process orders or deliver servicesshamay negatively impact both
future online and i-store purchases by such custom

. inability of our suppliers or service partners wdfifl customer orders, which may negatively impaastomer satisfactiol

. our failure to assess and evaluate our onlindyzt and service offering to ensure that our pet&land services are desired by
boating enthusiasts; al

. the potential exposure to liability with respethird-party information, including copyrighitademark infringement, or other
wrongful acts of third parties; false or erronemfsrmation provided by third parties; or illegaltavities by third parties, such as
the sale of stolen boats or other goc

Further, we may also be vulnerable to competitiesgures from the growing electronic commerce gt our market, both as they
may impact our own on-line business, and as theyimpact the operating results and investment \&abf@ur existing physical locations.

We recently implemented new business initiativeattimvolve expenses but have not produced meanihgéuenue.

We recently implemented programs to increase sdilbeats, boating parts, and accessories, as w#fleaoffer of finance and insurance,
or F&l, products at various offsite locations; ahd charter of power and sailing yachts in the
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British Virgin Islands. None of these recently imiplented programs have produced any meaningful veviendate. We can provide no
assurance whether these programs will be successtfivat we will recover the costs we have incuiretheir implementation.

Our recently launched yacht charter business exposs to certain risks.

Our recently launched yacht charter business erttel sale by us of specifically designed yachtkitd parties for inclusion in our yacht
charter fleet; a yacht management agreement unigiehwacht owners enable us to put their yachtaiinyacht charter program for a period of
four to five years for a fixed monthly fee payableus; our services in storing, insuring, and naimhg their yachts; and the charter by us of
these yachts to vacation customers at agreed &@ble to us. Our failure to find purchasers fazhta intended for our charter fleet will
increase our boat inventory and related operatirsgsc lack of sales into our charter fleet may ltéauncreased losses due to market
adjustments of our yacht charter inventory; andfailure to generate a sufficient number of vaaatibarter customers will require us to ab:
all the costs of the monthly fees to the yacht awi@es well as other operating costs.

Customers consider safety and reliability a primaogcern in selecting a yacht charter provider. yfdeht charter business may present
number of safety risks, including catastrophic stieg adverse weather and marine conditions, médailure and collision. If we are unat
to maintain acceptable records for safety andbigiliy, our ability to retain current customers aatfact new customers may be adversely
affected. Additionally, any safety issue encourdatering a yacht charter may result in claims agfais as well as negative publicity. These
events could have a material adverse effect ondh®etitive position and financial performance ofthour yacht charter business and our
boat sales business.

The yacht charter business is also highly fragnterdensisting primarily of local operators and frhisees. Competition among charter
operators is based on location, the type and digaahts offered, charter rates, destinations sedyjiand attention to customer service. Yacht
charters also face competition from other travel lisure options, including, but not limited touises, hotels, resorts, theme parks, organize
tours, land-based casino operators, and vacatioeship properties. We therefore risk losing bussneot only to other charter operators, but
also to vacation operators that provide such ateres.

Our success depends, in part, on our ability to tiane to make successful acquisitions and to intetg the operations of acquired dealers
and each dealer we acquire in the future.

Since March 1, 1998, we have acquired 24 recredtlooat dealers, two boat brokerage operationspaadull-service yacht repair
facilities. Each acquired dealer operated indepethglerior to its acquisition by us. Our succespetals, in part, on our ability to continue to
make successful acquisitions and to integrate pleeations of acquired dealers, including centnadjziertain functions to achieve cost savings
and pursuing programs and processes that promoperation and the sharing of opportunities anduess among our dealerships. We may
not be able to oversee the combined entity effibyear to implement effectively our growth and ogting strategies. To the extent that we
successfully pursue our acquisition strategy, eauiting growth will place significant additionatmiands on our management and
infrastructure. Our failure to pursue successfally acquisition strategies or operate effectivhly ¢combined entity could have a material
adverse effect on our rate of growth and opergigrformance.

Unforeseen expenses, difficulties, and delays freqtly encountered in connection with rapid expansithrough acquisitions could inhibit
our growth and negatively impact our profitability.

Our growth strategy of acquiring additional recieaadl boat dealers involves significant risks. Té$tistegy entails reviewing and
potentially reorganizing acquired business openaticorporate infrastructure and systems, and diahoontrols. Unforeseen expenses,
difficulties, and delays frequently encountered@amnection with rapid expansion through acquisgioauld inhibit our growth and negatively
impact our profitability. We may be unable to idgnsuitable acquisition candidates or to compté acquisitions of candidates that we
identify. Increased competition for acquisition datates or increased asking prices by acquisittondilates may increase purchase prices for
acquisitions to levels beyond our financial capgbdr to levels that would not result in the retsirequired by our acquisition criteria.
Acquisitions also may become more difficult or lasisactive in the future as we acquire more ofrttest attractive dealers. In addition, we
may encounter difficulties in integrating the opimas of acquired dealers with our own operationsanaging acquired dealers profitably
without substantial costs, delays, or other openati or financial problems.
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We may issue common or preferred stock and indostantial indebtedness in making future acquisstidrhe size, timing, and
integration of any future acquisitions may caudestantial fluctuations in operating results fronadar to quarter. Consequently, operating
results for any quarter may not be indicative @f tbsults that may be achieved for any subsequemtey or for a full fiscal year. These
fluctuations could adversely affect the market@€ our common stock.

Our ability to continue to grow through the acqtiisi of additional dealers will depend upon varifastors, including the following:
. the availability of suitable acquisition candidatesttractive purchase price

. the ability to compete effectively for availablegacsition opportunities

. the availability of borrowed funds or common stedkh a sufficient market price to complete the dsijions;

. the ability to obtain any requisite manufacturegovernmental approval

. the ability to obtain approval of our lenders under current credit agreement; ¢

. the absence of one or more manufacturers attegmo impose unsatisfactory restrictions on usannection with their approval of
acquisitions

As a part of our acquisition strategy, we frequertigage in discussions with various recreationat bealers regarding their potential
acquisition by us. In connection with these distrss we and each potential acquisition candidatba@nge confidential operational and
financial information, conduct due diligence indes; and consider the structure, terms, and camditdf the potential acquisition. In certain
cases, the prospective acquisition candidate agieds discuss a potential acquisition with anyeotparty for a specific period of time, grants
us an option to purchase the prospective dealex flmsignated price during a specific time peréaod] agrees to take other actions designed tc
enhance the possibility of the acquisition, suchraparing audited financial information and cotivey its accounting system to the system
specified by us. Potential acquisition discussioeguently take place over a long period of timd avolve difficult business integration and
other issues, including in some cases, managernec¢ssion and related matters. As a result of thedether factors, a number of potential
acquisitions that from time to time appear likedyoccur do not result in binding legal agreementsare not consummated.

We may be required to obtain the consent of Brunskwvand various other manufacturers prior to the agigition of other dealers.

In determining whether to approve acquisitions, afacturers may consider many factors, includingfmancial condition and
ownership structure. Manufacturers also may imposelitions on granting their approvals for acqigsis, including a limitation on the
number of their dealers that we may acquire. Otlityabo meet manufacturersequirements for approving future acquisitions Wwilve a direc
bearing on our ability to complete acquisitions afféct our growth strategy. There can be no asserthat a manufacturer will not terminate
its dealer agreement, refuse to renew its dealereatent, refuse to approve future acquisitionsake other action that could have a material
adverse effect on our acquisition program.

We and the Sea Ray Division of Brunswick have ae@ment extending through August 31, 2017, witlorattic annual
one-year extensions at each twelve month annivefahe agreement, provided that our dealer ages¢snwith the Sea Ray Division of
Brunswick are still then in effect. The agreemennivides a process for the acquisition of additid®ed Ray boat dealers that desire to be
acquired by us. Under the agreement, acquisitibea Ray dealers will be mutually agreed upondgnd Sea Ray with reasonable efforts tc
be made to include a balance of Sea Ray dealdrkdlia been successful and those that have not Beeragreement provides that Sea Ray
will not unreasonably withhold its consent to amgpnsed acquisition of a Sea Ray dealer by usestty) the conditions set forth in the
agreement. Among other things, the agreement resjus to provide Sea Ray with a business plaraih proposed acquisition, including
historical financial and five-year projected finadnformation regarding the acquisition
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candidate; marketing and advertising plans; semdgmabilities and managerial and staff personn&rination regarding the ability of the
candidate to achieve performance standards withéigdated periods; and information regarding tleeess of our previous acquisitions of Se:
Ray dealers. The agreement also contemplates See&zhing a good faith determination whether tguésition would be in its best interest
based on our dedication and focus of resources@B¢a Ray brand and Sea Ray’s consideration cd@rerse effects that the approval woulc
have on the resulting territory configuration aijgaent or other dealers sales and the absenceg af@ation of applicable laws or rights
granted by Sea Ray to others.

Our growth strategy also entails expanding our pebtines and geographic scope by obtaining additidistribution rights from our
existing and new manufacturers. We may not be tabdecure additional distribution rights or obtairtable alternative sources of supply if we
are unable to obtain such distribution rights. irtability to expand our product lines and geogratiope by obtaining additional distribution
rights could have a material adverse effect orgtheth and profitability of our business.

Our growth strategy may require us to secure sigeaht additional capital, the amount of which wilepend upon the size, timing, and
structure of future acquisitions and our working gatal and general corporate need

If we finance future acquisitions in whole or inrptarough the issuance of common stock or seesritonvertible into or exercisable for
common stock, existing stockholders will experiediation in the voting power of their common staakd earnings per share could be
negatively impacted. The extent to which we willdide and willing to use our common stock for asijigins will depend on the market value
of our common stock and the willingness of potdrsiidlers to accept our common stock as full otigbconsideration. Our inability to use our
common stock as consideration, to generate caghdperations, or to obtain additional funding thgbwebt or equity financings in order to
pursue our acquisition program could materiallyiiour growth.

Any borrowings made to finance future acquisitiongor operations could make us more vulnerabke downturn in our operating
results, a downturn in economic conditions, oréases in interest rates on borrowings that aresuty interest rate fluctuations. If our cash
flow from operations is insufficient to meet oubtiservice requirements, we could be required tadeitional equity securities, refinance our
obligations, or dispose of assets in order to roaetlebt service requirements. In addition, ouditr@rangements contain financial covenants
and other restrictions with which we must comphgliiding limitations on the incurrence of additibmalebtedness. Adequate financing may
not be available if and when we need it or mayloavailable on terms acceptable to us. The faitupbtain sufficient financing on favorable
terms and conditions could have a material adweffeet on our growth prospects and our businesanfiial condition, and results of
operations.

Our internal growth and operating strategies of agiag new locations and offering new products invelvisk.

In addition to pursuing growth by acquiring boaaldes, we intend to continue to pursue a stratégyawth through opening new retail
locations and offering new products in our existamgl new territories. Accomplishing these goalssfqransion will depend upon a number of
factors, including the following:

. our ability to identify new markets in which we calbtain distribution rights to sell our existingaditional product lines

. our ability to lease or construct suitable faabtiat a reasonable cost in existing or new mar

. our ability to hire, train, and retain qualifiedrpennel;

. the timely and effective integration of new retadations into existing operatior

. our ability to achieve adequate market penetratdavorable operating margins without the acqgoisiof existing dealers; ar

. our financial resource

Our dealer agreements with Brunswick require Bruos'w consent to open, close, or change retailtlona that sell Sea Ray or Boston
Whaler products as applicable, and other dealeresgents generally contain similar provisions. We mat be able to open and operate new
retail locations or introduce new product linesaotimely or profitable basis. Moreover, the costsogiated with opening new retail location:
introducing new product lines may adversely aftaat profitability.

31



Table of Contents

As a result of these growth strategies, we exmecohtinue to expend significant time and efforopening and acquiring new retail
locations and introducing new products. Our systgmcedures, controls, and financial resources meaye adequate to support expanding
operations. The inability to manage our growth @ffeely could have a material adverse effect onbginess, financial condition, and results
of operations.

Our planned growth also will impose significant addesponsibilities on members of senior manageamhtequire us to identify,
recruit, and integrate additional senior level nggra. We may not be able to identify, hire, omtrauitable additions to management.

Our business, as well as the entire recreationabbing industry, is highly seasonal, with seasonglitarying in different geographic market

During the three-year period ended September 34,28e average revenue for the quarterly periode@
December 31, March 31, June 30, and Septembep8@sented approximately 18%, 25%, 31%, and 26%ewtwely, of our average annual
revenue. With the exception of Florida, we gengnadhlize significantly lower sales and higher leva inventories and related short-term
borrowings in the quarterly periods ending Decen3fieand March 31. The onset of the public boatraodeation shows in January stimulates
boat sales and allows us to reduce our inventegideand related short-term borrowings throughbetremainder of the fiscal year. Our
business could become substantially more seadonalacquire dealers that operate in colder regadrike United States.

Weather and environmental conditions may adversiefpact our business.

Weather and environmental conditions may adverisgbact our operating results. For example, droeghtitions, reduced rainfall
levels, excessive rain and environmental conditisash as the BP oil spill in the Gulf of Mexicoaynforce boating areas to close or render
boating dangerous or inconvenient, thereby cungitiustomer demand for our products. While we tiaaklly maintain a full range of
insurance coverage for any such events, thereeao lassurance that such insurance coverage isatddq cover losses that we sustain as a
result of such disasters. In addition, unseasonatiy weather and prolonged winter conditions neadlto shorter selling seasons in certain
locations. Many of our dealerships sell boats &tamers for use on reservoirs, thereby subjectimdoasiness to the continued viability of
these reservoirs for boating use. Although our gagalgc diversity and any future geographic expamsiwould reduce the overall impact on us
of adverse weather and environmental conditiorminone market area, weather and environmentalittmmsiwill continue to represent
potential material adverse risks to us and ourréutyperating performance.

In addition, hurricanes and other storms couldltésuhe disruption of our operations or damageuo boat inventories and facilities as
has been the case when Florida and other market¢shiegen affected by hurricanes. While we traditigmaaintain property and casualty
insurance coverage for damage caused by hurrieartesther storms, there can be no assurance ttfatrsurance coverage is adequate to
cover losses that we may sustain as a result oichues and other storms such as damage from ldogiSandy. We maintain insurance for
property damage and business interruption, sutjedductibles.

We face intense competition.

We operate in a highly competitive environmentadtdition to facing competition generally from nooalting recreation businesses
seeking to attract discretionary spending dolldrs recreational boat industry itself is highlygnaented and involves intense competition for
customers, product distribution rights, and sugaiktail locations, particularly on or near wateysi@Competition increases during periods of
stagnant industry growth. During the most receogssion, we have also faced competition from béigkglating repossessed boats.

We compete primarily with single-location boat @galand, with respect to sales of marine partessceies, and equipment, with
national specialty marine parts and accessoriessstoatalog retailers, sporting goods storesaass merchants. Competition among boat
dealers is based on the quality of available prtejube price and value of the
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products, and attention to customer service. Tisesgnificant competition both within markets wari@ntly serve and in new markets that we
may enter. We compete in each of our markets eitéilers of brands of boats and engines we doeibinsthat market. In addition, several of
our competitors, especially those selling maringi@gent and accessories, are large national oomafchains that have substantial financial,
marketing, and other resources. Private saleseaf heats represent an additional source of conpretit

Due to various matters, including environmentalogons, permitting and zoning requirements, and &titign for waterfront real estate,
some markets in the United States have experiemténcreased waiting list for marina and storagalability. In general, the markets in
which we currently operate are not experiencingamysual difficulties. However, marine retail adghcould be adversely effected in markets
that do not have sufficient marine and storagelabidity to satisfy demand.

We depend on income from financing, insurance, aedtended service contracts.

A portion of our income results from referral fekgived from the placement or marketing of varifimance and insurance, or F&l,
products, consisting of customer financing, insaeaproducts, and extended service contracts, tis sigmificant component of which is the
participation and other fees resulting from ouegal customer financing contracts.

The availability of financing for our boat purchesand the level of participation and other feege@eeive in connection with such
financing depend on the particular agreement batwseand the lender and the current rate envirohrhenders may impose terms in their
boat financing arrangements with us that may baworible to us or our customers, resulting in redudemand for our customer financing
programs and lower participation and other feesid ar regulations may be enacted nationally orllpeehich could result in fees from
lenders being eliminated or reduced, materiallydotimg our operating results. Customer financingcab@e more difficult to secure during
fiscal 2008, which continued in each subsequenafigear through fiscal 2011.

Changes, including the lengthening of manufactwanranties, may reduce our ability to offer and setended service contracts which
may have a material adverse impact on our abdityell F&I products.

The Dodd-Frank Act established a new consumer €imaprotection agency with broad regulatory powédthough boat dealers are
generally excluded, the Dodd-Frank Act could leaddditional, indirect regulation of boat dealdnotigh its regulation of other financial
institutions which provide such financing to oustamers.

The reduction of profit margins on sales of F&I gets or the lack of demand for or the unavailgbdf these products could have a
material adverse effect on our operating margins.

We depend on key personnel.

Our success depends, in large part, upon the eomgrefforts and abilities of our executive offiseAlthough we have employment
agreements with certain of our executive officers,cannot assure that these or other executivemeeswill remain with us. Expanding our
operations may require us to add additional exeeygersonnel in the future. As a result of our déredized operating strategy, we also rely on
the management teams of our dealerships. In additie likely will depend on the senior managemérany significant businesses we acquire
in the future. The loss of the services of one oravof these key employees before we are abld@recatind retain qualified replacement
personnel could adversely affect our business.

The products we sell or service may expose us terg@l liability for personal injury or property dmage claims relating to the use of those
products.

Manufacturers of the products we sell generallynt@éin product liability insurance. We also mainttiird-party product liability
insurance that we believe to be adequate. We magriece claims that are not covered by or thairaescess of our insurance coverage. The
institution of any significant claims against usiltbsubject us to damages, result in higher instg@osts, and harm our business reputation
with potential customers.
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Environmental and other regulatory issues may impaar operations.

Our operations are subject to extensive regulasiopervision, and licensing under various fedetake, and local statutes, ordinances,
and regulations. The failure to satisfy those aheioregulatory requirements could have a matadakrse effect on our business, financial
condition, and results of operations. In additi@iure to comply with environmental, health oresgfrequirements, U.S. trade sanctions, the
U.S. Foreign Corrupt Practices Act and other applie laws or regulations could result in the asaess$ of damages, the imposition of
penalties, changes to our processes, or a cessdibom operations, as well as damage to our insagereputation, all of which could have a
material adverse effect on our business.

Various federal, state, and local regulatory agesdncluding the Occupational Safety and Healtmiistration, or OSHA, the United
States Environmental Protection Agency, or EPA, sindlar federal and local agencies, have jurisoicbver the operation of our dealerships,
repair facilities, and other operations, with rexfge matters such as consumer protection, worlsafgity, and laws regarding protection of the
environment, including air, water, and soil. TheAgRomulgated emissions regulations for outboardimeaengines that impose stricter
emissions standards for two-cycle, gasoline outba@arine engines. The majority of the outboard neengines we sell are manufactured by
Mercury Marine. Mercury Marine’s product line ofdeemission engines, including the OptiMax, Veraalag other foustroke outboards, ha
achieved the EPA’s mandated 2006 emission levelg.iAcreased costs of producing engines resultimgy fEPA standards, which could be
passed on to us, or the inability of our manufaatsito comply with EPA requirements, could haveatemal adverse effect on our business.

Certain of our facilities own and operate undergibstorage tanks, or USTs, for the storage of uarjmetroleum products. USTs are
generally subject to federal, state, and local lamd regulations that require testing and upgradfigSTs and remediation of contaminated
soils and groundwater resulting from leaking USfsaddition, we may be subject to civil liability third parties for remediation costs or othel
damages if leakage from our owned or operated USgrates onto the property of others.

Our business involves the use, handling, storagcantracting for recycling or disposal of hazarslor toxic substances or wastes,
including environmentally sensitive materials, sastmotor oil, waste motor oil and filters, transsidn fluid, antifreeze, freon, waste paint
lacquer thinner, batteries, solvents, lubricanggjrdasing agents, gasoline, and diesel fuels. Aoy, we are subject to regulation by federal
state, and local authorities establishing invesiigeand health and environmental quality standaadd liability related thereto, and providing
penalties for violations of those standards.

We also are subject to laws, ordinances, and régnfagoverning investigation and remediation aftemination at facilities we operate
or to which we send hazardous or toxic substancesstes for treatment, recycling, or disposapanticular, the Comprehensive
Environmental Response, Compensation and Lial#ldty or CERCLA or “Superfund,” imposes joint, striand several liability on:

. owners or operators of facilities at, from, or tbigh a release of hazardous substances has occ

. parties that generated hazardous substances thateleased at such facilities; ¢

. parties that transported or arranged for the tamafion of hazardous substances to such facil

A majority of states have adopted Superfund statcbenparable to and, in some cases, more stritigemtCERCLA. If we were to be
found to be a responsible party under CERCLA drralar state statute, we could be held liable fbirevestigative and remedial costs
associated with addressing such contaminationddiitian, claims alleging personal injury or progedamage may be brought against us as a
result of alleged exposure to hazardous substaaealing from our operations. In addition, certafrour retail locations are located on

waterways that are subject to federal or state tegslating navigable waters (including oil polartiprevention), fish and wildlife, and other
matters.
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Soil and groundwater contamination has been knavexist at certain properties owned or leased byMeshave also been required and
may in the future be required to remove abovegramiunderground storage tanks containing hazarsldastances or wastes. As to certain ¢
our properties, specific releases of petroleum Heeen or are in the process of being remediateddnrdance with state and federal guideli
We are monitoring the soil and groundwater as reguby applicable state and federal guidelines al8e may have additional storage tank
liability insurance and Superfund coverage whemdiegble. Environmental laws and regulations am@glex and subject to frequent change.
Compliance with amended, new, or more stringenslanregulations, more strict interpretations astmng laws, or the future discovery of
environmental conditions may require additionalendtitures by us, and such expenditures may be ialater

Three of the properties we own were historicallgdias gasoline service stations. Remedial actitmnespect to prior historical site
activities on these properties has been completeddordance with federal and state law. Also,air@ur properties is within the boundaries
a Superfund site, although it has not been idewtiéis a contributor to the contamination in thaare

Additionally, certain states have required or armesidering requiring a license in order to opegatecreational boat. These regulations
could discourage potential buyers, thereby limifiniyire sales and adversely affecting our busirfesacial condition, and results of
operations.

The market price of our common stock could be subjo wide fluctuations as a result of many factors

Factors that could affect the trading price of common stock include the following:
. variations in our operating resul

. the thin trading volume and relatively small pulflaat of our common stocl
. our ability to continue to secure adequate levefinancing;

. variations in san-store sales

. general economic, political, and market conditic

. changes in earnings estimates published by ana

. the level and success of our acquisition prograchreaw store opening

. the success of dealership integrati

. relationships with manufacturel

. seasonality and weather conditio

. governmental policies and regulatio

. the performance of the recreational boat industryeneral; an

. factors relating to suppliers and competit

In addition, market demand for small-capitalizatgtacks, and price and volume fluctuations in tieelsmarket unrelated to our
performance could result in significant fluctuagdn the market price of our common stock.

The performance of our common stock could adverafct our ability to raise equity in the publi@arkets and adversely affect our
acquisition program.
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The issuance of additional capital stock in the e, including shares that we may issue pursuanttock-based grants, including stock
option grants, and future acquisitions, may resitt dilution in the net tangible book value per shawof our common stock.

Our board of directors has the legal power andaiihto determine the terms of an offering of gsaof our capital stock, or securities
convertible into or exchangeable for these shaoethe extent of our shares of authorized and ueid€apital stock. The issuance of additiona
common stock in the future, including shares thatmay issue pursuant to stock-based grants, imgustock option grants, and future
acquisitions, may result in dilution in the netdée book value per share of our common stock.

A substantial number of shares are eligible for fure sale.

As of September 30, 2014, there were 24,211,907 st our common stock outstanding. Substantéllpf these shares are freely
tradable without restriction or further registrationder the securities laws, unless held by anli&#” of our company, as that term is defined
in Rule 144 under the securities laws. Shares Inekffiliates of our company, which generally indduour directors, officers, and certain
principal stockholders, are subject to the redaiédtions of Rule 144 described below. Outstandihgres of common stock issued in
connection with the acquisition of any acquiredléeaare available for resale beginning six moatier the respective dates of the
acquisitions, subject to compliance with the primris of Rule 144 under the securities laws.

Through September 30, 2014, we have issued optiiopsrchase approximately 5,090,292 shares of camstozk and 558,999 restrict
stock awards under our incentive stock plans, amisaued 647,115 shares of common stock undemopliogee stock purchase plan. We hav
filed a registration statement under the securifies to register the common stock to be issuecutigese plans. As a result, shares issued
under these plans will be freely tradable with@striction unless acquired by affiliates of our gamy, who will be subject to the volume and
other limitations of Rule 144.

We may issue additional shares of common stockefepred stock under the securities laws as paahgfacquisition we may complete
in the future. If issued pursuant to an effectiegistration statement, these shares generallpwifteely tradable after their issuance by per
not affiliated with us or the acquired companies.

We do not pay cash dividends.
We have never paid cash dividends on our commank stod we have no current intention to do so ferftireseeable future.

Certain provisions of our restated certificate afdorporation and bylaws and Delaware law may makehange in the control of our
company more difficult to complete, even if a chann control were in the stockholders’ interest oright result in a premium over the
market price for the shares held by the stockholsler

Our certificate of incorporation and bylaws divider board of directors into three classes of dinescélected for staggered three-year
terms. The certificate of incorporation also pr@sdhat the board of directors may authorize thgaisce of one or more series of preferred
stock from time to time and may determine the sghteferences, privileges, and restrictions axth& number of shares of any such series o
preferred stock, without any vote or action by stackholders. The board of directors may authdtieessuance of preferred stock with voting
or conversion rights that could adversely affeetibting power or other rights of the holders ahooon stock. The certificate of incorporation
also allows our board of directors to fix the numbkdirectors and to fill vacancies on the boafdicectors.

We also are subject to the anti-takeover provisafrSection 203 of the Delaware General Corpordtiaw, which prohibits us from
engaging in a “business combination” with an “ieted stockholder” for a period of three yearsrdfte date of the transaction in which the
person became an “interested stockholder,” unlesstisiness combination is approved in a prescrifther. Certain of our dealer
agreements could also make it difficult for a thpatty to attempt to acquire a significant owngughosition in our company.
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Our sales of yachts produced by the Azimut-Ben@itoup in Italy and motor and sailing yachts produddy Sino Eagle in China expose us
to international political, economic, and other ks.

Our sales of yachts produced by the Azimut-Ber@&ttiup in Italy and yachts for our yacht charteeflproduced by Sino Eagle in China
expose us to international political, economic, atitr risks. Protectionist trade legislation ia thnited States, Italy, or China, such as a
change in current tariff structures, export or imipompliance laws, or other trade policies coudeasely affect our ability to import yachts
from these foreign suppliers under economicallyfable terms and conditions. Our foreign purchds@ohts create a number of logistical
and communications challenges. The economic, paljtand other risks we face resulting from theseign purchases include the following:

. compliance with U.S. and local laws and regulatequirements as well as changes in those lawseapdrements
. transportation delays or interruptions and othfat$ of less developed infrastructur
. limitations on imports and export

. foreign exchange rate fluctuatiot

. imposition of restrictions on currency conversiarte transfer of fund:

. tariffs and duties and other trade barrier restmst;

. maintenance of quality standar

. unexpected changes in regulatory requireme

. differing labor regulations

. potentially adverse tax consequenc

. possible employee turnover or labor unr

. the burdens and costs of compliance with a vaoéfgreign laws; ant

. political or economic instability

Increased cybersecurity requirements, vulnerab@i, threats and more sophisticated and targeted pot@r crime could pose a risk to ol
systems, networks, and da

Increased global cybersecurity vulnerabilitiesettis and more sophisticated and targeted cybdededdtacks pose a risk to the security
of our and our customers’, suppliers’ and thirdtpaervice providers’ products, systems and netwarid the confidentiality, availability and
integrity of our data. While we attempt to mitigéitese risks by employing a number of measurebjdimg employee training, systems,
monitoring and testing, and maintenance of protectistems and contingency plans, we remain patgntiulnerable to additional known or
unknown threats. We may also have access to sensitinfidential or personal data or informatioattis subject to privacy, security laws, and
regulations. Despite our efforts to protect semsjtconfidential or personal data or informatio®, may be vulnerable to security breaches,
theft, misplaced or lost data, programming erremsployee errors and/or malfeasance that could paligriead to the compromising of
sensitive, confidential or personal data or infatiorg improper use of our systems, unauthorize@sscuse, disclosure, modification or
destruction of information, and operational disiomps. In addition, a cyber-related attack couldiltei® other negative consequences, including
damage to our reputation or competitiveness, remtiedi or increased protection costs, litigatiomagulatory action.

Item 1B.  Unresolved Staff Commen:

Not applicable.
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Item 2. Properties

We lease our corporate offices in Clearwater, BirWe also lease 32 of our retail locations utekeses, many of which contain multi-
year renewal options and some of which grant uiserfght of refusal to purchase the propertyadt ¥alue. In most cases, we pay a fixed
at negotiated rates. In substantially all of theskl locations, we are responsible for taxestiesijiinsurance, and routine repairs and
maintenance. We own the property associated witht2& retail locations we operate and one joimtwe as noted below. Additionally, we
own four retail locations that are currently closechoted below. A store is considered one or maiedl locations that are adjacent or operate
as one entity.

The following table reflects the status, approxiensize, and facilities of the various retail looas we operate as of the date of this re

Operated
Square
Location Location Type Footage(1 Facilities at Property Since(2) Waterfront
Alabama
Gulf Shores Company owne: 4,00C Retail and servic 1998 —
Arizona
Tempe Company owne: 34,000 Retail and servic 1992 —
California
San Diegc Third-party least 70C  Retail only 2011 San Diego Ba
Connecticut
Norwalk Third-party least 7,00C Retail and servic 1994 Norwalk Harbor
Westbrook Third-party least 4,20C  Retail and servic 1998 Westbrook Harbo
Florida
Cape Haze(4 Company owne: 18,00 Retail, 8 wet slip: — Intracoastal Waterwa
Clearwater Company owned 42,000 Retail and service; 20 wet 1973 Tampa Bay
slips
Cocoa Company owne: 15,00 Retail and servic 1968 —
Dania Company owned 32,000 Repair and service; 16 wet 1991 Port Everglades
slips
Daytona Beacl Third-party least 16,00  Retail and servic 2007 —
Fort Lauderdals Third-party least 2,400  Retail only 1977 Intracoastal Waterwa
Fort Myers Third-party least 5,00C Retail, service, and stora 1983 —
Jacksonville Company owne: 15,00( Retail and servic 2004 —
Key Largo Third-party lease 8,90C Retail and service; 6 wet 2002 Card Sound
slips
Miami Company owned 7,200  Retail and service; 15 wet 1980 Little River
slips
Miami Company owne: 5,00C  Service only; 11 wet slig 2005 Little River
Naples Company owned 19,60( Retail and service; 14 wet 1997 Naples Bay
slips
North Palm Beac Company owned 22,80( Retail and service; 8 wet — Intracoastal Waterway
slips
Orlando Third-party least 18,38¢ Retail and servic 1984 —
Panama Cit Third-party least 10,50C Retail only; 8 wet slip: 2011 Saint Andrews Ba
Pensacol; Third-party least 24,30(  Retail and servic 1974 —
Pompano Beach Company owned 23,000  Retail and service; 16 wet 1990 Intracoastal Waterway
slips
Pompano Beach Company owned 5,400 Retail and service; 24 wet 2005 Intracoastal Waterway
slips
Sarasota Third-party lease 26,50( Retalil, service, and storage; 1972 Sarasota Bay
15 wet slips
St. Petersburg(: Joint venture 15,00  Yacht service, 20 wet slif 2006 Boca Ciega Ba
Stuart Company owned 29,10( Retail and service; 66 wet 2002 Intracoastal Waterway

slips
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Location
Tampa(4)
Venice

Georgia
Buford (Atlanta)
Cumming (Atlanta)

Maryland
Baltimore

Joppa

Kent Island
White Marsh(4.
Minnesota
Bayport
Excelsior
Rogers
Missouri
Branson

Lake Ozark

Laurie
Osage Beac
Springfield(4)
New Jersey
Brant Beach

Brick
Lake Hopatcong

Ship Bottom
Somers Point

New York
Copiague
Huntington

Lindenhurst (Marina)

Manhattar

North Carolina
Southport
Wrightsville Beact
Ohio

Port Clinton

Operated
Square
Location Type Footage(1 Facilities at Property Since(2) Waterfront
Company owne: 13,10C  Retail and servic — —
Company owned 62,000 Retail, service, and storage; 1972 Intracoastal Waterway
90 wet slips
Company owne: 13,50(  Retail and servic 2001 —
Third-party lease 13,00 Retail and service; 50 wet 1981 Lake Lanier
slips
Third-party lease 7,600 Retail and service; 17 wet 2005 Baltimore Inner Harbor
slips
Company owned 28,40( Retall, service, and storage; 1966 Gunpowder River
294 wet slips
Third-party least 8,30C  Retail only 2013 Kent Narrows
Company owne: 19,80( Retail and servic — —
Third-party least 45C Retail only; 10 wet slip 1996 St Croix River
Third-party least 2,500 Retail only; 14 wet slip 2013 Lake Minnetonke
Company owne: 70,00( Retail, service, and stora 1991 —
Third-party least 1,50C Retail only; 6 wet slip: 2000 Table Rock Lake
Company owned 60,30(  Retalil, service, and storage; 1987 Lake of the Ozarks
300 wet slips
Company owne: 70C  Retail and servic — —
Company owne: 2,000  Retail and servic — —
Company owne: 12,20(  Retail and servic — —
Third-party lease 3,80C Retail, service, and storage; 1965 Barnegat Bay
36 wet slips
Company owned 20,000 Retalil, service, and storage; 1977 Manasquan River
225 wet slips
Third-party lease 4,60 Retail and service; 80 wet 1998 Lake Hopatcong
slips
Third-party least 19,30(  Retail and servic 1972 —
Third-party lease 31,00C Retail, service, and storage; 1987 Little Egg Harbor Bay
33 wet slips
Third-party least 15,00  Retail only 1993 —
Third-party lease 1,20¢ 1995 Huntington Harbor and
Retail and servic Long Island Soun
Third-party lease 14,60( Retail, marina, service, and 1968 Neguntatogue Creek to
storage; 370 wet slif Great South Ba
Third-party least 1,20C  Retail only; 75 wet slip 1996 Hudson Rivel
Third-party least 1,60C Retail only 2008 Cape Fear Rive
Third-party least 34,50( Retalil, service, and stora 1996 Masonboro Inle
Company owned 80,00( Retalil, service and storage 1997 Lake Erie

wet slips
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Operated
Square
Location Location Type Footage(1 Facilities at Property Since(2) Waterfront
Oklahoma
Afton Third-party lease 3,500 Retail and service; 23 wet 2003 Grand Lake
slips
Rhode Island
Newport Third-party least 70C Retail only 2011 Newport Harbo!
Warwick Third-party least 4,40C Retail and servic 1998 Greenwich Bay
Tennesse
Chattanoogi Third-party least 3,000 Retail only; 12 wet slip 2005 Tennessee Rive
Texas
Lewisville (Dallas) Company owne: 22,000 Retail and servic 2002 —
Seabrook Company owned 32,000 Retail and service; 30 wet 2002 Clear Lake
slips
British Virgin
Islands
Tortola Third-party lease 1,05C Vacation Charters; 12 wet 2011 Maya Cove
slips

(1) Square footage is approximate and does not incutkde sales space or dock or marina facili
(2) Operated since date is the date the facility waseg by us or opened prior to its acquisition hy
(3) Joint venture entered into with Brunswick to acquirarina and service facilit

(4) Owned location that is currently clost

Item 3. Legal Proceeding:

We are party to various legal actions arising mahdinary course of business. While it is not itgaso determine the actual outcome of
these actions as of September 30, 2014, we doetiet/b that these matters will have a material extveffect on our consolidated financial
condition, results of operations, or cash flows.

On January 26, 2012, certain former shareholdeg&udside -3 Marina, Inc., a company we acquired in March@died a lawsuit in th
United States District Court for the Eastern Dgdtdf New York, naming the Company and certainwf directors and officers as defendants.
The lawsuit alleged, in twelve counts, a failureiteely lift stock transfer restrictions on stoakgaired by the plaintiffs in the acquisition,
which allegedly delayed the plaintiffs from sellitige shares while the defendants sold shares iménketplace. The lawsuit claimed damages
in excess of $7 million. On December 3, 2012, theridt Court issued an order dismissing all of directors and officers from the action and
dismissing eleven of the twelve counts, leaving/ahé breach of contract claim against the Comparproceed and allowing the plaintiff to
replead their alleged common law fraud claim witBthdays. On January 3, 2013, the plaintiffs féeBecond Amended Complaint, re-alleging
their breach of contract claim, as well as threedrclaims against the Company and certain direetod officers. The Second Amended
Complaint alleges damages in excess of $10 mill@mMarch 7, 2013, the District Court issued areodismissing the three fraud claims
against the Company and our directors and offi@nsMarch 21, 2013, we filed an Answer to the Secdmended Complaint, denying any
liability to the plaintiffs. On July 15, 2013, witefd a Motion for Summary Judgment dismissing tteémpiffs’ remaining breach of contract
claim against the Company. On August 22, 2013DPiils&rict Court granted our Motion for Summary Judgrnand entered judgment for the
Company. On September 20, 2013, the plaintiffsifiteeir Notice of Appeal. On August 28, 2014, theiteld States Court of Appeals for the
Second Circuit issued a summary order affirmingdisérict court judgment and issued its mandat&eptember 18, 2014. Accordingly,
because the plaintiffs have failed to file a timpétition for certiorari to the United States SupeeCourt, this case is now definitively resolved

Item 4. Mine Safety Disclosure
Not applicable.

40



Table of Contents
PART II

Item 5. Market for the Registrar’'s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters andusr Purchases of Equity Securiti¢
Market Information, Holders

Our common stock is listed on the New York Stockliange under the symbol HZO. The following tabks éerth high and low sale
prices of the common stock for each calendar quantiicated as reported on the New York Stock Ergea

High Low

2012

First quartel $ 9.2¢ $ 6.34
Second quarte $11.2¢ $ 7.84
Third quartel $10.0¢ $ 6.82
Fourth quarte $ 9.0¢ $ 7.17
2013

First quartel $14.1¢ $ 8.6(
Second quarte $13.72 $10.8¢
Third quartel $13.0¢ $10.17
Fourth quarte $16.9¢ $12.01
2014

First quartel $17.0¢ $13.3:¢
Second quarte $16.9( $14.47
Third quartel $19.31 $15.2(
Fourth quarter (through December 1, 20 $19.7( $15.6:

On December 1, 2014, the closing sale price ocourmon stock was $18.60 per share. On Decemb&l14, here were approximately
100 record holders and approximately 4,700 bersfmvners of our common stock.

Dividends

We have never declared or paid cash dividends oo@mumon stock. We currently plan to retain anyhggys to finance the growth of ¢
business rather than to pay cash dividends. Pagnoéiainy cash dividends in the future will dependbar financial condition, results of
operations, and capital requirements as well asrdéittors deemed relevant by our board of director

Purchases of Equity Securities by the Issuer

The following table presents information with resp® our repurchases of our common stock durieghtiree months ended September 30,
2014.
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Total Number
of Shares Maximum Value of
Total Purchased as
Number Part of Publicly Shares that may b
of Shares Average
Purchasec Price Paic Announced Purchased Under
Plans or the Plans or
Period €Y)] per Share Programs Programs
July 1, 2014 to July 31, 2014 — $ — — —
August 1, 2014 to August 31, 20 — — — —
September 1, 2014 to September 30, 2 31,93 16.4¢ — —
Total 31,93: —

(1) All of the shares reported above as purchasedté&ributable to shared tendered by employeethéopayment of applicable withholding
taxes.
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Performance Graph

The following line graph compares cumulative tetaickholder returns for the five years ended SelpgzrB0, 2014 for (i) our common
stock, (ii) the Russell 2000 Index, and (iii) thaddaq Retail Trade Index. The graph assumes astingat of $100 on September 30, 2009.
The calculations of cumulative stockholder retunrtiee Russell 2000 Index and the Nasdaq RetaileThadiex include reinvestment of
dividends. The calculation of cumulative stockholdgurn on our common stock does not include estwment of dividends because we did
not pay any dividends during the measurement pefibd historical performance shown is not necelgsadicative of future performance.

COMPARISON OF 5 YEAR CUMULATIVE TOTAL RETURN*
Among MarineMax, Inc., the Russell 2000 Index, #melNASDAQ Retail Trade Index

$300
250 -
$ B s a
$200 L
$150 B [ -
SR & S -
$100 =S m T T AT T T e A
$50 -
Fo i ; : _ .
9109 910 9411 912 913 914
—B— MarineMax, Inc. —+#— Russell 2000 --2---NASDAG Retail Traie

* $100 invested on 9/30/09 in stock or index, inahgdieinvestment of dividends. Fiscal year endingt&aber 30
Copyright®© 2014 Russell Investment Group. All righéserved.

The performance graph above shall not be deemiedi™fior purposes of Section 18 of the Securiti@stiange

Act of 1934, as amended,

or Exchange Act, or otherwise subject to the lighif that section. The performance graph abovenet be deemed incorporated by refere

into any filing of our company under the Exchangs ér the Securities Act of 1933, as amended.
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ltem 6. Selected Financial Dat:

The following table contains certain financial asgkrating data and is qualified by the more dedaitensolidated financial statements
and notes thereto included elsewhere in this repbg balance sheet and statement of operatioasadat derived from the consolidated
financial statements and notes thereto that hage hedited by Ernst & Young LLP and KPMG LLP, respeely, for the applicable years
when each served as our independent registerefiecepublic accounting firm. The financial dataosim below should be read in conjunction
with the consolidated financial statements and¢feted notes thereto and “Management’s DiscusamhAnalysis of Financial Condition and

Results of Operations” included elsewhere in thjsort.

Fiscal Year Ended September 3(

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014
(Amounts in thousands excepshare, per share, and retail location data
Statement of Operations Data:
Revenue $ 450,34( $ 480,89 $ 524,45 $ 584,49 $ 624,69:
Cost of sale: 339,53 361,40( 391,17: 433,64- 462,87.
Gross profit 110,80° 119,49« 133,28: 150,85: 161,82(
Selling, general, and administrative exper 123,97. 127,89t 127,91: 132,50! 146,43:
(Loss) income from operatiol (13,165 (8,402 5,37( 18,34¢ 15,38
Interest expense, n 3,92¢ 3,48¢ 4,44 4,21¢ 4,024
(Loss) income before income tax benefit
(provision) (17,09) (11,890 922 14,13( 11,36

Income tax benefit (provisiot 19,58¢ 367 17¢€ 894 (92)
Net (loss) incom $ 2,49i $ (11,529 $ 1,09¢ $ 15,02« $ 11,27
Net (loss) income per shal

Diluted $ 0.11 $ (0.52) $ 0.0t $ 0.6 $ 0.4¢€
Weighted average number of shal

Diluted 22,597,95 22,375,27 22,335,91 24,003,722 24,655,26
Other Data (as of yea-end):
Number of retail locations (: 56 54 53 54 54
Sales per store (2) (: $ 8,77¢ $ 9,91 $ 10,64¢ $ 12,75 $ 12,65¢
Same-store sales growth (3) (: A% 8% 11% 11% 6%

September 30
2010 2011 2012 2013 2014

Balance Sheet Data
Working capital $102,95. $ 95,53¢ $101,74' $116,43¢ $126,12¢
Total asset 336,76( 363,12¢ 365,12: 381,90: 402,68:
Goodwill — — 452 80z 802
Long-term debt (including current portion) ( — — — — —
Total stockholder equity 202,03( 195,00( 200,94 221,81. 239,29!

(1) Includes only those retail locations open at pednd.

(2) Includes only those stores open for the entirequlig 1:-month period

(3) New and acquired stores are included in the comyatmse at the end of the s’s thirteenth month of operatior

(4) A store is one or more retail locations that adjacent or operate as one entity. Sales pear atar same-store sales growth is intended
only as supplemental information and is not a stultstfor revenue or net income presented in a@wrd with generally accepted

accounting principles

(5) Amount excludes our shterm borrowings for working capital and inventoinyahcing.
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Item 7. Managemen's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition drResults of Operation

The following should be read in conjunction withrfHaincluding the matters set forth in the “Ris&ctors” section of this report, and our
Consolidated Financial Statements and notes therelieded elsewhere in this report.

Overview

We are the largest recreational boat retailer éndhited States with fiscal 2014 revenue in exoé§620 million. Through our current !
retail locations in 17 states, we sell new and ueetkational boats and related marine produatfyding engines, trailers, parts, and
accessories. We also arrange related boat finanicisgrance, and extended service contracts; pedséat repair and maintenance services;
offer yacht and boat brokerage sales; and, wheaiade, offer slip and storage accommodations.rééently implemented programs to
increase sales of boats, boating parts, and actessas well as the offer of finance and insurancé&&I, products at various offsite locations;
and the charter of power and sailing yachts inBtish Virgin Islands. None of these recently implented programs have had a material
effect on our consolidated financial statements.

MarineMax was incorporated in January 1998. We cengad operations with the acquisition of five inelegient recreational boat
dealers on March 1, 1998. Since the initial actjoiss in March 1998, we have acquired 24 recreatiboat dealers, two boat brokerage
operations, and two full-service yacht repair fitie. As a part of our acquisition strategy, wexjfnently engage in discussions with various
recreational boat dealers regarding their poteatiglisition by us. Potential acquisition discussifrequently take place over a long period of
time and involve difficult business integration asttier issues, including, in some cases, managesuenéssion and related matters. As a r
of these and other factors, a number of potentiglisitions that from time to time appear likelyowcur do not result in binding legal
agreements and are not consummated. We completdatiaely small acquisition in each of the fisgakrs ended September 30, 2012, 2013,
and 2014.

General economic conditions and consumer spenditigrps can negatively impact our operating resultdavorable local, regional,
national, or global economic developments or uageties regarding future economic prospects coedidice consumer spending in the market
we serve and adversely affect our business. Ecanoomditions in areas in which we operate dealpsshparticularly Florida in which we
generated approximately 49%, 51%, and 52% of aremae during fiscal 2012, 2013, and 2014, respelgtican have a major impact on our
operations. Local influences, such as corporatend@ing, military base closings, and inclement Wweasuch as Hurricane Sandy,
environmental conditions, and specific events, aagcthe BP oil spill in the Gulf of Mexico, alsoutd adversely affect, and in certain instar
have adversely affected, our operations in certairkets.

In an economic downturn, consumer discretionarygjmg levels generally decline, at times resultmdisproportionately large
reductions in the sale of luxury goods. Consumendjng on luxury goods also may decline as a reslttiwer consumer confidence levels,
even if prevailing economic conditions are favoealfls a result, an economic downturn could impaanhore than certain of our competitors
due to our strategic focus on a higher end of carket. Although we have expanded our operationsmguyeriods of stagnant or modestly
declining industry trends, the cyclical naturetod tecreational boating industry or the lack olistdy growth may adversely affect our
business, financial condition, and results of ofi@na. Any period of adverse economic condition®oar consumer confidence has a negative
effect on our business.

Lower consumer spending resulting from a downtarthe housing market and other economic factorsrsaly affected our business in
fiscal 2007, and continued weakness in consumerdépg and depressed economic conditions had assultadtnegative effect on our business
in each subsequent fiscal year. These conditions baused us to substantially reduce our acquisgitiogram, delay new store openings,
reduce our inventory purchases, engage in invemémhyction efforts, close a number of our retaiblions, reduce our headcount, and amend
and replace our credit facility. Acquisitions arelnstore openings remain important strategies ta@ompany, and we plan to accelerate our
growth through these strategies when more nornmiaic conditions return. However, we cannot prettiie length or severity of these
unfavorable economic or financial conditions or éixéent to which they will continue to adverselfeat our operating results nor can we
predict the effectiveness of the measures we tekentto address this environment or whether acdditimeasures will be necessary.
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Although economic conditions have adversely afi@cter operating results, we have capitalized oncove strengths to substantially
outperform the industry, resulting in market shgaes. Our ability to capture such market shargstip the alignment of our retailing
strategies with the desires of consumers. We lelies steps we have taken to address weak mankéitions will yield an increase in future
revenue. As general economic trends improve, weaxqur core strengths and retailing strategielspogition us to capitalize on growth
opportunities as they occur and will allow us toeege from this challenging economic environmenhwiteater earnings potential.

Application of Critical Accounting Policies

We have identified the policies below as critiegabur business operations and the understandingratesults of operations. The impact
and risks related to these policies on our businpssgations is discussed throughout Managemensesussion and Analysis of Financial
Condition and Results of Operations when such jgdliaffect our reported and expected financialltesu

In the ordinary course of business, we make a nuwifoestimates and assumptions relating to thertiegpof results of operations and
financial condition in the preparation of our fircgal statements in conformity with accounting pijshes generally accepted in the United
States. We base our estimates on historical expsrseand on various other assumptions that wevieediee reasonable under the circumsta
The results form the basis for making judgmentauabite carrying values of assets and liabilitied tire not readily apparent from other
sources. Actual results could differ significarflgm those estimates under different assumptiodscanditions. We believe that the following
discussion addresses our most critical accountitigies, which are those that are most importanhé&portrayal of our financial condition and
results of operations and require our most difficslibjective, and complex judgments, often asalref the need to make estimates about the
effect of matters that are inherently uncertain.

Revenue Recognitio

We recognize revenue from boat, motor, and traéées and parts and service operations at thettienkeoat, motor, trailer, or part is
delivered to or accepted by the customer or thaeeis completed. We recognize deferred revenum Bervice operations and slip and sto
services on a straight-line basis over the terth@fcontract or when service is completed. We neizegcommissions earned from a brokerage
sale at the time the related brokerage transactases. We recognize commissions earned by uddoing notes with financial institutions in
connection with customer boat financing when wegeize the related boat sales. We recognize matkétes earned on credit, life, accident,
disability, gap, and hull insurance products soldhird-party insurance companies at the laterust@mer acceptance of the insurance produc
as evidenced by contract execution or when theeklaoat sale is recognized. We also recognize dssions earned on extended warranty
service contracts sold on behalf of third-partyuiasice companies at the later of customer acceptaitbe service contract terms as evidence
by contract execution or recognition of the reldtedt sale.

Certain finance and extended warranty commissiadsw@arketing fees on insurance products may begeladrack if a customer
terminates or defaults on the underlying contrathiw a specified period of time. Based upon oyvagience of terminations and defaults, we
maintain a chargeback allowance that was not nateriour financial statements taken as a wholaf & ptember 30, 2014. Should results
differ materially from our historical experienceg would need to modify our estimate of future gedacks, which could have a material
adverse effect on our operating margins. We ddabéve there is a reasonable likelihood that tieliebe a change in the future estimates or
assumptions we use to calculate our estimate ofduthargebacks which would result in a materif@otfon our operating results.

Vendor Consideration Received

We account for consideration received from our weadn accordance with FASB Accounting Standarddif@ation 605-50, “Revenue
Recognition - Customer Payments and Incentives’SCA605-50"). ASC 605-50 requires us to classifgriest assistance received from
manufacturers as a reduction of inventory costratated cost of sales as opposed to netting thstaisse against our interest expense incurre
with our lenders. Pursuant to ASC 605-50, amougttsived by us under our co-op assistance prognamsdur manufacturers are netted
against related advertising expenses. Our considenaceived from our vendors contains uncertagbiecause the calculation requires

46



Table of Contents

management to make assumptions and to apply judgmegarding a number of factors, including our it collect amounts due from
vendors and the ability to meet certain criteripidated by our vendors. We do not believe thererisasonable likelihood that there will be a
change in the future estimates or assumptions eeéaousalculate our vendor considerations which woesult in a material effect on our
operating results.

Inventories

Inventory costs consist of the amount paid to aegmventory, net of vendor consideration and pasehdiscounts, the cost of equipment
added, reconditioning costs, and transportatiotsa@$ating to acquiring inventory for sale. Wetstaew and used boat, motor, and trailer
inventories at the lower of cost, determined opec#ic-identification basis, or market. We statetp and accessories at the lower of cost,
determined on an average cost basis, or markeutilize our historical experience, the aging of ilmeentories, and our consideration of
current market trends as the basis for determiailuyver of cost or market valuation allowance. @wrer of cost or market valuation
allowance contains uncertainties because the edionlrequires management to make assumptionsoaaqapty judgment regarding the amo
at which the inventory will ultimately be sold whiconsiders forecasted market trends, model chaagdsew product introductions. We do
not believe there is a reasonable likelihood thatd will be a change in the future estimates sumptions we use to calculate our lower of
or market valuation allowance which would resulaimaterial effect on our operating results. ASeptember 30, 2013 and September 30,
2014, our lower of cost or market valuation alloaafor new and used boat, motor, and trailer irmées was $1.8 million and $2.2 million,
respectively. If events occur and market conditiomznge, causing the fair value to fall below cagyalue, the lower of cost or market
valuation allowance could increase.

Goodwill

We account for goodwill in accordance with FASB Auanting Standards Codification 350, “IntangibléScodwill and Other” (“ASC
3507), which provides that the excess of cost amadrassets of businesses acquired is recordecbdsvilio The acquisitions of Bassett Marine,
LLC and Parker Boat Company resulted in goodwi$802,000. In accordance with ASC 350, we revieadydll for impairment at least
annually and whenever events or changes in cirames indicate that the carrying value may noebeverable. Our annual impairment test
is performed during the fourth fiscal quarter.hétcarrying amount of goodwill exceeds its fairnalve would recognize an impairment loss ir
accordance with ASC 350. As of September 30, 28dd based upon our most recent analysis, we detedntihrough our qualitative
assessment that it is not “more likely than notttthe fair values of our reporting units are ks their carrying values. As a result, we were
not required to perform the two-step goodwill inrpaént test. The qualitative assessment requirés mske judgments and assumptions
regarding macroeconomic and industry conditions fimancial performance, and other factors. We dbhelieve there is a reasonable
likelihood that there will be a change in the judgns and assumptions used in our qualitative assegsvhich would result in a material efl
on our operating results.

Impairment of Lon¢-Lived Assets

FASB Accounting Standards Codification 360-10-4®rdperty, Plant, and Equipment - Impairment or Dss of Long-Lived
Assets” (“ASC 360-10-40"), requires that long-livasisets, such as property and equipment and pecth#angibles subject to amortization,
be reviewed for impairment whenever events or chang circumstances indicate that the carrying arhofian asset may not be recoverable.
Recoverability of the asset is measured by compaig its carrying amount to undiscounted futureaash flows the asset is expected to
generate. If such assets are considered to berimpaie impairment to be recognized is measurgékdeaamount by which the carrying amount
of the asset exceeds its fair market value. Estismat expected future cash flows represent ourdstshate based on currently available
information and reasonable and supportable assamgptDur impairment loss calculations contain utadaties because they require us to n
assumptions and to apply judgment in order to egéraxpected future cash flows. Any impairment gecoed in accordance with ASC 360-
10-40 is permanent and may not be restored. Bgs&u aur most recent analysis, we believe no impaitrof long-lived assets existed as of
September 30, 2014. We do not believe there iasoreble likelihood that there will be a changth@future estimates or assumptions used t
test for recoverability which would result in a midal effect on our operating results.
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Stock-Based Compensation

We account for our stock-based compensation plaimiiing the provisions of FASB Accounting Standafodification 718,
“Compensation — Stock Compensation” (*“ASC 718")aktordance with ASC 718, we use the Black-Scha&sation model for valuing all
stock-based compensation and shares purchasedaunrdemployee Stock Purchase Plan. We measure cwatien for restricted stock
awards and restricted stock units at fair valu¢ghengrant date based on the number of shares exptectvest and the quoted market price o
common stock. For restricted stock units with madanditions, we utilize a Monte Carlo simulationteedded in a lattice model to determine
the fair value. We recognize compensation costficawards in operations, net of estimated forfeisiion a straigHtne basis over the requis
service period for each separately vesting powiathe award. Our valuation models and generalgepted valuation techniques require us to
make assumptions and to apply judgment to deterthméair value of our awards. These assumptiodgwigments include estimating the
volatility of our stock price, expected dividenald, employee turnover rates and employee stodkrmopikercise behaviors. We do not believe
there is a reasonable likelihood that there williEhange in the future estimates or assumptionsse¢o calculate our stock-based
compensation which would result in a material effatour operating results.

Income Taxes

We account for income taxes in accordance with FASBounting Standards Codification 740, “Income @siXx(“ASC 740"). Under
ASC 740, we recognize deferred tax assets andifiebifor the future tax consequences attributableemporary differences between the
financial statement carrying amounts of existingeés and liabilities and their respective tax bagés measure deferred tax assets and
liabilities using enacted tax rates expected tdyatgptaxable income in the years in which we exjleose temporary differences to be
recovered or settled. We record valuation allowarioeeduce our deferred tax assets to the amapeteed to be realized by considering all
available positive and negative evidence.

Pursuant to ASC 740, we must consider all posdive negative evidence regarding the realizatiashefdrred tax assets. ASC 740
provides for four possible sources of taxable inedmrealize deferred tax assets: 1) taxable indarpeor carryback years, 2) reversals of
existing deferred tax liabilities, 3) tax plannisigategies and 4) projected future taxable incakseof September 30, 2014, we have no
available taxable income in prior carryback yeegsersals of existing deferred tax liabilities ougent and feasible tax planning strategies.
Therefore, the recoverability of our deferred tageds is dependent upon generating future taxabderie. Although as of September 30, 2014
we were no longer in a three year cumulative lasstipn for financial reporting purposes in ourrsfgcant jurisdictions, we believe there is
sufficient negative evidence concerning our pr@gdduture taxable income and, therefore, the ratidin of our deferred tax assets. Our future
taxable income is inherently difficult to projeetdasubject to uncertainty due to many factors idiclg the impact of general economic
conditions and the cyclical nature of our operaiaich historically has resulted in losses infttat half of our fiscal year. Additionally,
historically it has been difficult to project ourdustry’s trends and therefore our results. Basedus analysis of the available evidence we
determined that our deferred tax assets needdthalfuation allowance as of September 30, 2013 %@gtember 30, 2014. We will continue
evaluate the need for a valuation allowance.

The application of income tax law is inherently gex. Laws and regulations in this area are volum@and are often ambiguous. Ur
ASC 740, the impact of uncertain tax positions teieexpected to be taken on an income tax retwst tve recognized in the financial
statements at the largest amount that is moreylikeln not to be sustained upon audit by the reletzxing authority. An uncertain income tax
position will not be recognized in the financiadt&iments unless it is more likely than not of bedngtained As such, we are required to make
subjective assumptions and judgments regardingfective tax rate and our income tax exposure. éfigcctive income tax rate is affected by
changes in tax law in the jurisdictions in which gugrently operate, tax jurisdictions of new retadations, our earnings, and the results of ta
audits. We believe that the judgments and estintisesissed herein are reasonable.

For a more comprehensive list of our accountingcpes, including those which involve varying degreé judgment, see Note 2 —
“Significant Accounting Policies” of Notes to Corlisiated Financial Statements.

Recent Accounting Pronouncemen

In May 2014, the FASB issued Accounting Standarddate No. 2014-09, “Revenue from Contracts witht@uers (Topic 606)” (ASU
2014-9), a converged standard on revenue recognifite new pronouncement requires revenue recogrtii depict the transfer of promised
goods or services to customers in an amount tflatte the
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consideration to which the entity expects to bétledtin exchange for those goods or services.dthdance also specifies the accounting for
some costs to obtain or fulfill a contract withustomer, as well as enhanced disclosure requiream&BU 2014-9 is effective for annual
reporting periods beginning after December 15, 20iduding interim reporting periods within tha&porting period. Early adoption is not
permitted. We currently do not believe the adoptibthis standard will have a material impact on censolidated financial statements

Results of Operations
The following table sets forth certain financiatalas a percentage of revenue for the periodsatetic

Fiscal Year Ended September 3(

2012 2013 2014
(Amounts in thousands)
Revenue $524,45¢  100.% $584,49° 100.(% $624,69: 100.(%
Cost of sale: 391,17: 74.6€% 433,64 74.2%  462,87. 74.1%
Gross profi 133,28: 25.8  150,85: 25.8%  161,82( 25.%
Selling, general, and administrative exper 127,91 24.4%  132,50! 22.1% 146,43 23.4%
Income from operation 5,37( 1.C% 18,34¢ 3.1% 15,381 2.5%
Interest expens 4,44 0.% 4,21¢ 0.7% 4,024 0.€%
Income before income tax 92z 0.2% 14,13( 2.4% 11,36: 1.%
Income tax benefit (provisiot 17€ 0.C% 894 0.2% (97) 0.C%
Net income $ 1,09¢ 0.2% $ 15,02 2.6% $ 11,27: 1.6%

Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2014 Compared Wwitital Year Ended September 30, 2013

RevenueRevenue increased $40.2 million, or 6.9%, to $62illion for the fiscal year ended September 3@, 2f6om $584.5 million
for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2013. Bfitierease, $37.7 million was attributable to ai6¥ease in comparable-store sales. The
increase in our comparabdtere sales was due to incremental increases irbpatsales and incremental increases in brokesags, parts ar
accessories, storage services, and charter relmgdsoving industry conditions resulting from impea economic conditions contributed to out
comparable-store sales growth.

Gross Profit.Gross profit increased $11.0 million, or 7.3%, 16 $.8 million for the fiscal year ended Septemt&r2)14 from
$150.9 million for the fiscal year ended SeptenB8®r2013. Gross profit as a percentage of revemreased to 25.9% for the fiscal year er
September 30, 2014 from 25.8% for the fiscal yealed September 30, 2013. The increase in gross wad primarily attributable to the
increase in comparable-store sales and incremgimalieased margins on new and used boat sale®dungroving industry inventory and
industry-wide conditions.

Selling, General, and Administrative Expenssdling, general, and administrative expenses asgé $13.9 million, or 10.5%, to $146.4
for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2014 fra82% million for the fiscal year ended Septemhb®r2D13. The fiscal year ended
September 30, 2013 and 2014 included a recoveogniped of approximately $11.7 million and $555,00€t of taxes and other expenses,
from the Deepwater Horizon Settlement Program &ondges suffered as a result of the Deepwater HofbSpill. The fiscal year ended
September 30, 2014 include a gain of approxim&&lQ million, net of store closing costs, for tladesof our Walker, Minnesota retail locati
Excluding these items and making both years conperaelling, general, and administrative expemsareased $3.8 million, or 2.6%, to
$148.0 million and as a percentage of revenue dserkto 23.7% for the fiscal year ended Septenthe2®.4 from 24.7% for the fiscal year
ended September 30, 2013. The overall increasaling general, and administrative expenses wimsgrily attributable to increased
commissions resulting from increased boat sales.

Interest Expensénterest expense decreased $194,000, or 4.6%,@adiflion for the fiscal year ended SeptemberZmL4 from
$4.2 million for the fiscal year ended SeptemberZ28l3. Interest expense as a percentage of rewlmmeased to 0.6% for the fiscal year
ended September 30, 2014 from 0.7% for the fiseat gnded September 30, 2013. The decrease waariprienresult of lower interest rates
under our credit facility.

Income TaxesWe had income tax expense of $91,000 for thalfigear ended September 30, 2014 compared withcamie tax benefit
of $894,000 for the fiscal year ended SeptembeRB03. In fiscal 2013, the tax benefit was
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primarily attributable to a favorable tax settlemeith a state in which we operate. In fiscal 20th&, income tax expense is primarily relate
Federal alternative minimum tax and state tax egpenin fiscal 2014 and 2013, the income tax exgerexcluding the favorable tax settlen
in 2013, resulted in a low tax rate due to thdéaatlon of the net operating loss carryforwardstéor purposes which had a full valuation
allowance. We will continue to evaluate the needafwaluation allowance. If the full valuation allance is reversed we will start recording a
tax provision.

Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2013 Compared Wwitital Year Ended September 30, 2012

RevenueRevenue increased $60.0 million, or 11.5%, to $5&4illion for the fiscal year ended September 32from $524.5 million
for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2012. Bfiticrease, $57.7 million was attributable to 4fblincrease in comparable-store sales. The
increase in our comparable-store sales was durternental increases in new boat sales, partipataible to new brands we have expanded
with, and incremental increases in used boat shfekerage sales, F&I products, service, partsamedssories. Improving industry conditions
resulting from improved economic conditions conitéd to our comparable-store sales growth.

Gross Profit.Gross profit increased $17.6 million, or 13.2%%$1%0.9 million for the fiscal year ended Septeng®r2013 from
$133.3 million for the fiscal year ended SeptenB8®r2012. Gross profit as a percentage of revemreased to 25.8% for the fiscal year er
September 30, 2013 from 25.4% for the fiscal yeailed September 30, 2012. The increase in gross wad primarily attributable to the
increase in comparable-store sales and incremgimalieased margins on new and used boat sale®dungroving industry inventory and
industry-wide conditions.

Selling, General, and Administrative Expen$sdling, general, and administrative expenses asae $4.6 million, or 3.6%, to $132.5
the fiscal year ended September 30, 2013 from $1ilion for the fiscal year ended September 3L 2 The fiscal year ended Septembe
2013 included a recovery recognized of approxingebéll.7 million, net of taxes and other expensesnfthe Deepwater Horizon Settlement
Program for damages suffered as a result of th@®ater Horizon Oil Spill. Excluding this item andaking both years comparable, selling,
general, and administrative expenses increased $iiflion, or 12.7%, to $144.3 million and as aqmtage of revenue increased to 24.7% fo
the fiscal year ended September 30, 2013 from 2404%he fiscal year ended September 30, 2012.0Meeall increase in selling, general, and
administrative expenses was primarily attributdablencreased commissions resulting from increased sales and restructured commission
plans; increased insurance costs related to psopsualty, liability and healthcare; increasegrpk associated with improved performance
and modest personnel growth; and increased promadtgpending in an effort to counteract the inclethveeather conditions.

Interest Expensénterest expense decreased $229,000, or 5.2%,2adiflion for the fiscal year ended SeptemberZL3 from
$4.4 million for the fiscal year ended SeptemberZl2. Interest expense as a percentage of rewlmmeased to 0.7% for the fiscal year
ended September 30, 2013 from 0.9% for the fiseat gnded September 30, 2012. The decrease waariprienresult of lower interest rates
under our credit facility.

Income Tax BenefitWe had an income tax benefit of $894,000 foffiteal year ended September 30, 2013 comparedamithcome ta
benefit of $176,000 for the fiscal year ended Septr 30, 2012. Our effective income tax rate wasflar both the fiscal year ended
September 30, 2013 and 2012. In fiscal 2013, théeaefit was primarily attributable to a favoratde settlement with a state in which we
operate. In fiscal 2012, we generated a loss foptaposes and we could not record the benefithiemet operating loss carryforward due to
the required valuation allowance. For fiscal 2028 2012, the income tax expense ordinarily assediaith our preax income was offset by
net operating loss carryforward, which had a faluation allowance.

Quarterly Data and Seasonality

Our business, as well as the entire recreatioratifgindustry, is highly seasonal, with seasopalitrying in different geographic
markets. With the exception of Florida, we gengraedhalize significantly lower sales and higher levaf inventories, and related short-term
borrowings, in the quarterly periods ending Decem®ieand March 31. The onset of the public boatrasdeation shows in January stimulates
boat sales and typically allows us to reduce oueriory levels and related short-term borrowingsuighout the remainder of the fiscal year.
Our business could become substantially more saagome acquire dealers that operate in colderoregiof the United States or close retail
locations in warm climates.
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Our business is also subject to weather patternghwmay adversely affect our results of operatiés example, prolonged winter
conditions, drought conditions (or merely reducaidfall levels) or excessive rain, may limit accasarea boating locations or render boating
dangerous or inconvenient, thereby curtailing augtodemand for our products and services. In aaditinseasonably cool weather and
prolonged winter conditions may lead to a shorédlirgy season in certain locations. Hurricanes @her storms could result in disruptions of
our operations or damage to our boat inventoriesfagilities, as has been the case when Florideottmet markets were affected by hurricanes
Although our geographic diversity is likely to remuthe overall impact to us of adverse weatheritiond in any one market area, these
conditions will continue to represent potential tenal adverse risks to us and our future finanpeaformance.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Our cash needs are primarily for working capitasugport operations, including new and used bodtrelated parts inventories, off-
season liquidity, and growth through acquisitiond aew store openings. Acquisitions and new stpenmgs remain important strategies to
our company, and we plan to accelerate our growthugh these strategies when more robust econandtitoons return. However, we cannot
predict the length or severity of these unfavoraaenomic or financial conditions. We regularly ritonthe aging of our inventories and
current market trends to evaluate our current atbgté inventory needs. We also use this evaluati@onjunction with our review of our
current and expected operating performance ancceeghdusiness levels to determine the adequacyrdfrancing needs.

These cash needs have historically been financidoash generated from operations and borrowingsrour credit facility. Our ability
to utilize our credit facility to fund operationgpends upon the collateral levels and compliante thve covenants of the credit facility.
Turmoil in the credit markets and weakness in #iairmarkets may interfere with our ability to raimin compliance with the covenants of
credit facility and therefore our ability to utiézhe credit facility to fund operations. As of 8spber 30, 2014, we were in compliance with all
covenants under our credit facility. We currentipdnd upon dividends and other payments from caiedships and our credit facility to fund
our current operations and meet our cash needs08% owner of each of our dealerships, we deterthi@@mounts of such distributions, and
currently, no agreements exist that restrict this/ fof funds from our dealerships.

For the fiscal years ended September 30, 2014,, 20182012, cash provided by operating activit@aaximated $10.8 million,
$7.8 million, and $8.7 million, respectively. Fbetfiscal year ended September 30, 2014, cashdeoviy operating activities was primarily
related to net income and a decrease in accowgs/able partially offset by an increase in inventdriven by the expansion of current and
new brands and decreases in accrued expenseseHigdal year ended September 30, 2013, cashdao\dy operating activities was
primarily related to net income partially offset &y increase in inventory driven by the timing cders and increased trade-ins on new boat
sales and decreases in accrued expenses and tontiateilities. For the fiscal year ended Septen@®r2012, cash provided by operating
activities was primarily related to a decreaseng€ntory driven by inventory order reductions aadtiglly offset by an increase in accounts
receivable as a result of our strong Septembeedaosd a decrease in accrued expenses and londjdbitities.

For the fiscal years ended September 30, 2014,,201B2012, cash used in investing activities vpgsaimately $12.8 million,
$12.6 million, and $7.6 million, respectively. Rbe fiscal year ended September 30, 2014, cashindedesting activities was primarily used
to improve existing retail facilities and purchaseote receivable in conjunction with the planneguasition of a retail facility, partially offset
by proceeds received from the sale of our Walkénnésota retail facility and insurance proceedsikexd as a result of Hurricane Sandy. For
the fiscal year ended September 30, 2013, cashisegesting activities was primarily used to plsse inventory associated with a business
acquisition and to purchase property and equipmgstciated with improving existing retail facilgiand making capital improvements as a
result of Hurricane Sandy and partially offset bgurance proceeds received as a result of Hurri8andy. For the fiscal year ended
September 30, 2012, cash used in investing aetdvtias primarily used to purchase property andpeggimt associated with improving existing
retail facilities as well as inventory purchasesogsated with a business acquisition.

o’
o)

For the fiscal years ended September 30, 2014, @a0d2012, cash provided by financing activities wpproximately $6.1 million, $4.9
million, and $3.2 million, respectively. For thedal year ended September 30, 2014, cash providédamcing activities was primarily
attributable to net short-term borrowings as alteduncreased
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inventory levels and proceeds from the issuan@®wafmon stock from our stock based compensatiorspleor the fiscal year ended
September 30, 2013, cash provided by financingities was primarily attributable to net short-telmrrowings as a result of increased
inventory levels and proceeds from the issuan@®oafmon stock from our stock based compensatiorspleor the fiscal year ended
September 30, 2012, cash provided by financingities was primarily attributable to net short-telbmrrowings associated with capital
expenditures and proceeds from the issuance of constock from our stock based compensation plans.

In August 2014, we entered into an amendment tdrouemtory Financing Agreement (the “Amended Cré&ditility”), originally entered
into in June 2010, as subsequently amended, witlic@Bmercial Distribution Finance Corporation. Theglist 2014 amendment extended th
maturity date of the Credit Facility to August 20%ubject to additional extension for two one-yeariods, with lender approval. The August
2014 amendment, among other things, modified theusutnof borrowing availability and maturity datetbgé Credit Facility. The Amended
Credit Facility provides a floor plan financing coritment of up to $235.0 million, an increase frdma previous limit of $205.0 million,
subject to borrowing base availability resultingrfr the amount and aging of our inventory.

The Amended Credit Facility has certain financ@lenants as specified in the agreement. The coteimaiude provisions that our
leverage ratio must not exceed 2.75 to 1.0 andailmaturrent ratio must be greater than 1.2 toThe. interest rate for amounts outstanding
under the Amended Credit Facility is 345 basis fsoabove the one-month London Inter-Bank OfferimgeR“LIBOR”). There is an unused
line fee of ten basis points on the unused porifcthe Amended Credit Facility.

Advances under the Amended Credit Facility aredtatl by the acquisition of eligible new and usaceintory or are re-advances against
eligible new and used inventory that have beeriglgrpaid-off. Advances on new inventory will generally magtur,080 days from the origin
invoice date. Advances on used inventory will matB681 days from the date we acquire the used ioweriEach advance is subject to a
curtailment schedule, which requires that we payrdthe balance of each advance on a periodic bteiing after six months. The curtailm
schedule varies based on the type and value afitleatory. The collateral for the Amended Creditifity is all of our personal property with
certain limited exceptions. None of our real estate been pledged for collateral for the Amendezti€ Facility.

As of September 30, 2013 and 2014, our indebtedhmsxciated with financing our inventory and wogk@apital needs totaled
approximately $122.5 million and $124.4 millionspectively. As of September 30, 2013 and 2014inteeest rate on the outstanding short-
term borrowings was approximately 3.7% and 3.6%o0September 30, 2014, our additional availabledwings under our Amended Credit
Facility were approximately $38.2 million based opbe outstanding borrowing base availability. Bigeng of our inventory limits our
borrowing capacity as defined curtailments redheeailowable advance rate as our inventory ages.

Except as specified in this “Management’s Discussind Analysis of Financial Condition, and Resaft®©perations” and in our
consolidated financial statements, we have no nahtsymmitments for capital for the next 12 montA& believe that our existing capital
resources will be sufficient to finance our opemasi for at least the next 12 months, except fosiptes significant acquisitions.

Contractual Commitments and Commercial Commitments

The following table sets forth a summary of our eniai contractual obligations and commercial cormmeitits as of September 30, 2014

Operating
Year Ending Short-Term Long-Term
September 3C Borrowings (1) Liabilities (2) Leases (3 Total
(Amounts in thousands)

2015 $ 124,42 $ — $ 5,28¢ $129,71(
2016 — 55C 4,46¢ 5,01¢
2017 — — 3,64¢ 3,64¢
2018 — — 3,03¢ 3,03t
2019 — — 2,36: 2,36
Thereafte! — — 13,40¢ 13,40t
Total $ 124,42 $ 55( $32,20¢ $157,18(

(1) Estimates of future interest payments for skemn borrowings have been excluded in the talpdesentation. Amounts due are
contingent upon the outstanding balances and thiabla interest rates. As of September 30, 20%tjriterest rate on our short-term
borrowings was approximately 3.6'
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(2) The amounts included in long-term liabilitiemnsist primarily of gross unrecognized tax benefitd our estimated liability for claims on
certain workers’ compensation insurance policiekil#ive estimate the amount to be paid in exced2 afionths, the ultimate timing of
the payments is subject to certain variability. &atingly, we have classified all amounts as dudhénfollowing year for the purposes of
this table.

(3) Amounts for operating lease commitments doimdtide certain operating expenses such as maimtenasurance, and real estate taxes
These amounts are not a material component of tipgmxpenses

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

We do not have any transactions, arrangementsher celationships with unconsolidated entities #ive reasonably likely to affect our
financial condition, liquidity, or capital resouscaVe have no special purpose or limited purposi#emnthat provide off-balance sheet
financing, liquidity, or market or credit risk supp; we do not engage in hedging, or research amdldpment services; and we do not have
other relationships that expose us to liabilityt ikanot reflected in the financial statements.

ltem 7A.  Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about MakRisk

As of September 30, 2014, all of our short-termtdlve interest at a variable rate, tied to LIBGRaaeference rate. Changes in the
underlying LIBOR interest rate on our short-ternbtdeould affect our earnings. For example, a hygiithal 100 basis point increase in the
interest rate on our short-term debt would resu#in increase of approximately $1.2 million in aanre-tax interest expense. This estimated
increase is based upon the outstanding balancer ahort-term debt as of September 30, 2014 andreessno mitigating changes by us to
reduce the outstanding balances and no additiotezkist assistance that could be received fromorerdlie to the interest rate increase.

Products purchased from European-based and Chirasssl manufacturers are subject to fluctuatiotiserJ.S. dollar exchange rate,
which ultimately may impact the retail price at aiiwe can sell such products. Accordingly, fluduzd in the value of the other currencies
compared with the U.S. dollar may impact the ppomts at which we can profitably sell such foremoducts, and such price points may not
be competitive with other product lines in the @ditStates. Accordingly, such fluctuations in exgfearates ultimately may impact the amount
of revenue, cost of goods sold, cash flows, andiegs we recognize for such foreign product linde. cannot predict the effects of exchange
rate fluctuations on our operating results. Inaiartases, we may enter into foreign currency flashhedges to reduce the variability of cash
flows associated with forecasted purchases of mats/achts from European-based and Chinese-bameafacturers. We are not currently
engaged in foreign currency exchange hedging tcdiosa to manage our foreign currency exposurandf when we do engage in foreign
currency exchange hedging transactions, we carssot@that our strategies will adequately protacioperating results from the effects of
exchange rate fluctuations.

Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary De

Reference is made to the financial statementsydhes thereto, and the report thereon, commencimage F-1 of this report, which
financial statements, notes, and report are incatpd herein by reference.

Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants orcéanting and Financial Disclosure

Not applicable.
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Iltem 9A. Controls and Procedure
Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

We maintain disclosure controls and proceduresdtetiesigned to ensure that material informagguired to be disclosed by us in
Securities Exchange Act reports is recorded, pssmkssummarized and reported within the time persgecified in the Securities and
Exchange Commission’s rules and forms, and thdt smformation is accumulated and communicated toneanagement, including the Chief
Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, ggeopriate, to allow timely decisions regardinguiegd disclosure.

Our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial i0&r have evaluated the effectiveness of the demiginoperation of our disclosure
controls and procedures (as defined in Rules 18a)Hnd 15d-15(e) under the Securities Exchangef\t®34) as of the end of the period
covered by this report. Based on such evaluatioeh sfficers have concluded that, as of the ertti@period covered by this report, our
disclosure controls and procedures were effectitkeareasonable assurance level.

Changes in Internal Controls

During the quarter ended September 30, 2014, there no changes in our internal controls over fai@reporting that materially
affected, or were reasonably likely to materiaffiget, our internal control over financial repogin

Limitations on the Effectiveness of Controls

Our management, including our Chief Executive @ifiand Chief Financial Officer, does not expect tha disclosure controls and
procedures and internal controls over financiabrépg will prevent all errors and all fraud. A dowl system, no matter how well conceived
and operated, can provide only reasonable, notlsties@ssurance that the objectives of the cosyrsiem are met. Further, the design of a
control system must reflect the fact that thereraseurce constraints, and the benefits of contnaist be considered relative to their costs.
Although our disclosure controls and proceduresdasigned to provide reasonable assurance of acbitheir objectives because of the
inherent limitations in all control systems, no lenagion of controls can provide absolute assurdhnaeall control issues and instances of fraud
if any, within the company have been detected. &lirgserent limitations include the realities thadgments in decision-making can be faulty,
and that breakdowns can occur because of simple @rmistake. Additionally, controls can be cirotented by the individual acts of some
persons, by collusion of two or more people, om@anagement override of the control. The desigmygfsystem of controls also is based in
part upon certain assumptions about the likelihofofditure events, and there can be no assurantarialesign will succeed in achieving its
stated goals under all potential future conditiangr time, a control may become inadequate beaafuseanges in conditions, or the degree o
compliance with the policies or procedures may riteiate. Because of the inherent limitations iroateeffective control system, misstatements
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected

CEO and CFO Certifications

Exhibits 31.1 and 31.2 are the Certifications @& @hief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officrespectively. The Certifications
are required in accordance with Section 302 ofSadanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (the “Section 302 Cegtfons”). This Item of this report,
which you are currently reading is the informatammcerning the Evaluation referred to in the Sec802 Certifications and this information
should be read in conjunction with the Section B@2tifications for a more complete understandintheftopics presented.

Management’s Report on Internal Control over Finangal Reporting

Management is responsible for establishing and taiaing adequate internal control over financigaring, as such term is defined in
Rule 13a-15(f) of the Securities Exchange Act @4.9Jnder the supervision and with the participatid our management, including our
principal executive officer and principal financa@ficer, we conducted an evaluation of the effemtiess of the Company’s internal control
over financial reporting as of September 30, 2@ deguired by the Securities Exchange Act of 198k R3a-15(c). In making this
assessment, we used the criteria set forth by ¢men@ittee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Tregd@ammission (“COSQ”) in Internal
Control — Integrated Framework (1992). Based oewaluation, our management concluded that itsnatecontrol over financial reporting
was effective as of September 30, 2014.

Our internal control over financial reporting asSeEptember 30, 2014 has been audited by KPMG Lihihdependent registered public
accounting firm, as stated in their report whicpegrs herein.
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accountingrirm

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
MarineMax, Inc.:

We have audited MarineMax, Inc.’s internal contreér financial reporting as of September 30, 2&k$ed on criteria established in
Internal Control— Integrated Framework (1992ysued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatafrthe Treadway Commission (COSO).
MarineMax, Inc.’s management is responsible forntaning effective internal control over financraporting and for its assessment of the
effectiveness of internal control over financighoeting, included in the accompanying managemeapsrt on internal control over financial
reporting. Our responsibility is to express an apiron the Company'’s internal control over finahc&porting based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the stededof the Public Company Accounting Oversighti8d&nited States). Those
standards require that we plan and perform the &mdbtain reasonable assurance about whetheatigéfénternal control over financial
reporting was maintained in all material respe@is: audit included obtaining an understanding térimal control over financial reporting,
assessing the risk that a material weakness eaististesting and evaluating the design and operaffiectiveness of internal control based on
the assessed risk. Our audit also included perfagreuch other procedures as we considered necesghg/circumstances. We believe that
our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opini

A company'’s internal control over financial repodiis a process designed to provide reasonablesassuregarding the reliability of
financial reporting and the preparation of finahstatements for external purposes in accordantiegeinerally accepted accounting princip
A company'’s internal control over financial repodiincludes those policies and procedures thai€ftpin to the maintenance of records that,
in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reftbettransactions and dispositions of the assdtseocfompany; (2) provide reasonable assuranc
that transactions are recorded as necessary tatgeaparation of financial statements in accor@anith generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditureb®ttbmpany are being made only in accordance witioaizations of management and
directors of the company; and (3) provide reasanabburance regarding prevention or timely detectfainauthorized acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company’s assets that could lzaneterial effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtver financial reporting may not prevent or d¢taisstatements. Also, projections of
any evaluation of effectiveness to future periogssaubject to the risk that controls may becomdenaate because of changes in condition
that the degree of compliance with the policieprocedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, MarineMax, Inc. maintained, in alhterial respects, effective internal control diueancial reporting as of September 30,
2014, based on criteria establishedhiternal Control — Integrated Framework (1998%sued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatadn
the Treadway Commission (COSO).

We also have audited, in accordance with the stasd# the Public Company Accounting Oversight Bo@snited States), the
consolidated balance sheets of MarineMax, Inc.satéidiaries as of September 30, 2013 and 2014thanelated consolidated statements of
operations, stockholders’ equity, and cash flowsefich of the years then ended, and our reportl dz@eember 11, 2014 expressed an
unqualified opinion on those consolidated finanstatements.

/s KPMG LLF

Tampa, Florida
December 11, 2014
Certified Public Accountants
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Item 9B.  Other Information
Appointment of Director

On December 9, 2014, the Company’s Board of Dirscppointed Clint Moore to the Board of Directdrsaddition, the Board of
Directors appointed Mr. Moore to the Audit Comnittend the Compensation Committee.

The compensation of Mr. Moore will be consistentivthat provided to all non-employee directorsgascribed in our most recent proxy
statement filed with the Securities and Exchangm@ission on January 10, 2014.

There is no arrangement or understanding pursoamhich Mr. Moore was selected as a director. Tlageeno related party transactions
between the Company and Mr. Moore that are replertaider Item 404(a) of Regulation S-K.

Sales and Service Agreement with Boston Whaler

On December 5, 2014, we and Boston Whaler, Ince lestered into three-year Sales and Service Agnetsmelating to Boston Whaler
products effective September 1, 2014 and extenttlimmugh August 31, 2017 with automatic annual oearyextensions at each twelve-month
anniversary of the agreement, provided that wenatén breach of a material term of the agreenfetigwing written notice and expiration of
applicable cure periods without cure (certain teation provisions are summarized below).

The agreements appoint certain of our operatingidigries as a dealer for the retail sale, dispdag, servicing of all Boston Whaler
products, parts, and accessories currently orariuture sold by Boston Whaler. The agreement desis a designated geographical territory
and dealer location for the dealer, which is exgki$o the dealer. The agreement also specified tetations, which the dealer may not close,
change, or add to without the prior written cons#riBoston Whaler, provided that Boston Whaler mayunreasonably withhold its consent.
Boston Whaler reserves the right to modify theitiety or appoint other dealers to sell, displayd aervice product from dealer locations wit
the territory at any time if we close a dealer tawawithout prior written notice to Boston Whakend prior written approval by Boston Whal
which will not be unreasonably withheld. AdditiolyalBoston Whaler shall have the right to appoithien dealers in the territory in the event
that a dealer location fails to meet performanaeadsdrds while carrying competitive product, follagriwritten notice and a period of 60 day:
cure or 6 months for matters for which a cure caleocompleted in 60 days. The agreement alsdaisstine dealer from selling, advertising
(other than in recognized and established maribdigations), soliciting for sale, or offering foesale any Boston Whaler products outside its
territory except as otherwise provided by Bostonalgts’ advertising policy or other applicable pgles long as similar restrictions also apply
to all domestic Boston Whaler dealers selling coraple Boston Whaler products. In addition, the agrent provides for the lowest product
prices charged by Boston Whaler from time to timether domestic Boston Whaler dealers, subjetttdalealer meeting all the requirements
and conditions of Boston Whalers’ applicable proggaand the right of Boston Whaler in good faitltharge lesser prices to other dealers to
meet existing competitive circumstances, for unbaod non-ordinary business circumstances, orifiaitdd duration promotional programs.

Among other things, the dealer agreement requaek dealer to achieve performance standards imgudventory stocking levels,
provision of annual sales forecasts, submissiaraérs pursuant to Boston Whalers’ current buyirmgpam, unit retail sales, customer
satisfaction and marketing support. The sales padace will be in accordance with fair and reastmatandards and sales levels established
by Boston Whaler in collaboration with the dealaséd on factors such as population, sales potemizaket share percentage of Boston
Whaler products sold in the territory compared witimpetitive products sold in the territory, protdaeailability, local economic conditions,
competition, past sales history, historical prodatt and stocking practices, existing product ireey, number of retail locations, and other
special circumstances that may affect the saleostdh Whaler products or the dealer, in each cstedbléshed in a manner similar to those
applied to domestic Boston Whaler dealers sellmggarable products.

The dealer is also required to maintain at eachildetation, or at another acceptable locatioservice department that is properly sta
and equipped to service Boston Whaler products ptigrand professionally and to maintain parts amgp$es to service Boston Whaler
products properly on a timely basis, to providewsange for warranty and service work for Bostonal#hproducts.
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Boston Whaler has agreed to indemnify us againstaases to third parties resulting from Boston WHa negligent acts or omissions
involving the design or manufacture of any of itsqucts or any breach by it of the agreement. We lagreed to indemnify Boston Whaler
against any losses to third parties resulting foumnegligent acts or omissions involving the déslapplication, use, or repair of Boston
Whaler products, statements or representationpeatifically authorized by Boston Whaler, the inlstidn of any after-market components or
any other modification or alteration of Boston Wdrgbroducts, and any breach by us of the agreement.

The agreement may be terminated:

. by Boston Whaler, upon 60 days’ prior writtestioe, if we do not have an ability to purchasedpiats via flooring or self-financing or
fail to meet our financial obligations as they baeodue to Boston Whaler or to our lends

. as to any dealer location if we are failingrieet performance standards and begin selling,alisyg or advertising products that are
competitive with the products being sold underageeement (other than products of another Brunstuiakd or new products currently
carried), if we do not cure our failure within 98ys after written notice, or if we are meeting pleeformance standards and then starts
failing to meet performance standards after begmpselling, displaying or advertising products the competitive with products sold
under the agreement (other than products of an@&herswick brand or new products currently carrigddl do not cure our failure within
6 months after written notice or for dealer’s lasas in New York, in the event such dealer locafaifs to meet performance standards
and does not cure such failure within 6 months afrétten notice;

. by either party upon prior written notice t@thther given within 60 days after the 4th annigerof the agreement, with termination
effective at the end of the 5th year, or whichageeement will renew for a 2 year term beginninghen5th anniversan

. following the 5th anniversary of the agreemeippn 12 months’ notice in the event of a matdmniahch or default of any of the material
obligations, performance standards, covenantseseptations, warranties or duties imposed in theemgent or in Boston Whaler’s
policies or programs applicable to domestic Bostdraler dealers which breach is not cured duringhtttece period and through the
parties working in good faith to resolve any iss

. by Boston Whaler or us upon 60 days’ writteticwif the other makes a fraudulent misrepresemtdhat is material to the agreement or
in the event of the insolvency, bankruptcy, or reeeship of the othel

. by Boston Whaler in the event of the assignmethefagreement by the dealer without the prior emittonsent of Boston Whale

. by Boston Whaler upon at least 60 days’ priatten notice in the event of the commission byleleaf an act of fraud upon Boston
Whaler or the commission by us or one of our officef a felony or act of fraud which is materiatritaental to Boston Whaler’s
reputation or business or which materially impaus ability to perform our duties under the agreenwe we fail to pay any lender
financing products under the agreement after tleeafgproducts by us

. upon the mutual consent of Boston Whaler anc

Either party may elect to not extend the term atekpiration of each applicable 12 month periothamevent of a material breach or
default by the other of any of the material obligas, performance standards, covenants, represergatvarranties, or duties imposed by the
agreement or the Boston Whaler manual that isemaedied or cured following notice thereof. In ter@ of a remedy or cure, the additional
12 month period shall be added to the term.

The description of the Sales and Service Agreemé@htBoston Whaler is qualified in its entirety bgference to the complete terms and
conditions of the agreements, which will be filedaan exhibit to the Company’s Quarterly Report omi10-Q for the fiscal quarter ending
December 31, 2014.
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PART Il

Item 10.  Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Govere

The information required by this Item relating tar @irectors and corporate governance is incorpdrhagerein by reference to the
definitive Proxy Statement (particularly under ttaption “Corporate Governance”) to be filed pursdarRegulation 14A of the Exchange Act
for our 2015 Annual Meeting of Stockholders. Thimimation required by this Item relating to our ex#ve officers is included in “Business
— Executive Officers.”

We have adopted a code of ethics that appliesitprincipal executive officer, principal financiafficer, and other senior accounting
personnel. The “Code of Ethics for the CEO and &drinancial Officers” is located on our websitevaiw.MarineMax.conn the Investor
Relations section under Corporate Governance.

We intend to satisfy the disclosure requirementuiigm 5.05(c) of Form 8-K regarding any amendntenor waiver from, a provision
of this code of ethics by posting such informationour website, at the address and location specibove.

ltem 11.  Executive Compensatio

The information required by this Item is incorp@dherein by reference to the definitive Proxy Stent (particularly under the caption
“Executive Compensation”) to be filed pursuant ggRlation 14A of the Exchange Act for our 2015 AalnMeeting of Stockholders.

ltem 12.  Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners afitanagement and Related Stockholder Mattt

The information required by this Item is incorp@éherein by reference to the definitive Proxy @&tant (particularly under the caption
“Security Ownership of Principal Stockholders, Ria@s, and Officers”) to be filed pursuant to Regian 14A of the Exchange Act for our
2015 Annual Meeting of Stockholders.

Item 13.  Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, adatector Independenci

The information required by this Item is incorp@dherein by reference to the definitive Proxy Stant (particularly under the caption
“Certain Relationships and Related Transactionshe filed pursuant to Regulation 14A of the ExaeAct for our 2015 Annual Meeting of
Stockholders.

Item 14.  Principal Accountant Fees and Servict

The information required by this Item is incorpaéherein by reference to the definitive Proxy S&tant (particularly under the caption
“Ratification of Appointment of Independent Auditpto be filled pursuant to Regulation 14A of thedBange Act for our 2015 Annual
Meeting of Stockholders.

PART IV

ltem 15.  Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedule
(a) Financial Statements and Financial Statement Schetks

(1) Financial Statements are listed in the Index togdtidated Financial Statements on pa-1 of this report
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(2) No financial statement schedules are included Isecauch schedules are not applicable, are notresljuir because required informat
is included in the consolidated financial statera@mtnotes theret

(b) Exhibits
Exhibit
Number

3.1

3.1(a)

3.2

3.3

4.1
10.3(h)*
10.3(i)*
10.4*
10.5*
10.20
10.20(a)

10.20(b)
10.20(c)t

10.20(d)t
10.20(e)t
10.21(f)t
10.21(g)t
10.21(h)t
10.21()t
10.21()t
10.21(K)t
10.21()
10.21(m) -

10.21(n) T

Exhibit
Restated Certificate of Incorporation of the Ragist, including all amendments to date
Certificate of Amendment of Restricted Certificafdncorporation of the Registrant (
Third Amended and Restated Bylaws of the Regis{{@r
Certificate of Designation of Series A Junior Rapi@ting Preferred Stock (.
Specimen of Common Stock Certificate
Employment Agreement between Registrant and WilllhrMcGill Jr. (4)
Employment Agreement between Registrant and MicHa&dcLamb (4)
1998 Incentive Stock Plan, as amended through Bepay, 2001 (5
1998 Employee Stock Purchase Plan
Agreement Relating to Acquisitions between Regmteand Brunswick Corporation, dated December 75300

Amendment, executed October 17, 2014, to AgreeiReldting to Acquisitions between Registrant andnBwick
Corporation, dated December 7, 20

Sea Ray Sales and Service Agreemen

Sea Ray Sales and Service Agreement, executed @ct@p2014, by and between MarineMax East, Ind.Zea Ray, a
Division of Brunswick Corporatior

Sea Ray Sales and Service Agreement, executed @ct@h2014, by and between MarineMax Northeasg,ldnd Sea
Ray, a Division of Brunswick Corporatio

Sea Ray Sales and Service Agreement, executed @ctdh2014, by and between MarineMax, Inc. and/s®eg a
Division of Brunswick Corporatior

Inventory Financing Agreement executed on Jun€@40, among MarineMax, Inc. and its subsidiarisBarrowers, and
GE Commercial Distribution Finance CorporationLasder. (8

Program Terms Letter executed on June 24, 2010ngM@arineMax, Inc. and its subsidiaries, as Borneyand GE
Commercial Distribution Finance Corporation, as demn (8)

Amendment Number One to Inventory Financing Agresimexecuted on December 17, 2010, among MarineMaxand
its subsidiaries, as Borrowers, and GE Commerdistribution Finance Corporation, as Lender.

Amendment Number One to Program Terms Letter, égeaan December 17, 2010, among MarineMax, Inc.isnd
subsidiaries, as Borrowers, and GE Commercial Digion Finance Corporation, as Lender.

Amendment Number Two to Inventory Financing Agreetmexecuted on June 1, 2011, among MarineMax,dnd.its
subsidiaries, as Borrowers, and GE Commercial Digfion Finance Corporation, as Lender. (

Amendment Number Two to Program Terms Letter, etegtan June 1, 2011, among MarineMax, Inc. ansubsidiaries,
as Borrowers, and GE Commercial Distribution Firm@orporation, as Lender. (1

Amendment Number Three to Inventory Financing Agreet, executed on July 27, 2012, by and among MBftax, Inc.
and its subsidiaries, as Borrowers, and GE Comiadbistribution Finance Corporation, as Lender.)(

Amended and Restated Inventory Financing Agreenexetuted on June 28, 2013, by and among MarineMaxand its
subsidiaries, as Borrowers, and GE Commercial Digion Finance Corporation, as Lender. (

Amended and Restated Program Terms Letter, exeoutddne 28, 2013, among MarineMax, Inc. and ibsisliaries, as
Borrowers, and GE Commercial Distribution Finan@ggration, as Lender. (1
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Exhibit
Number

10.21(0) -

10.21(p)

10.22*
10.23*
10.24*
10.25

10.261

10.26(a)
10.26(b)
10.27t
10.28

10.29(a)*
10.29(b)*
10.29(c)*
10.30*
10.31*
10.321
10.32(a)

10.32(b)

10.32(c)

10.33t
10.33(a)

10.33(b)
10.33(c)
10.33(d)

10.34*
16.1

Exhibit

Amendment Number Four to the Amended and Restatezhtory Financing Agreement, executed on AugusP%4, by an
among MarineMax, Inc. and its subsidiaries, as @wgers, and GE Commercial Distribution Finance Caafion, as Lende

Second Amended and Restated Program Terms Letemyed on August 29, 2014, among MarineMax, Ind.its
subsidiaries, as Borrowers, and GE Commercial iDidion Finance Corporation, as Lenc

MarineMax, Inc. 2007 Incentive Compensation Pla3)

Form Stock Option Agreement for 2007 Incentive Cengation Plan (13

Form Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreement for 200dentive Compensation Plan (1
Director Fee Share Purchase Program

Floor Plan Loan Agreement executed on October 020y and among MarineMax, Inc. and its subsids@ras Borrowers,
and CGI Finance, Inc., as Lender. (

Notice of Extension to Floor Plan Loan Agreemerdaeted on September 15, 2011, by and among MarirelMe. and its
subsidiaries, as Borrowers, and CGI Finance, &sl.ender. (16

Notice of Extension to Floor Plan Loan Agreemergaxed on July 5, 2012, by and among MarineMax,dnd its
subsidiaries, as Borrowers, and CGI Finance, &sl.ender. (11

Floor Plan Credit Loan Note executed on Octob&070, by MarineMax, Inc. and its subsidiaries, asr@wvers, payable to
CGI Finance, Inc., as Lender. (1

Pledge and Security Agreement executed on Octgl#0910, by and among MarineMax, Inc. and its subsis, as
Borrowers, and CGI Finance, Inc., as Lender.

MarineMax, Inc. 2011 Sto-Based Compensation Plan (:

Form Stock Option Agreement for 2011 St-Based Compensation Plan (:

Form Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreement for 2@tacl-Based Compensation Plan (:

Consulting Agreement, dated June 7, 2012, by atwldes the Company and John B. Furman

Severance Policy for Key Executives (

Dealership Agreement dated September 1, 2008 byeiween MarineMax Northeast, LLC and Azimut Ber@ie.A. (20)

First Amendment dated June 22, 2010 to Dealersgieément dated September 1, 2008, by and betwesnaWax
Northeast, LLC and Azimut Benetti S.P.A. (¢

Second Amendment dated February 29, 2012 to Déglepgreement dated September 1, 2008, by and leetarineMax
Northeast, LLC and Azimut Benetti S.P.A. (¢

Third Amendment dated July 21, 2012 to Dealershipe&ment dated September 1, 2008, by and betweandWx
Northeast, LLC and Azimut Benetti S.P.A. (¢

Dealership Agreement dated September 1, 2008 byetweeen MarineMax East, LLC and Azimut Benetti.&8.F20)

First Amendment dated June 22, 2010 to Dealersgieément dated September 1, 2008, by and betwesnaWax East,
Inc. and Azimut Benetti S.P.A. (2

Second Amendment dated February 29, 2012 to Déglepgreement dated September 1, 2008, by and leetWarineMax
East, Inc. and Azimut Benetti S.P.A. (2

Third Amendment dated July 21, 2012 to Dealershigpe&ment dated September 1, 2008, by and betweandWsax East,
Inc. and Azimut Benetti S.P.A. (2

Fourth Amendment dated August 21, 2013 to Dealpr8greement dated September 1, 2008, by and betklaeneMax
East, Inc. and Azimut Benetti S.P.A. (Z

Consulting Agreement, dated November 19, 2013 nolyteetween the Company and Kurt M. Frahn |
Letter from Ernst & Young LLP to the Securities dxthange Commission, dated March 28, 2013
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Exhibit

Number Exhibit

21 List of Subsidiarie:

23.1 Consent of KPMG LLF

23.2 Consent of Ernst & Young LL

31.1 Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuantRule 13a-14(a) and Rule 15d-14(a), promulgatetbuthe Securities
Exchange Act of 1934, as amend

31.2 Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuaotRule 13a-14(a) and Rule 15d-14(a), promulgatettuthe Securities
Exchange Act of 1934, as amend

32.1 Certification pursuant to U.S.C. Section 1350, dgpéed pursuant to Section 906 of the Sart-Oxley Act of 2002

32.2 Certification pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 13%0adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarl-Oxley Act of 2002

101.INS XBRL Instance Documer

101.SCH XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Docum

101.CAL XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Docuntr
101.DEF XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase Docurh
101.LAB XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase Docum
101.PRE XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Doent

T

*

(1)
(2)
(3)
(4)
(5)
(6)
(7)
(8)
(9)
(10)
(11)
(12)
(13)
(14)
(15)
(16)
(17)
(18)
(19)
(20)
(21)
(22)

(©)
1)

Certain information in this exhibit has been aetdtand filed separately with the Securities andharnge Commission. Confidential
treatment has been requested with respect to tliteedrportions

Management contract or compensatory plan or arraege

Incorporated by reference to Registration Stateroerfform 1-K for the year ended September 30, 2001, as fiteBecember 20, 200
Incorporated by reference to Regist’s Form &K as filed February 19, 201

Incorporated by reference to Regist’s Form &K as filed on June 16, 201

Incorporated by reference to Regist’s Form &K as filed on June 13, 200

Incorporated by reference to Regist’s Form 1-Q for the quarterly period ended December 31, 288Tiled on February 14, 20C
Incorporated by reference to Amendment No. 1 toifRedion Statement on Forn-1 (Registration 33-47873) as filed on May 4, 199
Incorporated by reference to Regist’s Form K as filed on December 9, 20C

Incorporated by reference to Regist’s Form 1i-Q for the quarterly period ended June 30, 201@ijexson August 9, 201(
Incorporated by reference to Regist’s Form 1-Q for the quarterly period ended December 31, 2840iled on February 8, 201
Incorporated by reference to Regist’s Form 1i-Q for the quarterly period ended June 30, 201filexson August 5, 2011
Incorporated by reference to Regist’s Form 1i-Q for the quarterly period ended June 30, 201#jexson August 3, 201Z
Incorporated by reference to Regist’s Form 1-Q for the quarterly period ended June 30, 2018jexson August 6, 201:
Incorporated by reference to Regist’s Form &K as filed on March 6, 200°

Incorporated by reference to Regist’s Form &8 (File No. 33-141657) as filed March 29, 20C

Incorporated by reference to Regist’s Form 1-K for the year ended September 30, 2010, as fieBecember 2, 201!
Incorporated by reference to Regist’s Form 1-K for the year ended September 30, 2011, as fieBecember 8, 201.
Incorporated by reference to Regist’s Form &K as filed on January 25, 201

Incorporated by reference to Regist’s Form K as filed on June 11, 201

Incorporated by reference to Regist’s Form K as filed on November 27, 201

Incorporated by reference to Regist’s Form 1-K for the year ended September 30, 2013, as fireBecember 6, 201.
Incorporated by reference to Regist’s Form K as filed on November 21, 201

Incorporated by reference to Regist’s Form &K as filed on April 2, 2013

Financial Statements Schedule

See Item 15(a) abov
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 1&i(the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the regigthas duly caused this report to be
signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereduty authorized.

MARINEMAX, INC.

/s/ William H. McGill Jr.
William H. McGill Jr.
Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Offi

Date: December 11, 2014

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgh Act of 1934, this report has been signed bbélpthe following persons on behalf
of the registrant and in the capacities and ord#tes indicated.

Signature Capacity Date
/s! William H. McGill Jr. Chairman of the Board, President, and December 11, 2014
William H. McGill Jr. Chief Executive Officer
(Principal Executive Officer
/sl Michael H. McLamb Executive Vice President, Chief Financial OfficBgcretary, December 11, 2014
Michael H. McLamb and Director

(Principal Accounting and Financial Office

/s/ Frances L. Allen Director December 11, 201
Frances L. Aller

/s/ Hilliard M. Eure Il Director December 11, 201
Hilliard M. Eure I
/sl Charles R. Oglesby Director December 11, 201

Charles R. Oglesh

/sl Joseph A. Watters Director December 11, 201
Joseph A. Wattetr

/s/ Dean S. Woodman Director December 11, 201
Dean S. Woodma
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accountingrirm

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
MarineMax, Inc.:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balsineets of MarineMax, Inc. and subsidiaries &eptember 30, 2013 and 2014,
and the related consolidated statements of opastgtockholders’ equity, and cash flows for eacthe years then ended. These consolidatec
financial statements are the responsibility of@menpany’s management. Our responsibility is to egpran opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstials of the Public Company Accounting OversighamBioUnited States). Those
standards require that we plan and perform the &mdbtain reasonable assurance about whethdindrecial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on tldasis, evidence supporting the amounts and diss in the financial statements. An a
also includes assessing the accounting princiged and significant estimates made by managenenielhas evaluating the overall financial
statement presentation. We believe that our apditgide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statetegreferred to above present fairly, in all matenégpects, the financial position of
MarineMax, Inc. and subsidiaries as of SeptembeB803 and 2014, and the results of their operationd their cash flows for each of the
years then ended, in conformity with U.S. generatigepted accounting principle

We also have audited, in accordance with the stasd# the Public Company Accounting Oversight Bo@snited States), MarineMax
Inc. internal control over financial reporting &dsSeptember 30, 2014, based on criteria establishiedernal Control — Integrated Framework
(1992) issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatafrthe Treadway Commission (COSO), and our regeieéd December 11, 2014,
expressed an unqualified opinion on the effectigsra the Company’s internal control over financégorting.

/sl KPMG LLF

Tampa, Florida
December 11, 2014
Certified Public Accountants
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Report of Independent Registered Certified Public Acounting Firm

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
MarineMax, Inc. and Subsidiaries

We have audited the accompanying consolidatednséatis of operations, stockholders’ equity and ¢sts of MarineMax, Inc. and
subsidiaries for the year ended September 30, Z0iese financial statements are the responsilofithe Company’s management. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on thesarftial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstats of the Public Company Accounting OversighafBioUnited States). Those
standards require that we plan and perform the &mdbtain reasonable assurance about whethdindrecial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on tldasis, evidence supporting the amounts and disis in the financial statements. An a
also includes assessing the accounting princiged and significant estimates made by managenenielhas evaluating the overall financial
statement presentation. We believe that our apditgide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial stateteageferred to above present fairly, in all matenéspects, the consolidated results of
operations and cash flows of MarineMax, Inc. angsgliaries for the year ended September 30, 201&iformity with U.S. generally
accepted accounting principles.

/sl Ernst & Young LLI

Tampa, Florida
December 7, 2012
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MARINEMAX, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(Amounts in thousands except share and per shéa da

ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalel
Accounts receivable, n
Inventories, ne
Prepaid expenses and other current a:
Total current asse

Property and equipment, r
Other lon¢-term assets, n

Total asset

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS ' EQUITY

CURRENT LIABILITIES:
Accounts payabl
Customer deposi
Accrued expense
Shor-term borrowings

Total current liabilities

Long-term liabilities
Total liabilities

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
STOCKHOLDERY¢ EQUITY:

Preferred stock, $.001 par value, 1,000,000 startf®rized, none issued or outstanding as of

September 30, 2013 and 2C

Common stock, $.001 par value; 40,000,000 sharb®azed, 24,336,495 and 25,002,807 shares iss
and 23,545,595 and 24,211,907 shares outstandiofgSeptember 30, 2013 and 2014, respecti

Additional paic-in capital
Retained earning

Treasury stock, at cost, 790,900 shares held Ssmtember 30, 2013 and 2C

Total stockholder equity
Total liabilities and stockholde’ equity

See accompanying notes to consolidated financa#tistents.

September 3C September 3C
2013 2014
$  23,75¢ $ 27,83¢

19,41( 12,54°
228,04 244,15:
4,84¢ 4,41°
276,05t 288,95.
100,33¢ 101,87¢
5,501 11,85

$ 381,90. $ 402,68:
$ 7,472 $ 7,82:
9,34: 10,97¢
20,33: 19,60(
122,471 124,42
159,61 162,82t
473 56(
160,09( 163,38t
24 25
221,72¢ 227,93¢
15,86¢ 27,14
(15,810 (15,810
221,81, 239,29!
$ 381,90. $ 402,68:




Table of Contents

MARINEMAX, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
(Amounts in thousands except share and per shéa da

For the Year Ended September 3C

2012 2013 2014
Revenue $ 524,45¢ $ 584,49 $ 624,69:
Cost of sale: 391,17: 433,64 462,87.
Gross profit 133,28 150,85: 161,82
Selling, general, and administrative exper 127,91 132,50! 146,43:
Income from operation 5,37( 18,34¢ 15,381
Interest expens 4,441 4,21¢ 4,02¢
Income before income tax 928 14,13( 11,36
Income tax benefit (provisiot 17€ 894 (92)
Net income $ 1,09¢ $ 15,02 $ 11,27
Basic net income per common sh $ 0.0t $ 0.6t $ 0.47
Diluted net income per common shi $ 0.0t $ 0.6 $ 0.4¢€
Weighted average number of common shares usedriputing net income per
common share
Basic 22,740,98 23,253,99 23,916,23
Diluted 23,335,91 24,003,72 24,655,26

See accompanying notes to consolidated finan@&stents.
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MARINEMAX, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
(Amounts in thousands except share data)

BALANCE, September 30, 2011

Net income

Shares issued pursuant to employee stock purches

Shares issued upon vesting of equity awards, r@ixof
withholding

Shares issued upon exercise of stock opt

Stoclk-based compensatic

BALANCE, September 30, 201

Net income

Shares issued pursuant to employee stock purches

Shares issued upon vesting of equity awards, r@ixof
withholding

Shares issued upon exercise of stock opt

Stoclk-based compensatic

BALANCE, September 30, 201

Net income

Shares issued pursuant to employee stock purches

Shares issued upon vesting of equity awards, r@ixof
withholding

Shares issued upon exercise of stock opt

Stocl-based compensatic

BALANCE, September 30, 201

Retained

Additional Earnings Total
Common Stock Paid-in (Accumulated Treasury Stockholders

Shares Amount Capital Deficit) Stock Equity
23,303,100 $ 23 $211,04 $ (254 $(15,810) $ 195,00(
— — — 1,09¢ — 1,09¢
101,98: — 561 — — 561
45,08¢ — (85) — — (85)
230,38( 1 903 — — 904
20,50 — 3,46¢ — — 3,46t
23,701,05 $ 24 $21588 $ 84t $(15,810 $ 200,94
— — — 15,02 — 15,02
81,71t — 574 — — 574
32,66¢ — (157) — — (157)
504,40( — 2,692 — — 2,692
16,66« — 2,73t — — 2,73t
24,336,449 $ 24 $221,72¢ $ 15,86¢ $(15,81() $ 221,81
— — — 11,27: — 11,27:
55,33 — 574 — — 574
88,72¢ — (541) — — (541)
512,14’ 1 3,591 — — 3,592
10,10:¢ — 2,58¢ — — 2,58¢
25,002,80 $ 25 $22793¢ $ 27,147 $(15,81() $ 239,29

See accompanying notes to consolidated finan@&stents.
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MARINEMAX, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(Amounts in thousands)

For the Year Ended September 3C

2012 2013 2014
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net income $1,09¢ $15,02¢ $11,27:
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net caskigeal by operating activitie:
Depreciation and amortizatic 6,47¢ 6,771 7,281
Loss (gain) on sale of property and equipn 22t 13€ (821)
Loss (gain) on insurance settleme — 154 (23%)
Stocl-based compensation expense, 3,46¢ 2,73¢ 2,58¢
(Increase) Decrease —
Accounts receivable, n (4,657) 31¢ 6,00¢
Inventories, ne 8,31: (8,859 (16,110
Prepaid expenses and other as 479 (820) (307)
(Decrease) Increase—
Accounts payabl (185) (2,645 612
Customer deposit (590 832 1,63
Accrued expenses and lc-term liabilities (4,99¢) (5,84%) (1,117)
Net cash provided by operating activit 8,67¢ 7,811 10,80¢
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchases of property and equipm (5,739 (9,827 (9,199
Purchase of note receivalt — — (6,020
Net cash used in acquisition of businesses, prignarientory (4,399 (4,639 —
Proceeds from insurance settleme — 1,743 75€
Proceeds from sale of property and equipn 2,48 11z 1,612
Net cash used in investing activiti (7,647) (12,609 (12,846
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Net borrowings on shc-term borrowings 1,81¢ 1,82 1,95¢
Net proceeds from issuance of common stock unaeniive compensation and employee purchase
plans 1,38( 3,10¢ 4,16¢
Net cash provided by financing activiti 3,19¢ 4,932 6,12(
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 4,231 13¢ 4,08
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, beginning of peric 19,38t 23,611 23,75¢
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, end of perio $23,61° $23,75¢ $27,83¢
Supplemental Disclosures of Cash Flow Informat
Cash paid for
Interest 4,32: 4,38( 3,93:
Income taxe: 1C 33C 58

See accompanying notes to consolidated financsistents.
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MARINEMAX, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. COMPANY BACKGROUND AND BASIS OF PRESENTATION:

We are the largest recreational boat retailer énldhited States. We engage primarily in the re@lié, brokerage, and service of new and
used boats, motors, trailers, marine parts andsaocies and offer slip and storage accommodationsriain locations. In addition, we arrange
related boat financing, insurance, and extendedcgecontracts. We recently implemented prograniadcease sales of boats, boating parts,
and accessories, as well as the offer of finanderaurance, or F&I, products at various offsitedtions; and the charter of power and sailing
yachts in the British Virgin Islands. None of theeeently implemented programs have had a mateffiatt on our consolidated financ
statements. As of September 30, 2014, we operlatedgh 54 retail locations in 17 states, consistihglabama, Arizona, California,
Connecticut, Florida, Georgia, Maryland, Minnesdféssouri, New Jersey, New York, North Carolina,i@Oklahoma, Rhode Island,
Tennessee, and Texas. Our MarineMax Vacations tipesamaintain a facility in Tortola, British Virgilslands.

We are the nation’s largest retailer of Sea Ragt@oWhaler, and Meridian recreational boats ardhtga all of which are manufactured
by Brunswick Corporation (“Brunswick”). Sales ofm@runswick boats accounted for approximately 4@%uw revenue in fiscal 2014. Sales
of new Sea Ray and Boston Whaler boats, both divssof Brunswick, accounted for approximately 268 40%, respectively, of our rever
in fiscal 2014. Brunswick is the world’s largestm$acturer of marine products and marine engines bélieve we represented approximately
43% of Brunswick’s Sea Ray boat sales, during maaf 2014.

We have dealership agreements with Sea Ray, B&¥¥tmier, Meridian, and Mercury Marine, all subsigaror divisions of Brunswick.
We also have dealer agreements with Italy-basethidzBenetti Group’s product line for Azimut Yachi$hese agreements allow us to
purchase, stock, sell, and service these manustuyoats and products. These agreements alse adido use these manufacturers’ names,
trade symbols, and intellectual properties in querations.

We have multiyear dealer agreements with Brunswick coveringfaproducts that appoints us as the exclusiveedeélSea Ray boz
in our geographic markets. We are the exclusivéedéar Boston Whaler through multi-year dealeresgnents for many of our geographic
markets. In addition, we are the exclusive dealeAzimut Yachts for the entire United States tlyloa multi-year dealer agreement. Sales of
new Azimut boats accounted for approximately 14%wfrevenue in fiscal 2014. We believe non-Bruigvirands offer a migration for our
existing customer base or fill a void in our prodofferings, and accordingly, do not compete witl business generated from our other
prominent brands.

As is typical in the industry, we deal with manutaers, other than Sea Ray, Boston Whaler, Merjdiad Azimut Yachts, under
renewable annual dealer agreements, each of whiek gs the right to sell various makes and moad®ats within a given geographic
region. Any change or termination of these agredsp@n the agreements discussed above, for angneaschanges in competitive,
regulatory, or marketing practices, including rebatt incentive programs, could adversely affectresults of operations. Although there are a
limited number of manufacturers of the type of baatd products that we sell, we believe that adeclternative sources would be available
to replace any manufacturer other than Sea RayAamdut as a product source. These alternative ssumay not be available at the time of
any interruption, and alternative products maybeavailable at comparable terms, which could afiperating results adversely.

General economic conditions and consumer spenditigrps can negatively impact our operating resultsavorable local, regional,
national, or global economic developments or uageties regarding future economic prospects coedldice consumer spending in the market
we serve and adversely affect our business. Ecanoomiditions in areas in which we operate dealpsshgarticularly Florida in which we
generated approximately 49%, 51%, and 52% of aremmae during fiscal 2012, 2013, and 2014, respelgtican have a major impact on our
operations. Local influences, such as corporatend@ing, military base closings, inclement weatherh as Hurricane Sandy, environmental
conditions, and specific events, such as the BBpililin the Gulf of Mexico, also could adverselffect, and in certain instances have adve
affected, our operations in certain markets.
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In an economic downturn, consumer discretionarygijmg levels generally decline, at times resultmdisproportionately large
reductions in the sale of luxury goods. Consumendjmg on luxury goods also may decline as a redudtwer consumer confidence levels,
even if prevailing economic conditions are favoealfls a result, an economic downturn could impaahare than certain of our competitors
due to our strategic focus on a higher end of carket. Although we have expanded our operationsmguyeriods of stagnant or modestly
declining industry trends, the cyclical naturetod tecreational boating industry or the lack olistdy growth may adversely affect our
business, financial condition, and results of ofi@na. Any period of adverse economic conditionar consumer confidence has a negative
effect on our business.

Lower consumer spending resulting from a downtarthe housing market and other economic factorsrsaly affected our business in
fiscal 2007, and continued weakness in consumerdépg and depressed economic conditions had aasltadtnegative effect on our business
in each subsequent fiscal year. These conditioms baused us to substantially reduce our acquigitiogram, delay new store openings,
reduce our inventory purchases, engage in invemegtyction efforts, close a number of our retaibliions, reduce our headcount, and amend
and replace our credit facility. Acquisitions arelnstore openings remain important strategies ta@ompany, and we plan to accelerate our
growth through these strategies when more nornmiaic conditions return. However, we cannot prettiie length or severity of these
unfavorable economic or financial conditions or éixéent to which they will continue to adverselfeaf our operating results nor can we
predict the effectiveness of the measures we takantto address this environment or whether adhditimeasures will be necessary.

In order to provide comparability between periodsspnted, certain amounts have been reclassifiedtfie previously reported
consolidated financial statements to conform tocthresolidated financial statement presentatiomefcurrent period. The consolidated
financial statements include our accounts and theunts of our subsidiaries, all of which are wihalvned. All significant intercompany
transactions and accounts have been eliminated.

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES:
Cash and Cash Equivalents
We consider all highly liquid investments with amiginal maturity of three months or less to be caghivalents.

Vendor Consideration Received

We account for consideration received from our weadn accordance with FASB Accounting Standarddif@ation 605-50, “Revenue
Recognition - Customer Payments and Incentives'SCA605-50"). ASC 605-50 requires us to classifgriest assistance received from
manufacturers as a reduction of inventory costratated cost of sales as opposed to netting thstaisse against our interest expense incurre
with our lenders. Pursuant to ASC 605-50, amouwetsived by us under our co-op assistance prognamsdur manufacturers are netted
against related advertising expenses.

Inventories

Inventory costs consist of the amount paid to aegmventory, net of vendor consideration and pasehdiscounts, the cost of equipment
added, reconditioning costs, and transportatiotsa@$ating to acquiring inventory for sale. Wetstaew and used boat, motor, and trailer
inventories at the lower of cost, determined opeciic-identification basis, or market. We statetp and accessories at the lower of cost,
determined on an average cost basis, or markeutilize our historical experience, the aging of ilmeentories, and our consideration of
current market trends as the basis for determiaitayver of cost or market valuation allowance. ASeptember 30, 2013 and 2014, our lowel
of cost or market valuation allowance for new asdduboat, motor, and trailer inventories was $1ilBom and $2.2 million, respectively. If
events occur and market conditions change, catiseair value to fall below carrying value, thevier of cost or market valuation allowance
could increase.

F-9



Table of Contents

Property and Equipment

We record property and equipment at cost, net afimclated depreciation, and depreciate propertyegiuébment over their estimated
useful lives using the straight-line method. Weitzdige and amortize leasehold improvements oveldlser of the life of the lease or the
estimated useful life of the asset. Useful livasgdorposes of computing depreciation are as follows

Years
Buildings and improvements 5-40
Machinery and equipme 310
Furniture and fixture 5-10
Vehicles 35

We remove the cost of property and equipment sotétored and the related accumulated deprecidtam the accounts at the time of
disposition and include any resulting gain or livsthe consolidated statements of operations. Véegehmaintenance, repairs, and minor
replacements to operations as incurred, and weatiapi and amortize major replacements and imprevasiover their useful lives.

Goodwill

We account for goodwill in accordance with FASB Aanting Standards Codification 350, “IntangibléScodwill and Other” (“ASC
3507), which provides that the excess of cost aatrassets of businesses acquired is recordecdsvilo The acquisitions of Bassett Marine,
LLC and Parker Boat Company resulted in goodwil$802,000. In accordance with ASC 350, we revieadyall for impairment at least
annually and whenever events or changes in cirames indicate that the carrying value may noebeverable. Our annual impairment test
is performed during the fourth fiscal quarter.hétcarrying amount of goodwill exceeds its fairnalve would recognize an impairment loss ir
accordance with ASC 350. As of September 30, 28idd,based upon our most recent analysis, we detedniirough our qualitative
assessment that it is not “more likely than noétttine fair values of our reporting units are liss their carrying values. As a result, we were
not required to perform the two-step goodwill imrpaent test.

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets

FASB Accounting Standards Codification 360-10-4@dperty, Plant, and Equipment - Impairment or Désp of Long-Lived
Assets” (“ASC 360-10-40"), requires that long-livasisets, such as property and equipment and pecth#angibles subject to amortization,
be reviewed for impairment whenever events or chamg circumstances indicate that the carrying athofian asset may not be recoverable.
Recoverability of the asset is measured by compauds its carrying amount to undiscounted futureazesh flows the asset is expected to
generate. If such assets are considered to bermapaie impairment to be recognized is measurg¢keaamount by which the carrying amount
of the asset exceeds its fair market value. Estismat expected future cash flows represent ourdstshate based on currently available
information and reasonable and supportable assangtAny impairment recognized in accordance wiBCA360-10-40 is permanent and may
not be restored. Based upon our most recent aralysibelieve no impairment of long-lived asseisted as of September 30, 2014.

Customer Deposits

Customer deposits primarily include amounts reakivem customers toward the purchase of boats. &egnize these deposits as
revenue at the time of delivery or acceptance byctistomers.
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Insurance

We retain varying levels of risk relating to theumance policies we maintain, most significantlyrkess’ compensation insurance and
employee medical benefits. We are responsible®ictaims and losses incurred under these progtamnited by per occurrence deductibles
and paid claims or losses up to pre-determined maxi exposure limits. Our third-party insurance ieasrpay any losses above the pre-
determined exposure limits. We estimate our ligbftbr incurred but not reported losses using astohnical loss experience, our judgment, anc

industry information.

Revenue Recognition

We recognize revenue from boat, motor, and traéées, and parts and service operations at thethienleoat, motor, trailer, or part is
delivered to or accepted by the customer or thaeeis completed. We recognize deferred revenum Bervice operations and slip and sto
services on a straight-line basis over the terth@icontract or when service is completed. We neizegcommissions earned from a brokerage
sale at the time the related brokerage transactames. We recognize commissions earned by uddomg notes with financial institutions in
connection with customer boat financing when wegeize the related boat sales. We recognize matkéties earned on credit life, accident,
disability, gap, and hull insurance products soldHird-party insurance companies at the laterust@mer acceptance of the insurance produc
as evidenced by contract execution or when théeetlboat sale is recognized. Pursuant to negotageeements with financial and insurance
institutions, we are charged back for a portiothese fees should the customer terminate or dedauthe related finance or insurance contrac
before it is outstanding for a stipulated minimueripd of time. We base the chargeback allowancéhmiias not material to the consolidated
financial statements taken as a whole as of Sege8®) 2014, on our experience with repaymentstaudts on the related finance or
insurance contracts.

We also recognize commissions earned on extendgantya service contracts sold on behalf of thirdip@surance companies at the
later of customer acceptance of the service canteatis as evidenced by contract execution or ngitiog of the related boat sale. We are
charged back for a portion of these commissionsishihe customer terminate or default on the sergantract prior to its scheduled maturity.
We determine the chargeback allowance, which wasaterial to the consolidated financial statemégiten as a whole as of September 30,
2014, based upon our experience with terminatiortefaults on the service contracts.

The following table sets forth percentages of @wenue generated by certain products and ser¥aresach of last three fiscal years.

2012 2013 2014
New boat sale 62.7% 61.%% 65.2%
Used boat sale 17.8% 19.4% 16.8%
Maintenance, repair, storage, and charter ser 8.2% 8.C% 7.8%
Finance and insurance produ 2.8% 2.8% 2.6%
Parts and accessori 6.C% 5.5% 5.1%
Brokerage sale 2.4% 2.0% 2.5%
Total revenue 100.(% 100.(% 100.(%

Stock-Based Compensation

We account for our stock-based compensation plaimiing the provisions of FASB Accounting Standafodification 718,
“Compensation — Stock Compensation” (*“ASC 718")aktordance with ASC 718, we use the Black-Scha&sation model for valuing all
stock-based compensation and shares purchasedaurdemployee Stock Purchase Plan. We measure cwatien for restricted stock
awards and restricted stock units at fair valu¢ghengrant date based on the number of shares exptectvest and the quoted market price o
common stock. For restricted stock units with madanditions, we utilize a Monte Carlo simulationteedded in a lattice model to determine
the fair value. We recognize compensation costficewards in operations, net of estimated forfeis,ion a straigHtne basis over the requis
service period for each separately vesting poiaihe award.
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Advertising and Promotional Costs

We expense advertising and promotional costs asred and include them in selling, general, andiattnative expenses in the
accompanying consolidated statements of operatiRursuant to ASC 605-50, we net amounts receivagshynder our co-op assistance
programs from our manufacturers against the relatk@rtising expenses. Total advertising and pramnat expenses approximated $9.5
million, $9.8 million, and $9.5 million, net of led co-op assistance of approximately $390,0009,800, and $473,000, for the fiscal years
ended September 30, 2012, 2013, and 2014, resplgctiv

Income Taxes

We account for income taxes in accordance with FA8Bounting Standards Codification 740, “Income &siX(“ASC 740”). Under
ASC 740, we recognize deferred tax assets andifiebifor the future tax consequences attributableemporary differences between the
financial statement carrying amounts of existinge#s and liabilities and their respective tax basfs measure deferred tax assets and liab
using enacted tax rates expected to apply to taxabbme in the years in which we expect those teary differences to be recovered or
settled. We record valuation allowances to reduredeferred tax assets to the amount expected ttedlieed by considering all available
positive and negative evidence.

Concentrations of Credit Risk

Financial instruments, which potentially subjectasoncentrations of credit risk, consist prindijpaf cash and cash equivalents and
accounts receivable. Concentrations of creditwigk respect to our cash and cash equivalentdraiedl primarily to amounts held with
financial institutions. Concentrations of credgkriarising from our receivables are limited prifyatdo amounts due from manufacturers and
financial institutions.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The carrying amount of our financial instrumentpragimates fair value resulting from either lentghmaturity or existence of interest
rates that approximate prevailing market ratesasnttherwise disclosed in these consolidated finhatatements.

Use of Estimates and Assumptions

The preparation of consolidated financial statesméntonformity with accounting principles geneyaltcepted in the United States
requires us to make estimates and assumptionaffeat the reported amounts of assets and liasligind disclosure of contingent assets and
liabilities at the date of the consolidated finahsitatements and the reported amounts of reveaneeexpenses during the reporting periods.
Significant estimates made by us in the accompangamsolidated financial statements relate to talnallowances, valuation of goodwill
and intangible assets, valuation of long-lived &sssend valuation of accruals. Actual results califfer materially from those estimates.

3. NEW ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS:

In May 2014, the FASB issued Accounting Standardddtie No. 2014-09, “Revenue from Contracts witht@usgrs (Topic 606)” (ASU
2014-9), a converged standard on revenue recognifize new pronouncement requires revenue recognii depict the transfer of promised
goods or services to customers in an amount tflatte the consideration to which the entity expdotbe entitled in exchange for those good:
or services. The guidance also specifies the atitwufor some costs to obtain or fulfill a contragth a customer, as well as enhanced
disclosure requirements. ASU 2014-9 is effectiveaionual reporting periods beginning after Deceni#e2016, including interim reporting
periods within that reporting period. Early adoptie not permitted. We currently do not believe déldeption of this standard will have a
material impact on our consolidated financial staats.
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4. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE:

Trade receivables consist primarily of receivalfitem financial institutions, which provide fundirigr customer boat financing and
amounts due from financial institutions earned framanging financing with our customers. We norgnaéillect these receivables within
30 days of the sale. Trade receivables also incimd@unts due from customers on the sale of boatts,gervice, and storage. Amounts due
from manufacturers represent receivables for varinanufacturer programs and parts and service penfermed pursuant to the
manufacturers’ warranties.

The allowance for uncollectible receivables, whigs not material to the consolidated financialestetnts as of September 30, 2013 or
2014, was based on our consideration of customengat practices, past transaction history withausrs, and economic conditions. When
an account becomes uncollectable, we expensaibad debt and we credit payments subsequentliveec® the bad debt expense account.
We review the allowance for uncollectible receiabivhen an event or other change in circumstaesedis in a change in the estimate of the
ultimate collectability of a specific account.

Accounts receivable, net consisted of the followaisgof September 30,

2013 2014

(Amounts in thousands)
Trade receivable $ 14,98: $ 7,17¢
Amounts due from manufacture 4,06( 4,97¢
Other receivable 36€ 39¢

$ 19,41( $12,54%

5. INVENTORIES:

Inventories, net, consisted of the following asSeptember 30,

2013 2014

(Amounts in thousands)
New boats, motors, and traile $189,61¢ $200,31¢
Used boats, motors, and traili 31,70 37,19:
Parts, accessories, and ot 6,722 6,642

$228,04: $244,15:

6. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT:
Property and equipment consisted of the followis@aSeptember 30,

2013 2014

(Amounts in thousands)
Land $ 40,93¢ $ 40,97(
Buildings and improvemen 81,21 84,72¢
Machinery and equipme 26,33¢ 23,40¢
Furniture and fixture 4,65¢ 3,781
Vehicles 4,94¢ 5,54
158,08t 158,43:
Accumulated depreciation and amortizat (57,74 (56,557)

$100,33¢ $101,87¢
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Depreciation and amortization expense on propertyeuipment totaled approximately $6.4 million,8fillion, and $7.3 million for the
fiscal years ended September 30, 2012, 2013, ahdl, 28spectively.

7. OTHER LONG-TERM ASSETS:

During February 2006, we became party to a joimtwes with Brunswick that acquired certain reabtstand assets of Great American
Marina for an aggregate purchase price of approely&11.0 million, of which we contributed apprmately $4.0 million and Brunswick
contributed approximately $7.0 million. The ternighee agreement specify that we operate and maitit@i service business and that
Brunswick operate and maintain the marina busirgissultaneously with the closing, the acquiredtgriiecame Gulfport Marina, LLC
(“Gulfport”). We account for our investment in Gpifrt in accordance with FASB Accounting Standarddification 323, “Investment —

Equity Method and Joint Venture”. Accordingly, wdijast the carrying amount of our investment in Gait to recognize our share of earnings
or losses, based on the service business we op€hsearrying amount of our investment is includedther long-term assets on the
consolidated balance sheets, and our share oathéngs or losses based on the service business¢haperate are included in selling, genera
and administrative expenses on the consolidatéeinséants of operations.

During September 2014, we acquired a note recevablapproximately $6.0 million to facilitate thequisition of certain real estate
assets. The carrying amount of the note receivabiteluded in other long-term assets on the catdatadd balance sheet as of September 30,
2014.

8. SHORT-TERM BORROWINGS:

In August 2014, we entered into an amendment tdrougntory Financing Agreement (the “Amended Cré&gitility”), originally entered
into in June 2010, as subsequently amended, witlic@Bmercial Distribution Finance Corporation. Theghist 2014 amendment extended thi
maturity date of the Credit Facility to August 20%ubject to additional extension for two one-yeariods, with lender approval. The August
2014 amendment, among other things, modified theustof borrowing availability and maturity datetbgé Credit Facility. The Amended
Credit Facility provides a floor plan financing cotitment of up to $235.0 million, an increase frdre previous limit of $205.0 million,
subject to borrowing base availability resultingrfr the amount and aging of our inventory.

The Amended Credit Facility has certain financ@lenants as specified in the agreement. The coteimaiude provisions that our
leverage ratio must not exceed 2.75 to 1.0 andatinaturrent ratio must be greater than 1.2 toTh@. interest rate for amounts outstanding
under the Amended Credit Facility is 345 basis fgoabove the one-month London Inter-Bank OfferirgeR“LIBOR”). There is an unused
line fee of ten basis points on the unused poxicthe Amended Credit Facility.

Advances under the Amended Credit Facility aredtatl by the acquisition of eligible new and usaditory or are re-advances against
eligible new and used inventory that have beeriglgrpaid-off. Advances on new inventory will generally matur,080 days from the origin
invoice date. Advances on used inventory will mat8®1 days from the date we acquire the used iowerEach advance is subject to a
curtailment schedule, which requires that we payrdthe balance of each advance on a periodic bisng after six months. The curtailm
schedule varies based on the type and value afitieatory. The collateral for the Amended Creditifity is all of our personal property with
certain limited exceptions. None of our real eskate been pledged for collateral for the Amendesti€ Facility.

As of September 30, 2013 and 2014, our indebtedresxciated with financing our inventory and wogk@apital needs totaled
approximately $122.5 million and $124.4 millionspectively. As of September 30, 2013 and 2014intteeest rate on the outstanding short-
term borrowings was approximately 3.7% and 3.6%o0RSeptember 30, 2014, our additional availabledwings under our Amended Credit
Facility were approximately $38.2 million based npbe outstanding borrowing base availability.
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As is common in our industry, we receive interesistance directly from boat manufacturers, inclgdsrunswick. The interest
assistance programs vary by manufacturer, but géyénclude periods of free financing or reducaterest rate programs. The interest
assistance may be paid directly to us or our leddpending on the arrangements the manufacturerdtablished. We classify interest
assistance received from manufacturers as a reduztinventory cost and related cost of salespg®sed to netting the assistance against ou
interest expense incurred with our lenders.

The availability and costs of borrowed funds caveasely affect our ability to obtain adequate bogéntory and the holding costs of ti
inventory as well as the ability and willingnessoof customers to finance boat purchases. As aeSder 30, 2014, we had no lotegm debt
However, we rely on our Amended Credit Facilityptorchase our inventory of boats. The aging of nuemtory limits our borrowing capacity
as defined curtailments reduce the allowable advaate as our inventory ages. Our access to fumdisrwour Amended Credit Facility also
depends upon the ability of our lenders to meet thading commitments, particularly if they expance shortages of capital or experience
excessive volumes of borrowing requests from otHarig a short period of time. Unfavorable econoounditions, weak consumer spend
turmoil in the credit markets, and lender diffitedt, among other potential reasons, could intesfétie our ability to utilize our Amended
Credit Facility to fund our operations. Any inabjlto utilize our Amended Credit Facility could tecg us to seek other sources of funding to
repay amounts outstanding under the credit agresnoemeplace or supplement our credit agreemeiich may not be possible at all or ur
commercially reasonable terms.

Similarly, decreases in the availability of credlitd increases in the cost of credit adversely affecability of our customers to purchase
boats from us and thereby adversely affect ouitglhd sell our products and impact the profitailbf our finance and insurance activities.
Tight credit conditions during fiscal 2009, 2018d&2011 adversely affected the ability of custonterfinance boat purchases, which had a
negative effect on our operating results.

9. INCOME TAXES:
The components of our benefit (provision) from imeptaxes consisted of the following for the fisgadrs ended September 30,

2012 2013 2014
(Amounts in thousands)

Current benefit (provision

Federa $11€ $(107) $ (46)

State 60 99t (45)

Total current benefit (provisior $17€ $ 894 $(97)
Deferred benefit (provision

Federa — — —

State — — —

Total deferred benefit (provisiol — — —
Total income tax benefit (provisio $17¢€ $ 894 $(92)

Below is a reconciliation of the statutory feddaredome tax rate to our effective tax rate for tisedl years ended September 30,

2012 2013 2014

Federal tax benefit (provision) (35.0% (35.0% (35.0%
State taxes, net of federal effi 16.€% 0.7% (4.9%
Stock based compensati (7.5% (0.60% (0.2%
Valuation allowanct 50.2% 45.(% 42.5%
Federal NOL carrybac 12.€% 0.C% 0.C%
Foreign rate differentic (15.9% (2.9% (3.0%
Other (2.0% (0.9% (0.9%

Effective tax rate 19.(% 6.2% (0.8)%
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Deferred income taxes reflect the impact of tempodifferences between the amount of assets ahiiiti@s recognized for financial
reporting purposes and such amounts recognizéddome tax purposes. The tax effects of these temnpdifferences representing the
components of deferred tax assets (liabilitieg)feSeptember 30,

2013 2014
(Amounts in thousands)
Current deferred tax asse

Inventories $ 1,49« $ 1,71-
Accrued expense 1,26¢ 1,11C
Current deferred tax asst 2,76: 2,82
Valuation allowanct (2,769 (2,827)
Net current deferred tax ass $ — $ —
Long-term deferred tax asse
Depreciation and amortizatic $ 8,27 $ 6,00¢
Stock based compensati 4,21¢ 3,90z
Tax loss carryforward 26,72¢ 24,41¢
Other 364 374
Long-term deferred tax asse 39,58: 34,70:
Valuation allowanct (39,58) (34,707
Net lon¢-term deferred tax asse $ — $

Pursuant to ASC 740, we must consider all posdive negative evidence regarding the realizatiahefdrred tax assets. ASC 740
provides for four possible sources of taxable inedmrealize deferred tax assets: 1) taxable indarpeor carryback years, 2) reversals of
existing deferred tax liabilities, 3) tax plannisigategies and 4) projected future taxable incakseof September 30, 2014, we have no
available taxable income in prior carryback yeegsersals of existing deferred tax liabilities ongent and feasible tax planning strategies.
Therefore, the recoverability of our deferred tageds is dependent upon generating future taxabderie. Although as of September 30, 2014
we were no longer in a three year cumulative lasstipn for financial reporting purposes in ourrsfgcant jurisdictions, we believe there is
sufficient negative evidence concerning our pr@ddtture taxable income and, therefore, the ratidim of our deferred tax assets. Our future
taxable income is inherently difficult to projectdasubject to uncertainty due to many factors idicig the impact of general economic
conditions and the cyclical nature of our operaiaich historically has resulted in losses infttat half of our fiscal year. Additionally,
historically it has been difficult to project ourdustry’s trends and therefore our results. Baseouo analysis of the available evidence we
determined that our deferred tax assets needdthaluation allowance as of September 30, 2013%@gtember 30, 2014. The total valuation
allowance as of September 30, 2013 and 2014 wa8 $4ifion and $37.5 million, respectively. We wilbntinue to evaluate the need for a full
valuation allowance. If the full valuation allowanis reversed we will start recording a tax praiisi

Under ASC 740, the impact of uncertain tax postitaken or expected to be taken on an income taxrenust be recognized in the
financial statements at the largest amount thatose likely than not to be sustained upon audith@yrelevant taxing authority. An uncertain
income tax position will not be recognized in theahcial statements unless it is more likely thahaf being sustained. As of September 30,
2013 and 2014, we had approximately $224,000 ad $R0, respectively, of gross unrecognized taxefisn of which approximately
$154,000 and $154,000, respectively, if recognireald impact the effective tax rate before considga change in valuation allowance.
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The reconciliation of the total amount recordedunrecognized tax benefits at the beginning andoéide fiscal years ended
September 30, 2013 and 2014 is as follows:

2013 2014

(Amounts in thousands)
Unrecognized tax benefits at the beginning of ther $ 1,49¢ $ 224
Increases in tax positions for prior ye 34 10

Decreases in tax positions for prior ye (1,309 —
Unrecognized tax benefits as of Septembe $ 224 $ 234

Consistent with our prior practices, we recognigeriest and penalties related to uncertain taxipasias a component of income tax
expense. As of September 30, 2013 and 2014, in@nelspenalties represented approximately $100a0005110,000, respectively, of the gi
unrecognized tax benefits.

We are subject to tax by both federal and stat@gaxuthorities. Until the respective statutesimithtions expire, we are subject to
income tax audits in the jurisdictions in which emerate. We are no longer subject to U.S. fedaraékaminations for fiscal years prior to
2011, and we are not subject to audits prior ta2thE0 fiscal year for the majority of the statdgdictions.

We do not expect a change to the total amount ifaagnized tax benefits in the next 12 months basegkaminations by tax
authorities, the expiration of statutes of limitai$, or potential settlements of outstanding parsdti

10. STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY:

In November 2005, our Board of Directors approvethare repurchase plan allowing our company torofase up to 1,000,000 shares
of our common stock. Under the plan, we may buklzaenmon stock from time to time in the open madeeh privately negotiated blocks,
dependent upon various factors, including price arallability of the shares, and general market@@ns. Through September 30, 2014, we
had purchased an aggregate of 790,900 shares ofi@orstock under the plan for an aggregate purghse of approximately $15.8 million.

11. STOCK-BASED COMPENSATION:

We account for our stock-based compensation plaimifing the provisions of FASB Accounting Standafdodification 718,
“Compensation — Stock Compensation” (*“ASC 718")aktordance with ASC 718, we use the Black-Schaasation model for valuing all
stock-based compensation and shares purchasedaurdemployee Stock Purchase Plan. We measure cwatien for restricted stock
awards and restricted stock units at fair valu¢ghengrant date based on the number of shares exptectvest and the quoted market price o
common stock. For restricted stock units with madanditions, we utilize a Monte Carlo simulationlgedded in a lattice model to determine
the fair value. We recognize compensation costficerwards in operations, net of estimated forfeis,ion a straigHtne basis over the requis
service period for each separately vesting poiothe award.

Cash received from option exercises under all shased compensation arrangements for the fisca$ yemled September 30, 2012,
2013, and 2014 was approximately $1.5 million, $8iltion, and $4.2 million, respectively. There wero tax benefits realized for tax
deductions from option exercises for the fiscalrgemded September 30, 2012, 2013, and 2014. Wentiyrexpect to satisfy share-based
awards with registered shares available to be éssue

12. THE INCENTIVE STOCK PLANS:

During February 2013, our stockholders approvetbagsal to amend the 2011 Stock-Based CompendgRkin(“2011 Plan”) to
increase the 1,200,456 share threshold by 1,00G68&s to 2,200,456 shares. During January 2@t ktockholders approved a proposal to
authorize our 2011 Plan, which replaced our 2007
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Incentive Compensation Plan (2007 Plan”). Our 2814dn provides for the grant of stock options, stagpreciation rights, restricted stock,
stock units, bonus stock, dividend equivalentseogitock related awards, and performance awardle¢toely “awards”), that may be settled
in cash, stock, or other property. Our 2011 Plateisigned to attract, motivate, retain, and reveadexecutives, employees, officers, directors
and independent contractors by providing such pargdth annual and long-term performance incentivesxpend their maximum efforts in
the creation of stockholder value. Subsequentad-ttbruary 2013 amendment described above, tHentotder of shares of our common st
that may be subject to awards under the 2011 Blagual to 2,000,000 shares, plus (i) any sham&tahle for issuance and not subject to an
award under the 2007 Plan, which was 200,456 slatbe time of approval of the 2011 Plan; (ii) thamber of shares with respect to which
awards granted under the 2011 Plan and the 200¢Hainate without the issuance of the sharesharaithe shares are forfeited or
repurchased; (iii) with respect to awards grantedien the 2011 Plan and the 2007 Plan, the numbshayés that are not issued as a result of
the award being settled for cash or otherwisesgtdd in connection with the exercise or paymetti@baward; and (iv) the number of shares
that are surrendered or withheld in payment ofetkercise price of any award or any tax withholdieguirements in connection with any aw
granted under the 2011 Plan or the 2007 Plan. Thé& Plan terminates in January 2021, and awardsh@ayanted at any time during the life
of the 2011 Plan. The date on which awards vestetermined by the Board of Directors or the Plaimdnistrator. The Board of Directors
appointed the Compensation Committee as the Plamistrator. The exercise prices of options areeined by the Board of Directors or
the Plan Administrator and are at least equaledair market value of shares of common stock erdiite of grant. The term of options under
the 2011 Plan may not exceed ten years. The opgi@med have varying vesting periods. To datehawee not settled or been under any
obligation to settle any awards in cash.

The following table summarizes option activity fr@&@eptember 30, 2013 through September 30, 2014:

Weighted
Weighted Average
Aggregate Remaining
Shares Intrinsic Average Contractual
Available Options Value Exercise
for Grant Outstanding (in thousands’ Price Life
Balance as of September 30, 2013 1,787,53 2,301,633 $ 10,41¢ $ 10.1: 6.5
Options authorize — — —
Options grante: (571,000 571,00( $ 15.81
Options cancelled/forfeited/expirt 134,17. (134,179 $ 20.1¢
Restricted stock awards forfeit — — —
Options exercise — (5612,14) $ 7.01
Balance as of September 30, 2( 1,350,70! 2,226,31! $ 1598( $ 11.7( 6.€
Exercisable as of September 30, 2! 1,529,97 $ 13,14« $ 10.9- 5.€

The weighted-average grant date fair value of otigranted during the fiscal years ended SepteBthe2012, 2013, and 2014 was
$4.30, $4.49, and $6.23, respectively. The totainsic value of options exercised during the fisears ended September 30, 2012, 2013, an
2014 was approximately $1.4 million, $3.3 milli@nd $4.5 million, respectively.

As of September 30, 2013 and 2014, there were appately $980,000 and $2.2 million, respectivelfyunrecognized compensation
costs related to non-vested options that are eggdotbe recognized over a weighted average pefi@dd years. The total fair value of options
vested during the fiscal years ended Septembe2@(®, 2013, and 2014 was approximately $3.1 mill&#h5 million, and $1.9 million,
respectively.

We used the Black-Scholes model to estimate tmevéiie of options granted. The expected term ¢tibop granted is derived from the
output of the option pricing model and represelnésperiod of time that options granted are expeittde outstanding. Volatility is based on
the historical volatility of our common stock. Thgk-free rate for periods within the contractuei of the options is based on the
U.S. Treasury yield curve in effect at the timegodnt.
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The following are the weighted-average assumptisesl for the fiscal years ended September 30,

2012 2013 2014
Dividend yield 0.C% 0.C% 0.C%
Risk-free interest rat 0.8% 0.€% 0.7%
Volatility 89.9% 80.1% 55.7%
Expected life 4.5 year 4.3 year 3.2 year

13. EMPLOYEE STOCK PURCHASE PLAN:

During February 2012, our stockholders approvetbagsal to amend our 2008 Employee Stock Purchiase(FStock Purchase Plan”)
to increase the number of shares available undépthn by 500,000 shares. The Stock PurchaseaBlamended provides for up to 1,000,000
shares of common stock to be available for purchgsmur regular employees who have completed at @@ year of continuous service. In
addition, there were 52,837 shares of common siwakable under our 1998 Employee Stock Purchaae, Rihich have been made available
for issuance under our Stock Purchase Plan. Trek $torchase Plan provides for implementation ofoup0 annual offerings beginning on the
first day of October starting in 2008, with eacfeahg terminating on September 30 of the followirear. Each annual offering may be divi
into two six-month offerings. For each offeringe thurchase price per share will be the lower %6 of the closing price of the common
stock on the first day of the offering or (ii) 858%the closing price of the common stock on thé d&ay of the offering. The purchase price is
paid through periodic payroll deductions not toeed 10% of the participant’s earnings during edfdriag period. However, no participant
may purchase more than $25,000 worth of commorkstonually.

We used the Black-Scholes model to estimate tmevédiie of options granted to purchase sharesdsgussuant to the Stock Purchase
Plan. The expected term of options granted is ddrfrom the output of the option pricing model aapresents the period of time that options
granted are expected to be outstanding. Volat#ityased on the historical volatility of our comnsinck. The risk-free rate for periods within
the contractual term of the options is based ortl& Treasury yield curve in effect at the timegdnt.

The following are the weighted-average assumptiesl for the fiscal years ended September 30,

2012 2013 2014
Dividend yield 0.C% 0.C% 0.C%
Risk-free interest rat 0.1% 0.1% 0.1%
Volatility 51.8% 54.&% 39.6%
Expected life Six month: Six month: Six month:

As of September 30, 2014, we had issued 647,1I8slbd common stock under our Stock Purchase Plan.

14. RESTRICTED STOCK AWARDS:

We have granted non-vested (restricted) stock an@restricted stock”) and restricted stock unt®Us") to certain key employees
pursuant to the 2011 Plan and the 2007 Plan. ®igated stock awards have varying vesting peribdsgenerally become fully vested at
either the end of year four or the end of year,fdepending on the specific award. Certain resiistock awards granted in fiscal 2008
required certain levels of performance by us byt&aper 2011 before they were earned: these metaos not met, and the awards were
forfeited. Certain RSUs granted in fiscal 2010, Pdnd 2012 require a minimum level of performaaiceur stock price compared with an
index over designated time periods from the grame defore they are earned, or the awards wilbHeifed. The stock underlying the RSUs
will be delivered upon vesting. The performancerioeffor the RSUs granted in fiscal 2010 were net by the September 2012 measuremen
date, and the awards were forfeited. The performanetrics for the RSUs granted in fiscal 2011 abitP?2were met by the September 2013
2014 measurement dates, and the awards were earned.
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We accounted for the restricted stock awards gdaméeng the measurement and recognition provisibdsSC 718. Accordingly, the fair
value of the restricted stock awards is measureti@grant date and recognized in earnings overeitpaisite service period for each separe
vesting portion of the award.

The following table summarizes restricted stock mactivity from September 30, 2013 through Sepend®, 2014:

Weighted
Average
Grant Date
Shares/
Units Fair Value
Non-vested balance as of September 30, 2013 64,67( $ 6.04
Changes during the period Awards ves (61,330 $ 5.9¢
Non-vested balance as of September 30, & 3,34( $ 6.1C

As of September 30, 2014, we had approximatelyGRlLdd total unrecognized compensation cost reladetn-vested restricted stock
awards. We expect to recognize that cost over ghteil-average period of 0.1 years.

15. NET INCOME PER SHARE:

The following is a reconciliation of the sharesdigethe denominator for calculating basic andtditnet income per share for the fiscal
years ended September

2012 2013 2014
Weighted average common shares outstanding usmddulating basic
income per shar 22,740,98 23,253,99 23,916,23
Effect of dilutive options and n~vested restricted stock awal 594,93: 749,73t 739,02:
Weighted average common and common equivalent shigea in
calculating diluted income per shz 23,335,91 24,003,72 24,655,26

During the fiscal years ended September 30, 20023,2and 2014 there were 1,546,207, 1,728,042l ,600 weighted average
shares of options outstanding, respectively, treewot included in the computation of diluted imeoper share because the options’ exercise
prices were greater than the average market pfioaraccommon stock, and therefore, their effect lddae anti-dilutive.

16. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES:
Lease Commitments

We lease certain land, buildings, machinery, eqeiptmand vehicles related to our dealerships undercancelable third-party operating
leases. Certain of our leases include optionsdioewal periods and provisions for escalation. Rexaenses, including month-to-month
rentals, were approximately $5.1 million, $5.4 roifl, and $5.8 million for the fiscal years endegtsenber 30, 2012, 2013, and 2014,
respectively.
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Future minimum lease payments under non-cancetgd@deating leases as of September 30, 2014, wdoH@ss:

(Amounts in thousands)

2015 5,28¢
2016 4,46¢
2017 3,64¢
2018 3,03¢
2019 2,36:
Thereaftel 13,40¢
Total $32,20¢

Other Commitments and Contingencies

We are party to various legal actions arising edhdinary course of business. We believe thaethestters should not have a material
adverse effect on our consolidated financial caoljtresults of operations, or cash flows.

In fiscal 2013 and 2014 we recognized a recovelppiroximately $11.7 million and $555,000, netadfets and other expenses,
respectively, from the Deepwater Horizon Settleninagram for damages suffered as a result of tlepWater Horizon Oil Spill. The recove
was recorded as a reduction in selling, general aaministrative expenses on our consolidatedratatés of operations. While additional
claims are outstanding, we cannot be certain oatheunt of any further recovery.

During fiscal 2012, 2013, and 2014, we incurredsassociated with store closings and lease tetioimsaof approximately $350,000,
$162,000, and $217,000, respectively. These costgply related to the future minimum operatingde payments of the closed locations.
store closings were a key component in our effolidtter match our fixed costs with the declinesitail business caused by the soft economic
conditions. The store closing costs have beendigdun selling, general, and administrative expemsé¢he consolidated statements of
operations during fiscal 2012, 2013, and 2014.

In connection with certain of our workers’ compdimainsurance policies, we maintain standby lsttercredit for our insurance carriers
in the amount of $1.3 million relating primarily tetained risk on our workers compensation claims.

We are subject to federal and state environmeetpllations, including rules relating to air and evaiollution and the storage and
disposal of gasoline, oil, other chemicals and wiaste believe that we are in compliance with segulations.

17. EMPLOYEE 401(k) PROFIT SHARING PLANS:

Employees are eligible to participate in our 40 Rk)fit Sharing Plan (the “Plan”) following thei®9lay introductory period starting
either April 1 or October 1, provided that they afeyears of age. Under the Plan, we match 25%udicipants’ contributions, up to a
maximum of 5% of each participant’s compensatioe. &ntributed, under the Plan, or pursuant to pre/similar plans, approximately
$298,000, $440,000, and $463,000 for the fiscatsyeaded September 30, 2012, 2013, and 2014, tesggc

18. QUARTERLY FINANCIAL DATA (UNAUDITED):

The following table sets forth certain unauditeduerly financial data for each of our last eighagers. The information has been
derived from unaudited financial statements thabeléeve reflect all adjustments, consisting orfljormal recurring adjustments, necessary
for the fair presentation of such quarterly finah@nformation.
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September 30 September 30
December 31 March 31, June 30, December 31 March 31, June 30,
2012 2013 2013 2013 2013 2014 2014 2014
(Amounts in thousands except share and per share @g

Revenue $ 99,05 $ 160,00¢ $ 17575¢ $ 149,68: $ 109,59: $ 136,61 $ 214,40 $ 164,08
Cost of sale: 72,77: 122,35¢ 128,94¢ 109,56« 79,68 101,82¢ 160,19! 121,16¢
Gross profit 26,27¢ 37,65( 46,807 40,11¢ 29,91( 34,78¢ 54,20¢ 42,91¢
Selling, general, and
administrative expenst 29,44: 36,10( 33,04 33,91t 32,28 35,68 41,65: 36,82!
(Loss) income from

operations (3,165 1,55( 13,76( 6,20 (2,372) (907) 12,554 6,09:
Interest expens 997 1,16¢ 1,19: 862 997 1,07¢ 1,051 88t
(Loss) income before

income tax benefit

(provision) (4,162 384 12,56 5,341 (3,369 (2,979 11,50:¢ 5,20¢
Income tax benefit

(provision) — (40) 1,07(C (13€) — — — (92)
Net (loss) incomi $ (4,162) $ 344 $ 13,637 $ 520t $ (3,369 $ (1,979 $ 11,50 $ 5,117
Net (loss) income per shal

Diluted $ (0.1¢) $ 0.01 $ 0.5¢ $ 0.21 $ (0.14) $ (0.0¢) $ 047 $ 0.21

Weighted average numbet

shares

Diluted 22,955,71 24,019,40 24,177,02 24,267,87 23,715,94 23,845,30 24,719,36 24,813,77
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)

AMENDMENT TO THE AGREEMENT RELATING TO ACQUISTIONS

THIS AMENDMENT TO THE AGREEMENT RELATING TO ACQUISITIONS (this “Amendment”) is made and entered irffeaive
as of the 1st day of September, 2014, by and bettveeSea Ray Division of Brunswick Corporatiore(t€ompany”), and MarineMax, Inc.
(“MarineMax”).

WHEREAS, MarineMax and the Company have previoasitered into the Agreement Relating to Acquisitidated December 6, 2005
(the “Agreement”) and they now desire to amend modify the Agreement as set forth herein.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoimgrpises and as provided in Section 12 of the Agezgnthe parties agree to
amend the Agreement as follows:

1. Dealer AgreementThe reference to the Dealer Agreement in theakscof the Agreement shall be modified to refethe Sales and
Service Agreements entered into by and betweeBdheRay Division of Brunswick Corporation and MaiMuax, Inc. (and its affiliates) dated
September 1, 2014.

2. Section 11 The first sentence of Section 11 of the Agreenshereby deleted in its entirety.

3. Notices. The addresses in Section 14 of the Agreemertienaby deleted in their entirety and are replacitid the addresses for noti
in the Dealer Agreement.

4. Ratification. Except as specifically amended and modified iy Amendment, all of the terms and provisions ef Agreement are
hereby ratified, confirmed and approved by theipaittereto and such terms and provisions shalliremdull force and effect.

5. MiscellaneousThis Amendment shall be governed by, and constinedcordance with, the laws of the State of Defayweegardless
of any conflicts of law principles. This Amendmaeshiall be binding upon and inure to the benefihef parties hereto, and their successors an
permitted assigns. This Amendment may not be maxdiitamended or supplemented except by written agneteof both parties. This
Amendment may be executed in counterparts. If eeelcin counterparts, each counterpart shall be ddean original, but both of which taken
together shall constitute one and the same agreaemey signature delivered by facsimile or othezattonic transmission shall be deemed to
be an original signature.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executedAlniendment as of the date first above written.

Sea Ray Division of Brunswick Corporati

By: /s/ Tim Schiek
Title: President Recreational Boat Grc

MarineMax, Inc.

By: /s/ Michael H. McLamb
Title: Executive Vice Presidel




Exhibit 10.20(c]
NOTE: PORTIONS OF THIS EXHIBIT INDICATED BY[**]" ARE SUBJECT TO A CONFIDENTIAL TREATMENT REQUEST, AN
HAVE BEEN OMITTED FROM THIS EXHIBIT. COMPLETE, UNRBACTED COPIES OF THIS EXHIBIT HAVE BEEN FILED WITH
THE SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION AS PART OFHTS COMPANY’S CONFIDENTIAL TREATMENT REQUEST.

SALES AND SERVICE AGREEMENT

This Sales and Service Agreemenf(freement’) is entered into as of September 1, 2014 by Ssa R Division of Brunswick Corporation
(“Sea Ray” or “Company”) MarineMax, Inc. (“MarineMg, and MarineMax East, Inc. (“Dealer”), in consrdtion of the mutual covenants
contained in this Agreement, and subject to andrjpmrating herein the Sales and Service Agreememhd and Conditions attached hereto.
Pursuant to this Agreement, Company hereby appBie#der through its Dealer Locations identifiedEixhibit A as its dealer for the sale of
Products in the Dealer Regions identified in sughiBit. Dealer represents and warrants to Comphat/MarineMax, Inc. is the sole and
exclusive parent of Dealer.

DEFINED TERMS

In this Agreement, the following words and expressithat are not defined elsewhere in this Agre¢sieall have the following meaning,
except where the context requires otherwise:

Dealer and Dealer’s Principal Address:

MarineMax East, Inc., 2600 McCormick Drive, Suite D0, Clearwater, Florida 33759

Dealer Location: Each Dealer facility as listed orExhibit A attached hereto.

Dealer Regions: The Dealer Locations sharing a Teitory and comprising a Dealer Region are listed omttached Exhibit A. If a Dealer
Location is added to this Agreement (through acquiton or otherwise), the parties will work togetherto determine the realignment of
applicable Dealer Regions related to the additionfeuch location and/or the appropriate Dealer Regin for such new location.
Territory: Identified for each Dealer Region in attached Attachment 1 to Exhibit A

Product(s): Full line of Sea Ray Sport Boats, SpoiCruisers, Sport Yachts and Yachts (Including relag¢d parts and accessories)
Performance Standards: See attached Exhibit B.

Term: The Term of this Agreement shall be Septembet, 2014 to August 31, 2017, provided however thaxcept as otherwise provided
below or in Section 16 of this Agreement, at the @nof each twelve (12) month period of the Term, th&erm of this Agreement shall be
extended by another twelve (12) month period so thdhe Term of this Agreement remains three (3) yea. Notwithstanding the above,
(i) either party may provide written notice to the other no less than one hundred and twenty (120) dayefore the end of any twelve

(12) month period that it will not agree to an addiional extension due to the failure by such other arty to remedy a material breach of
this Agreement following written notice thereof andthe expiration of the applicable cure
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THE SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION AS PART ORHIS COMPANY’S CONFIDENTIAL TREATMENT REQUEST.

period without cure or failure to reach agreement hrough good faith efforts to do so by the partiesiad (ii) on or within sixty (60) days
after the sixth (6t) anniversary of this Agreement, either party may povide written notice to the other party to terminate this
Agreement effective at the end of the then currentontract year (i.e., August 31, 2021). If neither grty provides notice to terminate this
Agreement on or within sixty (60) days after the sith (6 1) anniversary as described above, this Agreement lvautomatically renew for
three (3) year terms beginning on the seventh {7) anniversary, unless otherwise terminated pursuanto this Agreement; provided that
on or within sixty (60) days after the second (2¢) year of any such three (3) year renewal term, dier party may provide written notice
to the other party to terminate this Agreement effetive as of August 31 of the then current contracyear. In addition, after the seventh
(7t) anniversary of this Agreement (i.e., during anyhree (3) year renewal Term), either party may electo terminate this Agreement
in accordance with the terms of Section 16D.
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Company, MarineMax and Dealer have executed this Agreement and the parties and thedividual(s)
signing for each party respectively below represerdand warrant that the individual(s) signing this Ageement is(are) duly authorized to
do so.

Sea Ray Division of Brunswick Corporation MarineMax, Inc.
By: By:

Title: Title:

Date: Date:

MarineMax East, Inc.

By:
Title:
Date:
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SALES AND SERVICE AGREEMENT
TERMS AND CONDITIONS

1. Appointment of DealerSea Ray hereby appoints Dealer as a dealerdaethil sale, display, and servicing of all Seg Raduct(s),
parts and accessories (hereinafter “Product” ondBcts”) as identified in the Defined Terms andjscito Sea Ray’s then current policies anc
programs applicable to all domestic Sea Ray deatdling comparable Products, from the authorizedlBr Location(s) identified in the
attached Exhibit A for each Dealer Region, whicbd®cts shall be purchased only from Sea Ray outlroezed Sea Ray dealer located in the
country in which Dealer is located. Dealer Regiand Dealer Locations are set forth in the Definedis and Exhibit A.

During the Term of this Agreement, Sea Ray shallappoint other dealers to sell Products from aestdacation within the
Territory set forth in the Defined Terms; providédwever, that Sea Ray reserves the right to mdkéyTerritory or appoint other dealers to
sell, display and service Product from dealer liocat within the Territory at any time if Dealer s&s a Dealer Location without prior written
notice to Sea Ray and prior written approval thebgoSea Ray, which approval shall not be unreasignaithheld upon a review by Sea Ray
of Dealer’s abilities to perform the Agreement ghtions and as further provided in Paragraph 2/iéked that similar restrictions apply to all
domestic Sea Ray dealers selling comparable PredDetler shall not sell, advertise, solicit foesar offer for resale Products outside of the
Territory except as otherwise provided by Sea RAggertising Policy or other applicable policy. Delamay advertise in recognized and
established marine publications with cross-teridiatdistribution provided that when Dealer doesisspecifically identifies its authorized
locations as defined in this Agreement and compligls Sea Ray’s Advertising Policy. Sea Ray reseihe right in its sole discretion to
monitor or otherwise enforce its policies and pchaes applicable to all domestic Sea Ray dealatsvdlhdo so on a fair and equitable basis.
There are no third party beneficiary rights to spolicies and procedures or this Agreement or afleater agreements.

Sea Ray reserves the right to make sales or pre@dece in the Territory based upon legitimateifess purposes and to appoint
other dealers or service providers to sell, dispdang/or service products, from any other locatiatside the Territory. Sea Ray may also
display Products within the Territory for generaépday and promotional purposes.

Sea Ray shall have the right to adopt and modificies and programs related to the Products frone tio time in its sole discreti
and in accordance with its own reasonable busiegsnent and it will enforce such policies and peargs on a fair and equitable basis. Deale
agrees to comply with such policies and prograrieviing receipt of notice thereof from Sea Ray liring without limitation, through
inclusion in Sea Ray’s Dealer Manual and/or Program

2. Location: Dealer shall sell at retail, display, and senReeducts only at and from the authorized Dealeration(s) referenced in
Exhibit A, as may be amended from time to time @wipded herein. Dealer Location(s) are both satesservice unless otherwise specified in
writing. Dealer shall concentrate its sales, digplad service efforts within the designated Teryito
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Dealer shall not delete, change, or add to the@abmaler Location(s) without the prior written censof Sea Ray, which consent
shall not be unreasonably withheld, and Sea Rayauagider any relevant factors and consequencearaisf the approval process, including
but not limited to the Dealer’s qualifications aamgilities to perform the Agreement obligations frém proposed Dealer Location, the effect
such a grant would have on the resulting Territmgfiguration and adjacent Sea Ray dealer salef#&aler’s financial capabilities to
successfully operate the business from the Dealeation, and whether the Dealer will have adegpateonnel to manage the business at the
Dealer Location. Dealer shall not, directly or ditly, sell Products for use by or to a purchéseated outside of the country in which the
Dealer is located, and shall not sell Productsttdrd party who Dealer knows or should know wakell the Products outside of the country in
which the Dealer is located. Dealer shall not wetithers for the purpose of resale without therpsiritten consent of Sea Ray. Dealer shall nc
utilize the services of a broker or similar agens¢ll Product unless such broker is an affiliatéd! party of Dealer that is located within the
Territory, consummates the sale of any Producbircert with Dealer and pursuant to Dealer’s stath@aactices, and otherwise complies with
the requirements of this Agreement. Dealer age@sdvide appropriate facilities and to assumedoll complete managerial authority and
responsibility for the service of the Productsrad &#om those Dealer Location(s) specified in thigeement and for the display and retail sale
of the Products at and from each Dealer Locatiaidifonally, Dealer may engage in temporary ofégltsplay and sales activity within the
Territory.

3. Responsibilities of the Parties

3.1 Deale’s Responsibilitie:

Dealer agrees to:

A. Devote its best efforts to aggressively promdtsplay, advertise and sell Products at each Dé&aleation and in the Territory
and Dealer Region in accordance with the termbisfAgreement and all applicable federal, statelacal laws. Dealer shall display and
utilize at each Dealer Location signs, graphicsiamate elements with Sea Ray’s Identification &&de herein, subject to approval by Sea
Ray, that will positively reflect the Sea Ray imagal promote the retail sale of the Products.

B. Achieve the performance standards set fortlokmis and in the related Exhibit B (collectiveffperformance Standards”) for
each Dealer Region. Sea Ray, in collaboration ®ehler, will establish fair and reasonable Performance &ieds for each of the Dealer
Regions under this Agreement which Performancedaiais shall be established in a manner simildndsed applied to domestic Sea Ray
dealers. Performance Standards shall include mmimaguirements relating to inventory stocking lsygirovision of annual sales forecasts,
submission of orders pursuant to the terms of SgasRhen current buying program, unit retail saleseldeon Product registrations for Prod
in each Dealer Region, customer satisfaction (Blgt,Promoter Scores) and Product marketing support
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Sea Ray, in collaboration with Dealer, will establthe Performance Standards taking into considerégctors such as population, sales
potential, market share percentage of the Prochaddsin the Territory as compared to competitivedorcts sold in the Territory, product
availability, economic conditions in the Dealer Retfs) and Territory, competition from other maritealerships in the area, past sales his
historical Product mix and stocking practices, #xgsProduct Inventory, adequacy and ability of fveducts to meet customer demand in the
Territory, number of locations, and any speciatwinstances that may affect the sale of ProdudfseoDealer. The Performance Standards fol
the first Product Model Year of this Agreement ageeed to and identified in Exhibit B. Sea Raycataboration with Dealer, will, in
subsequent years, substitute the updated and ath®ed®rmance Standards for the current Exhibifhig Performance Standards on Exhit
will continue to apply until replaced with updataiold amended Performance Standards.

C. Maintain at each Dealer Location (unless a dalztion only, and then service shall be providednother Dealer Location) a
service department that Dealer agrees to staiff, aad equip to promptly and professionally sesviroducts; and to maintain at each Dealer
Location parts and supplies to properly servicalBets on a timely basis.

D. Perform any and all necessary Product riggingtailation, and inspection services prior to daimto the purchaser as required
by Sea Ray'’s current written policy applicable torekstic Sea Ray dealers and perform post-saleceavtall Products originally sold by
Dealer and brought to Dealer for service. Dealdirlvei required to provide or arrange for warranty aervice work for Product regardless of
the selling dealer of the Product or conditionaes Sea Ray will exercise reasonable efforts éisisdParagraph 3.1D. to address circumsta
in which another dealer has made a sale to amatigetail purchaser who permanently resides wihéaler's Territory where such sale is
contrary to the terms of the selling dealer’'s Saled Service Agreement. Dealer will provide appiatprinstructions to purchasers on how to
obtain warranty and service work from the Dealeral@r will secure all Product inventory against theang and other damage, and maintain
inventory in a like new and unused condition.

E. Furnish each Product purchaser with Sea Rayited warranty on new Products and with informasma training as to the safe
and proper operation and maintenance of the Product

F. Complete and submit Sea Ray’s Product registratard (or applicable electronic form) and In-$@Checklist promptly upon
delivery of the Products to the purchaser and 8Ssia Ray in performing Product defect and re@afigaigns. In the event Dealer fails to re
the card or submit the other documentation to SeadR required, Dealer shall indemnify Sea Rayregainy liability, loss, or damage which
Sea Ray may sustain directly as a result of sutiréa

G. Maintain complete Product sales, warranty amd&erecords, and report to Sea Ray upon reghestame and address of each
Product purchaser to the extent required by appkciaw. Dealer further agrees to provide Sea Ritly access to its applicable books and
records at reasonable times and upon reasonablenptice to verify the accuracy of information mutied for participation and eligibility in
promotions and other programs.
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H. [Intentionally omitted.]

I. Submit to Sea Ray upon request any additiorfatimation or clarifying information regarding Degfefinancial statements and
allow full and open disclosure of financial infortitem concerning Dealer between Sea Ray and angdiabinstitution or company which may
finance or propose to finance all or part of Deal@roduct inventory.

J. Conduct business in a manner that preservesrdrahces the reputation and goodwill of both SeeaRd Dealer for providing
quality products and services, and refrain fronrmgsiny false, misleading or deceptive advertisBupmit truthful and accurate statements,
reports and information to Sea Ray and any findimgitution financing or proposing to finance Dexds Product inventory or any purchaser.

K. Maintain an ability to purchase Product invegttor each Dealer Location via flooring and/or dffancing that is customary to
carry on hand and display Sea Ray’s current Pratiaciels as indicated in the Defined Terms and #@ropgmance standards set forth herein.

L. [Intentionally omitted.]

M. Use its best efforts to maintain and improveresmr other customer satisfaction rating (e.gt,femoter Scores) in compliar
with the Performance Standards for such applicadtiags.

N. Comply with those Dealer obligations that mayirobposed or established by Sea Ray applicabld toalestic Sea Ray Dealers
including but not limited to those included in SRay’s policies and programs and Sea Ray’s Advadgi§iolicy.

O. Maintain a financial condition which is adequittesatisfy and perform its obligations under thggeement.

P. Provide prior written notice to Sea Ray if Dealesires to make any material change in Dealaranting of its Product
inventory or business and give Sea Ray sufficiemt to discuss and review with Dealer the effedhefproposed change.

Q. Notify Sea Ray of the addition or deletion of @ealer Location(s) which notification Dealer aggeshall not be deemed a
consent by Sea Ray to such a proposed change.

R. Provide Sea Ray with prior notice of any progbappointment of sub-dealers. All appointmentsutharized sub-dealers are
subject to prior written approval by Sea Ray (“Awiked Sub-dealers”). Dealer will set its own regafice to Authorized Sub-dealers and
assume all risk of non-payment by the Authorizet-8ealers. The Authorized Sub-dealers are notgzarti any agreement between Sea Ray
and Dealer and Dealer will ensure that the AutleatiBub-dealers do not take any actions that vielagepolicies and programs of Sea Ray or
are inconsistent with the terms of this AgreemBialer is responsible for any losses incurred ey gy as a result of Authorized
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Sub-dealer’s performance including, but withoutifation, Authorized Sub-dealer’s failure to pay &y for any Product or to pay any
financial institution that finances Products pusdtiby the Authorized Sub-dealers. Dealer willexder into any agreement with Authorized
Sub-dealers that is inconsistent with the termscamdiitions of this Agreement.

S. Notify Sea Ray in writing of the applicable bdeand boat type at least thirty (30) days beforal@ebegins to sell, display or
advertise a new boat brand.

3.2 Company Responsibilitie:

Company Agrees to:

A. Sell Products to Dealer in accordance with Comyfsathen-current terms and conditions of sale igpple to domestic
Sea Ray dealers, limited warranties, and the pigtpublished from time to time by Company, lesy applicable discounts allowed by
Company'’s programs applicable to Dealer and carsistith the provisions of Section 5 hereof. Conypsimall have the right to modify its
terms and conditions of sale, limited warrantiggelists and programs from time to time in itéesgiscretion and in compliance with the te
of this Agreement; provided, however, that Compaillyprovide reasonable prior written notice to Dexaafter the beginning of the Model
Year of such modifications and that changes irithiéed warranty and pricing will apply only to fute retail purchases. Company will make
available its current policies and programs intetedc format or in a manual or other format Compdrems appropriate. Dealer should
contact Company for a copy of the policies and mot if it does not have access to or did not vecaicopy.

B. Provide to Dealer reasonable quantities of ogtalspecification sheets, and other advertisiregchandising or
promotional material to assist Dealer in the séleroducts as Company deems appropriate.

C. Make available to Dealer in electronic formabtrerwise reasonable quantities of parts booksanty claim forms,
order forms or procedures, maintenance and semaaials and other materials of a technical natsi@ampany deems appropriate.

D. Furnish Dealer with written instructions andpalicies for the use of trademarks, trade namegmdand other trade
designations of Company that correspond to theuwitsdas Company deems appropriate.

E. Furnish a Limited Warranty for the Products anovide warranty support and process warranty daimaccordance wit
Company'’s warranty policy, which may be modifiedrir time to time by Company in its sole discreti@ompany shall notify Dealer of
changes to Company’s warranty policy and make abkilcurrent versions of its warranty policy to Rea

F. Promote sales of the Products via the Intemetodher marine related publications or by otheamseas Company deems
appropriate.
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G. Ship parts related to the Products in accordaiitteCompany’s policy on shipping parts.
H. Accept payment for Product and credit Dealecsoaint within a reasonable time.

I. Furnish detailed invoices upon shipment andquici statements thereafter, provide prompt comnatiuio regarding
account status upon request, and administer geliiies in a non-discriminatory manner.

J. Identify Dealer’s name and address in listinguthorized dealers on Company’s website dealatdo¢if available).
Company reserves the right to create, update amlifyr&uch a website locator from time to time s $ble discretion.

K. Provide reasonable technical assistance anceguves for handling of technical questions of Degdiated to the
Products.

L. Maintain communication channels in order to reedealer feedback from time to time.

M. Provide reasonable consultative assistance tddbéor operational, sales and customer servippati as Company
deems appropriate.

N. Provide reasonable supportive informational maltefor new models of Products as Company degipsoariate.

O. Provide owner’s manual for Products and sintilaterials for other components or accessoriesatigainade available to
Company.

P. Supply Dealer with proper quantities of Prodrarisistent with Sea Ray’s quality standards tonallealer to meet the
Performance Standards set forth in Section 3.1.B.

Q. Provide Dealer with two (2) seats on Sea Ragigept review teams to consult with Sea Ray reggrttie Products and,
at least annually, conduct a portfolio product eewivith appropriate Dealer managers.

4. Orders Dealer agrees to submit orders to Sea Ray inrmeraand format prescribed by Sea Ray, applicabédl domestic Sea Ray
dealers which orders shall be subject to Sea Rhgls current terms and conditions of sale which traynodified by Sea Ray at any time for
all domestic dealers as deemed reasonably necessgrprder which does not comply with Sea Rayisigand conditions need not be filled
by Sea Ray provided, however, that Sea Ray shadhptly notify Dealer of such noncompliance. Any giddal or different terms submitted
Dealer will be deemed rejected and will also balhand of no effect. Dealer cancellation of ordeilslve subject to Sea Ray’s then current
cancellation policy applicable to all domestic ey dealers. All orders submitted by Dealer argesiitto acceptance by Sea Ray.
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5. Prices The Products sold to the Dealer by Sea Ray bleadin the basis of price lists published by SeafRag time to time for its
domestic dealers, less any applicable discourdsiall by Sea Rag’programs. Sea Ray shall have the right to reékiserice lists or applicak
discounts or programs applicable to all of its dstizedealers at any time and agrees to promptlyynbealer of any such change. The Produc
prices charged to Dealer will be the lowest prigentcharged to other domestic dealers subject ddeDmeeting all the requirements and
conditions of Sea Ray'’s applicable programs, andiged that Sea Ray may in good faith, charge tgasees to other dealers to meet existing
competitive circumstances, for unusual and limdacdation non-ordinary business circumstances, mlirfated duration promotional programs.
Sea Ray shall have no obligation to reimburse Ddateany loss which Dealer may sustain by readaany change in price, program, or
discount for which notice was provided in accordaherewith. Terms of payment will be as specifi@af time to time by Sea Ray. Dealer
pay Sea Ray the lesser of 1.5% late charges pethmoothe maximum permitted by applicable law og past due invoice except as to any
specific amount of an invoice that is disputed @odgj faith by the Dealer. Sea Ray may refuse shipfoemny credit reason, including Dealer’s
failure to pay for a prior shipment or to pay amahcial institution who finances Dealer’s purchgs® for Dealer’s failure to maintain its
Product inventory in accordance with the termshif Agreement. Sea Ray shall immediately notify IBed Sea Ray refuses shipment to
Dealer so that Dealer has a reasonable opportimniyre any issue. Dealer will reimburse Sea Rapllaeasonable and necessary costs in
collecting past due accounts, including attornegfand court costs. Dealer hereby grants to Seafh$ea Ray hereby retains a security
interest in all Products sold to Dealer and allcpeals arising out of the sale of the Products sath Products are paid for in full. Dealer ag
to sign, file, authenticate, and authorize theisignfiling and authenticating by Sea Ray of sudarficing statements and other documents an
do such other acts, as Sea Ray may request tdigistabyd maintain a valid and protected securitgrigst in the Products.

6. Shipments All shipments of Products shall be made FOB tha Ray factory designated by Sea Ray, and titli shss to Dealer at
the time the Products or parts are tendered tdebeynated carrier or the Dealer or Dealer’s repriggive at the Sea Ray factory. Dealer shall
pay all applicable shipping, transportation, dely&nd handling charges for Products ordered elilEr fails to accept delivery of any Prodt
ordered, other than material non-conforming Prasgltitat must be returned to Sea Ray for repair,ddeshlall reimburse Sea Ray for any costs
incurred, including returning such Products to Rag. If Sea Ray ships Products not ordered by Delakaler shall have the right to refuse
delivery, in which event Sea Ray shall pay all sasturred in returning same to Sea Ray. Shiprmsdrdh be subject to Sea Ray’'s production
schedule and availability of materials or transgiioh equipment. No liability shall be sustained3sa Ray by reason of its not filling any ol
due to circumstances beyond its reasonable cosundl as, but not limited to, labor disputes, nadtisasters, accidents to machinery, acts of
God, acts of or threatened acts of war or terrgrisaterial shortages, regulations, demands for geadeeding Sea Ray’s available supply or
any other cause beyond Sea Ray’s control. In tbatesf any delay in delivery, failure to fill ordeor other default or damage caused by any «
the foregoing, Sea Ray may, at its option and withiability, cancel all or any portion of the apalble orders to the extent affected by the
event of force majeure and/or extend any date wgooh performance is due hereinunder.
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7. Risk of Loss Risk of loss for Products ordered by Dealer spafls to Dealer at the time the Products or pegtteadered to the
designated carrier or the Dealer or Deale€presentative at the Sea Ray factory. Sea Ransiuctions to insure Products on behalf of Be
from the shipping point to the final delivery poimless otherwise agreed by the parties in writepler will be the loss payee on any claim.
Sea Ray will assist Dealer in the processing afidatmn of any claims against the carrier conteddby Sea Ray. Notwithstanding the abov
Dealer or Dealer’s representative takes posses$iBroducts at the Sea Ray factory, Dealer assuesg®nsibility to insure the Products upon
tender of the Products to Dealer or Dealer’s reprigive at the Sea Ray factory.

8. Payment Claims: All sales of Products to Dealer shall be paidifoadvance by Dealer, unless otherwise agreeddsst\8ea Ray and
Dealer in writing. All claims for shortage or danesgor unacceptable Product shall be made pursu&wsa Ray’s then current policy on
shipment damage and claims procedures applicalal $za Ray domestic dealers. The failure of Dealgive such notification as set forth in
Sea Ray'’s then current shipment damage and claiocggures policy shall constitute a waiver of anghsclaim. Dealer shall cause to be paid
or shall make reimbursement to Sea Ray in fulbfoy and all taxes, duties, or other charges impbgddderal, state, municipal, or other
governmental authority upon Dealer’s purchase uttderAgreement.

9. Product Modification Sea Ray shall have the right to discontinue #he sf Products or to modify the design, speciiareg and
components of Products at any time provided, howekiat Sea Ray shall notify Dealer, prior to shimiy of any major changes with respec
Products previously ordered by Dealer but not ydivdred, in which event Dealer shall have thetrighterminate such order within five (5)
business days after such notification by providimgdten notice to Sea Ray. The failure to providelstimely written notification shall be
deemed acceptance by Dealer of such changes.

10. Warranties and Limitation of Warranties andbliligy :

10.1 Warranties: Dealer agrees tt

A. Sell Products only on the basis of Sea Ray’'diphéd applicable limited warranty and make no otharranty or representations
concerning the limited warranty, express or impligither verbally or in writing.

B. Display at each Dealer Location that Productramty information required by applicable law anchfsh and make known to the
first-use purchaser at the time of delivery therappate operations and maintenance manual proigiesea Ray, instructional information for
the use and operation of the Product consisteit tivé operations and maintenance manual, the Proditallation instructions, if any, togett
with Sea Ray’s written limited warranty, includiaf disclaimers and limitations thereto.
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C. Subject to the terms of the applicable limiteatranty, expressly inform the purchaser in writihgt no Sea Ray warranty appl
if the Product is “used” unless Sea Ray expresdllyaizes such warranty in writing or the existlmance of the warranty is transferable and
is transferred. No Product warranty shall appthéd design or material of the Product is substiytiaodified without the express authorizat
of Sea Ray in writing.

D. Provide timely warranty service on all Produetgented to Dealer by purchasers in accordanceSei#hRay’s then current
warranty service program applicable to all domeSta Ray dealers selling comparable Products. Dagitees to make all claims for
reimbursement under Sea Ray’s warranty servicerpno@n the manner reasonably prescribed by Sea$yRay may revise its warranty
service program from time to time, providing Dealéth written notification of all revisions, anddke revisions will supersede all previous
programs.

E. To verify the accuracy of the warranty claimbmitted to Sea Ray by Dealer and the service peavtiy Dealer with regard to
such warranty claims, provide Sea Ray with acaeéts aaipplicable books and records, and providé suiditional documentation which Sea
Ray may reasonably request. In the event Sea Rdy &rrors in the aggregate greater than 5% oéwead claims submitted by Dealer Loca
and paid by Sea Ray, Sea Ray may calculate themeage rate of error; and using that percentageofagrror, extrapolate the amount owed tc
Sea Ray for up to three (3) prior years of all pdadms made by Sea Ray to Dealer at that Dealeatian. Within thirty (30) days of such
notice of such amount, Dealer shall either payetiteapolated amount to Sea Ray or pay the cosfuf audit by Sea Ray or Sea Ray’s
designee or at Dealsrbption and expense, a third party auditor redslgracceptable to Sea Ray and Dealer and pay t&kSgdhat amount,
any, found to be owing to Sea Ray as a result cif swdit. Sea Ray agrees to honor all legitimateamsy claims on Products when made by
purchaser through Dealer in the manner reasonabgcpbed by Sea Ray. Sea Ray shall respond poager and legitimate warranty claims
submitted by Dealer within the time period desatlibethe then current warranty policy applicableltonestic Sea Ray dealers. Sea Ray agre
to pay or credit all accepted and undisputed claiftisin thirty (30) days after receipt of all reqed documentation.

10.2_Limitation of Warranties and Liability.

EXCEPT AS SPECIFICALLY PROVIDED IN SEA RAY’S PUBLISED APPLICABLE LIMITED WARRANTY, SEA RAY MAKES
NO REPRESENTATIONS OR WARRANTIES, EXPRESS OR IMPDIEWITH RESPECT TO PRODUCTS, INCLUDING WITHOU
LIMITATION THE IMPLIED WARRANTIES OF MERCHANTABILITY AND FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE. IN NO
EVENT SHALL EITHER PARTY BE LIABLE TO THE OTHER PARY FOR, NOR SHALL THE MEASURE OF DAMAGES INCLUDE,
ANY AMOUNTS FOR LOST PROFITS, LOST SALES, OR INDIRH, SPECIAL, INCIDENTAL OR CONSEQUENTIAL DAMAGES
FOR ANY REASON OR UPON ANY CAUSE OF ACTION, WHETHEROUNDING IN TORT, CONTRACT OR ANY OTHER LEGAL
THEORY.
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11. Indemnification

A. In order to obtain preferred boat show spaatisttounted rates for Dealers, Sea Ray may contiiitiand agree to indemnify
boat show sponsors and other related parties. Aowly, Dealer shall defend, indemnify and holdrhbass Sea Ray, and any boat show
sponsor which Sea Ray has agreed to indemnify, &oynand all claims, causes of action, and suitduding claims of negligence arising
either directly or indirectly out of Dealer’s uskbmat show space originally obtained by Sea Ray.

B. Sea Ray agrees to indemnify and hold harmlesdeDéor losses, cost and expense to the extehtlsases, cost or expense re
from any third party claim related to (1) Sea Rayégligent acts or omissions involving the origofesign or manufacture of any Product at
time it left Sea Ray’s possession or control, errépair of any Product performed by Sea Ray, oai(§ breach of this Agreement by Sea Ray
Sea Ray, at its expense and through counsel oivitschoosing, may defend any litigation that mageaout of any claims covered hereby, anc
Dealer agrees to cooperate at its own expenserandlp Sea Ray with any available information ay fp@ reasonably necessary to such
defense. In the event Sea Ray elects not to defienditigation that may arise out of any claims e®d hereby, Sea Ray will be responsible fo
Dealer’s reasonable attorney fees on a pro-rateid bathe extent such losses are subject to indieation pursuant to this Agreement.

C. Dealer agrees to indemnify and hold harmlessR2gafor losses, cost and expense to the extehtlegses, cost or expense re
from any third party claim related to (1) Dealemgligent acts or omissions involving Dealer’s ioyer application, use or repair of the
Products, (2) statements or representations notfgdly authorized by Sea Ray, including warrastinconsistent with Sea Ray’s standard
limited warranty, and the installation of any aftearket components or any other modification aeralion to the Product, or (3) any breach of
this Agreement by Dealer. Dealer, at its expensktlarough counsel of its own choosing, may defamdligation that may arise out of any
claims covered hereby, and Sea Ray agrees to @ieprits own expense and provide Dealer withaamylable information as may be
reasonably necessary to such defense. In the Beaér elects not to defend any litigation that ragge out of any claims covered hereby,
Dealer will be responsible for Sea Ray'’s reasonatiteney fees on a pro-rated basis to the exteft bsses are subject to indemnification
pursuant to this Agreement.

D. The provisions in this Paragraph 11 regardimpinnification do not apply to claims by third pastin which there has been a
judicial determination that the indemnifying padges not have liability to the third party. Theysions in this Paragraph 11 shall survive
expiration or termination of this Agreement.

12. Repossession or Repurchase of Product by SealReler shall be liable to and reimburse Sea Ragify and all losses or
deficiencies on the sale or disposition of any Bobghurchased by Dealer pursuant to this Agreeméith is repossessed or repurchased by
Sea Ray for any reason whatsoever, except as cplait in Paragraph 16G. Dealer shall also bedifdil any and all discounts, volume
rebates, or other sales incentives paid to Dealétroduct repurchased, and all reasonable attasiiegs, court costs, and expenses incurred i
connection with such repossession or repurchasgieDagrees to provide Sea Ray, upon request, measior other adequate security to cove
any repurchase or financial obligations that SeamRay assume in connection with Dealer’s floorimdimancing.
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13. Trademarks and Service MarkBealer acknowledges that Sea Ray or its affdiatempanies are the exclusive owners of various
trademarks, service marks, trade designationsslagd trade dress (collectively “Identification”high Sea Ray uses in connection with
Products and its business. Dealer is authorizedéddentification only in the manner prescribedSeya Ray, only in connection with the
promotion and sale of Products, and only untilekgiration or termination of this Agreement. Deakall not register or assist any other party
to register any domain name that contains or gjogsgembles any Company Identification withouttfobtaining the prior written consent of
Company. Dealer shall not use Identification in anguthorized manner or in any manner that adwersélects upon the reputation of Sea
or in relation to any other matter that is a breeficthis Agreement. Dealer shall not use Identifaraor advertise outside of the Territory to the
extent prohibited by the terms of this Agreemerithaut Sea Ray’s express written consent and sbaliply with Sea Ray’s Advertising
Policy. Authorization shall not be interpreted d&anse for use of Identification. Dealer acquinesproprietary rights with respect to
Identification, and this authorization shall terati@ simultaneously with the termination or expoatof this Agreement. In the event of
expiration or termination of this Agreement, Dealkall immediately discontinue use of Identificatio any way whatsoever and shall
thereafter not use, either directly or indirectiyy Identification or any confusingly similar Iddigation in a manner likely to confuse, mislead,
or deceive the public. Dealer may continue to deafification for a reasonable period of time ia #vent Sea Ray does not repurchase Deale
Product inventory as long as such ldentificatioa resnains subject to the terms of this Agreemesd, Bay’s Advertising Policy or any other
written instructions provided by Sea Ray to Dedlsraler agrees that any unauthorized use or cardinge of Identification after the period of
time allowed by this Paragraph 13 shall constituparable harm entitling Sea Ray to seek equateddief, including injunction and specific
performance, without the necessity of posting bongroving actual damages, as a remedy for any stedch. Such remedies shall not be
deemed to be the exclusive remedies for such zbt®aDealer but shall be in addition to all othemedies available at law or equity to Sea
Ray.

14. [Intentionally omitted.]

15. No Agency Createdlt is understood and agreed that Dealer is rartshall it at any time represent itself to be, dlgent, employee,
representative, partner, or franchisee of Sea Bagrfy purpose. Neither party shall enter into @mnytract or commitment in the name of or on
behalf of the other party. Sea Ray has no fiduailty to Dealer pursuant to this Agreement or glationship between the parties. Dealer is
not required to pay, and shall not pay, to Sead&gyfee for the right to purchase the Productslmeravise do business with Sea Ray.

16. Term of AgreementTermination:

A. The term of this Agreement shall be as set fortthe Defined Terms (the “ Term”) subject howet@the provisions set forth in
this Paragraph 16 and in Paragraph 18.
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B. Subject to the provisions of Section 16F bel8@a Ray may terminate this Agreement upon the gjiofrat least sixty (60) days
prior written notice to Dealer if: (1) Dealer dagst have an ability to purchase Products via flagor self-financingor (2) Dealer fails to me
its financial obligations as they become due thegiSea Ray or lender(s) financing Products. SgasRall work in good faith with Dealer to
try to resolve any differences between them poagiving such 60-day notice of termination.

C. This Agreement may be terminated at any timébymutual consent of the parties.

D. Subject to the provisions of Section 16F beleither party may elect to not extend the Term of Agreement for another
twelve (12) month period following expiration ofetleurrent twelve (12) month period of the Term escdibed in the Defined Terms in the
event of the material breach or default of anyhefmnaterial obligations, Performance Standarddédéised in Section 3.1B and Exhibit B),
covenants, representations, warranties, or dutipesed herein or in Sea Ray’s policies or prograppdicable to domestic Sea Ray dealers by
either party. In such event, the non-breachingypaift provide written notice to the breaching paand an opportunity to cure or remedy such
breach. The parties shall work together in goothft@ resolve any issues but the additional twéh&) month extension shall not be added 1
such time that the breach is remedied to the reddemyood faith satisfaction of the parties. Athstime as the parties agree that the concerns
have been remedied, the additional twelve (12) mertension shall be added to the end of the egjiSterm.

In addition, after the seventh {7 anniversary of this Agreement (i.e., during amee (3) year renewal Term), either party may dlect
terminate this Agreement upon the giving of attiéagnty four (24) months prior written notice teetother party in the event of the material
breach or default of any of the material obligasioRerformance Standards (as defined in Sectidhatl Exhibit B), covenants,
representations, warranties, or duties imposedreran Sea Ray policies or programs applicable to domestic Smadalers by either par
which breach is not cured during such notice pegwdvided, however, that if such a breach or defauDealer only pertains to one Dealer
Region, Sea Ray shall only have the right purstatitis provision to terminate this Agreement athtt particular Dealer Region. The parties
shall work together in good faith to resolve arguiss.

Notwithstanding the above, so long as De¢'s failure to meet the Performance Standards icaosed by Sea Ray failing to have Product
available for purchase by Dealer, Sea Ray shak liae right to terminate this Agreement as to fhigieable Dealer Region(s) (i) if Dealer is
failing to meet the Performance Standards in a@dégion and begins selling, displaying, or adsig products that are competitive with
Products (other than products of another BrunsWickporation brand or new products which MarineMelss displays or advertises for salt

of the date of this Agreement) and does not ceréaiture to meet the Performance Standards withiaty (90) days after written notice of the
same from Sea Ray, or (ii) if Dealer is meetingReeformance Standards in a Dealer Region, butdtets failing to meet the Performance
Standards after beginning selling, displaying, awreatising products that are competitive with tlmedRicts (other than products of another
Brunswick Corporation brand or new products whichrieMax sells, displays or advertises for salefahe date of this Agreement) and does
not cure its failure to meet the Performance Statgdaithin six (6) months after written notice betsame from Sea Ray.
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E. Notwithstanding subparagraph D above or anythirtgis Agreement to the contrary, this Agreentaay be terminated by a
party upon sixty (60) days prior written noticethe other party if any of the following occur withgard to the other party: (1) the other party
ceases to exist; (2) the other party becomes igabbr takes or fails to take any action which titutes an admission of inability to pay debts
as they mature; (3) the other party makes a genssidnment for the benefit of creditors to an agethorized to liquidate any substantial
amount of assets; (4) the other party becomesjacudf an “order for relief” within the meaning thife United States Bankruptcy Code; (5) the
other party becomes the subject of a receiversbgrganization, liquidation or any similar procegglior (6) the other party makes a fraudulen
misrepresentation that is material to this Agreemehis Agreement may be terminated upon sixty (E8)s prior written notice by Sea Ray
upon the occurrence of: (1a) a prohibited assigniemsfer, delegation or subcontracting withcarisent as described in Paragraph 18A;
(2b) the commission by Dealer of an act of fraudruBea Ray; (3c) the commission by Dealer (or dntg @fficers) of a felony or other act of
fraud which is materially detrimental to Sea Ragputation or business or which materially impéies Dealer’s ability to perform the duties
under this Agreement; or (4d) Dealer fails to pay Eender financing Products after the sale of Betglby Dealer (out of trust).

F. For the purpose of the first paragraph of Secti@D, if a breach or default by Dealer pertainy ém one Dealer Region, Sea F
shall have the right to deny the additional extemgieriod for that particular Dealer Region onlyillmiemedied as described in Section D. For
the purpose of Section 16B or E, if Dealer breadretefaults as described in such provisions, SsarRay, in its own discretion, elect eithe
terminate the entire Agreement (as to all Dealegites) or terminate only as to particular DealegiBe subject to the Agreement.
Notwithstanding the foregoing, in the event of @gsible termination pursuant to Section 16B aa party seeking to terminate shall fi
provide written notice to the other party statihg potential grounds therefore and both partieb wloak together in good faith for a period of
no less than sixty (60) days to resolve any corecbatween the parties.

G . [****]

H. In the event of termination of this Agreemeribpto its expiration date, provided the terminatie not for fraud, bad faith, or
insolvency of Dealer, Sea Ray will neverthelesgiooe to sell to Dealer warranty parts and accéssdor Products on a cash on delivery b
for a period not to exceed twelve (12) months theotthat Dealer may continue to provide warrantyise on Products which have outstanc
warranties subject to Dealer’'s compliance withtérens and conditions of Sea Ray’s warranty andspgardgram applicable to all domestic Sea
Ray dealers. The performance of any warranty wéige &ermination or expiration of this Agreemenaimot be construed as a continuation of
this Agreement, the commencement of a new agreemeatwaiver of the termination.

I. Any period of time described in the Agreemerdlsbhe modified to include such different periodtiofie that may be required by
applicable law.
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J. In the event of expiration or the terminatiorito$ Agreement by either party, Sea Ray is relievem any obligation to make a
further Product shipments under this Agreement,raag cancel all of Dealer’s unshipped orders fadBcts, irrespective of previous
acceptance by Sea Ray, except those which aregptovigea Ray’'s reasonable satisfaction to have theesubject of a binding customer order
to Dealer prior to the receipt of any notice ohtaration or expiration. The acceptance of ordesmfDealer for the continuous sale of Prodi
to Dealer or any other act after expiration or eation of this Agreement shall not be construed aentinuation of this Agreement, the
commencement of a new agreement, or a waiver detin@nation. Upon the expiration or terminatiornttuf Agreement, all obligations owed
by Dealer to Sea Ray shall become immediately ddepayable on the effective date of the expiratiotermination, whether otherwise then
due or not (without presentment, demand, protesbtice of any kind, all of which are waived by D) and Sea Ray may offset or deduct
from any and all sums owed to Dealer any and atissawed by Dealer to Sea Ray, or any parent,&Hilor subsidiary of Sea Ray, returnin
Dealer the excess, if any.

17. Governing Law This Agreement shall be governed, interpreteda@mstrued according to the laws of the State oh€éssee, U.S.A.,
without regard to applicable conflicts of law.

18. Assignability:

A. This appointment and Agreement is made and edtieto with the distinct understanding that ip&gsonal with Dealer, and is
not, whether by operation of law, change in contrabtherwise, assignable or in any part delegabteansferable unless the express written
consent of Sea Ray is obtained; provided, howdkiat,Dealer may assign the appointment and thieément to a subsidiary or affiliate
without consent. An assignment by Dealer to anslidry or affiliate shall not relieve Dealer fraany obligation or responsibility provided
for under the terms of this Agreement. Unless fifgbroved by Sea Ray in writing, any purportedgassient, transfer, delegation or
subcontracting of Dealer’s rights and obligationder this Agreement by it (other than to a subsydoa affiliate) may immediately render this
Agreement terminated in Sea Ray'’s sole discretion.

B. Sea Ray may not assign this Agreement withaaiptiior written consent of Dealer, except that mchsconsent is necessary with
respect to assignment of this Agreement to anyR&geowned subsidiary or affiliate. An assignmenSaa Ray to any owned subsidiary or
affiliate shall not relieve Sea Ray from any ohbliga or responsibility provided for under the teraighis Agreement. Upon any sale of the
business or the assets of Sea Ray to a nonaffilthted party, and where Dealer does not agrebd@ssignment, this Agreement shall be
terminated and Sea Ray shall be released fromuathef obligations and liabilities to supply Prothuto Dealer under this Agreement provi
however that the provisions of Sections 11 andritbadl other provisions that are intended to sietarmination either expressly or impliedly
shall do so in accordance with their terms.

19. Notices, Communications

A. Any written notice given pursuant to this Agremmshall be either hand delivered (by couriertbeovise), or mailed, postage
prepaid, by Registered or Certified Malil, return
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receipt requested, to the party identified belowhatrespective address listed below. Notice msgy laé given by fax, e-mail or other electronic
method; however, if notice is provided pursuarPéwagraph 16, a copy must also be mailed in thenaradescribed herein. Such notice shall
be deemed to be given upon first receipt. A charigeldress may be given by such notice.

To Sea Ray To Dealer:;

William H. McGill, Jr.

Presiden
Sea Ray Boat MarineMax, Inc.
Attention: Presider
800 South Gay Street, Suite 12 2600 McCormick Drive
Knoxville, TN 37929 Suite 20C

Clearwater, Florida 337&
With a copy to With a copy to
Brunswick Corporation Law Departme MarineMax, Inc.
Attention: General Couns Attention: General Couns
1 N. Field Cour Suite 20C
Lake Forest, Il 2600 McCormick Drive
Tel: (847)73-4700 Clearwater, FL 3375
Fax: (847) 73-4433 Tel: (727) 531 170

Fax:(727) 45(-1162

B. Dealer hereby grants permission and consentaoR&y and to those entities who are authorizeéddayRay to send or transmit
communications (including but not limited to facdis, wireless communications, and e-mails) to Beahd Dealer’s officers, directors,
employees, subsidiaries and affiliates, and thaimitted successors and assigns. Such communisaiemot limited in content and may
include advertisements, and Dealer understand$yhatoviding such consent it may incur costs tratrelated to the receipt of such
communications. Dealer further agrees that suchhemications may be sent to any telephone numbelectronic media address supplied by
Dealer for each Dealer Location.

20. Entire AgreementNon-Waiver: This Agreement, including any attached addendatains the entire agreement between the partie
with respect to the matters set forth herein ang nut be amended or modified except by a writtestribment signed by Sea Ray and Dealer
that expressly states that the writing constitaleemendment or modification to this Agreementyjaied that, subject to the provisions of this
Agreement, Sea Ray may in its sole discretion amm time to time make changes in accordance wstbwtn reasonable business judgment to
the policies and programs applicable to all doreeStia Ray dealers upon the giving of notice to &esd described herein. This Agreement
terminates and replaces all prior agreements metiieelen the parties regarding the subject mattdri®fAgreement and there are no other
agreements regarding the matters herein provided th
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each party shall remain obligated to the otheafor monies owed under such prior agreements bettheguarties; and except for payments to
be made to Dealer in the ordinary course of busioeglaims of third parties, there are no otheni@s claims, or actions which may give rise
to or result in any compensation or monies beingaw Dealer by Sea Ray. Failure on the part off@saor Dealer to enforce any term of 1
Agreement shall not constitute a waiver thereof.

21. Severability- Existing Claims Whenever possible, each paragraph of this Agreestall be interpreted in such manner as to be
effective and valid under applicable law, but ifgortion of this Agreement is deemed invalid oenforceable, the remaining sections shall
still be enforceable unless removal of that porsormaterially alters the risks and benefits thegiparty that enforcement would be
substantially unfair. In such a case, the partigse&ato immediately negotiate a substitute claonsedtore each party as closely as possible to
the risks and benefits originally assumed. Deaprasents to Sea Ray that it is not aware of aigns| causes of action, or disputes that it ha:
or may assert against Sea Ray that arise outldar accrued prior to the effective date of thisekgnent. Dealer further represents to Sea R
that it has not breached or otherwise violatedtany or condition of any previous agreement wita Bay.

22. Disputes All disputes, controversies or claims connectétth varising out of, or relating to this Agreememnit,any modification,
extension or renewal thereof, or to any causestarathat result from such relationship, shallsbéject exclusively to the remedy of
arbitration described herein, including but notited to sums due under this Agreement, the intéapom, performance or nonperformance of
this Agreement, and claim for damages or rescissidmeach or default of this Agreement, the cosatiermination or nonrenewal of this
Agreement (such as a dispute regarding the causldity or circumstances of the termination, naeesion, or nonrenewal), and trade
regulations or antitrust claims, whether such amrdrsies or claims are in law or equity or incletlEms based upon contract, statute, tort or
otherwise. All controversies shall be conducteddnordance with the American Arbitration Associat@ommercial Arbitration Rules.

The arbitration shall be governed by the UnitedeStarbitration Act, 9 U.S.C. § 1-16, as amended, jadgment upon the award
rendered by the arbitrator may be entered by anyt ¢t@ving jurisdiction thereof. The place of thibiation shall be at Chicago, lllinois.
Dealer consents to personal jurisdiction of theefatland state courts located in the State ofoilfiior the purpose of enforcing this provision
or confirming any arbitration award. No party stz entitled to receive an award of damages insxotactual damages and in no event sha
the parties receive an award of punitive, spedialbmsequential damages, or prejudgment interest.

Except for claims based on sums owing to Sea Ralraducts purchased by Dealer, or sums owing addddor the
reimbursement of funds it paid for Products thaten@eviously returned to Sea Ray or claims basedaragraph 11 hereof, all arbitration
claims and proceedings must be instituted withia @) year after the dispute arises, and the failoiinstitute arbitration proceedings within
such period shall constitute an absolute ban tanstdution of any proceedings and a waiver anidigeishment of all such claims.

This paragraph shall survive the expiration or feation of the Agreement.
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23. [intentionally omitted]

24. Reservation of RightsSea Ray grants to Dealer only those rights esprestated in this Agreement. Except to the exoénérwise
expressly provided in this Agreement, Sea Raynstall rights. This Agreement does not concernathgr brands or products, except the Sea
Ray Products identified in the Defined Terms. Sag &nd/or its affiliates reserve the right for &ay's affiliates to own, acquire, manage, !
display or service other products and other bramasy area (including the Territory) including #eothat may compete with Products. Sea
reserves the right to receive incentives, rebatesdleer payments from third-party suppliers, indéhgdwithout limitation related to purchases by
or through Dealer from such third party suppliers.

25. Confidentiality. Each party shall maintain as confidential allgsretary business information, trade secrets anahaterials
containing confidential business information pra@ddo such party by the other party, including ttlimited to customers, vendors, price
lists, wholesale prices, programs, rebates, digspiumventions, concepts, designs, structures, dtasy processes, financial information,
employees, strategic plans, acquisition planstoerdbusiness affairs of the disclosing party. Deadknowledges that Sea Ray is an affiliate of
Brunswick Corporation, and accordingly subsidigradfiliates and other divisions of Brunswick Coration may be given access or have
access to confidential business information reckimeconnection with this Agreement, and such disaie does not constitute a breach of this
paragraph. Each party, on behalf of its directofficers, employees and agents to whom such infaamand materials are disclosed, agree
that it shall keep such information and materiaisfitlential both during and after the Term of thigreement for a period of three (3) years
provided that if any such information or materghitrade secret, then the obligations under thiag?aph shall survive the termination of this
Agreement for the longer of five (5) years or teredth of time such information remains a tradeetecr

These obligations of confidentiality do not apmyany information which (1) was known to the reaggvparty prior to receipt from
the disclosing party; (2) is independently devetbpg the receiving party, provided that the burdéproof of such independent development
shall be on the receiving party; (3) is or becomaslicly known without the fault of the receivingny; (4) is or becomes rightfully available
the receiving party without confidential restrictirom a source not bound by a confidentiality gation to the disclosing party; (5) is required
by law, rule or regulation to be disclosed; (6)dquired to be disclosed pursuant to court or gowent action; provided, the disclosing party is
given reasonable prior notice of such disclosuré€6pis disclosed pursuant to written agreemerthefparties.

The terms of this paragraph are in addition to, iamb way a limitation of, the terms of any cowidiality or
non-disclosure agreement (or any confidentialigvision in any other agreement) between or invgh\ea Ray (or its affiliates) and Dealer.

26. MiscellaneousIn case of any dispute relating to the rights datles imposed by this Agreement, both partiesapiénly discuss and
make reasonable efforts at amicable resolutionepixas expressly described to the contrary inAQjigement, the rights and remedies of eact
party are not
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exclusive. Unless otherwise provided, where eiffagty has a right to make a determination or pucsuet pursue a particular course of ac
under the terms of this Agreement, such as, fomgka granting consent or approval, such determinatand decisions shall be made by such
party in its sole discretion. As defined hereinlomestic Sea Ray dealer shall be an authorizedR8gaealer whose territory is located solely

within the continental Unites States.

27. Counterparts and Signaturéehis Agreement may be executed in counterpaatsh ef which shall be deemed an original and all of
which, taken together, shall constitute on andstirae Agreement. Any signature delivered by faxtieioelectronic transmission shall be

deemed to be an original signature.

28. GuaranteeAs a condition for Sea Ray’s entering into thigrdement, MarineMax has signed this Agreement aepee of its
irrevocable guarantee of the Dealer’s performari@dl @f the duties and obligations provided fottlis Agreement.
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Exhibit A

[****]
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EXHIBIT B

[****]
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Exhibit B Table

[****]
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Exhibit X

[****]
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Exhibit Y

[****]
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SALES AND SERVICE AGREEMENT

This Sales and Service Agreemenf(freement’) is entered into as of September 1, 2014 by Ssa R Division of Brunswick Corporation
(“Sea Ray” or “Company”) MarineMax, Inc. (“MarineMg, and MarineMax Northeast, LLC (“Dealer”), in msideration of the mutual
covenants contained in this Agreement, and subjestd incorporating herein the Sales and Servigreé@ment Terms and Conditions attache
hereto. Pursuant to this Agreement, Company heapbgints Dealer through its Dealer Locations idietiin Exhibit A as its dealer for the
sale of Products in the Dealer Regions identifrfeduch Exhibit. Dealer represents and warrantomgany that MarineMax East, Inc. is the
direct parent of Dealer and MarineMax, Inc. is & and exclusive parent of MarineMax East, Inc.

DEFINED TERMS

In this Agreement, the following words and expressithat are not defined elsewhere in this Agre¢sieal have the following meaning,
except where the context requires otherwise:

Dealer and Dealer’s Principal Address: MarineMax Natheast, LLC, 2600 McCormick Drive, Suite 200, Cleavater, Florida 33759
Dealer Location: Each Dealer facility as listed orExhibit A attached hereto.

Dealer Regions: The Dealer Locations sharing a Teitory and comprising a Dealer Region are listed omttached Exhibit A. If a Dealer
Location is added to this Agreement (through acquition or otherwise), the parties will work togetherto determine the realignment of
applicable Dealer Regions related to the additionfesuch location and/or the appropriate Dealer Regin for such new location.

Territory: Identified for each Dealer Region in attached Attachment 1 to Exhibit A

Product(s): Full line of Sea Ray Sport Boats, SpoiCruisers, Sport Yachts and Yachts
(Including related parts and accessories)

Performance Standards: See attached Exhibit B.

Term: The Term of this Agreement shall be Septembet, 2014 to August 31, 2017, provided however thaxcept as otherwise provided
below or in Section 16 of this Agreement, at the @nof each twelve (12) month period of the Term, th&erm of this Agreement shall be
extended by another twelve (12) month period so thdhe Term of this Agreement remains three (3) yea. Notwithstanding the above,
(i) either party may provide written notice to the other no less than one hundred and twenty (120) dayefore the end of any twelve
(12) month period that it will not agree to an addiional extension due to the failure by such other arty to remedy a material breach of
this Agreement following written notice thereof andthe expiration of the applicable cure
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period without cure or failure to reach agreement hrough good faith efforts to do so by the partiesiad (ii) on or within sixty (60) days
after the sixth (6t) anniversary of this Agreement, either party may povide written notice to the other party to terminate this
Agreement effective at the end of the then currentontract year (i.e., August 31, 2021). If neither grty provides notice to terminate this
Agreement on or within sixty (60) days after the sith (6 1) anniversary as described above, this Agreement lvautomatically renew for
three (3) year terms beginning on the seventh {7) anniversary, unless otherwise terminated pursuanto this Agreement; provided that
on or within sixty (60) days after the second (2¢) year of any such three (3) year renewal term, dier party may provide written notice
to the other party to terminate this Agreement effetive as of August 31 of the then current contracyear. In addition, after the seventh
(7t) anniversary of this Agreement (i.e., during anyhree (3) year renewal Term), either party may electo terminate this Agreement
in accordance with the terms of Section 16D.
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Company, MarineMax and Dealer have executed this Agreement and the parties and thedividual(s)
signing for each party respectively below represerdand warrant that the individual(s) signing this Ageement is(are) duly authorized to
do so.

Sea Ray Division of Brunswick Corporation MarineMax, Inc.
By: By:

Title: Title:

Date: Date:

MarineMax Northeast, LLC

By:
Title:
Date:

MarineMax East, Inc.

By:
Title:
Date:
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SALES AND SERVICE AGREEMENT
TERMS AND CONDITIONS

1. Appointment of DealerSea Ray hereby appoints Dealer as a dealerdaethil sale, display, and servicing of all Seg Raduct(s),
parts and accessories (hereinafter “Product” ondBcts”) as identified in the Defined Terms andjscito Sea Ray’s then current policies anc
programs applicable to all domestic Sea Ray deatdling comparable Products, from the authorizedlBr Location(s) identified in the
attached Exhibit A for each Dealer Region, whicbd®cts shall be purchased only from Sea Ray outlroezed Sea Ray dealer located in the
country in which Dealer is located. Dealer Regiand Dealer Locations are set forth in the Definedis and Exhibit A.

During the Term of this Agreement, Sea Ray shallappoint other dealers to sell Products from aestdacation within the
Territory set forth in the Defined Terms; providédwever, that Sea Ray reserves the right to mdkéyTerritory or appoint other dealers to
sell, display and service Product from dealer liocat within the Territory at any time if Dealer s&s a Dealer Location without prior written
notice to Sea Ray and prior written approval thebgoSea Ray, which approval shall not be unreasignaithheld upon a review by Sea Ray
of Dealer’s abilities to perform the Agreement ghtions and as further provided in Paragraph 2/iéked that similar restrictions apply to all
domestic Sea Ray dealers selling comparable PredDetler shall not sell, advertise, solicit foesar offer for resale Products outside of the
Territory except as otherwise provided by Sea RAggertising Policy or other applicable policy. Delamay advertise in recognized and
established marine publications with cross-teridiatdistribution provided that when Dealer doesisspecifically identifies its authorized
locations as defined in this Agreement and compligls Sea Ray’s Advertising Policy. Sea Ray reseihe right in its sole discretion to
monitor or otherwise enforce its policies and pchaes applicable to all domestic Sea Ray dealatsvdlhdo so on a fair and equitable basis.
There are no third party beneficiary rights to spolicies and procedures or this Agreement or afleater agreements.

Sea Ray reserves the right to make sales or pre@dece in the Territory based upon legitimateifess purposes and to appoint
other dealers or service providers to sell, dispdang/or service products, from any other locatiatside the Territory. Sea Ray may also
display Products within the Territory for generaépday and promotional purposes.

Sea Ray shall have the right to adopt and modificies and programs related to the Products frone tio time in its sole discreti
and in accordance with its own reasonable busiegsnent and it will enforce such policies and peargs on a fair and equitable basis. Deale
agrees to comply with such policies and prograrieviing receipt of notice thereof from Sea Ray liring without limitation, through
inclusion in Sea Ray’s Dealer Manual and/or Program

2. Location: Dealer shall sell at retail, display, and senReeducts only at and from the authorized Dealeration(s) referenced in
Exhibit A, as may be amended from time to time @wipded herein. Dealer Location(s) are both satesservice unless otherwise specified in
writing. Dealer shall concentrate its sales, digplad service efforts within the designated Teryito
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Dealer shall not delete, change, or add to the@abmaler Location(s) without the prior written censof Sea Ray, which consent
shall not be unreasonably withheld, and Sea Rayauagider any relevant factors and consequencearaisf the approval process, including
but not limited to the Dealer’s qualifications aamgilities to perform the Agreement obligations frém proposed Dealer Location, the effect
such a grant would have on the resulting Territmgfiguration and adjacent Sea Ray dealer salef#&aler’s financial capabilities to
successfully operate the business from the Dealeation, and whether the Dealer will have adegpateonnel to manage the business at the
Dealer Location. Dealer shall not, directly or ditly, sell Products for use by or to a purchéseated outside of the country in which the
Dealer is located, and shall not sell Productsttdrd party who Dealer knows or should know wakell the Products outside of the country in
which the Dealer is located. Dealer shall not wetithers for the purpose of resale without therpsiritten consent of Sea Ray. Dealer shall nc
utilize the services of a broker or similar agens¢ll Product unless such broker is an affiliatéd! party of Dealer that is located within the
Territory, consummates the sale of any Producbircert with Dealer and pursuant to Dealer’s stath@aactices, and otherwise complies with
the requirements of this Agreement. Dealer age@sdvide appropriate facilities and to assumedoll complete managerial authority and
responsibility for the service of the Productsrad &#om those Dealer Location(s) specified in thigeement and for the display and retail sale
of the Products at and from each Dealer Locatiaidifonally, Dealer may engage in temporary ofégltsplay and sales activity within the
Territory.

3. Responsibilities of the Parties

3.1 Deale’s Responsibilitie:

Dealer agrees to:

A. Devote its best efforts to aggressively promdtsplay, advertise and sell Products at each Déaleation and in the Territory
and Dealer Region in accordance with the termbisfAgreement and all applicable federal, statelacal laws. Dealer shall display and
utilize at each Dealer Location signs, graphicsiamate elements with Sea Ray’s Identification &&de herein, subject to approval by Sea
Ray, that will positively reflect the Sea Ray imagal promote the retail sale of the Products.

B. Achieve the performance standards set fortlokmis and in the related Exhibit B (collectiveffperformance Standards”) for
each Dealer Region. Sea Ray, in collaboration ®ehler, will establish fair and reasonable Performance &ieds for each of the Dealer
Regions under this Agreement which Performancedaiais shall be established in a manner simildndsed applied to domestic Sea Ray
dealers. Performance Standards shall include mmimaguirements relating to inventory stocking lsygirovision of annual sales forecasts,
submission of orders pursuant to the terms of SseésRhen current buying program, unit retail salesebaon Product registrations for Prod
in each Dealer Region, customer satisfaction (Blgt,Promoter Scores) and Product marketing support
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Sea Ray, in collaboration with Dealer, will establthe Performance Standards taking into considerégctors such as population, sales
potential, market share percentage of the Prochaddsin the Territory as compared to competitivedorcts sold in the Territory, product
availability, economic conditions in the Dealer Retfs) and Territory, competition from other maritealerships in the area, past sales his
historical Product mix and stocking practices, #xgsProduct Inventory, adequacy and ability of fveducts to meet customer demand in the
Territory, number of locations, and any speciatwinstances that may affect the sale of ProdudfseoDealer. The Performance Standards fol
the first Product Model Year of this Agreement ageeed to and identified in Exhibit B. Sea Raycataboration with Dealer, will, in
subsequent years, substitute the updated and ath®ed®rmance Standards for the current Exhibifhig Performance Standards on Exhit
will continue to apply until replaced with updataiold amended Performance Standards.

C. Maintain at each Dealer Location (unless a dalztion only, and then service shall be providednother Dealer Location) a
service department that Dealer agrees to staiff, aad equip to promptly and professionally sesviroducts; and to maintain at each Dealer
Location parts and supplies to properly servicalBets on a timely basis.

D. Perform any and all necessary Product riggingtailation, and inspection services prior to daimto the purchaser as required
by Sea Ray'’s current written policy applicable torekstic Sea Ray dealers and perform post-saleceavtall Products originally sold by
Dealer and brought to Dealer for service. Dealdirlvei required to provide or arrange for warranty aervice work for Product regardless of
the selling dealer of the Product or conditionaes Sea Ray will exercise reasonable efforts éisisdParagraph 3.1D. to address circumsta
in which another dealer has made a sale to amatigetail purchaser who permanently resides wihéaler's Territory where such sale is
contrary to the terms of the selling dealer’'s Saled Service Agreement. Dealer will provide appiatprinstructions to purchasers on how to
obtain warranty and service work from the Dealeral@r will secure all Product inventory against theang and other damage, and maintain
inventory in a like new and unused condition.

E. Furnish each Product purchaser with Sea Rayited warranty on new Products and with informasma training as to the safe
and proper operation and maintenance of the Product

F. Complete and submit Sea Ray’s Product registratard (or applicable electronic form) and In-$@Checklist promptly upon
delivery of the Products to the purchaser and 8Ssia Ray in performing Product defect and re@afigaigns. In the event Dealer fails to re
the card or submit the other documentation to SeadR required, Dealer shall indemnify Sea Rayregainy liability, loss, or damage which
Sea Ray may sustain directly as a result of sutiréa

G. Maintain complete Product sales, warranty amd&erecords, and report to Sea Ray upon reghestame and address of each
Product purchaser to the extent required by appkciaw. Dealer further agrees to provide Sea Ritly access to its applicable books and
records at reasonable times and upon reasonablenptice to verify the accuracy of information mutied for participation and eligibility in
promotions and other programs.
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H. [Intentionally omitted.]

I. Submit to Sea Ray upon request any additiorfatimation or clarifying information regarding Degfefinancial statements and
allow full and open disclosure of financial infortitem concerning Dealer between Sea Ray and angdiabinstitution or company which may
finance or propose to finance all or part of Deal@roduct inventory.

J. Conduct business in a manner that preservesrdrahces the reputation and goodwill of both SeeaRd Dealer for providing
quality products and services, and refrain fronrmgsiny false, misleading or deceptive advertisBupmit truthful and accurate statements,
reports and information to Sea Ray and any findimgitution financing or proposing to finance Dexds Product inventory or any purchaser.

K. Maintain an ability to purchase Product invegttor each Dealer Location via flooring and/or dffancing that is customary to
carry on hand and display Sea Ray’s current Pratiaciels as indicated in the Defined Terms and #@ropgmance standards set forth herein.

L. [Intentionally omitted.]

M. Use its best efforts to maintain and improveresmr other customer satisfaction rating (e.gt,femoter Scores) in compliar
with the Performance Standards for such applicadtiags.

N. Comply with those Dealer obligations that mayirobposed or established by Sea Ray applicabld toalestic Sea Ray Dealers
including but not limited to those included in SRay’s policies and programs and Sea Ray’s Advadgi§iolicy.

O. Maintain a financial condition which is adequittesatisfy and perform its obligations under thggeement.

P. Provide prior written notice to Sea Ray if Dealesires to make any material change in Dealaranting of its Product
inventory or business and give Sea Ray sufficiemt to discuss and review with Dealer the effedhefproposed change.

Q. Notify Sea Ray of the addition or deletion of @ealer Location(s) which notification Dealer aggeshall not be deemed a
consent by Sea Ray to such a proposed change.

R. Provide Sea Ray with prior notice of any progbappointment of sub-dealers. All appointmentsutharized sub-dealers are
subject to prior written approval by Sea Ray (“Awiked Sub-dealers”). Dealer will set its own regafice to Authorized Sub-dealers and
assume all risk of non-payment by the Authorizet-8ealers. The Authorized Sub-dealers are notgzarti any agreement between Sea Ray
and Dealer and Dealer will ensure that the AutleatiBub-dealers do not take any actions that vielagepolicies and programs of Sea Ray or
are inconsistent with the terms of this AgreemBialer is responsible for any losses incurred ey gy as a result of Authorized
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Sub-dealer’s performance including, but withoutifation, Authorized Sub-dealer’s failure to pay &y for any Product or to pay any
financial institution that finances Products pusdtiby the Authorized Sub-dealers. Dealer willexder into any agreement with Authorized
Sub-dealers that is inconsistent with the termscamdiitions of this Agreement.

S. Notify Sea Ray in writing of the applicable bdeand boat type at least thirty (30) days beforal@ebegins to sell, display or
advertise a new boat brand.

3.2 Company Responsibilitie:

Company Agrees to:

A. Sell Products to Dealer in accordance with Comyfsathen-current terms and conditions of sale igpple to domestic
Sea Ray dealers, limited warranties, and the pigtpublished from time to time by Company, lesy applicable discounts allowed by
Company'’s programs applicable to Dealer and carsistith the provisions of Section 5 hereof. Conypsimall have the right to modify its
terms and conditions of sale, limited warrantiggelists and programs from time to time in itéesgiscretion and in compliance with the te
of this Agreement; provided, however, that Compaillyprovide reasonable prior written notice to Dexaafter the beginning of the Model
Year of such modifications and that changes irithiéed warranty and pricing will apply only to fute retail purchases. Company will make
available its current policies and programs intetedc format or in a manual or other format Compdrems appropriate. Dealer should
contact Company for a copy of the policies and mot if it does not have access to or did not vecaicopy.

B. Provide to Dealer reasonable quantities of ogtalspecification sheets, and other advertisiregchandising or
promotional material to assist Dealer in the séleroducts as Company deems appropriate.

C. Make available to Dealer in electronic formabtrerwise reasonable quantities of parts booksanty claim forms,
order forms or procedures, maintenance and semaaials and other materials of a technical natsi@ampany deems appropriate.

D. Furnish Dealer with written instructions andpalicies for the use of trademarks, trade namegmdand other trade
designations of Company that correspond to theuwitsdas Company deems appropriate.

E. Furnish a Limited Warranty for the Products anovide warranty support and process warranty daimaccordance wit
Company'’s warranty policy, which may be modifiedrir time to time by Company in its sole discreti@ompany shall notify Dealer of
changes to Company’s warranty policy and make abkilcurrent versions of its warranty policy to Rea

F. Promote sales of the Products via the Intemetodher marine related publications or by otheamseas Company deems
appropriate.
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G. Ship parts related to the Products in accordaiitteCompany’s policy on shipping parts.
H. Accept payment for Product and credit Dealecsoaint within a reasonable time.

I. Furnish detailed invoices upon shipment andquici statements thereafter, provide prompt comnatiuio regarding
account status upon request, and administer geliiies in a non-discriminatory manner.

J. Identify Dealer’s name and address in listinguthorized dealers on Company’s website dealatdo¢if available).
Company reserves the right to create, update amlifyr&uch a website locator from time to time s $ble discretion.

K. Provide reasonable technical assistance anceguves for handling of technical questions of Degdiated to the
Products.

L. Maintain communication channels in order to reedealer feedback from time to time.

M. Provide reasonable consultative assistance tddbéor operational, sales and customer servippati as Company
deems appropriate.

N. Provide reasonable supportive informational maltefor new models of Products as Company degipsoariate.

O. Provide owner’s manual for Products and sintilaterials for other components or accessoriesatigainade available to
Company.

P. Supply Dealer with proper quantities of Prodrarisistent with Sea Ray’s quality standards tonallealer to meet the
Performance Standards set forth in Section 3.1.B.

Q. Provide Dealer with two (2) seats on Sea Ragigept review teams to consult with Sea Ray reggrttie Products and,
at least annually, conduct a portfolio product eewivith appropriate Dealer managers.

4. Orders Dealer agrees to submit orders to Sea Ray inrmeraand format prescribed by Sea Ray, applicabédl domestic Sea Ray
dealers which orders shall be subject to Sea Rhgls current terms and conditions of sale which traynodified by Sea Ray at any time for
all domestic dealers as deemed reasonably necessgrprder which does not comply with Sea Rayisigand conditions need not be filled
by Sea Ray provided, however, that Sea Ray shadhptly notify Dealer of such noncompliance. Any giddal or different terms submitted
Dealer will be deemed rejected and will also balhand of no effect. Dealer cancellation of ordeilslve subject to Sea Ray’s then current
cancellation policy applicable to all domestic ey dealers. All orders submitted by Dealer argesiitto acceptance by Sea Ray.
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5. Prices The Products sold to the Dealer by Sea Ray bleadin the basis of price lists published by SeafRag time to time for its
domestic dealers, less any applicable discourdsiall by Sea Rag’programs. Sea Ray shall have the right to reékiserice lists or applicak
discounts or programs applicable to all of its dstizedealers at any time and agrees to promptlyynbealer of any such change. The Produc
prices charged to Dealer will be the lowest prigentcharged to other domestic dealers subject ddeDmeeting all the requirements and
conditions of Sea Ray'’s applicable programs, andiged that Sea Ray may in good faith, charge tgasees to other dealers to meet existing
competitive circumstances, for unusual and limdacdation non-ordinary business circumstances, mlirfated duration promotional programs.
Sea Ray shall have no obligation to reimburse Ddateany loss which Dealer may sustain by readaany change in price, program, or
discount for which notice was provided in accordaherewith. Terms of payment will be as specifi@af time to time by Sea Ray. Dealer
pay Sea Ray the lesser of 1.5% late charges pethmoothe maximum permitted by applicable law og past due invoice except as to any
specific amount of an invoice that is disputed @odgj faith by the Dealer. Sea Ray may refuse shipfoemny credit reason, including Dealer’s
failure to pay for a prior shipment or to pay amahcial institution who finances Dealer’s purchgs® for Dealer’s failure to maintain its
Product inventory in accordance with the termshif Agreement. Sea Ray shall immediately notify IBed Sea Ray refuses shipment to
Dealer so that Dealer has a reasonable opportimniyre any issue. Dealer will reimburse Sea Rapllaeasonable and necessary costs in
collecting past due accounts, including attornegfand court costs. Dealer hereby grants to Seafh$ea Ray hereby retains a security
interest in all Products sold to Dealer and allcpeals arising out of the sale of the Products sath Products are paid for in full. Dealer ag
to sign, file, authenticate, and authorize theisignfiling and authenticating by Sea Ray of sudarficing statements and other documents an
do such other acts, as Sea Ray may request tdigistabyd maintain a valid and protected securitgrigst in the Products.

6. Shipments All shipments of Products shall be made FOB tha Ray factory designated by Sea Ray, and titli shss to Dealer at
the time the Products or parts are tendered tdebeynated carrier or the Dealer or Dealer’s repriggive at the Sea Ray factory. Dealer shall
pay all applicable shipping, transportation, dely&nd handling charges for Products ordered elilEr fails to accept delivery of any Prodt
ordered, other than material non-conforming Prasgltitat must be returned to Sea Ray for repair,ddeshlall reimburse Sea Ray for any costs
incurred, including returning such Products to Rag. If Sea Ray ships Products not ordered by Delakaler shall have the right to refuse
delivery, in which event Sea Ray shall pay all sasturred in returning same to Sea Ray. Shiprmsdrdh be subject to Sea Ray’'s production
schedule and availability of materials or transgiioh equipment. No liability shall be sustained3sa Ray by reason of its not filling any ol
due to circumstances beyond its reasonable cosundl as, but not limited to, labor disputes, nadtisasters, accidents to machinery, acts of
God, acts of or threatened acts of war or terrgrisaterial shortages, regulations, demands for geadeeding Sea Ray’s available supply or
any other cause beyond Sea Ray’s control. In tbatesf any delay in delivery, failure to fill ordeor other default or damage caused by any «
the foregoing, Sea Ray may, at its option and withiability, cancel all or any portion of the apalble orders to the extent affected by the
event of force majeure and/or extend any date wgooh performance is due hereinunder.
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7. Risk of Loss Risk of loss for Products ordered by Dealer spafls to Dealer at the time the Products or pegtteadered to the
designated carrier or the Dealer or Deale€presentative at the Sea Ray factory. Sea Ransiuctions to insure Products on behalf of Be
from the shipping point to the final delivery poimless otherwise agreed by the parties in writepler will be the loss payee on any claim.
Sea Ray will assist Dealer in the processing afidatmn of any claims against the carrier conteddby Sea Ray. Notwithstanding the abov
Dealer or Dealer’s representative takes posses$iBroducts at the Sea Ray factory, Dealer assuesg®nsibility to insure the Products upon
tender of the Products to Dealer or Dealer’s reprigive at the Sea Ray factory.

8. Payment Claims: All sales of Products to Dealer shall be paidifoadvance by Dealer, unless otherwise agreeddsst\8ea Ray and
Dealer in writing. All claims for shortage or danesgor unacceptable Product shall be made pursu&wsa Ray’s then current policy on
shipment damage and claims procedures applicalal $za Ray domestic dealers. The failure of Dealgive such notification as set forth in
Sea Ray'’s then current shipment damage and claiocggures policy shall constitute a waiver of anghsclaim. Dealer shall cause to be paid
or shall make reimbursement to Sea Ray in fulbfoy and all taxes, duties, or other charges impbgddderal, state, municipal, or other
governmental authority upon Dealer’s purchase uttderAgreement.

9. Product Modification Sea Ray shall have the right to discontinue #he sf Products or to modify the design, speciiareg and
components of Products at any time provided, howekiat Sea Ray shall notify Dealer, prior to shimiy of any major changes with respec
Products previously ordered by Dealer but not ydivdred, in which event Dealer shall have thetrighterminate such order within five (5)
business days after such notification by providimgdten notice to Sea Ray. The failure to providelstimely written notification shall be
deemed acceptance by Dealer of such changes.

10. Warranties and Limitation of Warranties andbliligy :

10.1 Warranties: Dealer agrees tt

A. Sell Products only on the basis of Sea Ray’'diphéd applicable limited warranty and make no otharranty or representations
concerning the limited warranty, express or impligither verbally or in writing.

B. Display at each Dealer Location that Productramty information required by applicable law anchfsh and make known to the
first-use purchaser at the time of delivery therappate operations and maintenance manual proigiesea Ray, instructional information for
the use and operation of the Product consistett tvé operations and maintenance manual, the Proditallation instructions, if any, togett
with Sea Ray’s written limited warranty, includiaf disclaimers and limitations thereto.

11



NOTE: PORTIONS OF THIS EXHIBIT INDICATED BY[****]” ARE SUBJECT TO A CONFIDENTIAL TREATMENT REQUEST, AN
HAVE BEEN OMITTED FROM THIS EXHIBIT. COMPLETE, UNRBACTED COPIES OF THIS EXHIBIT HAVE BEEN FILED WITH
THE SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION AS PART ORHIS COMPANY’S CONFIDENTIAL TREATMENT REQUEST.

C. Subject to the terms of the applicable limiteatranty, expressly inform the purchaser in writihgt no Sea Ray warranty appl
if the Product is “used” unless Sea Ray expresdllyaizes such warranty in writing or the existlmance of the warranty is transferable and
is transferred. No Product warranty shall appthéd design or material of the Product is substiytiaodified without the express authorizat
of Sea Ray in writing.

D. Provide timely warranty service on all Produetgented to Dealer by purchasers in accordanceSei#hRay’s then current
warranty service program applicable to all domeSta Ray dealers selling comparable Products. Dagitees to make all claims for
reimbursement under Sea Ray’s warranty servicerpno@n the manner reasonably prescribed by Sea$yRay may revise its warranty
service program from time to time, providing Dealéth written notification of all revisions, anddke revisions will supersede all previous
programs.

E. To verify the accuracy of the warranty claimbmitted to Sea Ray by Dealer and the service peavtiy Dealer with regard to
such warranty claims, provide Sea Ray with acaeéts aaipplicable books and records, and providé suiditional documentation which Sea
Ray may reasonably request. In the event Sea Rdy &rrors in the aggregate greater than 5% oéwead claims submitted by Dealer Loca
and paid by Sea Ray, Sea Ray may calculate themeage rate of error; and using that percentageofagrror, extrapolate the amount owed tc
Sea Ray for up to three (3) prior years of all pdadms made by Sea Ray to Dealer at that Dealeatian. Within thirty (30) days of such
notice of such amount, Dealer shall either payetiteapolated amount to Sea Ray or pay the cosfuf audit by Sea Ray or Sea Ray’s
designee or at Dealsrbption and expense, a third party auditor redslgracceptable to Sea Ray and Dealer and pay t&kSgdhat amount,
any, found to be owing to Sea Ray as a result cif swdit. Sea Ray agrees to honor all legitimateamsy claims on Products when made by
purchaser through Dealer in the manner reasonabgcpbed by Sea Ray. Sea Ray shall respond poager and legitimate warranty claims
submitted by Dealer within the time period desatlibethe then current warranty policy applicableltonestic Sea Ray dealers. Sea Ray agre
to pay or credit all accepted and undisputed claiftisin thirty (30) days after receipt of all reqed documentation.

10.2_Limitation of Warranties and Liability.

EXCEPT AS SPECIFICALLY PROVIDED IN SEA RAY’S PUBLISED APPLICABLE LIMITED WARRANTY, SEA RAY MAKES
NO REPRESENTATIONS OR WARRANTIES, EXPRESS OR IMPDIEWITH RESPECT TO PRODUCTS, INCLUDING WITHOU
LIMITATION THE IMPLIED WARRANTIES OF MERCHANTABILITY AND FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE. IN NO
EVENT SHALL EITHER PARTY BE LIABLE TO THE OTHER PARY FOR, NOR SHALL THE MEASURE OF DAMAGES INCLUDE,
ANY AMOUNTS FOR LOST PROFITS, LOST SALES, OR INDIRH, SPECIAL, INCIDENTAL OR CONSEQUENTIAL DAMAGES
FOR ANY REASON OR UPON ANY CAUSE OF ACTION, WHETHEROUNDING IN TORT, CONTRACT OR ANY OTHER LEGAL
THEORY.
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11. Indemnification

A. In order to obtain preferred boat show spaatisttounted rates for Dealers, Sea Ray may contiiitiand agree to indemnify
boat show sponsors and other related parties. Aowly, Dealer shall defend, indemnify and holdrhbass Sea Ray, and any boat show
sponsor which Sea Ray has agreed to indemnify, &oynand all claims, causes of action, and suitduding claims of negligence arising
either directly or indirectly out of Dealer’s uskbmat show space originally obtained by Sea Ray.

B. Sea Ray agrees to indemnify and hold harmlesdeDéor losses, cost and expense to the extehtlsases, cost or expense re
from any third party claim related to (1) Sea Rayégligent acts or omissions involving the origofesign or manufacture of any Product at
time it left Sea Ray’s possession or control, errépair of any Product performed by Sea Ray, oai(§ breach of this Agreement by Sea Ray
Sea Ray, at its expense and through counsel oivitschoosing, may defend any litigation that mageaout of any claims covered hereby, anc
Dealer agrees to cooperate at its own expenserandlp Sea Ray with any available information ay fp@ reasonably necessary to such
defense. In the event Sea Ray elects not to defienditigation that may arise out of any claims e®d hereby, Sea Ray will be responsible fo
Dealer’s reasonable attorney fees on a pro-rateid bathe extent such losses are subject to indieation pursuant to this Agreement.

C. Dealer agrees to indemnify and hold harmlessR2gafor losses, cost and expense to the extehtlegses, cost or expense re
from any third party claim related to (1) Dealemgligent acts or omissions involving Dealer’s ioyer application, use or repair of the
Products, (2) statements or representations notfgdly authorized by Sea Ray, including warrastinconsistent with Sea Ray’s standard
limited warranty, and the installation of any aftearket components or any other modification aeralion to the Product, or (3) any breach of
this Agreement by Dealer. Dealer, at its expensktlarough counsel of its own choosing, may defamdligation that may arise out of any
claims covered hereby, and Sea Ray agrees to @ieprits own expense and provide Dealer withaamylable information as may be
reasonably necessary to such defense. In the Beaér elects not to defend any litigation that ragge out of any claims covered hereby,
Dealer will be responsible for Sea Ray'’s reasonatiteney fees on a pro-rated basis to the exteft bsses are subject to indemnification
pursuant to this Agreement.

D. The provisions in this Paragraph 11 regardimpinnification do not apply to claims by third pastin which there has been a
judicial determination that the indemnifying padges not have liability to the third party. Theysions in this Paragraph 11 shall survive
expiration or termination of this Agreement.

12. Repossession or Repurchase of Product by SealReler shall be liable to and reimburse Sea Ragify and all losses or
deficiencies on the sale or disposition of any Bobghurchased by Dealer pursuant to this Agreeméith is repossessed or repurchased by
Sea Ray for any reason whatsoever, except as cplait in Paragraph 16G. Dealer shall also bedifdil any and all discounts, volume
rebates, or other sales incentives paid to Dealétroduct repurchased, and all reasonable attasiiegs, court costs, and expenses incurred i
connection with such repossession or repurchasgieDagrees to provide Sea Ray, upon request, measior other adequate security to cove
any repurchase or financial obligations that SeamRay assume in connection with Dealer’s floorimdimancing.
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13. Trademarks and Service MarkBealer acknowledges that Sea Ray or its affdiatempanies are the exclusive owners of various
trademarks, service marks, trade designationsslagd trade dress (collectively “Identification”high Sea Ray uses in connection with
Products and its business. Dealer is authorizedéddentification only in the manner prescribedSeya Ray, only in connection with the
promotion and sale of Products, and only untilekgiration or termination of this Agreement. Deakall not register or assist any other party
to register any domain name that contains or gjogsgembles any Company Identification withouttfobtaining the prior written consent of
Company. Dealer shall not use Identification in anguthorized manner or in any manner that adwersélects upon the reputation of Sea
or in relation to any other matter that is a breeficthis Agreement. Dealer shall not use Identifaraor advertise outside of the Territory to the
extent prohibited by the terms of this Agreemerithaut Sea Ray’s express written consent and sbaliply with Sea Ray’s Advertising
Policy. Authorization shall not be interpreted d&anse for use of Identification. Dealer acquinesproprietary rights with respect to
Identification, and this authorization shall terati@ simultaneously with the termination or expoatof this Agreement. In the event of
expiration or termination of this Agreement, Dealkall immediately discontinue use of Identificatio any way whatsoever and shall
thereafter not use, either directly or indirectiyy Identification or any confusingly similar Iddigation in a manner likely to confuse, mislead,
or deceive the public. Dealer may continue to deafification for a reasonable period of time ia #vent Sea Ray does not repurchase Deale
Product inventory as long as such ldentificatioa resnains subject to the terms of this Agreemesd, Bay’s Advertising Policy or any other
written instructions provided by Sea Ray to Dedlsraler agrees that any unauthorized use or cardinge of Identification after the period of
time allowed by this Paragraph 13 shall constituparable harm entitling Sea Ray to seek equateddief, including injunction and specific
performance, without the necessity of posting bongroving actual damages, as a remedy for any stedch. Such remedies shall not be
deemed to be the exclusive remedies for such zbt®aDealer but shall be in addition to all othemedies available at law or equity to Sea
Ray.

14. [Intentionally omitted.]

15. No Agency Createdlt is understood and agreed that Dealer is rartshall it at any time represent itself to be, dlgent, employee,
representative, partner, or franchisee of Sea Bagrfy purpose. Neither party shall enter into @mnytract or commitment in the name of or on
behalf of the other party. Sea Ray has no fiduailty to Dealer pursuant to this Agreement or glationship between the parties. Dealer is
not required to pay, and shall not pay, to Sead&gyfee for the right to purchase the Productslmeravise do business with Sea Ray.

16. Term of AgreementTermination:

A. The term of this Agreement shall be as set fortthe Defined Terms (the “ Term”) subject howet@the provisions set forth in
this Paragraph 16 and in Paragraph 18.
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B. Subject to the provisions of Section 16F bel8@a Ray may terminate this Agreement upon the gjiofrat least sixty (60) days
prior written notice to Dealer if: (1) Dealer dagst have an ability to purchase Products via flagor self-financingor (2) Dealer fails to me
its financial obligations as they become due thegiSea Ray or lender(s) financing Products. SgasRall work in good faith with Dealer to
try to resolve any differences between them poagiving such 60-day notice of termination.

C. This Agreement may be terminated at any timébymutual consent of the parties.

D. Subject to the provisions of Section 16F beleither party may elect to not extend the Term of Agreement for another
twelve (12) month period following expiration ofetleurrent twelve (12) month period of the Term escdibed in the Defined Terms in the
event of the material breach or default of anyhefmnaterial obligations, Performance Standarddédéised in Section 3.1B and Exhibit B),
covenants, representations, warranties, or dutipesed herein or in Sea Ray’s policies or prograppdicable to domestic Sea Ray dealers by
either party. In such event, the non-breachingypaift provide written notice to the breaching paand an opportunity to cure or remedy such
breach. The parties shall work together in goothft@ resolve any issues but the additional twéh&) month extension shall not be added 1
such time that the breach is remedied to the reddemyood faith satisfaction of the parties. Athstime as the parties agree that the concerns
have been remedied, the additional twelve (12) mertension shall be added to the end of the egjiSterm.

In addition, after the seventh {7 anniversary of this Agreement (i.e., during amee (3) year renewal Term), either party may dlect
terminate this Agreement upon the giving of attiéagnty four (24) months prior written notice teetother party in the event of the material
breach or default of any of the material obligasioRerformance Standards (as defined in Sectidhatl Exhibit B), covenants,
representations, warranties, or duties imposedreran Sea Ray policies or programs applicable to domestic Smadalers by either par
which breach is not cured during such notice pegwdvided, however, that if such a breach or defauDealer only pertains to one Dealer
Region, Sea Ray shall only have the right purstatitis provision to terminate this Agreement athtt particular Dealer Region. The parties
shall work together in good faith to resolve arguiss.

Notwithstanding the above, so long as De¢'s failure to meet the Performance Standards icaosed by Sea Ray failing to have Product
available for purchase by Dealer, Sea Ray shak liae right to terminate this Agreement as to fhigieable Dealer Region(s) (i) if Dealer is
failing to meet the Performance Standards in a@dégion and begins selling, displaying, or adsig products that are competitive with
Products (other than products of another BrunsWickporation brand or new products which MarineMelss displays or advertises for salt

of the date of this Agreement) and does not ceréaiture to meet the Performance Standards withiaty (90) days after written notice of the
same from Sea Ray, or (ii) if Dealer is meetingReeformance Standards in a Dealer Region, butdtets failing to meet the Performance
Standards after beginning selling, displaying, awreatising products that are competitive with tlmedRicts (other than products of another
Brunswick Corporation brand or new products whichrieMax sells, displays or advertises for salefahe date of this Agreement) and does
not cure its failure to meet the Performance Statgdaithin six (6) months after written notice betsame from Sea Ray.
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E. Notwithstanding subparagraph D above or anythirtgis Agreement to the contrary, this Agreentaay be terminated by a
party upon sixty (60) days prior written noticethe other party if any of the following occur withgard to the other party: (1) the other party
ceases to exist; (2) the other party becomes igabbr takes or fails to take any action which titutes an admission of inability to pay debts
as they mature; (3) the other party makes a genssidnment for the benefit of creditors to an agethorized to liquidate any substantial
amount of assets; (4) the other party becomesjacudf an “order for relief” within the meaning thife United States Bankruptcy Code; (5) the
other party becomes the subject of a receiversbgrganization, liquidation or any similar procegglior (6) the other party makes a fraudulen
misrepresentation that is material to this Agreemehis Agreement may be terminated upon sixty (E8)s prior written notice by Sea Ray
upon the occurrence of: (1a) a prohibited assigniemsfer, delegation or subcontracting withcarisent as described in Paragraph 18A;
(2b) the commission by Dealer of an act of fraudruBea Ray; (3c) the commission by Dealer (or dntg @fficers) of a felony or other act of
fraud which is materially detrimental to Sea Ragputation or business or which materially impéies Dealer’s ability to perform the duties
under this Agreement; or (4d) Dealer fails to pay Eender financing Products after the sale of Betglby Dealer (out of trust).

F. For the purpose of the first paragraph of Secti@D, if a breach or default by Dealer pertainy ém one Dealer Region, Sea F
shall have the right to deny the additional extemgieriod for that particular Dealer Region onlyillmiemedied as described in Section D. For
the purpose of Section 16B or E, if Dealer breadretefaults as described in such provisions, SsarRay, in its own discretion, elect eithe
terminate the entire Agreement (as to all Dealegites) or terminate only as to particular DealegiBe subject to the Agreement.
Notwithstanding the foregoing, in the event of @gsible termination pursuant to Section 16B aa party seeking to terminate shall fi
provide written notice to the other party statihg potential grounds therefore and both partieb wloak together in good faith for a period of
no less than sixty (60) days to resolve any corecbatween the parties.

G . [****]

H. In the event of termination of this Agreemeribpto its expiration date, provided the terminatie not for fraud, bad faith, or
insolvency of Dealer, Sea Ray will neverthelesgiooe to sell to Dealer warranty parts and accéssdor Products on a cash on delivery b
for a period not to exceed twelve (12) months theotthat Dealer may continue to provide warrantyise on Products which have outstanc
warranties subject to Dealer’'s compliance withtérens and conditions of Sea Ray’s warranty andspgardgram applicable to all domestic Sea
Ray dealers. The performance of any warranty wéige &ermination or expiration of this Agreemenaimot be construed as a continuation of
this Agreement, the commencement of a new agreemeatwaiver of the termination.

I. Any period of time described in the Agreemerdlsbhe modified to include such different periodtiofie that may be required by
applicable law.
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J. In the event of expiration or the terminatiorito$ Agreement by either party, Sea Ray is relievem any obligation to make a
further Product shipments under this Agreement,raag cancel all of Dealer’s unshipped orders fadBcts, irrespective of previous
acceptance by Sea Ray, except those which aregptovigea Ray’'s reasonable satisfaction to have theesubject of a binding customer order
to Dealer prior to the receipt of any notice ohtaration or expiration. The acceptance of ordesmfDealer for the continuous sale of Prodi
to Dealer or any other act after expiration or eation of this Agreement shall not be construed aentinuation of this Agreement, the
commencement of a new agreement, or a waiver detin@nation. Upon the expiration or terminatiornttuf Agreement, all obligations owed
by Dealer to Sea Ray shall become immediately ddepayable on the effective date of the expiratiotermination, whether otherwise then
due or not (without presentment, demand, protesbtice of any kind, all of which are waived by D) and Sea Ray may offset or deduct
from any and all sums owed to Dealer any and atissawed by Dealer to Sea Ray, or any parent,&Hilor subsidiary of Sea Ray, returnin
Dealer the excess, if any.

17. Governing Law This Agreement shall be governed, interpreteda@mstrued according to the laws of the State oh€éssee, U.S.A.,
without regard to applicable conflicts of law.

18. Assignability:

A. This appointment and Agreement is made and edtieto with the distinct understanding that ip&gsonal with Dealer, and is
not, whether by operation of law, change in contrabtherwise, assignable or in any part delegabteansferable unless the express written
consent of Sea Ray is obtained; provided, howdkiat,Dealer may assign the appointment and thieément to a subsidiary or affiliate
without consent. An assignment by Dealer to anslidry or affiliate shall not relieve Dealer fraany obligation or responsibility provided
for under the terms of this Agreement. Unless fifgbroved by Sea Ray in writing, any purportedgassient, transfer, delegation or
subcontracting of Dealer’s rights and obligationder this Agreement by it (other than to a subsydoa affiliate) may immediately render this
Agreement terminated in Sea Ray'’s sole discretion.

B. Sea Ray may not assign this Agreement withaaiptiior written consent of Dealer, except that mchsconsent is necessary with
respect to assignment of this Agreement to anyR&geowned subsidiary or affiliate. An assignmenSaa Ray to any owned subsidiary or
affiliate shall not relieve Sea Ray from any ohbliga or responsibility provided for under the teraighis Agreement. Upon any sale of the
business or the assets of Sea Ray to a nonaffilthted party, and where Dealer does not agrebd@ssignment, this Agreement shall be
terminated and Sea Ray shall be released fromuathef obligations and liabilities to supply Prothuto Dealer under this Agreement provi
however that the provisions of Sections 11 andritbadl other provisions that are intended to sietarmination either expressly or impliedly
shall do so in accordance with their terms.

19. Notices, Communications

A. Any written notice given pursuant to this Agremmshall be either hand delivered (by couriertbeovise), or mailed, postage
prepaid, by Registered or Certified Malil, return
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receipt requested, to the party identified belowhatrespective address listed below. Notice msgy laé given by fax, e-mail or other electronic
method; however, if notice is provided pursuarPéwagraph 16, a copy must also be mailed in thenaradescribed herein. Such notice shall
be deemed to be given upon first receipt. A charigeldress may be given by such notice.

To Sea Ray To Dealer:;

William H. McGill, Jr.

Presiden
Sea Ray Boat MarineMax, Inc.
Attention: Presider
800 South Gay Street, Suite 12 2600 McCormick Drive
Knoxville, TN 37929 Suite 20C

Clearwater, Florida 337&
With a copy to With a copy to
Brunswick Corporation Law Departme MarineMax, Inc.
Attention: General Couns Attention: General Couns
1 N. Field Cour Suite 20C
Lake Forest, Il 2600 McCormick Drive
Tel: (847)73-4700 Clearwater, FL 3375
Fax: (847) 73-4433 Tel: (727) 531 170

Fax:(727) 45(-1162

B. Dealer hereby grants permission and consentaoR&y and to those entities who are authorizeéddayRay to send or transmit
communications (including but not limited to facdis, wireless communications, and e-mails) to Beahd Dealer’s officers, directors,
employees, subsidiaries and affiliates, and thaimitted successors and assigns. Such communisaiemot limited in content and may
include advertisements, and Dealer understand$yhatoviding such consent it may incur costs tratrelated to the receipt of such
communications. Dealer further agrees that suchhemications may be sent to any telephone numbelectronic media address supplied by
Dealer for each Dealer Location.

20. Entire AgreementNon-Waiver: This Agreement, including any attached addendatains the entire agreement between the partie
with respect to the matters set forth herein ang nut be amended or modified except by a writtestribment signed by Sea Ray and Dealer
that expressly states that the writing constitaleemendment or modification to this Agreementyjaied that, subject to the provisions of this
Agreement, Sea Ray may in its sole discretion amm time to time make changes in accordance wstbwtn reasonable business judgment to
the policies and programs applicable to all doreeStia Ray dealers upon the giving of notice to &esd described herein. This Agreement
terminates and replaces all prior agreements metiieelen the parties regarding the subject mattdri®fAgreement and there are no other
agreements regarding the matters herein provided th
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each party shall remain obligated to the otheafor monies owed under such prior agreements bettheguarties; and except for payments to
be made to Dealer in the ordinary course of busioeglaims of third parties, there are no otheni@s claims, or actions which may give rise
to or result in any compensation or monies beingaw Dealer by Sea Ray. Failure on the part off@saor Dealer to enforce any term of 1
Agreement shall not constitute a waiver thereof.

21. Severability- Existing Claims Whenever possible, each paragraph of this Agreestall be interpreted in such manner as to be
effective and valid under applicable law, but ifgortion of this Agreement is deemed invalid oenforceable, the remaining sections shall
still be enforceable unless removal of that porsormaterially alters the risks and benefits thegiparty that enforcement would be
substantially unfair. In such a case, the partigse&ato immediately negotiate a substitute claonsedtore each party as closely as possible to
the risks and benefits originally assumed. Deaprasents to Sea Ray that it is not aware of aigns| causes of action, or disputes that it ha:
or may assert against Sea Ray that arise outldar accrued prior to the effective date of thisekgnent. Dealer further represents to Sea R
that it has not breached or otherwise violatedtany or condition of any previous agreement wita Bay.

22. Disputes All disputes, controversies or claims connectétth varising out of, or relating to this Agreememnit,any modification,
extension or renewal thereof, or to any causestarathat result from such relationship, shallsbéject exclusively to the remedy of
arbitration described herein, including but notited to sums due under this Agreement, the intéapom, performance or nonperformance of
this Agreement, and claim for damages or rescissidmeach or default of this Agreement, the cosatiermination or nonrenewal of this
Agreement (such as a dispute regarding the causldity or circumstances of the termination, naeesion, or nonrenewal), and trade
regulations or antitrust claims, whether such amrdrsies or claims are in law or equity or incletlEms based upon contract, statute, tort or
otherwise. All controversies shall be conducteddnordance with the American Arbitration Associat@ommercial Arbitration Rules.

The arbitration shall be governed by the UnitedeStarbitration Act, 9 U.S.C. § 1-16, as amended, jadgment upon the award
rendered by the arbitrator may be entered by anyt ¢t@ving jurisdiction thereof. The place of thibiation shall be at Chicago, lllinois.
Dealer consents to personal jurisdiction of theefatland state courts located in the State ofoilfiior the purpose of enforcing this provision
or confirming any arbitration award. No party stz entitled to receive an award of damages insxotactual damages and in no event sha
the parties receive an award of punitive, spedialbmsequential damages, or prejudgment interest.

Except for claims based on sums owing to Sea Ralraducts purchased by Dealer, or sums owing addddor the
reimbursement of funds it paid for Products thaten@eviously returned to Sea Ray or claims basedaragraph 11 hereof, all arbitration
claims and proceedings must be instituted withia @) year after the dispute arises, and the failoiinstitute arbitration proceedings within
such period shall constitute an absolute ban tanstdution of any proceedings and a waiver anidigeishment of all such claims.

This paragraph shall survive the expiration or feation of the Agreement.
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23. [intentionally omitted]

24. Reservation of RightsSea Ray grants to Dealer only those rights esprestated in this Agreement. Except to the exoénérwise
expressly provided in this Agreement, Sea Raynstall rights. This Agreement does not concernathgr brands or products, except the Sea
Ray Products identified in the Defined Terms. Sag &nd/or its affiliates reserve the right for &ay's affiliates to own, acquire, manage, !
display or service other products and other bramasy area (including the Territory) including #eothat may compete with Products. Sea
reserves the right to receive incentives, rebatesdleer payments from third-party suppliers, indéhgdwithout limitation related to purchases by
or through Dealer from such third party suppliers.

25. Confidentiality. Each party shall maintain as confidential allgsretary business information, trade secrets anahaterials
containing confidential business information pra@ddo such party by the other party, including ttlimited to customers, vendors, price
lists, wholesale prices, programs, rebates, digspiumventions, concepts, designs, structures, dtasy processes, financial information,
employees, strategic plans, acquisition planstoerdbusiness affairs of the disclosing party. Deadknowledges that Sea Ray is an affiliate of
Brunswick Corporation, and accordingly subsidigradfiliates and other divisions of Brunswick Coration may be given access or have
access to confidential business information reckimeconnection with this Agreement, and such disaie does not constitute a breach of this
paragraph. Each party, on behalf of its directofficers, employees and agents to whom such infaamand materials are disclosed, agree
that it shall keep such information and materiaisfitlential both during and after the Term of thigreement for a period of three (3) years
provided that if any such information or materghitrade secret, then the obligations under thiag?aph shall survive the termination of this
Agreement for the longer of five (5) years or teredth of time such information remains a tradeetecr

These obligations of confidentiality do not apmyany information which (1) was known to the reaggvparty prior to receipt from
the disclosing party; (2) is independently devetbpg the receiving party, provided that the burdéproof of such independent development
shall be on the receiving party; (3) is or becomaslicly known without the fault of the receivingny; (4) is or becomes rightfully available
the receiving party without confidential restrictirom a source not bound by a confidentiality gation to the disclosing party; (5) is required
by law, rule or regulation to be disclosed; (6)dquired to be disclosed pursuant to court or gowent action; provided, the disclosing party is
given reasonable prior notice of such disclosuré€6pis disclosed pursuant to written agreemerthefparties.

The terms of this paragraph are in addition to, iamb way a limitation of, the terms of any cowidiality or
non-disclosure agreement (or any confidentialigvision in any other agreement) between or invgh\ea Ray (or its affiliates) and Dealer.

26. MiscellaneousIn case of any dispute relating to the rights datles imposed by this Agreement, both partiesapiénly discuss and
make reasonable efforts at amicable resolutionepixas expressly described to the contrary inAQjigement, the rights and remedies of eact
party are not
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exclusive. Unless otherwise provided, where eiffagty has a right to make a determination or pucsuet pursue a particular course of ac
under the terms of this Agreement, such as, fomgka granting consent or approval, such determinatand decisions shall be made by such
party in its sole discretion. As defined hereinlomestic Sea Ray dealer shall be an authorizedR8gaealer whose territory is located solely

within the continental Unites States.

27. Counterparts and Signaturéehis Agreement may be executed in counterpaatsh ef which shall be deemed an original and all of
which, taken together, shall constitute on andstirae Agreement. Any signature delivered by faxtieioelectronic transmission shall be

deemed to be an original signature.

28. GuaranteeAs a condition for Sea Ray’s entering into thigrdement, MarineMax has signed this Agreement aepee of its
irrevocable guarantee of the Dealer’s performari@dl @f the duties and obligations provided fottlis Agreement.

21



NOTE: PORTIONS OF THIS EXHIBIT INDICATED BY[****]” ARE SUBJECT TO A CONFIDENTIAL TREATMENT REQUEST, AN
HAVE BEEN OMITTED FROM THIS EXHIBIT. COMPLETE, UNRBACTED COPIES OF THIS EXHIBIT HAVE BEEN FILED WITH
THE SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION AS PART ORHIS COMPANY’S CONFIDENTIAL TREATMENT REQUEST.

Exhibit A

[****]
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EXHIBIT B

Performance Standards

[****]
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Exhibit B Table

[****]
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Exhibit X

[****]
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Exhibit Y

[****]
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SALES AND SERVICE AGREEMENT

This Sales and Service Agreemenf(freement’) is entered into as of September 1, 2014 by Ssa R Division of Brunswick Corporation
(“Sea Ray” or “Company”) and MarineMax, Inc. (“MagMax” or “Dealer”), in consideration of the mutwalvenants contained in this
Agreement, and subject to and incorporating hdtedrSales and Service Agreement Terms and Consliitiached hereto. Pursuant to this
Agreement, Company hereby appoints Dealer throtsgheéaler Locations identified in Exhibit A as dsaler for the sale of Products in the
Dealer Regions identified in such Exhibit.

DEFINED TERMS

In this Agreement, the following words and expressithat are not defined elsewhere in this Agre¢steall have the following meaning,
except where the context requires otherwise:

Dealer and Dealer’s Principal Address:
MarineMax, Inc., 2600 McCormick Drive, Suite 200, @earwater, Florida 33759
Dealer Location: Each Dealer facility as listed orExhibit A attached hereto.

Dealer Regions: The Dealer Locations sharing a Teitory and comprising a Dealer Region are listed omttached Exhibit A. If a Dealer
Location is added to this Agreement (through acquition or otherwise), the parties will work togetherto determine the realignment of
applicable Dealer Regions related to the additionfesuch location and/or the appropriate Dealer Regin for such new location.

Territory: Identified for each Dealer Region in attached Attachment 1 to Exhibit A

Product(s): Full line of Sea Ray Sport Boats, SpoiCruisers, Sport Yachts and Yachts
(Including related parts and accessories)

Performance Standards: See attached Exhibit B.

Term: The Term of this Agreement shall be Septembet, 2014 to August 31, 2017, provided however thaxcept as otherwise provided
below or in Section 16 of this Agreement, at the @nof each twelve (12) month period of the Term, th&erm of this Agreement shall be
extended by another twelve (12) month period so thdhe Term of this Agreement remains three (3) yea. Notwithstanding the above,
(i) either party may provide written notice to the other no less than one hundred and twenty (120) dayefore the end of any twelve
(12) month period that it will not agree to an addiional extension due to the failure by such other @rty to remedy a material breach of
this Agreement following written notice thereof andthe expiration of the applicable cure period withait cure or failure to reach
agreement through good faith efforts to do so by i parties and (ii) on or within sixty (60) days aftr the sixth (6t ) anniversary of this
Agreement,
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either party may provide written notice to the othe party to terminate this Agreement effective at the end of the then current contract
year (i.e., August 31, 2021). If neither party proiMes notice to terminate this Agreement on or withi sixty (60) days after the sixth (6
th) anniversary as described above, this Agreement lvautomatically renew for three (3) year terms be@ning on the seventh (7

th) anniversary, unless otherwise terminated pursuanto this Agreement; provided that on or within sixty (60) days after the second (2
nd) year of any such three (3) year renewal term, dier party may provide written notice to the other party to terminate this Agreement
effective as of August 31 of the then current conéct year. In addition, after the seventh (7) anniversary of this Agreement (i.e.,
during any three (3) year renewal Term), either paty may elect to terminate this Agreement in accordace with the terms of

Section 16D.
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Company and MarineMax have exeated this Agreement and the parties and the individal(s) signing for
each party respectively below represent and warranthat the individual(s) signing this Agreement is(ee) duly authorized to do so.

Sea Ray Division of Brunswick Corporation MarineMax;, Inc.
By: By:

Title: Title:

Date: Date:
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SALES AND SERVICE AGREEMENT
TERMS AND CONDITIONS

1. Appointment of DealerSea Ray hereby appoints Dealer as a dealerdaethil sale, display, and servicing of all Seg Raduct(s),
parts and accessories (hereinafter “Product” ondBcts”) as identified in the Defined Terms andjscito Sea Ray’s then current policies anc
programs applicable to all domestic Sea Ray deatdling comparable Products, from the authorizedlBr Location(s) identified in the
attached Exhibit A for each Dealer Region, whicbd®cts shall be purchased only from Sea Ray outlroezed Sea Ray dealer located in the
country in which Dealer is located. Dealer Regiand Dealer Locations are set forth in the Definedis and Exhibit A.

During the Term of this Agreement, Sea Ray shallappoint other dealers to sell Products from aestdacation within the
Territory set forth in the Defined Terms; providédwever, that Sea Ray reserves the right to mdkéyTerritory or appoint other dealers to
sell, display and service Product from dealer liocat within the Territory at any time if Dealer s&s a Dealer Location without prior written
notice to Sea Ray and prior written approval thebgoSea Ray, which approval shall not be unreasignaithheld upon a review by Sea Ray
of Dealer’s abilities to perform the Agreement ghtions and as further provided in Paragraph 2/iéked that similar restrictions apply to all
domestic Sea Ray dealers selling comparable PredDetler shall not sell, advertise, solicit foesar offer for resale Products outside of the
Territory except as otherwise provided by Sea RAggertising Policy or other applicable policy. Delamay advertise in recognized and
established marine publications with cross-teridiatdistribution provided that when Dealer doesisspecifically identifies its authorized
locations as defined in this Agreement and compligls Sea Ray’s Advertising Policy. Sea Ray reseihe right in its sole discretion to
monitor or otherwise enforce its policies and pchaes applicable to all domestic Sea Ray dealatsvdlhdo so on a fair and equitable basis.
There are no third party beneficiary rights to spolicies and procedures or this Agreement or afleater agreements.

Sea Ray reserves the right to make sales or pre@dece in the Territory based upon legitimateifess purposes and to appoint
other dealers or service providers to sell, dispdang/or service products, from any other locatiatside the Territory. Sea Ray may also
display Products within the Territory for generaépday and promotional purposes.

Sea Ray shall have the right to adopt and modificies and programs related to the Products frone tio time in its sole discreti
and in accordance with its own reasonable busiegsnent and it will enforce such policies and peargs on a fair and equitable basis. Deale
agrees to comply with such policies and prograrieviing receipt of notice thereof from Sea Ray liring without limitation, through
inclusion in Sea Ray’s Dealer Manual and/or Program

2. Location: Dealer shall sell at retail, display, and senReeducts only at and from the authorized Dealeration(s) referenced in
Exhibit A, as may be amended from time to time @wipded herein. Dealer Location(s) are both satesservice unless otherwise specified in
writing. Dealer shall concentrate its sales, digplad service efforts within the designated Teryito
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Dealer shall not delete, change, or add to the@abmaler Location(s) without the prior written censof Sea Ray, which consent
shall not be unreasonably withheld, and Sea Rayauagider any relevant factors and consequencearaisf the approval process, including
but not limited to the Dealer’s qualifications aamgilities to perform the Agreement obligations frém proposed Dealer Location, the effect
such a grant would have on the resulting Territmgfiguration and adjacent Sea Ray dealer salef#&aler’s financial capabilities to
successfully operate the business from the Dealeation, and whether the Dealer will have adegpateonnel to manage the business at the
Dealer Location. Dealer shall not, directly or ditly, sell Products for use by or to a purchéseated outside of the country in which the
Dealer is located, and shall not sell Productsttdrd party who Dealer knows or should know wakell the Products outside of the country in
which the Dealer is located. Dealer shall not wetithers for the purpose of resale without therpsiritten consent of Sea Ray. Dealer shall nc
utilize the services of a broker or similar agens¢ll Product unless such broker is an affiliatéd! party of Dealer that is located within the
Territory, consummates the sale of any Producbircert with Dealer and pursuant to Dealer’s stath@aactices, and otherwise complies with
the requirements of this Agreement. Dealer age@sdvide appropriate facilities and to assumedoll complete managerial authority and
responsibility for the service of the Productsrad &#om those Dealer Location(s) specified in thigeement and for the display and retail sale
of the Products at and from each Dealer Locatiaidifonally, Dealer may engage in temporary ofégltsplay and sales activity within the
Territory.

3. Responsibilities of the Parties

3.1 Deale’s Responsibilitie:

Dealer agrees to:

A. Devote its best efforts to aggressively promdtsplay, advertise and sell Products at each Dé&aleation and in the Territory
and Dealer Region in accordance with the termbisfAgreement and all applicable federal, statelacal laws. Dealer shall display and
utilize at each Dealer Location signs, graphicsiamate elements with Sea Ray’s Identification &&de herein, subject to approval by Sea
Ray, that will positively reflect the Sea Ray imagal promote the retail sale of the Products.

B. Achieve the performance standards set fortlokmis and in the related Exhibit B (collectiveffperformance Standards”) for
each Dealer Region. Sea Ray, in collaboration ®ehler, will establish fair and reasonable Performance &ieds for each of the Dealer
Regions under this Agreement which Performancedaiais shall be established in a manner simildndsed applied to domestic Sea Ray
dealers. Performance Standards shall include mmimaguirements relating to inventory stocking lsygirovision of annual sales forecasts,
submission of orders pursuant to the terms of SgasRhen current buying program, unit retail saleseldeon Product registrations for Prod
in each Dealer Region, customer satisfaction (Blgt,Promoter Scores) and Product marketing support
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Sea Ray, in collaboration with Dealer, will establthe Performance Standards taking into considerégctors such as population, sales
potential, market share percentage of the Prochaddsin the Territory as compared to competitivedorcts sold in the Territory, product
availability, economic conditions in the Dealer Retfs) and Territory, competition from other maritealerships in the area, past sales his
historical Product mix and stocking practices, #xgsProduct Inventory, adequacy and ability of fveducts to meet customer demand in the
Territory, number of locations, and any speciatwinstances that may affect the sale of ProdudfseoDealer. The Performance Standards fol
the first Product Model Year of this Agreement ageeed to and identified in Exhibit B. Sea Raycataboration with Dealer, will, in
subsequent years, substitute the updated and ath®ed®rmance Standards for the current Exhibifhig Performance Standards on Exhit
will continue to apply until replaced with updataiold amended Performance Standards.

C. Maintain at each Dealer Location (unless a dalztion only, and then service shall be providednother Dealer Location) a
service department that Dealer agrees to staiff, aad equip to promptly and professionally sesviroducts; and to maintain at each Dealer
Location parts and supplies to properly servicalBets on a timely basis.

D. Perform any and all necessary Product riggingtailation, and inspection services prior to daimto the purchaser as required
by Sea Ray'’s current written policy applicable torekstic Sea Ray dealers and perform post-saleceavtall Products originally sold by
Dealer and brought to Dealer for service. Dealdirlvei required to provide or arrange for warranty aervice work for Product regardless of
the selling dealer of the Product or conditionaes Sea Ray will exercise reasonable efforts éisisdParagraph 3.1D. to address circumsta
in which another dealer has made a sale to amatigetail purchaser who permanently resides wihéaler's Territory where such sale is
contrary to the terms of the selling dealer’'s Saled Service Agreement. Dealer will provide appiatprinstructions to purchasers on how to
obtain warranty and service work from the Dealeral@r will secure all Product inventory against theang and other damage, and maintain
inventory in a like new and unused condition.

E. Furnish each Product purchaser with Sea Rayited warranty on new Products and with informasma training as to the safe
and proper operation and maintenance of the Product

F. Complete and submit Sea Ray’s Product registratard (or applicable electronic form) and In-$@Checklist promptly upon
delivery of the Products to the purchaser and 8Ssia Ray in performing Product defect and re@afigaigns. In the event Dealer fails to re
the card or submit the other documentation to SeadR required, Dealer shall indemnify Sea Rayregainy liability, loss, or damage which
Sea Ray may sustain directly as a result of sutiréa

G. Maintain complete Product sales, warranty amd&erecords, and report to Sea Ray upon reghestame and address of each
Product purchaser to the extent required by appkciaw. Dealer further agrees to provide Sea Ritly access to its applicable books and
records at reasonable times and upon reasonablenptice to verify the accuracy of information mutied for participation and eligibility in
promotions and other programs.
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H. [Intentionally omitted.]

I. Submit to Sea Ray upon request any additiorfatimation or clarifying information regarding Degfefinancial statements and
allow full and open disclosure of financial infortitem concerning Dealer between Sea Ray and angdiabinstitution or company which may
finance or propose to finance all or part of Deal@roduct inventory.

J. Conduct business in a manner that preservesrdrahces the reputation and goodwill of both SeeaRd Dealer for providing
quality products and services, and refrain fronrmgsiny false, misleading or deceptive advertisBupmit truthful and accurate statements,
reports and information to Sea Ray and any findimgitution financing or proposing to finance Dexds Product inventory or any purchaser.

K. Maintain an ability to purchase Product invegttor each Dealer Location via flooring and/or dffancing that is customary to
carry on hand and display Sea Ray’s current Pratiaciels as indicated in the Defined Terms and #@ropgmance standards set forth herein.

L. [Intentionally omitted.]

M. Use its best efforts to maintain and improveresmr other customer satisfaction rating (e.gt,femoter Scores) in compliar
with the Performance Standards for such applicadtiags.

N. Comply with those Dealer obligations that mayirobposed or established by Sea Ray applicabld toalestic Sea Ray Dealers
including but not limited to those included in SRay’s policies and programs and Sea Ray’s Advadgi§iolicy.

O. Maintain a financial condition which is adequittesatisfy and perform its obligations under thggeement.

P. Provide prior written notice to Sea Ray if Dealesires to make any material change in Dealaranting of its Product
inventory or business and give Sea Ray sufficiemt to discuss and review with Dealer the effedhefproposed change.

Q. Notify Sea Ray of the addition or deletion of @ealer Location(s) which notification Dealer aggeshall not be deemed a
consent by Sea Ray to such a proposed change.

R. Provide Sea Ray with prior notice of any progbappointment of sub-dealers. All appointmentsutharized sub-dealers are
subject to prior written approval by Sea Ray (“Awiked Sub-dealers”). Dealer will set its own regafice to Authorized Sub-dealers and
assume all risk of non-payment by the Authorizet-8ealers. The Authorized Sub-dealers are notgzarti any agreement between Sea Ray
and Dealer and Dealer will ensure that the AutleatiBub-dealers do not take any actions that vielagepolicies and programs of Sea Ray or
are inconsistent with the terms of this AgreemBialer is responsible for any losses incurred ey gy as a result of Authorized
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Sub-dealer’s performance including, but withoutifation, Authorized Sub-dealer’s failure to pay &y for any Product or to pay any
financial institution that finances Products pusdtiby the Authorized Sub-dealers. Dealer willexder into any agreement with Authorized
Sub-dealers that is inconsistent with the termscamdiitions of this Agreement.

S. Notify Sea Ray in writing of the applicable bdeand boat type at least thirty (30) days beforal@ebegins to sell, display or
advertise a new boat brand.

3.2 Company Responsibilitie:

Company Agrees to:

A. Sell Products to Dealer in accordance with Comyfsathen-current terms and conditions of sale igpple to domestic
Sea Ray dealers, limited warranties, and the pigtpublished from time to time by Company, lesy applicable discounts allowed by
Company'’s programs applicable to Dealer and carsistith the provisions of Section 5 hereof. Conypsimall have the right to modify its
terms and conditions of sale, limited warrantiggelists and programs from time to time in itéesgiscretion and in compliance with the te
of this Agreement; provided, however, that Compaillyprovide reasonable prior written notice to Dexaafter the beginning of the Model
Year of such modifications and that changes irithiéed warranty and pricing will apply only to fute retail purchases. Company will make
available its current policies and programs intetedc format or in a manual or other format Compdrems appropriate. Dealer should
contact Company for a copy of the policies and mot if it does not have access to or did not vecaicopy.

B. Provide to Dealer reasonable quantities of ogtalspecification sheets, and other advertisiregchandising or
promotional material to assist Dealer in the séleroducts as Company deems appropriate.

C. Make available to Dealer in electronic formabtrerwise reasonable quantities of parts booksanty claim forms,
order forms or procedures, maintenance and semaaials and other materials of a technical natsi@ampany deems appropriate.

D. Furnish Dealer with written instructions andpalicies for the use of trademarks, trade namegmdand other trade
designations of Company that correspond to theuwitsdas Company deems appropriate.

E. Furnish a Limited Warranty for the Products anovide warranty support and process warranty daimaccordance wit
Company'’s warranty policy, which may be modifiedrir time to time by Company in its sole discreti@ompany shall notify Dealer of
changes to Company’s warranty policy and make abkilcurrent versions of its warranty policy to Rea

F. Promote sales of the Products via the Intemetodher marine related publications or by otheamseas Company deems
appropriate.
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G. Ship parts related to the Products in accordaiitteCompany’s policy on shipping parts.
H. Accept payment for Product and credit Dealecsoaint within a reasonable time.

I. Furnish detailed invoices upon shipment andquici statements thereafter, provide prompt comnatiuio regarding
account status upon request, and administer geliiies in a non-discriminatory manner.

J. Identify Dealer’s name and address in listinguthorized dealers on Company’s website dealatdo¢if available).
Company reserves the right to create, update amlifyr&uch a website locator from time to time s $ble discretion.

K. Provide reasonable technical assistance anceguves for handling of technical questions of Degdiated to the
Products.

L. Maintain communication channels in order to reedealer feedback from time to time.

M. Provide reasonable consultative assistance tddbéor operational, sales and customer servippati as Company
deems appropriate.

N. Provide reasonable supportive informational maltefor new models of Products as Company degipsoariate.

O. Provide owner’s manual for Products and sintilaterials for other components or accessoriesatigainade available to
Company.

P. Supply Dealer with proper quantities of Prodrarisistent with Sea Ray’s quality standards tonallealer to meet the
Performance Standards set forth in Section 3.1.B.

Q. Provide Dealer with two (2) seats on Sea Ragigept review teams to consult with Sea Ray reggrttie Products and,
at least annually, conduct a portfolio product eewivith appropriate Dealer managers.

4. Orders Dealer agrees to submit orders to Sea Ray inrmeraand format prescribed by Sea Ray, applicabédl domestic Sea Ray
dealers which orders shall be subject to Sea Rhgls current terms and conditions of sale which traynodified by Sea Ray at any time for
all domestic dealers as deemed reasonably necessgrprder which does not comply with Sea Rayisigand conditions need not be filled
by Sea Ray provided, however, that Sea Ray shadhptly notify Dealer of such noncompliance. Any giddal or different terms submitted
Dealer will be deemed rejected and will also balhand of no effect. Dealer cancellation of ordeilslve subject to Sea Ray’s then current
cancellation policy applicable to all domestic ey dealers. All orders submitted by Dealer argesiitto acceptance by Sea Ray.
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5. Prices The Products sold to the Dealer by Sea Ray bleadin the basis of price lists published by SeafRag time to time for its
domestic dealers, less any applicable discourdsiall by Sea Rag’programs. Sea Ray shall have the right to reékiserice lists or applicak
discounts or programs applicable to all of its dstizedealers at any time and agrees to promptlyynbealer of any such change. The Produc
prices charged to Dealer will be the lowest prigentcharged to other domestic dealers subject ddeDmeeting all the requirements and
conditions of Sea Ray'’s applicable programs, andiged that Sea Ray may in good faith, charge tgasees to other dealers to meet existing
competitive circumstances, for unusual and limdacdation non-ordinary business circumstances, mlirfated duration promotional programs.
Sea Ray shall have no obligation to reimburse Ddateany loss which Dealer may sustain by readaany change in price, program, or
discount for which notice was provided in accordaherewith. Terms of payment will be as specifi@af time to time by Sea Ray. Dealer
pay Sea Ray the lesser of 1.5% late charges pethmoothe maximum permitted by applicable law og past due invoice except as to any
specific amount of an invoice that is disputed @odgj faith by the Dealer. Sea Ray may refuse shipfoemny credit reason, including Dealer’s
failure to pay for a prior shipment or to pay amahcial institution who finances Dealer’s purchgs® for Dealer’s failure to maintain its
Product inventory in accordance with the termshif Agreement. Sea Ray shall immediately notify IBed Sea Ray refuses shipment to
Dealer so that Dealer has a reasonable opportimniyre any issue. Dealer will reimburse Sea Rapllaeasonable and necessary costs in
collecting past due accounts, including attornegfand court costs. Dealer hereby grants to Seafh$ea Ray hereby retains a security
interest in all Products sold to Dealer and allcpeals arising out of the sale of the Products sath Products are paid for in full. Dealer ag
to sign, file, authenticate, and authorize theisignfiling and authenticating by Sea Ray of sudarficing statements and other documents an
do such other acts, as Sea Ray may request tdigistabyd maintain a valid and protected securitgrigst in the Products.

6. Shipments All shipments of Products shall be made FOB tha Ray factory designated by Sea Ray, and titli shss to Dealer at
the time the Products or parts are tendered tdebeynated carrier or the Dealer or Dealer’s repriggive at the Sea Ray factory. Dealer shall
pay all applicablehipping, transportation, delivery, and handlingrgjes for Products ordered. If Dealer fails to ptdelivery of any Produc
ordered, other than material non-conforming Prasgltitat must be returned to Sea Ray for repair,ddeshlall reimburse Sea Ray for any costs
incurred, including returning such Products to Rag. If Sea Ray ships Products not ordered by Delakaler shall have the right to refuse
delivery, in which event Sea Ray shall pay all sasturred in returning same to Sea Ray. Shiprmsdrdh be subject to Sea Ray’'s production
schedule and availability of materials or transgiioh equipment. No liability shall be sustained3sa Ray by reason of its not filling any ol
due to circumstances beyond its reasonable cosundl as, but not limited to, labor disputes, nadtisasters, accidents to machinery, acts of
God, acts of or threatened acts of war or terrgrisaterial shortages, regulations, demands for geadeeding Sea Ray’s available supply or
any other cause beyond Sea Ray’s control. In tbatesf any delay in delivery, failure to fill ordeor other default or damage caused by any «
the foregoing, Sea Ray may, at its option and withiability, cancel all or any portion of the apalble orders to the extent affected by the
event of force majeure and/or extend any date wgooh performance is due hereinunder.
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7. Risk of Loss Risk of loss for Products ordered by Dealer spafls to Dealer at the time the Products or pegtteadered to the
designated carrier or the Dealer or Deale€presentative at the Sea Ray factory. Sea Ransiuctions to insure Products on behalf of Be
from the shipping point to the final delivery poimless otherwise agreed by the parties in writepler will be the loss payee on any claim.
Sea Ray will assist Dealer in the processing afidatmn of any claims against the carrier conteddby Sea Ray. Notwithstanding the abov
Dealer or Dealer’s representative takes posses$iBroducts at the Sea Ray factory, Dealer assuesg®nsibility to insure the Products upon
tender of the Products to Dealer or Dealer’s reprigive at the Sea Ray factory.

8. Payment Claims: All sales of Products to Dealer shall be paidifoadvance by Dealer, unless otherwise agreeddsst\8ea Ray and
Dealer in writing. All claims for shortage or danesgor unacceptable Product shall be made pursu&wsa Ray’s then current policy on
shipment damage and claims procedures applicalal $za Ray domestic dealers. The failure of Dealgive such notification as set forth in
Sea Ray'’s then current shipment damage and claiocggures policy shall constitute a waiver of anghsclaim. Dealer shall cause to be paid
or shall make reimbursement to Sea Ray in fulbfoy and all taxes, duties, or other charges impbgddderal, state, municipal, or other
governmental authority upon Dealer’s purchase uttderAgreement.

9. Product Modification Sea Ray shall have the right to discontinue #he sf Products or to modify the design, speciiareg and
components of Products at any time provided, howekiat Sea Ray shall notify Dealer, prior to shimiy of any major changes with respec
Products previously ordered by Dealer but not ydivdred, in which event Dealer shall have thetrighterminate such order within five (5)
business days after such notification by providimgdten notice to Sea Ray. The failure to providelstimely written notification shall be
deemed acceptance by Dealer of such changes.

10. Warranties and Limitation of Warranties andbliligy :

10.1 Warranties: Dealer agrees tt

A. Sell Products only on the basis of Sea Ray’'diphéd applicable limited warranty and make no otharranty or representations
concerning the limited warranty, express or impligither verbally or in writing.

B. Display at each Dealer Location that Productramty information required by applicable law anchfsh and make known to the
first-use purchaser at the time of delivery therappate operations and maintenance manual proigiesea Ray, instructional information for
the use and operation of the Product consisteit tivé operations and maintenance manual, the Proditallation instructions, if any, togett
with Sea Ray’s written limited warranty, includiaf disclaimers and limitations thereto.
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C. Subject to the terms of the applicable limiteatranty, expressly inform the purchaser in writihgt no Sea Ray warranty appl
if the Product is “used” unless Sea Ray expresdllyaizes such warranty in writing or the existlmance of the warranty is transferable and
is transferred. No Product warranty shall appthéd design or material of the Product is substiytiaodified without the express authorizat
of Sea Ray in writing.

D. Provide timely warranty service on all Produetgented to Dealer by purchasers in accordanceSei#hRay’s then current
warranty service program applicable to all domeSta Ray dealers selling comparable Products. Dagitees to make all claims for
reimbursement under Sea Ray’s warranty servicerpno@n the manner reasonably prescribed by Sea$yRay may revise its warranty
service program from time to time, providing Dealéth written notification of all revisions, anddke revisions will supersede all previous
programs.

E. To verify the accuracy of the warranty claimbmitted to Sea Ray by Dealer and the service peavtiy Dealer with regard to
such warranty claims, provide Sea Ray with acaeéts aaipplicable books and records, and providé suiditional documentation which Sea
Ray may reasonably request. In the event Sea Rdy &rrors in the aggregate greater than 5% oéwead claims submitted by Dealer Loca
and paid by Sea Ray, Sea Ray may calculate themeage rate of error; and using that percentageofagrror, extrapolate the amount owed tc
Sea Ray for up to three (3) prior years of all pdadms made by Sea Ray to Dealer at that Dealeatian. Within thirty (30) days of such
notice of such amount, Dealer shall either payetiteapolated amount to Sea Ray or pay the cosfuf audit by Sea Ray or Sea Ray’s
designee or at Dealsrbption and expense, a third party auditor redslgracceptable to Sea Ray and Dealer and pay t&kSgdhat amount,
any, found to be owing to Sea Ray as a result cif swdit. Sea Ray agrees to honor all legitimateamsy claims on Products when made by
purchaser through Dealer in the manner reasonabgcpbed by Sea Ray. Sea Ray shall respond poager and legitimate warranty claims
submitted by Dealer within the time period desatlibethe then current warranty policy applicableltonestic Sea Ray dealers. Sea Ray agre
to pay or credit all accepted and undisputed claiftisin thirty (30) days after receipt of all reqed documentation.

10.2_Limitation of Warranties and Liability.

EXCEPT AS SPECIFICALLY PROVIDED IN SEA RAY’S PUBLISED APPLICABLE LIMITED WARRANTY, SEA RAY MAKES
NO REPRESENTATIONS OR WARRANTIES, EXPRESS OR IMPDIEWITH RESPECT TO PRODUCTS, INCLUDING WITHOU
LIMITATION THE IMPLIED WARRANTIES OF MERCHANTABILITY AND FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE. IN NO
EVENT SHALL EITHER PARTY BE LIABLE TO THE OTHER PARY FOR, NOR SHALL THE MEASURE OF DAMAGES INCLUDE,
ANY AMOUNTS FOR LOST PROFITS, LOST SALES, OR INDIRH, SPECIAL, INCIDENTAL OR CONSEQUENTIAL DAMAGES
FOR ANY REASON OR UPON ANY CAUSE OF ACTION, WHETHEROUNDING IN TORT, CONTRACT OR ANY OTHER LEGAL
THEORY.
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11. Indemnification

A. In order to obtain preferred boat show spaatisttounted rates for Dealers, Sea Ray may contiiitiand agree to indemnify
boat show sponsors and other related parties. Aowly, Dealer shall defend, indemnify and holdrhbass Sea Ray, and any boat show
sponsor which Sea Ray has agreed to indemnify, &oynand all claims, causes of action, and suitduding claims of negligence arising
either directly or indirectly out of Dealer’s uskbmat show space originally obtained by Sea Ray.

B. Sea Ray agrees to indemnify and hold harmlesdeDéor losses, cost and expense to the extehtlsases, cost or expense re
from any third party claim related to (1) Sea Rayégligent acts or omissions involving the origofesign or manufacture of any Product at
time it left Sea Ray’s possession or control, errépair of any Product performed by Sea Ray, oai(§ breach of this Agreement by Sea Ray
Sea Ray, at its expense and through counsel oivitschoosing, may defend any litigation that mageaout of any claims covered hereby, anc
Dealer agrees to cooperate at its own expenserandlp Sea Ray with any available information ay fp@ reasonably necessary to such
defense. In the event Sea Ray elects not to defienditigation that may arise out of any claims e®d hereby, Sea Ray will be responsible fo
Dealer’s reasonable attorney fees on a pro-rateid bathe extent such losses are subject to indieation pursuant to this Agreement.

C. Dealer agrees to indemnify and hold harmlessR2gafor losses, cost and expense to the extehtlegses, cost or expense re
from any third party claim related to (1) Dealemgligent acts or omissions involving Dealer’s ioyer application, use or repair of the
Products, (2) statements or representations notfgdly authorized by Sea Ray, including warrastinconsistent with Sea Ray’s standard
limited warranty, and the installation of any aftearket components or any other modification aeralion to the Product, or (3) any breach of
this Agreement by Dealer. Dealer, at its expensktlarough counsel of its own choosing, may defamdligation that may arise out of any
claims covered hereby, and Sea Ray agrees to @ieprits own expense and provide Dealer withaamylable information as may be
reasonably necessary to such defense. In the Beaér elects not to defend any litigation that ragge out of any claims covered hereby,
Dealer will be responsible for Sea Ray'’s reasonatiteney fees on a pro-rated basis to the exteft bsses are subject to indemnification
pursuant to this Agreement.

D. The provisions in this Paragraph 11 regardimpinnification do not apply to claims by third pastin which there has been a
judicial determination that the indemnifying padges not have liability to the third party. Theysions in this Paragraph 11 shall survive
expiration or termination of this Agreement.

12. Repossession or Repurchase of Product by SealReler shall be liable to and reimburse Sea Ragify and all losses or
deficiencies on the sale or disposition of any Bobghurchased by Dealer pursuant to this Agreeméith is repossessed or repurchased by
Sea Ray for any reason whatsoever, except as cplait in Paragraph 16G. Dealer shall also bedifdil any and all discounts, volume
rebates, or other sales incentives paid to Dealétroduct repurchased, and all reasonable attasiiegs, court costs, and expenses incurred i
connection with such repossession or repurchasgieDagrees to provide Sea Ray, upon request, measior other adequate security to cove
any repurchase or financial obligations that SeamRay assume in connection with Dealer’s floorimdimancing.
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13. Trademarks and Service MarkBealer acknowledges that Sea Ray or its affdiatempanies are the exclusive owners of various
trademarks, service marks, trade designationsslagd trade dress (collectively “Identification”high Sea Ray uses in connection with
Products and its business. Dealer is authorizedéddentification only in the manner prescribedSeya Ray, only in connection with the
promotion and sale of Products, and only untilekgiration or termination of this Agreement. Deakall not register or assist any other party
to register any domain name that contains or gjogsgembles any Company Identification withouttfobtaining the prior written consent of
Company. Dealer shall not use Identification in anguthorized manner or in any manner that adwersélects upon the reputation of Sea
or in relation to any other matter that is a breeficthis Agreement. Dealer shall not use Identifaraor advertise outside of the Territory to the
extent prohibited by the terms of this Agreemerithaut Sea Ray’s express written consent and sbaliply with Sea Ray’s Advertising
Policy. Authorization shall not be interpreted d&anse for use of Identification. Dealer acquinesproprietary rights with respect to
Identification, and this authorization shall terati@ simultaneously with the termination or expoatof this Agreement. In the event of
expiration or termination of this Agreement, Dealkall immediately discontinue use of Identificatio any way whatsoever and shall
thereafter not use, either directly or indirectiyy Identification or any confusingly similar Iddigation in a manner likely to confuse, mislead,
or deceive the public. Dealer may continue to deafification for a reasonable period of time ia #vent Sea Ray does not repurchase Deale
Product inventory as long as such ldentificatioa resnains subject to the terms of this Agreemesd, Bay’s Advertising Policy or any other
written instructions provided by Sea Ray to Dedlsraler agrees that any unauthorized use or cardinge of Identification after the period of
time allowed by this Paragraph 13 shall constituparable harm entitling Sea Ray to seek equateddief, including injunction and specific
performance, without the necessity of posting bongroving actual damages, as a remedy for any stedch. Such remedies shall not be
deemed to be the exclusive remedies for such zbt®aDealer but shall be in addition to all othemedies available at law or equity to Sea
Ray.

14. [Intentionally omitted.]

15. No Agency Createdlt is understood and agreed that Dealer is rartshall it at any time represent itself to be, dlgent, employee,
representative, partner, or franchisee of Sea Bagrfy purpose. Neither party shall enter into @mnytract or commitment in the name of or on
behalf of the other party. Sea Ray has no fiduailty to Dealer pursuant to this Agreement or glationship between the parties. Dealer is
not required to pay, and shall not pay, to Sead&gyfee for the right to purchase the Productslmeravise do business with Sea Ray.

16. Term of AgreementTermination:

A. The term of this Agreement shall be as set fortthe Defined Terms (the “ Term”) subject howet@the provisions set forth in
this Paragraph 16 and in Paragraph 18.
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B. Subject to the provisions of Section 16F bel8@a Ray may terminate this Agreement upon the gjiofrat least sixty (60) days
prior written notice to Dealer if: (1) Dealer dagst have an ability to purchase Products via flagor self-financingor (2) Dealer fails to me
its financial obligations as they become due thegiSea Ray or lender(s) financing Products. SgasRall work in good faith with Dealer to
try to resolve any differences between them poagiving such 60-day notice of termination.

C. This Agreement may be terminated at any timébymutual consent of the parties.

D. Subject to the provisions of Section 16F beleither party may elect to not extend the Term of Agreement for another
twelve (12) month period following expiration ofetleurrent twelve (12) month period of the Term escdibed in the Defined Terms in the
event of the material breach or default of anyhefmnaterial obligations, Performance Standarddédéised in Section 3.1B and Exhibit B),
covenants, representations, warranties, or dutipesed herein or in Sea Ray’s policies or prograppdicable to domestic Sea Ray dealers by
either party. In such event, the non-breachingypaift provide written notice to the breaching paand an opportunity to cure or remedy such
breach. The parties shall work together in goothft@ resolve any issues but the additional twéh&) month extension shall not be added 1
such time that the breach is remedied to the reddemyood faith satisfaction of the parties. Athstime as the parties agree that the concerns
have been remedied, the additional twelve (12) mertension shall be added to the end of the egjiSterm.

In addition, after the seventh {7 anniversary of this Agreement (i.e., during amee (3) year renewal Term), either party may dlect
terminate this Agreement upon the giving of attiéagnty four (24) months prior written notice teetother party in the event of the material
breach or default of any of the material obligasioRerformance Standards (as defined in Sectidhatl Exhibit B), covenants,
representations, warranties, or duties imposedreran Sea Ray policies or programs applicable to domestic Smadalers by either par
which breach is not cured during such notice pegwdvided, however, that if such a breach or defauDealer only pertains to one Dealer
Region, Sea Ray shall only have the right purstatitis provision to terminate this Agreement athtt particular Dealer Region. The parties
shall work together in good faith to resolve arguiss.

Notwithstanding the above, so long as De¢'s failure to meet the Performance Standards icaosed by Sea Ray failing to have Product
available for purchase by Dealer, Sea Ray shak liae right to terminate this Agreement as to fhigieable Dealer Region(s) (i) if Dealer is
failing to meet the Performance Standards in a@dégion and begins selling, displaying, or adsig products that are competitive with
Products (other than products of another BrunsWickporation brand or new products which MarineMelss displays or advertises for salt

of the date of this Agreement) and does not ceréaiture to meet the Performance Standards withiaty (90) days after written notice of the
same from Sea Ray, or (ii) if Dealer is meetingReeformance Standards in a Dealer Region, butdtets failing to meet the Performance
Standards after beginning selling, displaying, awreatising products that are competitive with tlmedRicts (other than products of another
Brunswick Corporation brand or new products whichrieMax sells, displays or advertises for salefahe date of this Agreement) and does
not cure its failure to meet the Performance Statgdaithin six (6) months after written notice betsame from Sea Ray.
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E. Notwithstanding subparagraph D above or anythirtgis Agreement to the contrary, this Agreentaay be terminated by a
party upon sixty (60) days prior written noticethe other party if any of the following occur withgard to the other party: (1) the other party
ceases to exist; (2) the other party becomes igabbr takes or fails to take any action which titutes an admission of inability to pay debts
as they mature; (3) the other party makes a genssidnment for the benefit of creditors to an agethorized to liquidate any substantial
amount of assets; (4) the other party becomesjacudf an “order for relief” within the meaning thife United States Bankruptcy Code; (5) the
other party becomes the subject of a receiversbgrganization, liquidation or any similar procegglior (6) the other party makes a fraudulen
misrepresentation that is material to this Agreemehis Agreement may be terminated upon sixty (E8)s prior written notice by Sea Ray
upon the occurrence of: (1a) a prohibited assigniemsfer, delegation or subcontracting withcarisent as described in Paragraph 18A;
(2b) the commission by Dealer of an act of fraudruBea Ray; (3c) the commission by Dealer (or dntg @fficers) of a felony or other act of
fraud which is materially detrimental to Sea Ragputation or business or which materially impéies Dealer’s ability to perform the duties
under this Agreement; or (4d) Dealer fails to pay Eender financing Products after the sale of Betglby Dealer (out of trust).

F. For the purpose of the first paragraph of Secti@D, if a breach or default by Dealer pertainy ém one Dealer Region, Sea F
shall have the right to deny the additional extemgieriod for that particular Dealer Region onlyillmiemedied as described in Section D. For
the purpose of Section 16B or E, if Dealer breadretefaults as described in such provisions, SsarRay, in its own discretion, elect eithe
terminate the entire Agreement (as to all Dealegites) or terminate only as to particular DealegiBe subject to the Agreement.
Notwithstanding the foregoing, in the event of @gsible termination pursuant to Section 16B aa party seeking to terminate shall fi
provide written notice to the other party statihg potential grounds therefore and both partieb wloak together in good faith for a period of
no less than sixty (60) days to resolve any corecbatween the parties.

G . [****]

H. In the event of termination of this Agreemeribpto its expiration date, provided the terminatie not for fraud, bad faith, or
insolvency of Dealer, Sea Ray will neverthelesgiooe to sell to Dealer warranty parts and accéssdor Products on a cash on delivery b
for a period not to exceed twelve (12) months theotthat Dealer may continue to provide warrantyise on Products which have outstanc
warranties subject to Dealer’'s compliance withtérens and conditions of Sea Ray’s warranty andspgardgram applicable to all domestic Sea
Ray dealers. The performance of any warranty wéige &ermination or expiration of this Agreemenaimot be construed as a continuation of
this Agreement, the commencement of a new agreemeatwaiver of the termination.

I. Any period of time described in the Agreemerdlsbhe modified to include such different periodtiofie that may be required by
applicable law.
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J. In the event of expiration or the terminatiorito$ Agreement by either party, Sea Ray is relievem any obligation to make a
further Product shipments under this Agreement,raag cancel all of Dealer’s unshipped orders fadBcts, irrespective of previous
acceptance by Sea Ray, except those which aregptovigea Ray’'s reasonable satisfaction to have theesubject of a binding customer order
to Dealer prior to the receipt of any notice ohtaration or expiration. The acceptance of ordesmfDealer for the continuous sale of Prodi
to Dealer or any other act after expiration or eation of this Agreement shall not be construed aentinuation of this Agreement, the
commencement of a new agreement, or a waiver detin@nation. Upon the expiration or terminatiornttuf Agreement, all obligations owed
by Dealer to Sea Ray shall become immediately ddepayable on the effective date of the expiratiotermination, whether otherwise then
due or not (without presentment, demand, protesbtice of any kind, all of which are waived by D) and Sea Ray may offset or deduct
from any and all sums owed to Dealer any and atissawed by Dealer to Sea Ray, or any parent,&Hilor subsidiary of Sea Ray, returnin
Dealer the excess, if any.

17. Governing Law This Agreement shall be governed, interpreteda@mstrued according to the laws of the State oh€éssee, U.S.A.,
without regard to applicable conflicts of law.

18. Assignability:

A. This appointment and Agreement is made and edtieto with the distinct understanding that ip&gsonal with Dealer, and is
not, whether by operation of law, change in contrabtherwise, assignable or in any part delegabteansferable unless the express written
consent of Sea Ray is obtained; provided, howdkiat,Dealer may assign the appointment and thieément to a subsidiary or affiliate
without consent. An assignment by Dealer to anslidry or affiliate shall not relieve Dealer fraany obligation or responsibility provided
for under the terms of this Agreement. Unless fifgbroved by Sea Ray in writing, any purportedgassient, transfer, delegation or
subcontracting of Dealer’s rights and obligationder this Agreement by it (other than to a subsydoa affiliate) may immediately render this
Agreement terminated in Sea Ray'’s sole discretion.

B. Sea Ray may not assign this Agreement withaaiptiior written consent of Dealer, except that mchsconsent is necessary with
respect to assignment of this Agreement to anyR&geowned subsidiary or affiliate. An assignmenSaa Ray to any owned subsidiary or
affiliate shall not relieve Sea Ray from any ohbliga or responsibility provided for under the teraighis Agreement. Upon any sale of the
business or the assets of Sea Ray to a nonaffilthted party, and where Dealer does not agrebd@ssignment, this Agreement shall be
terminated and Sea Ray shall be released fromuathef obligations and liabilities to supply Prothuto Dealer under this Agreement provi
however that the provisions of Sections 11 andritbadl other provisions that are intended to sietarmination either expressly or impliedly
shall do so in accordance with their terms.

19. Notices, Communications

A. Any written notice given pursuant to this Agremmshall be either hand delivered (by couriertbeovise), or mailed, postage
prepaid, by Registered or Certified Malil, return
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receipt requested, to the party identified belowhatrespective address listed below. Notice msgy laé given by fax, e-mail or other electronic
method; however, if notice is provided pursuarPéwagraph 16, a copy must also be mailed in thenaradescribed herein. Such notice shall
be deemed to be given upon first receipt. A charigeldress may be given by such notice.

To Sea Ray To Dealer:

William H. McGill, Jr.

Presiden
Sea Ray Boat MarineMax, Inc.
Attention: Presider
800 South Gay Street, Suite 12 2600 McCormick Drive
Knoxville, TN 37929 Suite 20C

Clearwater, Florida 337&
With a copy to With a copy to:
Brunswick Corporation Law Departme MarineMax, Inc.
Attention: General Couns Attention: General Couns
1 N. Field Cour Suite 20C
Lake Forest, Il 2600 McCormick Drive
Tel: (847)73-4700 Clearwater, FL 3375
Fax: (847) 73-4433 Tel: (727) 531 170!

Fax:(727) 45(-1162

B. Dealer hereby grants permission and consentaoR&y and to those entities who are authorizeéddayRay to send or transmit
communications (including but not limited to facdis, wireless communications, and e-mails) to Beahd Dealer’s officers, directors,
employees, subsidiaries and affiliates, and thaimitted successors and assigns. Such communisaiemot limited in content and may
include advertisements, and Dealer understand$yhatoviding such consent it may incur costs tratrelated to the receipt of such
communications. Dealer further agrees that suchhemications may be sent to any telephone numbelectronic media address supplied by
Dealer for each Dealer Location.

20. Entire AgreementNon-Waiver: This Agreement, including any attached addendatains the entire agreement between the partie
with respect to the matters set forth herein ang nut be amended or modified except by a writtestribment signed by Sea Ray and Dealer
that expressly states that the writing constitaleemendment or modification to this Agreementyiaied that, subject to the provisions of this
Agreement, Sea Ray may in its sole discretion amm time to time make changes in accordance wstbwtn reasonable business judgment to
the policies and programs applicable to all doreeStia Ray dealers upon the giving of notice to &esd described herein. This Agreement
terminates and replaces all prior agreements metiieelen the parties regarding the subject mattdri®fAgreement and there are no other
agreements regarding the matters herein provided th
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each party shall remain obligated to the otheafor monies owed under such prior agreements bettheguarties; and except for payments to
be made to Dealer in the ordinary course of busioeglaims of third parties, there are no otheni@s claims, or actions which may give rise
to or result in any compensation or monies beingaw Dealer by Sea Ray. Failure on the part off@saor Dealer to enforce any term of 1
Agreement shall not constitute a waiver thereof.

21. Severability- Existing Claims Whenever possible, each paragraph of this Agreestall be interpreted in such manner as to be
effective and valid under applicable law, but ifgortion of this Agreement is deemed invalid oenforceable, the remaining sections shall
still be enforceable unless removal of that porsormaterially alters the risks and benefits thegiparty that enforcement would be
substantially unfair. In such a case, the partigse&ato immediately negotiate a substitute claonsedtore each party as closely as possible to
the risks and benefits originally assumed. Deaprasents to Sea Ray that it is not aware of aigns| causes of action, or disputes that it ha:
or may assert against Sea Ray that arise outldar accrued prior to the effective date of thisekgnent. Dealer further represents to Sea R
that it has not breached or otherwise violatedtany or condition of any previous agreement wita Bay.

22. Disputes All disputes, controversies or claims connectétth varising out of, or relating to this Agreememnit,any modification,
extension or renewal thereof, or to any causestarathat result from such relationship, shallsbéject exclusively to the remedy of
arbitration described herein, including but notited to sums due under this Agreement, the intéapom, performance or nonperformance of
this Agreement, and claim for damages or rescissidmeach or default of this Agreement, the cosatiermination or nonrenewal of this
Agreement (such as a dispute regarding the causldity or circumstances of the termination, naeesion, or nonrenewal), and trade
regulations or antitrust claims, whether such amrdrsies or claims are in law or equity or incletlEms based upon contract, statute, tort or
otherwise. All controversies shall be conducteddnordance with the American Arbitration Associat@ommercial Arbitration Rules.

The arbitration shall be governed by the UnitedeStarbitration Act, 9 U.S.C. § 1-16, as amended, jadgment upon the award
rendered by the arbitrator may be entered by anyt ¢t@ving jurisdiction thereof. The place of thibiation shall be at Chicago, lllinois.
Dealer consents to personal jurisdiction of theefatland state courts located in the State ofoilfiior the purpose of enforcing this provision
or confirming any arbitration award. No party stz entitled to receive an award of damages insxotactual damages and in no event sha
the parties receive an award of punitive, spedialbmsequential damages, or prejudgment interest.

Except for claims based on sums owing to Sea Ralraducts purchased by Dealer, or sums owing addddor the
reimbursement of funds it paid for Products thaten@eviously returned to Sea Ray or claims basedaragraph 11 hereof, all arbitration
claims and proceedings must be instituted withia @) year after the dispute arises, and the failoiinstitute arbitration proceedings within
such period shall constitute an absolute ban tanstdution of any proceedings and a waiver anidigeishment of all such claims.

This paragraph shall survive the expiration or feation of the Agreement.
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23. [intentionally omitted]

24. Reservation of RightsSea Ray grants to Dealer only those rights esprestated in this Agreement. Except to the exoénérwise
expressly provided in this Agreement, Sea Raynstall rights. This Agreement does not concernathgr brands or products, except the Sea
Ray Products identified in the Defined Terms. Sag &nd/or its affiliates reserve the right for &ay's affiliates to own, acquire, manage, !
display or service other products and other bramasy area (including the Territory) including #eothat may compete with Products. Sea
reserves the right to receive incentives, rebatesdleer payments from third-party suppliers, indéhgdwithout limitation related to purchases by
or through Dealer from such third party suppliers.

25. Confidentiality. Each party shall maintain as confidential allgsretary business information, trade secrets anahaterials
containing confidential business information pra@ddo such party by the other party, including ttlimited to customers, vendors, price
lists, wholesale prices, programs, rebates, digspiumventions, concepts, designs, structures, dtasy processes, financial information,
employees, strategic plans, acquisition planstoerdbusiness affairs of the disclosing party. Deadknowledges that Sea Ray is an affiliate of
Brunswick Corporation, and accordingly subsidigradfiliates and other divisions of Brunswick Coration may be given access or have
access to confidential business information reckimeconnection with this Agreement, and such disaie does not constitute a breach of this
paragraph. Each party, on behalf of its directofficers, employees and agents to whom such infaamand materials are disclosed, agree
that it shall keep such information and materiaisfitlential both during and after the Term of thigreement for a period of three (3) years
provided that if any such information or materghitrade secret, then the obligations under thiag?aph shall survive the termination of this
Agreement for the longer of five (5) years or teredth of time such information remains a tradeetecr

These obligations of confidentiality do not apmyany information which (1) was known to the reaggvparty prior to receipt from
the disclosing party; (2) is independently devetbpg the receiving party, provided that the burdéproof of such independent development
shall be on the receiving party; (3) is or becomaslicly known without the fault of the receivingny; (4) is or becomes rightfully available
the receiving party without confidential restrictirom a source not bound by a confidentiality gation to the disclosing party; (5) is required
by law, rule or regulation to be disclosed; (6)dquired to be disclosed pursuant to court or gowent action; provided, the disclosing party is
given reasonable prior notice of such disclosuré€6pis disclosed pursuant to written agreemerthefparties.

The terms of this paragraph are in addition to, iamb way a limitation of, the terms of any cowidiality or
non-disclosure agreement (or any confidentialigvision in any other agreement) between or invgh\ea Ray (or its affiliates) and Dealer.

26. MiscellaneousIn case of any dispute relating to the rights datles imposed by this Agreement, both partiesapiénly discuss and
make reasonable efforts at amicable resolutionepixas expressly described to the contrary inAQjigement, the rights and remedies of eact
party are not
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exclusive. Unless otherwise provided, where eiffagty has a right to make a determination or pucsuet pursue a particular course of ac
under the terms of this Agreement, such as, fomgka granting consent or approval, such determinatand decisions shall be made by such
party in its sole discretion. As defined hereinlomestic Sea Ray dealer shall be an authorizedR8gaealer whose territory is located solely

within the continental Unites States.

27. Counterparts and Signaturéehis Agreement may be executed in counterpaatsh ef which shall be deemed an original and all of
which, taken together, shall constitute on andstirae Agreement. Any signature delivered by faxtieioelectronic transmission shall be

deemed to be an original signature.

28. GuaranteeAs a condition for Sea Ray’s entering into thigrdement, MarineMax has signed this Agreement aepee of its
irrevocable guarantee of the Dealer’s performari@dl @f the duties and obligations provided fottlis Agreement.

21



NOTE: PORTIONS OF THIS EXHIBIT INDICATED BY[****]” ARE SUBJECT TO A CONFIDENTIAL TREATMENT REQUEST, AN
HAVE BEEN OMITTED FROM THIS EXHIBIT. COMPLETE, UNRBACTED COPIES OF THIS EXHIBIT HAVE BEEN FILED WITH
THE SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION AS PART ORHIS COMPANY’S CONFIDENTIAL TREATMENT REQUEST.

Exhibit A

[****]
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EXHIBIT B

Performance Standards

[****]
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Exhibit B Table

[****]
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Exhibit X

[****]
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Exhibit Y

[****]
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FOURTH AMENDMENT TO AMENDED AND RESTATED
INVENTORY FINANCING AGREEMENT

THIS FOURTH AMENDMENT (the “ Amendmert) dated this 23 day of August, 2014, is to that certain Amended Redtated
Inventory Financing Agreement entered into by ametag GE Commercial Distribution Finance Corpora{fo€DFE ") and the undersigned
Dealers (each, individually, a “ Dealeand, collectively, “ Dealer¥) dated June 28, 2013 (as amended, supplementetth@mwise modified
form time to time, the “ Financing Agreemeit

WHEREAS, the parties hereto desire to amend thari€ing Agreement in certain respects;

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises anather good and valuable consideration, theiptemd sufficiency of which
are hereby acknowledged by the parties, the pdréesby agree as follows:

1. Exhibit A of the Financing Agreement is hereloyemded and restated in its entirety in form andtuize as set forth in Exhibit A
hereto.

2. Section 1(b) of the Financing Agreement is hgr@inended to replace “two hundred five million dadl ($205,000,000.00)” with “two
hundred thirty-five million dollars ($235,000,000)¢" as the “Maximum Credit Amount” defined therein

3. Section 1(c) of the Financing Agreement is hegdddeted in its entirety and replaced with thédfeing:

PreOwned Inventory Advances and SublimitSubject to the overall Maximum Credit Amount f&eth above and the terms and
conditions of this Agreement, on and after the ti@teof (the “ Closing Dat§, CDF agrees to make cash advances to Dealelns wit
respect to pre-owned units of inventory; provideat such cash advances shall not exceed the PredDwnentory Sublimit and must
comply with the pre-owned inventory advance terets@rth herein. Regardless of the amount of cradhtilable to Dealers under the
Maximum Credit Amount hereunder, CDF shall not jidevextensions of credit to Dealers in excess dfffive million dollars
($45,000,000.00) with respect to used or pre-owneentory (the “ PreDwned Inventory Sublimit). Within such Pre-Owned Inventory
Sublimit, (A) any advances with respect to unitthveipplicable valuations of five hundred thousaaliiads ($500,000.00) or more shall
require unit specific documentation (including avance request form), (B) CDF will not advance Beamore than thirty-five million
dollars ($35,000,000.00) of such Pre-Owned Invgn8ublimit for used or pre-owned inventory with dpgble valuations of less than
five hundred thousand dollars ($500,000.00) (titier PreOwned Sublimif’), and (C) CDF will not advance Dealers more thaanty
million dollars ($20,000,000.00) of such Pre-Owned
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Inventory Sublimit for used or pre-owned inventarigh applicable valuations of five hundred thousaodars ($500,000.00) or more
(the “ Specific PreDwned Sublimif’).

4. Section 5(b)(viii) of the Financing Agreemenhereby amended to replace “eight million doll&8,000,000.00)” with “nine million
dollars ($9,000,000.00),” as used therein.

5. Section 17 of the Financing Agreement is he@bgnded to replace “June 28, 2016” with “AugustZt¥,7,” as used therein.

6. Each reference in the Financing Agreement, [} the Program Terms Letter, and any other docupiestrument or agreement rela
thereto or executed in connection therewith (ctiNety, the “ Document$) to the Financing Agreement shall be deemed ferrte the
Financing Agreement as amended by this Amendmeagtit&lized terms used but not otherwise definediheshall have the meanings assigc
to them in the Financing Agreement.

7. Each Dealer hereby ratifies and confirms thewrimg Agreement, as amended hereby, and eachmeement executed by such
Dealer in all respects.

8. This Amendment shall be binding upon, inureht lbenefit of and be enforceable by the partiestbend their participants, success
and assigns.

9. This Amendment may be executed in any numbeouwiterparts, each of which counterparts, once dneyxecuted and delivered,
shall be deemed to be an original and all of wisichnterparts, taken together, shall constituteohetand the same agreement. This
Amendment may be executed by any party to this Atmemt by original signature, facsimile and/or elegic signature.

KCP-450492-5
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have dulgceed this Amendment as of the date first aboveenr

MARINEMAX;, INC.

By:
Name
Title:

MARINEMAX EAST, INC.

By:
Name
Title:

MARINEMAX SERVICES, INC.

By:
Name
Title:

MARINEMAX NORTHEAST, LLC

By:
Name
Title:

BOATING GEAR CENTER, LLC

By: MARINEMAX EAST, INC., the sole member of BoatjrGear Center, LLC
KCP-450492-5
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By:
Name:
Title:

US LIQUIDATORS, LLC

By:
Name
Title:

NEWCOAST FINANCIAL SERVICES, LLC

By:
Name
Title:

MY WEB SERVICES, LLC

By: MARINEMAX, INC., the sole member of My Web Séres, LLC

By:
Name:
Title:

MARINEMAX CHARTER SERVICES, LLC

By: MARINEMAX EAST, INC., the sole member of Marikkax Charter Services, LLC

By:
Name:
Title:

GE COMMERCIAL DISTRIBUTION FINANCE CORPORATION
KCP-450492-5
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By:
Name:
Title:

KCP-450492-5
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Exhibit A
Existing Vendors
Vendors Brand Restrictions
Tracker Marine, L.L.C BASS TRACKER
Brunswick Corporation or affiliates there BAYLINER

Brunswick Corporation or affiliates there
Brunswick Corporation or affiliates there
Contender Boats, Ini

Crest Marine, LLC

Grady-White Boats, Inc

Brunswick Corporation or affiliates there

BOSTON WHALER
CABO YACHTS
CONTENDER
CREST
GRADY-WHITE
HARRIS FLOTEBOTE

Brunswick Corporation or affiliates there HATTERAS
Brunswick Corporation or affiliates there LAGUNA
Tracker Marine, L.L.C MAKO

Malibu Boats, LLC MALIBU AND AXIS
Brunswick Corporation or affiliates there MERCURY
Brunswick Corporation or affiliates there MERIDIAN
Brunswick Corporation or affiliates thereof PRINCECRAFT
Seminole Marine, Inc SAILFISH
Scout Boats, Inc SCOUT
Brunswick Corporation or affiliates there SEA RAY
Correct Craft, Inc. SKI NAUTIQUE

Brunswick Corporation or affiliates there
Zodiac of North America, Inc

Sea Hunt boat Manufacturing Company, |

Azimut Bennetti Grouj
PBH Marine Group, LLC

TROPHY SPORTFISHINC
ZODIAC

SEA HUNT

AZIMUT AND ATLANTIS
SCARAB

Hangzhou Sino Eagle Yacht Co., L AQUILA

Trailer Vendors:

EZ Loader Boat Trailers, Inc.

EZ Loader Custom Boat Trailers, Ir EZ LOADER
Knight Bros., Inc HERITAGE
Karavan Trailers, Inc KARAVAN

Magic Tilt Trailers Inc. MAGIC TILT
Mcclain Trailers, Inc MCCLAIN
Northeast Marine Industries, Ir NORTHEAST
Roadrunner Trailers of Texas, It ROADRUNNER TRAILER
Lippert Components, Ini ZIEMAN
BoatMate Trailers, LLC BOATMATE
Heritage Trailers, LLC HERITAGE

Load Rite Trailers, LLC LOADRITE
Marine Master Trailers, LL( MARINE MASTER
Phoenix Trailers, LLC PHOENIX

Ran-Lin Custom Trailers, In RAM-LIN

KCP-4504921-5
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GE Capital

Commercial Distribution Finance
500 W. Monroe Street

Chicago, IL 60661

USA

SECOND AMENDED AND RESTATED
PROGRAM TERMS LETTER

August 29, 2014

MarineMax, Inc.

MarineMax East, Inc.
MarineMax Services, Inc.
MarineMax Northeast LLC
Boating Gear Center, LLC

US Liquidators, LLC

Newcoast Financial Services, Ll
My Web Services, LLC
MarineMax Charter Services, LLC
18167 US Highway 19 North
Suite 300

Clearwater, FL 33764

Attn: Mike McLamb

RE: Wholesale Marine Products Finance Program
Dear Mike:

This Program Terms Letter outlines the terms ofryoarine financing program with GE Commercial Olsition Finance Corporation
(“CDF"). This program will apply to all outstandingvoices financed by CDF pursuant to that cerfaimended and Restated Program Terms
Letter dated June 28, 2013 between CDF and yoani@nded from time to time, the “Existing PTIa)d to all invoices financed on or after
date hereof. This Program Terms Letter amendsestdtes the Existing PTL in its entirety.

This Program Terms Letter supplements that ceAaiended and Restated Inventory Financing Agreentlaiéd as of June 28, 2013, among
CDF and you (the “Inventory Financing AgreemenCapitalized terms used but not defined herein $taale the meanings assigned to thel
the Inventory Financing Agreement.
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The following sets forth the terms of your finargiprogram:

A. Rates and Terms

Effective Program  Applies to all outstanding invoices financed by Cisuant to the Original PTL and all invoices finad by CDF on «
Dates: after the date herec

Subsidy Period: As determined by manufacturer program (if appliel

Eligible Products:  New and pr-owned marine products, subject to a perfectetigisrity Lien in favor of CDF and free and clezrall
other Liens not permitted by the Inventory Finagcikgreement. Consigned products shall be excludésss you
comply with CDF's documentation requirements with respect themedoGDF otherwise agrees in writir

Dealer Rate: The effective dealer interest rate for any monfte(ahe manufacturer subsidy period expires, flEable) shall be the
One month LIBOR rate plus 3.45¢

Dealer Rate shall be the same for both new ar-owned inventory
The Dealer Rate will be recalculated monthly bamedhanges in the One month LIBOR rate as outlaimx/e.

Performance So long as Dealer remains in compliance with altdrms and conditions of the Inventory Financinge®ment, this

Rebate: Program Terms Letter and all other agreementsstniments by and between Dealer and CDF, begirthimgate
hereof through the calendar quarter ending SepteBhe2014, and for each calendar quarter theme&@@F will pay
you a rebate to be paid quarterly in an amountlequd0% of (i) the average daily balance of cartsling Obligation:
owed to CDF for the prior quarter 1663 the average daily balance of the [****] for ¢hprior quarter (the “Performance
Amount”). Such rebate will be subject to the follog:

1. Such rebates will be paid within 30 days followvthe end of the applicable quarter.

2. The average daily balance of outstanding Obbgatwill be calculated as the sum of the dailyabak of outstanding
Obligations for each day in the applicable quadieided by the number of days in the applicablertprz

2
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Unused Line Fee:

Maturity Period:

Advance Request

Floorplan Advance
Rate:

3. The average daily balance of the [****] will malculated as the sum of the daily balance oftH&][for each day in
the applicable quarter divided by the number ofsdaythe applicable quarte

Dealer will be charged a monthly Unused Line Feariramount equal to 0.10% multiplied by the Unused,
calculated based on the actual number of daysicdlendar month in a year of 360 days. Unused ikitiee Maximum
Credit Amount, minus the average daily balanceut$tanding Obligations owed to CDF, plus the averdajly balance
of the [****]. Billed monthly.

Invoices financed for new inventory by CDF are d¢desed due in full at 1080 days from original ins@date, except
that invoices financed by CDF related to all AzirBgnetti S.p.A. are considered due in full at 1689s from the
original fundingdate.

Invoices financed for pre-owned (trade in or usadgntory by CDF are considered due in full at 8&ys from the date
Dealeracquiressuch unit “ Acquisition Dat(").

Each advance with respect to pre-owned inventorg-@dvance shall be made pursuant to a compleiédnvadvance
request in the form attached hereto as Exhibio8dther with all attachments required thereby,Aavance Request
Form”) or such other form as CDF and Dealers mageag

In addition, each advance with respect to any aclvaequest for Aquila brand inventory shall be agganied by the
following documentation for each item of Aquila bdainventory:

» A copy of the original invoice from Sino Eagfacht Co., Ltd.
 Either a Manufacturer’'s Statement of Origin (®Sor Builder’s Certificate
» Evidence that each such item of Aquila brangiriory has cleared United States Customs

» Evidence that MarineMax has paid Sino Eagleht&mp., Ltd. in full for each such item of Aquilaand
inventory

For new inventory (excluding Azimut brand new int@y and Aquila brand new inventory), 100% of irs®iamount,
including freight (if included on original invoice3ubject to Availability.

For Azimut brand new inventory: 85% of invoice ambfor all inventory that is 70 feet or less andw/6f invoice
amount for al
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inventory that is greater than 70 feet, subje&uailability; provided that, until Azimut has exeted and delivered a
current program terms letter (“Azimut PTLtje advance rates for Azimut brand new inventosglldie as follows: (a)
the aggregate outstanding amount of Obligatiors[i$**], 80% of invoice amount for all inventoryhat is 70 feet or
less and 75% of invoice amount for all inventorattis greater than 70 feet, subject to Availabilggd (b) if the
aggregate outstanding amount of Obligations|[ig*], 85% of invoice amount for all inventory thas 70 feet or less
and 75% of invoice amount for all inventory thagigeater than 70 feet, subject to Availability.

For Aquila brand new inventory, 75% of invoice ampusubject to a maximum of [****] in the aggregadvanced at
any one time.

Upon CDF’s receipt of the Azimut PTL, the advanatefor Azimut Pre-Sold inventory shall be, 90%taf invoice
amount, as verified by CDF, subject to Availabilis used herein, “Pre-Sold” means under contraatretail customer
pursuant to an Acceptable Contract. “Acceptablet@ati means a fully executed bona fide contra¢hairetail
customer, on terms that are commercially reasonatikiding a deposit.

As used herein, “Availability” shall mean:
(i) the lesser of:

(a) the Maximum Credit Amount, minus the outstagdamount of Approvals, and

(b) (1) at any time the aggregate outstanding arhofti®bligations is less than [****], 100% of totaligible
inventory shown on the most recent inventory degtg, or

(11 at any time the aggregate outstanding amo@iftldigations is equal to or greater than [****]00% of
total eligible inventory shown on the most receventory certificate, less the lesser of (x) $[*F&nd (y)
10% of total eligible inventory shown on such intaew certificate,

(if) minus, the aggregate outstanding amount oigakibns.

If Availability is negative at any time, then immate payment shall be required of amount suffictertause
Availability to be equal to or greater than $0.

Pre-owned (trade in or used) inventory advancedshwibs follows, subject to Availability, the Presged Inventory
Sublimit, the Specific P-Owned Sublimit, and the Other FOwned Sublimit

4



NOTE: PORTIONS OF THIS EXHIBIT INDICATED BY[****]” ARE SUBJECT TO A CONFIDENTIAL TREATMENT REQUEST, AN
HAVE BEEN OMITTED FROM THIS EXHIBIT. COMPLETE, UNRBACTED COPIES OF THIS EXHIBIT HAVE BEEN FILED WITH
THE SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION AS PART ORHIS COMPANY’S CONFIDENTIAL TREATMENT REQUEST.

75% MarineMax Pre-owned Inventory Cost Day 1 (“Odyas used herein shall mean Acquisition Date)ugtoDay 180
(after Acquisition Date); 67% Day 181 (after Acqti® Date) through Day 360 (after Acquisition Datehich reflects
the 10% curtailment as described in “Floorplan &ilmtents” section below; 0% Day 361+ (after Acqtiisi Date).

“MarineMax Pre-owned Inventory Cost” shall be Dealénternal valuation for pre-owned inventory &t forth on the
monthly inventory certificate and borrowing base).

All models of pre-owned inventory are eligible, pided low wholesale values can be determined vi®NA
Yachtworld.com, survey, or other source acceptab(eDF.

Internal condition and valuation methodology regdion all units > $500,000.00 (“Specific Pre-Owittedhs”). If
valuation of any Specific Pre-Owned Item exceed$ ] CDF advances in excess of [****] for such Spific Pre-Owned
Item shall be in CDF’s discretion.

Trade in units < $500,000.00 value will be finanoada “borrowing base” calculated as the aggregitiee pre-owned
advance rates multiplied by the applicable Maringfee-owned Inventory Cost of such pre-owned inmgntCDF may
implement a Pre-Owned Inventory Reserve againgpis@wned inventory to reduce the availabilityebgible pre-
owned inventory. “Pre-Owned Inventory Reserve”édimed and calculated as the low wholesale valterdgned via
NADA, Yachtworld.com, survey or other source acebj# to CDF minus the MarineMax l-owned Inventory Cost,
divided by the low wholesale value determined viDM\, Yachtworld.com, survey or other source accblgdo CDF, as
a percentage.

Borrowing base certificate in the form attachedebeas Exhibit B required to be submitted on thte ti@reof and
monthly by the 8"day of the month based on preceding month end tedanf pre-owned inventory. Month-end
borrowing base certificate can be used to borrowoug0% of eligible borrowing base for that calenaeonth, subject to
Availability, the Pre-Owned Inventory Sublimit attte Other Pre-Owned Sublimit. Any request for ades> 80% of
prior month-end borrowing base requires submissfam updated borrowing base and such advancdshehiahited to
100% of updated borrowing base, subject to Avdilgbthe Pre-Owned Inventory Sublimit and the GtRee-Owned
Sublimit.
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Concentration
Limits:

If any unit (new or pre-owned) remains at a logatither than a Permitted Location for more tham&gs, then
immediate payment shall be required of the fulhpipal amount of the Obligations owed with resgecuch unit. If the
aggregate value of units at locations other thamRd Locations (excluding boat shows) exceed8ME000.00 at ar
time, then immediate payment shall be requiredhef@bligations with respect to such units in anreggte amount
equal to such excess. In addition, if a materigkask change results in the reduction of the vafuke Collateral in an
aggregate amount exceeding $250,000.00, then inateegiayment shall be required of the Obligatiorth wespect to
such Collateral in an amount equal to such exgessjded that, if such reduction of value is thejsat of an insurance
claim payable to CDF as loss payee, then immeg@ayenent of such excess amount shall only be redjtir¢he extent
it exceeds the claim amount (net of any deductiihe) payment of the remainder of such excess sbabe required
until the earlier of (i) receipt of such insuramreceeds, if any, or the rejection or denial oftrsalaim or any portion
thereof and (ii) 30 days (or such later date as @Gialy agree in writing) after such loss or dami

If the number of units of inventory (new and prerga) financed by CDF which are not Pre-Sold ancttwvhiave an
Outstanding Amount > $150,000.00 exceeds [****ltofal number of units of inventory financed by CDien
immediate payment shall be required and appligtigaldest units of such inventory financed by GbBfhe extent
required to reduce the number of such units tofftr less. “Outstanding Amount” means the outstagcamount
financed by CDF for such unit, minus any portiorited Required Amount (as defined in the [****]) fdad to the [****]
with respect to curtailments for such unit. Forgmses of determining the concentration limits, sioftinventory
financed by CDF shall include, without limitatiogach unit of pre-owned inventory with a valuatio500,000.00
identified on the current borrowing base certifecat

If the units of inventory (new and pre-owned) finad by CDF which are not Pre-Sold and which hav®atstanding
Amount > $750,000.00 exceed [****] in the aggregé&yé which no more than [****] in the aggregate mhg Azimut
brand), then immediate payment shall be requiredagplied to the oldest units of such inventorafioed by CDF to
the extent required to reduce the Outstanding Amtwft***] or less for such inventory (or [****] a less for Azimut
brand inventory). In no event shall CDF finance entbran the greater of [****] units or [****] of sub inventory that
exceeds 70 ft., and which are not-Sold.
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Inventory
Reporting:

Floorplan
Curtailments:

A monthly inventory certificate in the form attachieereto as Exhibit @r in such other form as Dealers and CDF may
agree, together with supporting documentation retguaeby CDF, shall be required to be provided leyath day of each
month (or the first business day following th® 8ay of each month if the®®day is not a business day) based on the
balances as of the date of the certificate. Aleimory to be included (new, pre-owned). To be gtedion ad-hoc basis
upon CDF reques

Curtailment payments on invoices financed by CDIFlvé due pursuant to the following schedule:

For all Azimut-Benetti S.p.A inventory, a curtailmepayment of 10% of the initial amount financedli® and payable
on each item of new inventory at each of the foitgpoints in time: 181, 361, 541, 721 and 900 deys the original
funding date and the full remaining balance ofdatdeance is due and payable on each item of AzinemieRBi S.p.A
inventory when it is aged 1080 days from the oagfanding date.

For all other new and Pi®eld inventory, a curtailment payment of 10% ofithigal amount financed is due and paye
on each item of new inventory at each of the foitgpoints in time: 181, 361, 541, 721 and 900 deys the date of
the respective original invoice and the full reniagnbalance of the advance is due and payable dnitam of inventor
when it is aged 1080 days from the date of theimailgnvoice.

For pre-owned (trade in or used) inventory < $500,00 low NADA wholesale value, a curtailment paytnef 10% of
the amount financed is due and payable at day fi8ithe Acquisition Date; for pre-owned (tradedinused) inventory
> $500,000.00 low NADA wholesale value, a curtaiinpayment of 10% of the amount financed is duepaydble at
day 181 after the Acquisition Date; and the advanti¢h respect to all such items of inventory Wil due in full at day
361 after the Acquisition Date.

All curtailment payments will be billed monthly adde in a single payment on the last day of suchtind’he failure tc
remit curtailment payments when due shall be camsiia Default under the terms of the IFA and acp date
curtailment payments shall be subject to intereite@Default Rate until paid in full.

Curtailment payments will be offset by an amountado the lesse
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[****]

Inventory Re-
Advance
Capability:

Landlord Lien
Waivers:

B. General Terms

Audit/Inspection
Fees:

MSOQO’s/Titles:

of (i) the Required Amount set forth in the [****{ji) the [****] balance set forth in the [****], and (iii) [****]
(provided the [****] has a balance of at least [*}). Notwithstanding such offset, the entire amoahturtailment
payments will be paid no later than 20 days folluyvihe due date there«

[****] can be funded for curtailments due (up tar@aximum of [****]) and other amounts subject to cap the amount
of [****] equal to the lesser of (i) [****] of thethen outstanding loan balance or (ii) [****].

1. Maximum of [****] removal of funds per week (D&a may not remove funds required to maintain tegurred
Amount)

2. Maximum of [****] contributions of funds per wéde(unless otherwise needed for minimum requirements
3. Not intended for direct application for unit péfs

New inventory may be paid down to a minimum floarpbalance of $1,000.00 per unit; permitted -advance up to
maximum allowable advance rate (original invoiceoant less curtailments due) subject to:

1. Request must aggregate at least $100,000.00gneE amount)

2. Maximum ‘re-book’ advance is limited to 25% ofilkdmum Credit Amount within any 30 day period &f¥**] is
terminated at CDF’s option, 50% of Maximum Credihdunt within any 30 day period (such limit, the “Rdvance
Sublimit”)

3. Limited to Brunswick and Azimut product
4. Delivery of an Advance Request Form and cedtifan of applicable inventory valu

If any Eligible Inventory Collateral is held at@chtion leased by you and you have not deliver&gi® a landlord lien
waiver or subordination in form acceptable to CB§ an alternative, you will be required to funeserve equal to 3
months of base rent, which will be placed in thef{fpursuant to the terms of the [****], as a “ragred” minimum
amount.

Pre-closing and annual audit costs will be paiiglers. Actual floorcheck expenses for inventagpections will be
paid by CDF, provided that if results of the indjts are not satisfactory to CDF, in its reasoealicretion, then
additional inspection expenses will be paid by BPea

All Pre-owned titles and documentation must show all digors releasec
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Insurance
Certificates:

Audit/Inspection
Frequency:

COMS Non-Usage
Fee:

Servicing Fee:

Late Payment Fee

On or before the date hereof, Dealer shall delioe€2DF certificates of insurance satisfying theuiegments set forth in
Section 6 of the Inventory Financing Agreem

8 x per year

All locations with an average outstanding Totabklie Inventory (calculated semi-annually basednwentory reports
provided to CDF by Dealers)$1,000,000 will be inspected quarterly at a minimum

All locations with an average outstanding Totabklie Inventory (calculated semi-annually basednwentory reports
provided to CDF by Dealers) < $1,000,000 will bspected semi-annually at a minimum

During each inspection, CDF will inspect multipteétions wherein at least 48% of Total Eligibledntory is located.
During each calendar quarter, CDF will inspect ipldtlocations wherein at least 98% of Total Ellgilmventory is
located.

MSO and Preowned Title audits to be conducted eV2@ydays
and additional audits/inspections at any other @n€DF s discretior

Dealers will be charged $1,000 in the aggregatermetth for any month during which Dealers do nat thee CDF
COMS or-line payment system for Deal’ primary method of payment to CD

Dealers will pay to CDF a monthly servicing fee alqw 0.10% of the average daily balance of outitanObligations

Under the terms of your financing agreement withFCipou are to remit payment to CDF immediately ugianearlier
of (i) your receipt of the proceeds of any salether disposition of any unit of CDF'’s financedlatéral, and (ii) 7
calendar days after such sale or other dispositidnis discovered that a unit of collateral @d or otherwise disposed
of without payment remitted to CDF (Sold out of 3rtiSOT"), whether as the result of an inventory collaterapactiot
or otherwise, CDF may, in its sole discretion, geayou the following late payment fee on a montidgis for each SC
item:

Day 1 7 after the retail sale of the L On the &hday after the retail sale of the u
$0.00 .25% of the outstanding invoice amount per unitrpenth
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NSF Fee: You will be charged a fee of $25 for each checktber item that is returned unpa
Please note that the fees and charges referred tb@ve such as the Late Payment Fee and NSF Fee aot mtended to be CDF’s sole

remedies for those events, and if you fail to meany of your obligations under your agreements witltCDF, CDF specifically reserves all
other rights and remedies legally available to it.

Customer Online Management System (COMS):

CDF encourages use of COMS, our Internet paymeatfflan system. CDF will assist you in the inst#ia of the system and provide you
with training, free of charge. Internet paymenss jgrocessed via an ACH transaction and at no ogsiu. You can view the system’s
capabilities at www.gecdf.com/coms.

Application of Terms:

. The terms set forth in this Program Terms lretteall apply onlytto loans with CDF, and will not apply to any ot Commercial
Distribution Finance platform or joint venture (iRV, Yamaha, Suzuki, Polaris Acceptance, Brunswickeptance Company, LLC, et
or any loans with any CDF Affiliate

Confidentiality Agreement:

The rates and terms set forth in this letter areyéor benefit and shall be held in the strictestfidence by you; providetthat you may disclos
the terms hereof to the extent required by applécktws or regulations if you provide CDF with prigritten notice of such disclosure, work
with CDF in good faith to redact any informatiorréia requested by CDF, and provide CDF with an ofoity to seek a protective order w
respect to such information. Subject to the foragpyou will take all reasonable precautions taiesshe confidentiality of this information is
not released to any third party.

PLEASE ACKNOWLEDGE YOUR ACCEPTANCE OF YOUR FINANCIN G TERMS AND RETURN TO [ |
THANK YOU FOR THE OPPORTUNITY TO FINANCE YOUR INVEN TORY NEEDS.

GE COMMERCIAL DISTRIBUTION FINANCE CORPORATION

By:
Name:
Title:

10



NOTE: PORTIONS OF THIS EXHIBIT INDICATED BY[****]” ARE SUBJECT TO A CONFIDENTIAL TREATMENT REQUEST, AN
HAVE BEEN OMITTED FROM THIS EXHIBIT. COMPLETE, UNRBACTED COPIES OF THIS EXHIBIT HAVE BEEN FILED WITH
THE SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION AS PART ORHIS COMPANY’S CONFIDENTIAL TREATMENT REQUEST.

ACCEPTED AS OF AUGUST , 2013:

MARINEMAX, INC.

By:
Name:
Title:

MARINEMAX EAST, INC.

By:
Name:
Title:

MARINEMAX SERVICES, INC.

By:
Name:
Title:

MARINEMAX NORTHEAST, LLC

By:
Name:
Title:

BOATING GEAR CENTER, LLC

By: MARINEMAX EAST, INC., the sole member of BoatjrGear Center, LLC

By:
Name:
Title:

US LIQUIDATORS, LLC

By:
Name:
Title:

NEWCOAST FINANCIAL SERVICES, LLC

By:
Name:
Title:

11



NOTE: PORTIONS OF THIS EXHIBIT INDICATED BY[****]” ARE SUBJECT TO A CONFIDENTIAL TREATMENT REQUEST, AN
HAVE BEEN OMITTED FROM THIS EXHIBIT. COMPLETE, UNRBACTED COPIES OF THIS EXHIBIT HAVE BEEN FILED WITH
THE SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION AS PART ORHIS COMPANY’S CONFIDENTIAL TREATMENT REQUEST.

MY WEB SERVICES, LLC

By: MARINEMAX, INC., the sole member of My Web Séres, LLC

By:
Name:
Title:

MARINEMAX CHARTER SERVICES, LLC

By: MARINEMAX EAST, INC., the sole member of Marikkax Charter Services, LLC

By:
Name:
Title:

12



NOTE: PORTIONS OF THIS EXHIBIT INDICATED BY[****]” ARE SUBJECT TO A CONFIDENTIAL TREATMENT REQUEST, AN
HAVE BEEN OMITTED FROM THIS EXHIBIT. COMPLETE, UNRBACTED COPIES OF THIS EXHIBIT HAVE BEEN FILED WITH
THE SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION AS PART ORHIS COMPANY’S CONFIDENTIAL TREATMENT REQUEST.

Exhibit A
Advance Request Form

GE Commercial Distribution Finance Corporation
5595 Trillium Blvd.
Hoffman Estates IL 60192

Re: Second Amended and Restated Inventory Finagngement, dated August 29, 2014, among MarineNwax,(“Agent”), the other
Dealers party thereto (collectively, together wiilpent, “Dealers”) and GE Commercial Distributiom&nce Corporation (“CDF"), as
amended, modified, restated or replaced from tortarie (the*Agreemer”)

Ladies and Gentlemen:

The undersigned is Agent for Dealers under the Agient and as such is authorized to make and défiseadvance request (this “Request”)
on behalf of Dealers pursuant to Section 1 of theesAment. All capitalized terms used, but not defjrherein have the meanings provided in
the Agreement.

Dealers hereby request that CDF make an advance on ,20__ of $ to Dealers under the terms of the Agreement witpeet to
the following (check one):

pre-owned inventory units with applicable valuasasf five hundred thousand dollars ($500,000.00nore (“Specific Pre-
Owned Item”), subject to the P-Owned Inventory Sublimit and Availability (as defithin the Program Terms Lette

pre-owned inventory units with applicable valuataf less than five hundred thousand dollars ($83R00) (“Other Pré&dwnec
Items”), subject to the P-Owned Inventory Sublimit and Availabilit

units of inventory (excluding used or pre-ownedeintory) for which Dealers have previously made pawyisto CDF (“Re-
Advance Item”), subject to the F-Advance Sublimit and Availability
The undersigned hereby represents, warrants atiflesethat, as of the date hereof,

(a) each representation and warranty made to CDdf by behalf of any Dealer is true and correaifabe date hereof, except to the
extent that such representation or warranty exjyresktes to an earlier date, in which event suggitesentation or warranty was true anc
correct as of such earlier date;

(b) neither a Default nor any event which with tfieing of notice, the passage of time or both wawelsult in a Default has occurred and
is continuing or would reasonably be expected solteafter giving effect to the advance requestertihy [except I;

Program Terms Letter — Exhibit A A-1
KCP-450497--8



NOTE: PORTIONS OF THIS EXHIBIT INDICATED BY[****]” ARE SUBJECT TO A CONFIDENTIAL TREATMENT REQUEST, AN
HAVE BEEN OMITTED FROM THIS EXHIBIT. COMPLETE, UNRBACTED COPIES OF THIS EXHIBIT HAVE BEEN FILED WITH
THE SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION AS PART ORHIS COMPANY’S CONFIDENTIAL TREATMENT REQUEST.

(c) after giving effect to the advance requesteeling the aggregate outstanding amount of the @fidigs (i) will not exceed
Availability, (ii) with respect to pre-owned inveary will not exceed the Pre-Owned Inventory Sulhljriii) with respect to Specific Pre-
Owned Items will not exceed the Specific Pre-OwS8ablimit, (iv) with respect to Other Pre-Owned Itewill not exceed the Other Pre-
Owned Sublimit, and (v) with respect to Re-Advaiteens, will not exceed the Re-Advance Sublimit;

(d) if this Request relates to Specific Pre-Owrtedhk, Exhibit A hereto sets forth, for each Sped#ie-Owned Item, (i) the Dealer who
owns such item, (ii) the location of such item) tine year, make and model, serial number, engiodel, horsepower and serial for such
item, (iv) the NADA low wholesale value and the adee amount requested therefor, and (v) copidseafeports and documents listed
on Exhibit A as “Required Documents”;

(e) if this Request relates to Other Pre-Owned steixhibit B hereto sets forth (i) the date of thest recent borrowing base certificate
and the borrowing base amount shown thereon,difowing base availability as of the date herenf i) borrowing base availability
after the advance request hereby;

(f) if this Request relates to Re-Advance ItemdhiBix C hereto sets forth (i) the specific Re-Adwaritems supporting such advance,
identified by manufacturer, original invoice numpand original invoice date and (ii) the originavdice amount, outstanding amount of
Obligations with respect to such Re-Advance Itend, the re-advance amount requested therefor;

(g) each Specific Pre-Owned Item, Other Pre-Owierth end Re-Advance Item, as applicable, is owneithéyealer identified on the
Exhibits attached hereto, free and clear of alhkjeand CDF holds a first and prior Lien on suchla@eral pursuant to the Agreement,
such Collateral is in good saleable condition (redrmear and tear excepted); and

(h) Dealers will pay CDF for each item of Collatdinanced pursuant to this Request under the temmisconditions of the Agreement.

Executed this _day of |

MarineMax, Inc.

By:
Its:
Typed Name:

Program Terms Letter — Exhibit A A-2
KCP-450497-8



NOTE: PORTIONS OF THIS EXHIBIT INDICATED BY[****]” ARE SUBJECT TO A CONFIDENTIAL TREATMENT REQUEST, AN
HAVE BEEN OMITTED FROM THIS EXHIBIT. COMPLETE, UNRBACTED COPIES OF THIS EXHIBIT HAVE BEEN FILED WITH
THE SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION AS PART ORHIS COMPANY’S CONFIDENTIAL TREATMENT REQUEST.

Exhibit A to Advance Request Form
Specific PreOwned ltems

RE: USED TRADE-IN CIRCLE ONE )

AGENT FOR DEALERS _ MARINE MAX DEALER
NUMBER
UNIT LOCATION
YEAR

MAKE/MODEL
BOAT SERIAL
NUMBER
ENGINE MODEL, HORSEPOWER & SERIAL
NADA (ABOS or BUC) LOW WHOLESALE VALUE FOR BOAT & BGINE
$ VALUE X %

$

DOLLAR AMOUNT OF USED/TRADE REQUEST TO BE ADVANCED
$

REQUIRED DOCUMENTS:

*Attach copy of customer contract for trade-in units/bill of sale and proof of payment for used units.
*Attach copy of completed Title Documents(front andrear) evidencing the boat is free and clear of allens.
*Attach copy of survey/internal condition report

*Attach copy of internal valuation report

*Attach copy of Coast Guard documentation, abstracof title, and bill of sale

Specific Pr-Owned Sublimi $20,000,000

Outstanding Amount with Respect to Spec

Program Terms Letter — Exhibit A A-3
KCP-450497-8
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NOTE: PORTIONS OF THIS EXHIBIT INDICATED BY[****]” ARE SUBJECT TO A CONFIDENTIAL TREATMENT REQUEST, AN
HAVE BEEN OMITTED FROM THIS EXHIBIT. COMPLETE, UNRBACTED COPIES OF THIS EXHIBIT HAVE BEEN FILED WITH
THE SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION AS PART ORHIS COMPANY’S CONFIDENTIAL TREATMENT REQUEST.

Pre-Owned Items

—

Amount of Advance Requested
[not > $2,500,000.0C

—

Outstanding Amount with Respect to Specific Pre-@gvn
After Requested Advance

[(2) + (3] — @

Specific Pre-Owned Sublimit Availability After
Requested Advance

(1) - @] —

Pre-Owned Inventory Sublim $45,000,00 (6)

Outstanding Amount with Respect to Other Pre-Owned
ltems (7

Outstanding Amount with Respect to Specific Pre-@gvn
Items and Other Pre-Owned Items After RequestechAdy

[(5) + ()] . (®

Pre-Owned Inventory Sublimit Availability After
Requested Advance

[(6) - (8)] )

Program Terms Letter — Exhibit A A-4
KCP-450497--8



NOTE: PORTIONS OF THIS EXHIBIT INDICATED BY****]"

ARE SUBJECT TO A CONFIDENTIAL TREATMENT REQUEST, ADI

HAVE BEEN OMITTED FROM THIS EXHIBIT. COMPLETE, UNRBACTED COPIES OF THIS EXHIBIT HAVE BEEN FILED WITH
THE SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION AS PART ORHIS COMPANY’S CONFIDENTIAL TREATMENT REQUEST.

Exhibit B to Advance Request Form

Other PreOwned ltems

Borrowing Base Certificate Date

Borrowing Base Amount

Other Pr-Owned Sublimit

Other Pre-Owned Line of Credit
[Lesser of (1) or (2)

Outstanding Amount with Respect to Other Pre-Owned

Borrowing Base Availability (Payment Required)

[(3) - (4]

Amount of Advance Requested

Outstanding Amount with Respect to Other Pre-Owned
After Requested Advance

[(4) + (B)]

Percentage of Borrowing Base Amount
[(7) 1 (1)] (must be< 80% if certificate date not request
date anc< 100% if certificate date is request de

Borrowing Base Availability After Requested Advance

[(2) - (7)]
Pre-Owned Inventory Sublim

Outstanding Amount with Respect to Specific Pre-@gvn
ltems

Outstanding Amount with Respect to Specific Pre-@gvn
Items and Other Pre-Owned Items After RequestechAck

[(7) + (11)]
Pre-Owned Inventory Sublimit Availability

[(10) - (12)]

Program Terms Letter — Exhibit A
KCP-450497-8

$35,000,00

%

$45,000,00

(1)
()

®3)

(4)

(5)

(6)

()

(8)

(9)
(10)

(11)

(12)

(13)



NOTE: PORTIONS OF THIS EXHIBIT INDICATED BY[****]” ARE SUBJECT TO A CONFIDENTIAL TREATMENT REQUEST, AN
HAVE BEEN OMITTED FROM THIS EXHIBIT. COMPLETE, UNRBACTED COPIES OF THIS EXHIBIT HAVE BEEN FILED WITH
THE SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION AS PART ORHIS COMPANY’S CONFIDENTIAL TREATMENT REQUEST.

DEALER NAME

Exhibit C
Re-Advance Items

DEALER

NUMBER

UNIT

LOCATION

MANUFACTURER

BOAT SERIAL
NUMBER

BOAT MODEL& SERIAL

ORIGINAL INVOICE NUMBER
ORIGINAL INVOICE DATE
ORIGINAL INVOICE AMOUNT

OUTSTANDING AMOUNT WITH
RESPECT TO RE-ADVANCE ITEM

RE-ADVANCE AMOUNT REQUESTED
Re-Advance Sublimi
Re-Advance Amounts within prior 30 Da'

Amount of Advance Request

Re-Advance Amounts within prior 30 Days After

Requested Advance

[(2) + (3]

Re-Advance Sublimit Availability After Requested

Advance

(1) - @]

Program Terms Letter — Exhibit A
KCP-450497-8

1)
(2)
3)
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NOTE: PORTIONS OF THIS EXHIBIT INDICATED BY[****]” ARE SUBJECT TO A CONFIDENTIAL TREATMENT REQUEST, AN
HAVE BEEN OMITTED FROM THIS EXHIBIT. COMPLETE, UNRBACTED COPIES OF THIS EXHIBIT HAVE BEEN FILED WITH
THE SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION AS PART ORHIS COMPANY’S CONFIDENTIAL TREATMENT REQUEST.

Exhibit B
Borrowing Base Certificate Form

Program Terms Letter — Exhibit B B-1
KCP-450497-8



NOTE: PORTIONS OF THIS EXHIBIT INDICATED BY[****]” ARE SUBJECT TO A CONFIDENTIAL TREATMENT REQUEST, AN
HAVE BEEN OMITTED FROM THIS EXHIBIT. COMPLETE, UNRBACTED COPIES OF THIS EXHIBIT HAVE BEEN FILED WITH
THE SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION AS PART ORHIS COMPANY’S CONFIDENTIAL TREATMENT REQUEST.

Exhibit C
Monthly Inventory Certificate Form

Program Terms Letter — Exhibit C Cc-1
KCP-450497-8



Exhibit 21

LIST OF SUBSIDIARIES

State or Jurisdiction of

Name Incorporation or Organization
MarineMax East, Inc. (1) Delaware
MarineMax Services, Inc. (¢ Delaware
MarineMax Northeast, LLC (Z Delaware
Boating Gear Center, LLC (. Delaware

US Liquidators, LLC (1 Delaware
Newcoast Financial Services, LLC | Delaware

My Web Services, LLC (1 Delaware
MarineMax Charter Services, LLC ( Delaware
MarineMax Vacations, LTD (2 British Virgin Islands

(1) Wholly owned subsidiary of MarineMax, In
(2) Wholly owned subsidiary of MarineMax East, |i



Exhibit 23.1
Consent of Independent Registered Public Accountingirm

The Board of Directors
MarineMax, Inc.:

We consent to the incorporation by reference irrdlggstration statements on Form S-8 (Nos. 333-841833-83332,
333-63307, 333-156358 and 333-177019) of MarineNtax, and subsidiaries of our reports dated Decerhbge2014, with respect to the
consolidated balance sheets of MarineMax, Inc.satdidiaries as of September 30, 2013 and 2014hanmetlated statements of operations,
stockholders’ equity and cash flows for each ofytears then ended, and the effectiveness of irteamdrol over financial reporting as of
September 30, 2014 which reports appear in theeBeyEr 30, 2014 annual report on Form 10-K of Maviar, Inc.
/sl KPMG LLF

Tampa, Florida
December 11, 2014
Certified Public Accountants



Exhibit 23.2
Consent of Independent Registered Certified Publid.ccounting Firm

We consent to the incorporation by reference irféHewing Registration Statements:
1) Registration Statement (Forn-8 No. 33-141657) pertaining to the 2007 Incentive Compeanrdglan of MarineMax, Inc
2) Registration Statement (Forn-8 No. 33:-83332) pertaining to the 1998 Incentive Stock RitNarineMax, Inc.

3) Registration Statement (Form S-8 No. 333-633@rjaining to the 1998 Incentive Stock Plan andl®@8 Employee Stock
Purchase Plan of MarineMax, In

4) Registration Statement (Forn-8 No. 33:-156358) pertaining to the 2008 Employee Stock RaselPlan of MarineMax, Inc.; ai
5) Registration Statement (Forn-8 No. 33:-177019) pertaining to the 2011 St-Based Compensation Plan of MarineMax, i

of our report dated December 7, 2012, with resfzetiie consolidated financial statements of MariagMnc. and subsidiaries included in this
Annual Report (Form 10-K) of MarineMax Inc. and sigiaries for the year ended September 30, 2014.

/sl Ernst & Young LLI

Tampa, Florida
December 11, 2014



Exhibit 31.1
CERTIFICATION
[, William H. McGill Jr., certify that:
1. I have reviewed this report on Form 10-K of MaMax, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notador@ny untrue statement of a material fact or enéttate a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circuntgtsunder which such statements were made, niatadisg with respect to the period
covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statememis,other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of opere, and cash flows of the registrant as of, amgthe periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer andre responsible for establishing and maintainisgldsure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&)}%(nd internal control over financial reportirag defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15
(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

a) designed such disclosure controls and procedoresiused such disclosure controls and procedoites designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhsubsidiaries, is made known to us by
others within those entities, particularly duriig period in which this report is being prepared;

b) designed such internal control over financigloréing, or caused such internal control over foialhreporting to be designed
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assareegarding the reliability of financial repodiand the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordancegeitlerally accepted accounting principles;

c) evaluated the effectiveness of the registsagiitsclosure controls and procedures and presentais report our conclusions ab
the effectiveness of the disclosure controls adgatures as of the end of the period covered yréimiort based on such evaluation; anc

d) disclosed in this report any change in the tegi$'s internal control over financial reportirftat occurred during the registrant’s
most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fodigbal quarter in the case of an annual repo#) tlas materially affected, or is reasonably
likely to materially affect, the registrant’s intexl control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer anddve disclosed, based on our most recent evaluatiorernal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitacmmmittee of the registrant’s board of direct@spersons performing the equivalent
functions):

a) all significant deficiencies and material weadges in the design or operation of internal corvelr financial reporting which a
reasonably likely to adversely affect the registsaability to record, process, summarize, and refisancial information; and

b) any fraud, whether or not material, that invelweanagement or other employees who have a signifiole in the registrant’s
internal control over financial reporting.

/s/ WiLLiam H. M cGILL , JR.
William H. McGill Jr.

Chief Executive Office
(Principal Executive Officer

Date: December 11, 2014



Exhibit 31.2
CERTIFICATION
I, Michael H. McLamb, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this report on Form 10-K of MaMax, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notador@ny untrue statement of a material fact or enéttate a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circuntgtsunder which such statements were made, niatadisg with respect to the period
covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statememis,other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of opere, and cash flows of the registrant as of, amgthe periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer andrh responsible for establishing and maintainingld&ire controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&)}%(nd internal control over financial reportirag defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15
(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

a) designed such disclosure controls and procedoresiused such disclosure controls and procedoites designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhubsidiaries, is made known to us by
others within those entities, particularly duriig period in which this report is being prepared;

b) designed such internal control over financigloréing, or caused such internal control over foialreporting to be designed
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assareegarding the reliability of financial repodiand the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordancegeitierally accepted accounting principles;

c) evaluated the effectiveness of the registsagiitsclosure controls and procedures and presentais report our conclusions ab
the effectiveness of the disclosure controls adgatures as of the end of the period covered yréimiort based on such evaluation; anc

d) disclosed in this report any change in the tegi$'s internal control over financial reportirftat occurred during the registrant’s
most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fodigbal quarter in the case of an annual repo#) tlas materially affected, or is reasonably
likely to materially affect, the registrant’s intexl control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer anddve disclosed, based on our most recent evaluatiorernal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitacmmmittee of the registrant’s board of direct@spersons performing the equivalent
functions):

a) all significant deficiencies and material weadges in the design or operation of internal corvelr financial reporting which a
reasonably likely to adversely affect the registsaability to record, process, summarize, and refisancial information; and

b) any fraud, whether or not material, that invelweanagement or other employees who have a signifiole in the registrant’s
internal control over financial reporting.

/s/ MicHAELH. M cL AvB
Michael H. McLamk

Chief Financial Officel
(Principal Financial Officer)

Date: December 11, 2014



Exhibit 32.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report on Form 10{fiMarineMax, Inc. (the “Company”) for the year eddgseptember 30, 2014, as filed
with the Securities and Exchange Commission ord#te hereof (the “Report”), I, William H. McGill JiChief Executive Officer of the

Company, certify, to my best knowledge and befiefsuant to 18 U.S.C. § 1350, as adopted pursad&h906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of
2002, that:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requirementsSeftction 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities ExchangeofA1934 (15 U.S.C. 78m(
or 780(d)); anc

(2) The information contained in the Report faphgsents, in all material respects, the finana@aldition and results of operations of
the Company

/s/ WiLLiam H. M cGILL JR.
William H. McGill Jr.
Chief Executive Office

Date: December 11, 2014



Exhibit 32.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report on Form 10{fiMarineMax, Inc. (the “Company”) for the year eddgseptember 30, 2014, as filed
with the Securities and Exchange Commission ord#tte hereof (the “Report”), I, Michael H. McLamthi€f Financial Officer of the

Company, certify, to my best knowledge and befiefsuant to 18 U.S.C. § 1350, as adopted pursad&h906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of
2002, that:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requirementsSeftction 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities ExchangeofA1934 (15 U.S.C. 78m(
or 780(d)); anc

(2) The information contained in the Report faphgsents, in all material respects, the finana@aldition and results of operations of
the Company

/s/ MICHAEL H. M cL AmB
Michael H. McLamk
Chief Financial Office

Date: December 11, 20:



